
From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
To: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: Letter from Supervisor Preston re 478-484 Haight Street (2016-013012CUA)
Date: Thursday, November 04, 2021 1:52:37 PM
Attachments: Letter to Planning Commission re 478-484 Haight Street (Nov 4, 2021).pdf

 
 
Jonas P Ionin
Director of Commission Affairs
San Francisco Planning
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7589 | www.sfplanning.org
San Francisco Property Information Map
 
 

From: "Smeallie, Kyle (BOS)" <kyle.smeallie@sfgov.org>
Date: Thursday, November 4, 2021 at 1:00 PM
To: "Ionin, Jonas (CPC)" <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>
Cc: "joel.koppel@sfgov.org" <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>, "Moore, Kathrin (CPC)"
<kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>, "Chan, Deland (CPC)" <deland.chan@sfgov.org>, "Diamond,
Susan (CPC)" <sue.diamond@sfgov.org>, "Fung, Frank (CPC)" <frank.fung@sfgov.org>,
Theresa Imperial <theresa.imperial@sfgov.org>, "Tanner, Rachael (CPC)"
<rachael.tanner@sfgov.org>, "May, Christopher (CPC)" <christopher.may@sfgov.org>, Aaron
Starr <aaron.starr@sfgov.org>, "Preston, Dean (BOS)" <dean.preston@sfgov.org>
Subject: Letter from Supervisor Preston re 478-484 Haight Street (2016-013012CUA)
 
Good afternoon Mr. Ionin,
 
Attached please find a letter from Supervisor Preston on the 478-484 Haight Street project before
the Planning Commission today.

I appreciate your attention to this matter.
 
Sincerely,
__
Kyle Smeallie
Legislative Aide, District 5 Supervisor Dean Preston
Office: 415.554.6783
Cell: 571.334.2814
Pronouns: He / His / Him
Sign up for our newsletter!
 
 

mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/
https://fe3f15707564077d741374.pub.s10.sfmc-content.com/j3ltc3jkttv



Member, Board of Supervisors City and County of San Francisco
District 5


DEAN PRESTON


November 4, 2021


San Francisco Planning Commission
Jonas Ionin, Commission Secretary
Via Email: jonas.ionin@sfgov.org


RE: Letter from Supervisor Preston regarding 478-484 Haight Street (2016-013012CUA)


Dear Planning Commissioners:


I am writing with respect to the project at 478-484 Haight Street, which seeks to amend its conditions of
approval relative to Planning Commission Motion No. 20976, adopted September 2, 2021. My office has
heard from a number of concerned neighbors and advocates about this project, in particular its timeline,
and I wanted to convey these concerns to the Commission.


I understand from a briefing by Planning staff that there were discrepancies in the previous
documentation before the Commission. As it has been conveyed, certain portions of the material,
including the motion adopted by the Commission, indicated the project sought to build two on-site BMR
units, while other portions indicated an intent to pay an in lieu fee to satisfy the project’s affordable
housing requirements.


It is concerning to my office that the project sponsor failed to correct this discrepancy at or before the
previous Commission hearing. Commissioners were asked to consider whether the project is necessary
and desirable to the neighborhood, and adding two affordable, on-site units can reasonably be expected to
influence that decision.  I find it troubling that the Commission is now being asked to amend this
decision just two months later.


My office has consistently supported on-site affordable housing in new development, and have met with
skepticism proposals that seek post-facto permission to amend plans to allow for the project sponsor to
fee out. At a basic level, we believe that affordable units should be mixed with market rate units to the
greatest extent possible, rather than separating the affordable units, to be developed at a date uncertain.
On a more practical level, the process for calculating in lieu fees does not appear to be sufficient. While
this may be an issue related more to the Planning Code and less to its application to the item before the
Commission, it does highlight the problem. Rather than getting two on-site affordable units, the amended
conditions of approval will allow for payment of a fee that will cover just a fraction of the true cost of
developing just one unit of affordable housing.







Letter from Supervisor Preston regarding 478-484 Haight Street (2016-013012CUA)
November 4, 2021
Page 2


At the prior hearing, the project sponsor referenced a community meeting held in September 2017, at
which time the project featured two on-site affordable units. It is reasonable to ask the question whether
the reception would be the same if the sponsor had made clear that this would bring a 100% market-rate
project to the neighborhood, with zero on-site affordable units.


I want to thank Commissioners for your time and consideration in this matter.


Sincerely,


Dean Preston
District 5 Supervisor


CC: President Joel Koppel
Vice-President Kathrin Moore
Commissioner Deland Chan
Commissioner Sue Diamond
Commissioner Frank Fung
Commissioner Theresa Imperial
Commissioner Rachael Tanner
Aaron Starr
Christopher May


City Hall • 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place • Room 274 • San Francisco, California 94102-4689 • (415) 554-7630
Fax (415) 554-7634 • TDD/TTY (415) 554-5227 • E-mail: Dean.Preston@sfgov.org



mailto:Dean.Preston@sfgov.org





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
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From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
To: Jimenez, Sylvia (CPC); Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: NO TO SWEETGREEN!!!
Date: Thursday, November 04, 2021 12:16:25 PM

Commission Affairs
San Francisco Planning
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7600 | www.sfplanning.org
San Francisco Property Information Map
 

-----Original Message-----
From: Jaymie Oppenheim <jaymieoppenheim@gmail.com>
Sent: Thursday, November 04, 2021 12:14 PM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
<jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>
Cc: Koppel, Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>; Moore, Kathrin (CPC) <kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>; Chan,
Deland (CPC) <deland.chan@sfgov.org>; Diamond, Susan (CPC) <sue.diamond@sfgov.org>; Fung, Frank (CPC)
<frank.fung@sfgov.org>; Imperial, Theresa (CPC) <theresa.imperial@sfgov.org>; Tanner, Rachael (CPC)
<rachael.tanner@sfgov.org>
Subject: NO TO SWEETGREEN!!!

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources.

This is not what the neighborhood needs!!!

mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org
mailto:Sylvia.Jimenez@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org


 
This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
To: Jimenez, Sylvia (CPC); Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: Sweetgreen at 2040 Chestnut Street NO NO NO
Date: Thursday, November 04, 2021 12:16:19 PM

 
 
 
Commission Affairs
San Francisco Planning
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7600 | www.sfplanning.org
San Francisco Property Information Map

 
 

From: Jeb Hollingsworth <jeb.hollingsworth@gmail.com> 
Sent: Thursday, November 04, 2021 11:42 AM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
<jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>
Cc: Koppel, Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>; Moore, Kathrin (CPC) <kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>;
Chan, Deland (CPC) <deland.chan@sfgov.org>; Diamond, Susan (CPC) <sue.diamond@sfgov.org>;
Fung, Frank (CPC) <frank.fung@sfgov.org>; Imperial, Theresa (CPC) <theresa.imperial@sfgov.org>;
Tanner, Rachael (CPC) <rachael.tanner@sfgov.org>
Subject: Sweetgreen at 2040 Chestnut Street NO NO NO
 

 

The neighborhood does not need another chain restaurant/coffee shop further congesting the
streets! 
 
--
Jeb Hollingsworth
 

mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org
mailto:Sylvia.Jimenez@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/


From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED CELEBRATES GRAND OPENING OF NEW AFFORDABLE

HOUSING BY THE NORTHEAST WATERFRONT
Date: Thursday, November 04, 2021 12:10:06 PM
Attachments: 11.04.2021 Broadway Cove & 735 Davis.pdf

 
 
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
 
 

From: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Date: Thursday, November 4, 2021 at 12:09 PM
To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED CELEBRATES GRAND OPENING OF
NEW AFFORDABLE HOUSING BY THE NORTHEAST WATERFRONT
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Thursday, November 4, 2021
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED CELEBRATES GRAND OPENING

OF NEW AFFORDABLE HOUSING BY THE NORTHEAST
WATERFRONT

Housing developments Broadway Cove and 735 Davis open their doors to 178 families and
seniors

 
San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed, City Attorney David Chiu, Supervisor Aaron
Peskin, and community leaders today celebrated the grand opening of two new affordable
housing developments, Broadway Cove and 735 Davis. Located at 88 Broadway, Broadway
Cove consists of 125 permanently affordable apartments for families, while 735 Davis consists
of 53 units for seniors.
 
The new apartments at Broadway Cove are available to households with incomes ranging
between 30-120% of the Area Median Income (AMI). Over 30 of the family units are
supported by Project-Based Section 8 Vouchers and will house residents of the HOPE SF
Potrero public housing site who have accepted the opportunity to relocate, while City-
sponsored subsidy programs support 28 of the senior apartments located at 735 Davis.
 
“To address our City’s housing crisis, we need to be willing to take on projects like the ones
we are celebrating today,” said Mayor Breed. “As we recover from this pandemic and fully
reopen our economy, it is critical for San Franciscans to have the opportunity to live and thrive

mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/
mailto:mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org
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


between 30-120% of the Area Median Income (AMI). Over 30 of the family units are supported 


by Project-Based Section 8 Vouchers and will house residents of the HOPE SF Potrero public 


housing site who have accepted the opportunity to relocate, while City-sponsored subsidy 


programs support 28 of the senior apartments located at 735 Davis.  


 


“To address our City’s housing crisis, we need to be willing to take on projects like the ones we 


are celebrating today,” said Mayor Breed. “As we recover from this pandemic and fully reopen 


our economy, it is critical for San Franciscans to have the opportunity to live and thrive in the 


city they call home. I will continue to do all that I can to ensure that that our residents, especially 


our families and seniors, have a safe and dignified place to live.” 


 


In October 2018, Mayor Breed announced a $1.5 million investment to ensure 735 Davis would 


be affordable to very low-income seniors through the Senior Operating Subsidy (SOS) program. 


The funding cuts rents in half for 13 senior housing units, lowering the monthly rent for a one-


bedroom apartment from $1,538 to $769. Additionally, 15 units are supported by the Local 


Operating Subsidy Program (LOSP), part of Mayor Breed’s Homelessness Recovery Plan. 


 


Before the development of affordable housing, 88 Broadway served as a surface parking lot 


owned by the Port of San Francisco on a parcel that was formerly occupied by the Embarcadero 


Freeway. 735 Davis is a former San Francisco Public Works parking lot transferred to the 


Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community Development (MOHCD) through the City’s surplus 


land ordinance to make developable sites available for affordable housing on public lands. 


 


In 2018, then-Assemblymember David Chiu, who now serves as San Francisco City Attorney, 


authored Assembly Bill (AB) 1423 to permit the City to build affordable housing at 88 



mailto:mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org
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Broadway. AB 1423 also clarified that 88 Broadway could include a childcare facility and a 


ground floor restaurant. 


 


“This is exactly the type of housing we need in San Francisco,” said City Attorney David Chiu. 


“These projects will provide 178 affordable homes to our families and seniors. I was more than 


happy to author legislation as an Assemblymember to ensure this project moved forward and 


families would have the amenities they need.” 


 


With a particular focus on meeting the housing needs of the surrounding neighborhood, of the 


129 units available through the affordable housing lottery, 40%, or 51 homes, were available to 


applicants with the Neighborhood Resident Housing Preference. The two developments 


collectively feature approximately 10,500 square feet of retail/commercial space targeted to 


neighborhood-serving uses, including a 55-slot mixed-income childcare center operated by the 


YMCA of San Francisco. There is also a 9,500 square-foot mid-block public walkway publicly 


accessible between the two sites, with landscaping and seating. 


 


“I am incredibly proud to have fought for and secured 100% affordable housing (and one park) 


on the four parcels liberated by the teardown of the Embarcadero Freeway,” said Supervisor 


Aaron Peskin, who has represented the northeast corner of the City on and off for two decades. 


“Broadway Cove/735 Davis are especially significant because they are the first of the sites to 


benefit from our SOS subsidies for seniors program. It’s very moving to have served long 


enough to see this last freeway parcel welcome residents home.” 


 


“The Port is deeply committed to a waterfront for everyone and is proud to own and provide the 


land at 88 Broadway for San Francisco for families and seniors to live well in our City,” said 


Elaine Forbes, Executive Director of the Port of San Francisco. “The 88 Broadway community 


symbolizes joy and opportunity and is a wonderful addition to our renowned waterfront.”         


 


BRIDGE Housing and The John Stewart Company were partners on this multi-building 


development. They enlisted local architecture firm Leddy Maytum Stacy and Cahill Contractors 


to bring this project to completion. 


 


“This was a rare opportunity to bring a much-needed range of affordability and services to the 


neighborhood,” said Susan Johnson, BRIDGE Housing Interim President & CEO. “We’re proud 


to team up with The John Stewart Company and our public- and private-sector partners on this 


effort to serve people, from the city’s most vulnerable seniors to working families.” 


 


 “Completion of this innovative project realizes John Stewart’s vision for what he called ‘the 


mother of all mixed-use projects,’ meaning an affordable and inclusive community with family 


and senior units, residents ranging from the formerly homeless to the ‘missing middle,’ 


supportive services for all residents and an on-site mixed-income childcare center – all on 


publicly-owned land with unparalleled views and proximity to the Bay. John spent many hours 


appearing at Port Commission, Board and community meetings championing this project, and we 
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are absolutely thrilled to have helped bring it to fruition,” said Jack Gardner, President & CEO of 


the John Stewart Company. 


 


“We’ve lived in the neighborhood my whole life, and with a family of five, our apartment was 


very crowded,” said Broadway Cove resident Tammy Z., who moved in under the Neighborhood 


Resident Housing Preference program. “Broadway Cove is a gift that changed our lives, as my 


sister and I still live close to our parents, but for the first time, we have our own rooms.” Tammy 


works as a customer service manager at a local music school and is also studying at City College 


of San Francisco. 


 


Major financing for both Broadway Cove and 735 Davis includes a $50 million investment for 


building construction from MOHCD that enabled the $140 million (combined) projects to move 


forward. In addition to the City’s investment, Bank of America, the California Tax Credit 


Allocation Committee, and Barings Multifamily Capital LLC contributed to 88 Broadway, while 


the Federal Home Loan Bank of San Francisco contributed to 735 Davis. 


 


“Bank of America Community Development Banking is pleased to provide more than $125 


million in debt and equity financing to help create much-needed affordable housing for families 


in San Francisco,” said Liz Minick, San Francisco-East Bay Market Executive at Bank of 


America. “Broadway Cove and 735 Davis are great examples of the impact public-private 


partnerships can make to support the communities where we work and live.” 


 


Broadway Cove is a six-story building that includes studios, one-bedroom, two-bedroom, and 


three-bedroom apartments. 735 Davis is a six-story building that includes studios and one-


bedroom apartments. Both projects started construction in June 2019 and were completed in 


December 2020 (735 Davis) and March 2021 (88 Broadway), with the grand opening delayed 


due to the COVID-19 pandemic. 


 


### 







in the city they call home. I will continue to do all that I can to ensure that that our residents,
especially our families and seniors, have a safe and dignified place to live.”
 
In October 2018, Mayor Breed announced a $1.5 million investment to ensure 735 Davis
would be affordable to very low-income seniors through the Senior Operating Subsidy (SOS)
program. The funding cuts rents in half for 13 senior housing units, lowering the monthly rent
for a one-bedroom apartment from $1,538 to $769. Additionally, 15 units are supported by the
Local Operating Subsidy Program (LOSP), part of Mayor Breed’s Homelessness Recovery
Plan.
 
Before the development of affordable housing, 88 Broadway served as a surface parking lot
owned by the Port of San Francisco on a parcel that was formerly occupied by the
Embarcadero Freeway. 735 Davis is a former San Francisco Public Works parking lot
transferred to the Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community Development (MOHCD)
through the City’s surplus land ordinance to make developable sites available for affordable
housing on public lands.
 
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
 
“This is exactly the type of housing we need in San Francisco,” said City Attorney David
Chiu. “These projects will provide 178 affordable homes to our families and seniors. I was
more than happy to author legislation as an Assemblymember to ensure this project moved
forward and families would have the amenities they need.”
 
With a particular focus on meeting the housing needs of the surrounding neighborhood, of the
129 units available through the affordable housing lottery, 40%, or 51 homes, were available
to applicants with the Neighborhood Resident Housing Preference. The two developments
collectively feature approximately 10,500 square feet of retail/commercial space targeted to
neighborhood-serving uses, including a 55-slot mixed-income childcare center operated by the
YMCA of San Francisco. There is also a 9,500 square-foot mid-block public walkway
publicly accessible between the two sites, with landscaping and seating.
 
“I am incredibly proud to have fought for and secured 100% affordable housing (and one
park) on the four parcels liberated by the teardown of the Embarcadero Freeway,” said
Supervisor Aaron Peskin, who has represented the northeast corner of the City on and off for
two decades. “Broadway Cove/735 Davis are especially significant because they are the first
of the sites to benefit from our SOS subsidies for seniors program. It’s very moving to have
served long enough to see this last freeway parcel welcome residents home.”
 
“The Port is deeply committed to a waterfront for everyone and is proud to own and provide
the land at 88 Broadway for San Francisco for families and seniors to live well in our City,”
said Elaine Forbes, Executive Director of the Port of San Francisco. “The 88 Broadway
community symbolizes joy and opportunity and is a wonderful addition to our renowned
waterfront.”       
 
BRIDGE Housing and The John Stewart Company were partners on this multi-building
development. They enlisted local architecture firm Leddy Maytum Stacy and Cahill



Contractors to bring this project to completion.
 
“This was a rare opportunity to bring a much-needed range of affordability and services to the
neighborhood,” said Susan Johnson, BRIDGE Housing Interim President & CEO. “We’re
proud to team up with The John Stewart Company and our public- and private-sector partners
on this effort to serve people, from the city’s most vulnerable seniors to working families.”
 
“Completion of this innovative project realizes John Stewart’s vision for what he called ‘the
mother of all mixed-use projects,’ meaning an affordable and inclusive community with
family and senior units, residents ranging from the formerly homeless to the ‘missing middle,’
supportive services for all residents and an on-site mixed-income childcare center – all on
publicly-owned land with unparalleled views and proximity to the Bay. John spent many hours
appearing at Port Commission, Board and community meetings championing this project, and
we are absolutely thrilled to have helped bring it to fruition,” said Jack Gardner, President &
CEO of the John Stewart Company.
 
“We’ve lived in the neighborhood my whole life, and with a family of five, our apartment was
very crowded,” said Broadway Cove resident Tammy Z., who moved in under the
Neighborhood Resident Housing Preference program. “Broadway Cove is a gift that changed
our lives, as my sister and I still live close to our parents, but for the first time, we have our
own rooms.” Tammy works as a customer service manager at a local music school and is also
studying at City College of San Francisco.
 
Major financing for both Broadway Cove and 735 Davis includes a $50 million investment for
building construction from MOHCD that enabled the $140 million (combined) projects to
move forward. In addition to the City’s investment, Bank of America, the California Tax
Credit Allocation Committee, and Barings Multifamily Capital LLC contributed to 88
Broadway, while the Federal Home Loan Bank of San Francisco contributed to 735 Davis.
 
“Bank of America Community Development Banking is pleased to provide more than $125
million in debt and equity financing to help create much-needed affordable housing for
families in San Francisco,” said Liz Minick, San Francisco-East Bay Market Executive at
Bank of America. “Broadway Cove and 735 Davis are great examples of the impact public-
private partnerships can make to support the communities where we work and live.”

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
Subject: FW: 1320 Washington Street (2018-007380PRJ)
Date: Thursday, November 04, 2021 11:50:21 AM
Attachments: 1340 Letter of Support for 1320.pdf

 
 
 
Commission Affairs
San Francisco Planning
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7600 | www.sfplanning.org
San Francisco Property Information Map

 
 

From: Laura Strazzo <laura@zfplaw.com> 
Sent: Thursday, November 04, 2021 11:08 AM
To: Perry, Andrew (CPC) <andrew.perry@sfgov.org>; CPC-Commissions Secretary
<commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Asbagh, Claudine (CPC) <claudine.asbagh@sfgov.org>
Cc: mas@reubenlaw.com
Subject: 1320 Washington Street (2018-007380PRJ)
 

 

Hello,
 
My office represents the owners of 1340 Washington Street. We would like to submit the attached
letter of support for 2018-007380PRJ, which is on the Planning Commission hearing calendar for
today. Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any questions.
 
Sincerely,
 
Laura Strazzo
Zacks, Freedman & Patterson, PC
601 Montgomery Street, Suite 400
San Francisco, CA 94111
Telephone: (415) 956-8100
Facsimile: (415) 288-9755
www.zfplaw.com
 
PLEASE NOTE THAT ZACKS, FREEDMAN & PATTERSON HAS MOVED.
 
This communication and its contents may contain confidential and/or privileged material for the sole
use of the intended recipient. Any review or distribution by others is strictly prohibited. If you are
not the intended recipient, please contact the sender and delete all copies. Unless expressly stated,

mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/
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nothing in this communication should be regarded as tax advice.
 



 
This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from

From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC); Perry, Andrew (CPC)
Subject: FW: 1320 Washington Street
Date: Thursday, November 04, 2021 10:30:21 AM

 
 
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
 
 

From: "Hepner, Lee (BOS)" <lee.hepner@sfgov.org>
Date: Friday, October 29, 2021 at 5:26 PM
To: "Ionin, Jonas (CPC)" <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>
Subject: FW: 1320 Washington Street
 
Please see the below correspondence regarding the subject project on next week’s Planning
Commission agenda.
 
Thanks,
 
Lee Hepner
Legislative Aide
Supervisor Aaron Peskin
(415) 554-7419 | pronouns: he, him, his
 
District 3 Website
Sign up for our newsletter here!
 
 
 

From: Peskin, Aaron (BOS) <aaron.peskin@sfgov.org> 
Sent: Friday, October 29, 2021 2:23 PM
To: Hepner, Lee (BOS) <lee.hepner@sfgov.org>
Subject: Fwd: 1320 Washington Street

From: Mark Anderson <mark.s.anderson1@gmail.com>
Sent: Friday, October 29, 2021 12:31:57 PM
To: Peskin, Aaron (BOS) <aaron.peskin@sfgov.org>
Subject: 1320 Washington Street
 

mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
mailto:andrew.perry@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/
https://sfbos.org/supervisor-peskin
https://fe3615707564077d701379.pub.s10.sfmc-content.com/jmzpnsbhaly
mailto:mark.s.anderson1@gmail.com
mailto:aaron.peskin@sfgov.org


untrusted sources.

 

Dear Supervisor Peskin,
 
We are Mark and Robin  Anderson and live at 1333 Jones Street.  1320 Washington is currently a
parking garage located across the street from our unit.  A developer has proposed to demolish the
two story parking garage and build a new condominium building in its place.  The new building will
be 6 stories tall and rising to the height of over 70 feet.  The current zoning is for only a 40 foot
building and all the other buildings on the north side of Washington are four stories tall and about
40 feet tall.  The new building will be totally out of character for the neighborhood, will block views
and sunshine and will eliminate badly needed parking for Nob Hill.
 
It is very upsetting that a developer can ask for a waiver from zoning requirements just so they can
make more money.  Folks in the neighborhood (including us!) relied on the 40 foot height limitation
when we bought our property.  We are all for more housing but the building height should be
limited to 40 feet like the Planning Code requires.  Is there anything that you can do to help us limit
the height of the proposed new building?  The hearing for a Conditional Use Permit is this coming
Thursday November 4.
 
Thank you for your time and consideration.
 
Mark and Robin Anderson
1333 Jones Street, #506
510 816 4731



From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: 2004 Chestnut -- Sweetgreens
Date: Thursday, November 04, 2021 10:24:26 AM

Jonas P Ionin
Director of Commission Affairs
San Francisco Planning
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7589 | www.sfplanning.org <http://www.sfplanning.org/>
San Francisco Property Information Map <https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/>

﻿On 11/2/21, 2:54 PM, "Russell Long" <russelllong@me.com> wrote:

    This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources.

    I’d like to request your help and support by opposing Sweet Water’s use/occupancy permit request. This is
primarily a take-out establishment, and will extend traffic jams on Chestnut St, as well as creating parking blockages
while Door Dash and Uber drivers await food. Marina residents such as myself will be greatly inconvenienced.

    Thank you,

    Russell Long
    29 Toledo Way
    415-302-4824

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
Subject: FW: THD COMMENT LETTER - Opposition to 425 Broadway (Case No. 2017-15678CUA)
Date: Thursday, November 04, 2021 10:23:47 AM
Attachments: THD Ltr_425 Broadway_FINAL 11-2-21.pdf

 
 
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
 
 

From: Stan Hayes <stanhayes1967@gmail.com>
Date: Tuesday, November 2, 2021 at 3:41 PM
To: "joel.koppel@sfgov.org" <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>
Cc: "Moore, Kathrin (CPC)" <kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>, "Chan, Deland (CPC)"
<deland.chan@sfgov.org>, "Diamond, Susan (CPC)" <sue.diamond@sfgov.org>, "Fung, Frank
(CPC)" <frank.fung@sfgov.org>, Theresa Imperial <theresa.imperial@sfgov.org>,
"Rachel.Tanner@sfgov.org" <Rachel.Tanner@sfgov.org>, "Ionin, Jonas (CPC)"
<jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>, "Asbagh, Claudine (CPC)" <claudine.asbagh@sfgov.org>, "Peskin,
Aaron (BOS)" <aaron.peskin@sfgov.org>
Subject: THD COMMENT LETTER - Opposition to 425 Broadway (Case No. 2017-15678CUA)
 

 

President Koppel and Commissioners -
 
On behalf of the Telegraph Hill Dwellers, please accept this letter OPPOSING the project at
425 Broadway as it is proposed. 
 
Please feel free to contact us if you would like to discuss any of our comments.
 
Regards,
 
Stan Hayes
 
Co-Chair, Planning & Zoning Committee
Telegraph Hill Dwellers
 

mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
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https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/



  
   


 


November 2, 2021     
 
Joel Koppel 
San Francisco Planning Commission 
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400 
San Francisco, CA 94103 
(Via email: joel.koppel@sfgov.org)  
 
RE: OPPOSITION to 425 Broadway (Case No. 2017-15678CUA) 
 
Dear President Koppel and Commissioners, 


 On behalf of the Telegraph Hill Dwellers (THD), we express our opposition to the mixed-use 
project at 425 Broadway as it is proposed. This project is comprised of two mixed-use buildings – one 
on Broadway and a second building on Montgomery Street, legally separated by Verdi Place, a 20-foot-
wide public right of way from Montgomery, and a city-owned sewer easement reserved within the 
former extension of Verdi Place. 


We are concerned about the size and design of the two buildings, their lack of compatibility 
with other nearby buildings in the Jackson Square Historic District Extension where the project site is 
located, and the failure to the Planning Department to analyze important health and safety impacts of 
the buildings (including geotechnical, structural, shadowing, and traffic) by declaring the project 
exempt from all CEQA review. We are also concerned that the project would not only impact the health 
and safety of the residents of the adjacent SRO hotel, but would also contribute to gentrification leading 
to the displacement of low-income and senior residents of multiple Single Room Occupancy (SRO) 
hotels in the immediate vicinity of the project. 


In addition, we are concerned that the project’s posted notice did not comply with the 
requirements of the Section 333 of the San Francisco Planning Code, which requires such notices to 
include the languages spoken by non-English speaking persons – here a substantial number of the 
residents of the nearby low-income SRO hotels and apartment buildings speak only Cantonese. 


Also, we note that the draft motion for the project appears to authorize a “public parking 
garage” (see Draft Motion, Exhibit A, “Authorization”). No such garage is shown on the project 
sponsor’s plans, nor has it been discussed earlier. If incorrect, the draft motion should be revised.  


Health, Safety and Livability Impacts on Adjacent Low-Income and Senior Residents 


Most importantly, we ask the Planning Commission to consider the project’s adverse and direct 
impacts on the health, safely and liveability of the very low income and senior residents of the 
immediately adjacent SRO hotel at 401-407 Broadway (New Rex Hotel), home to 39 low-income 
households occupying rooms with limited exterior windows. 


The height and bulk of the proposed Montgomery building, which would be located along Verdi 
Place, the 20-foot wide east-west facing public right-of-way, would block light and air to all south-
facing windows of the New Rex Hotel, while the height and bulk of the proposed Broadway building, 
towering over the New Rex Hotel, would block light and air to its West-facing windows despite two 
proposed matching air wells.   
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The project sponsor’s own shadow study (see Figure 1) provides substantial evidence that that 
these windows would be in near-perpetual shade. These shadow impacts on the low-income and senior 
residents of the immediately adjacent New Rex SRO hotel are specific and direct adverse impacts on 
public health and safety and on the physical environment that would allow the Planning Commission to 
deny a requested incentive, concession, or waiver if it makes a written finding of such adverse impacts. 


Gentrification and Displacement 


Broadway is a major corridor for very low-income housing, including numerous SRO hotels 
and low rent apartments in addition to the New Rex Hotel. Other immediately adjacent SRO residence 
hotels (see Figure 1 and the project sponsor’s photos in Figure 2) include the Golden Eagle SRO 
residence hotel at 400 Broadway (118 rooms), On Lok SRO for seniors at 1000-1010 Montgomery (41 
rooms), and the SRO residence hotel at 381-389 Broadway (49 rooms). While the construction of the 
proposed new market-rate housing development at 425 Broadway does not directly displace existing 
residents or community-serving businesses, the cumulative effect of creating high-end unaffordable 
housing at 425 Broadway, together with the market rate housing proposed nearby at 955 Sansome and 
875 Sansome, will stimulate further real estate speculation almost certainly resulting in the 
gentrification of the Broadway Corridor, leading to the loss of affordable housing for the very poor and 
the displacement of very low-income, monolingual families from their homes. 


Required Commission Actions 


For the project to proceed the Commission must: (1) adopt findings to approve requested 
Conditional Use Authorizations; and (2) adopt findings that the requested State Density Bonus waivers 
and incentives will result in actual cost reductions for the affordable housing in the project, and that the 
requested waivers and incentives will not negatively impact public health, safety, or historic property. 
In addition, the Commission must adopt the Department’s determination that the project is exempt from 
the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). 


1. Please Deny the Project’s Requested Conditional Use Authorizations.  


To grant a CUA, Section 303 requires the Commission to find that the proposed use, at the size 
and intensity contemplated, is necessary or desirable for, and compatible with, the neighborhood or the 
community; and that the proposed use size will not be detrimental to the health, safety, convenience, or 
general welfare of persons residing or working in the vicinity.  


o Please Deny the Office Space CUA. 


Non-residential use sizes in the Broadway NCD are limited to 2,999 sq. ft. unless the 
Commission grants a CUA. Here the project is requesting a total of 23,675 sq. ft. of non-residential 
use, of which 18,735 sq. ft. is for office use, more than six times the 2,999 square feet non-residential 
use limit for this district. As shown on the project sponsor’s plans (Figure 3), the inclusion of the 
proposed non-residential office use would substantially increase the height of each of the buildings. 
This excessive amount of office space unnecessarily expands the size of each of the two buildings, 
while millions of square feet of office space in the City go unleased.  


Given the project’s significant impact on the health, safety and liveability of the low income and 
senior residents in the immediately adjacent SRO hotel due to the project’s size and height, together 
with the project’s role in fuelling the gentrification of the Broadway Corridor leading to displacement 
of low-income, monolingual families, we believe the Commission cannot make the required findings to 
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grant this CUA. The request to exceed the non-residential use limit as proposed is not necessary or 
desirable for or compatible with the neighborhood and will be detrimental to the health, safety, 
convenience, or general welfare of persons residing or working in the vicinity. Please deny the CUA to 
allow the project to exceed the non-residential use limit in the Broadway NCD.  


o Please Deny the CUA to exceed 40 feet in height in the Broadway NCD. 


The project sponsor has requested a CUA to allow each of the two buildings to exceed 40 feet in 
height. Planning Code Section 253.1 requires the Commission to make specific findings before a CUA 
can be approved for a new building in the Broadway NCD that would exceed 40 feet in height and 
prohibits the Commission from approving any new building that exceeds 65 feet.  


In addition to the Section 303 findings listed above, the Commission is required by Section 
253.1 to find that “The height of the new or expanding development will be compatible with the 
individual neighborhood character and the height and scale of the adjacent buildings.” 


The project is located within the Jackson Square Historic District Extension, which is listed on 
the California Register of Historic Places. The buildings in this historic district are characterized by 2- 
to 3-story brick regular building forms with string courses, cornices, and deep window and door 
openings. By a significant margin, the proposed Montgomery building would be the tallest building in 
the historic district, rising 76 feet above its base on Montgomery Street. As illustrated by the project 
sponsor’s own rendering reproduced in Figure 4, the project sponsor’s characterization of the 
Montgomery building as 64 feet in height is substantially misleading. The figure clearly shows that the 
Montgomery building is actually 76 feet above Montgomery Street. There are two separate buildings 
proposed on this downward sloping site, separated by a strip of land that cannot be built upon – a public 
right of way (Verdi Place) and a city-owned sewer easement. By all logic, the height of each of these 
buildings should be calculated separately. If so, the Montgomery building would exceed the 65-foot 
height limit for this site and, therefore, could not be approved by the Commission.  


Given that the height of the proposed new buildings would not be compatible with the character 
of the Jackson Square Historic District Extension and would exceed the height and scale of the adjacent 
historic buildings on Broadway, we do not believe that the findings required by Planning Code 253.1 to 
grant a CUA for heights above 40 feet can be made. Further, as discussed above, granting a CUA for 
the heights of these buildings would be detrimental to the health and safety and general welfare of 
persons residing in the vicinity – specifically to the low-income residents in the adjacent New Rex 
Hotel.  


Further, the material of the buildings is incompatible with the character of the historic buildings 
in the surrounding historic district. The “thin brick tile” as specified on the plans is incompatible with 
the district, as is the dark black color of the Broadway building and a significant portion of the 
Montgomery building. Please deny the CUA to allow the project to exceed 40 feet. 


2. Please Deny the Project’s Requested Incentives/Concessions and Waivers.  


Because the project proposes to use the State Density Bonus Law, the Commission must adopt 
findings related to the requested waivers and incentives or concessions. According to the Department’s 
staff report for the November 4th hearing, the project is requesting an incentive to exceed the non-
residential use limitation of 2,999 sq. ft. and three (3) waivers from Planning Code development 
standards including waivers from the minimum requirements for Rear Yard (Sec. 134), Dwelling Unit 
Exposure (Sec. 140), and Bulk Limits (Sec. 270). 
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o The Commission Lacks Information to Adopt Findings to Allow the Incentive. 


The State Law provides that an incentive is allowed if “required to provide for affordable 
housing costs.” CA Govt. Code Section 65915(k). The Planning Director’s Bulletin No.6 (updated June 
2021) at page 5 provides that: 


“[T]he Planning Commission must adopt findings that the requested incentives will result in 
actual cost reductions for the project, and the requested waivers and incentives will not 
negatively impact public health, safety, or historic property.” 


We are aware of no financial proforma or other financial data available to the Commission as 
would be necessary for it to adopt the required findings. We therefore urge the Planning Commission to 
require an adequately detailed financial proforma and/or other financial data prior to adopting findings 
that the requested incentives will result in actual cost reductions for the affordable housing in the 
project. 


o Please Deny the Requested Incentive and Waivers. 


The State Density Bonus Law allows the Commission to deny a requested incentive, 
concession, or waiver if it makes a written finding, based on substantial evidence, of any of the 
following: 


• The concession, incentive, or waiver would have a specific, adverse impact on public 
health and safety or upon the physical environment,  


• The concession, incentive, or waiver would have a specific, adverse impact on a 
property listed on the California Register of Historic Places, or 


• The concession or incentive would not result in identifiable and actual cost reductions 
required to provide for the affordable housing units. 


 
The project’s requested incentive would allow the inclusion of 18,735 square feet of 


“professional office” space in the proposed project. The Commission can deny a requested incentive, 
concession, or waiver if it makes a written finding, based on substantial evidence before it, that the 
concession, incentive, or waiver would have a specific, adverse impact on public health and safety 
or upon the physical environment. As discussed above, we believe there is substantial evidence, based 
on the project sponsor’s own shadow study, that the frequent shadows on the adjacent the SRO hotel at 
401 Broadway (New Rex Hotel) that would result from the project’s requested incentive and waivers 
would have a specific, adverse impact on public health and safety of the residents of the hotel, 
allowing the Commission to deny the requested incentive as well as one or more waivers. The 
elimination of the office space from the proposed project would reduce the height of the buildings, 
mitigating the specific, adverse impact on public health caused by project’s shadow impacts as well as 
the specific, adverse impact on historic resources. 


Unfortunately, there is inadequate financial information available to the Commission to make a 
finding that the incentive or a waiver would not result in identifiable and actual cost reductions required 
to provide for the five units of affordable housing in the project. 
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o Urgent Need to Develop, Adopt, and Apply Objective and Standardized Procedures 
for State Density Bonus Projects. 


We are concerned that there has not been a sufficient demonstration of the project’s 
qualification for the incentive/concession or waivers requested by the project sponsor under the State 
Density Bonus Law and that the Department has not developed, adopted, or applied an objective, 
quantitative, and standardized procedure for making such demonstrations. As a result, the Commission 
has insufficient information before it to make the required findings. 


And, as members of the public, we are also entitled to adequate and publicly available financial 
and other justification for the requested density bonus incentives and waivers, with more detailed and 
meaningful financial and other analyses submitted to the Commission to more fully demonstrate that 
the requested waivers will not negatively impact public health, safety, or historic property. 


3. Please Reject the Categorical Exemption and Require Environmental Review. 


We urge the Commission to reject the project’s flawed determination that the project is exempt 
from environmental review and to require an EIR. The Department’s conclusion that this project is 
exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) effectively “scopes out” and bypasses 
without analysis the significance of the environmental impacts of this project and, where appropriate, 
their mitigation. Such impacts could include, without limitation:  


• Geotechnical - impacts of building excavation and construction on adjoining older, particularly 
susceptible buildings, especially the SRO residence hotel at 401-407 Broadway, which was 
constructed in 1907 and that would be vulnerable to excavation and construction impacts on two 
of its four sides, as well the building at 435-443 Broadway, also constructed in 1906, located 
immediately to the west of the proposed Broadway building 
 


• Health and safety - impacts of loss of light and air on low-income and senior tenants of nearby 
SRO residence hotels 
 


• Displacement – impacts of the introduction of new market-rate luxury condominiums on the 
continuing availability and viability of nearby SRO residence hotels and other low-income 
housing in the project vicinity 
 


• Historic resources – impacts of the proposed building scale, massing, and design on the 
California Register-listed Jackson Square Extension Historic District in which the project is 
located 
 


• Cumulative effects – combined impacts of the proposed project and other currently proposed 
projects nearby, in particular the effect of the proposed project on shadowing of the John Yehall 
Chin Elementary School itself and on its two playgrounds combined with shadowing of those 
same locations from the proposed projects at 955 Sansome and 875 Sansome. 
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*   *   * 


Thank you very much for your consideration. 


     Sincerely, 


 


       


 


     Co-Chair, Planning & Zoning Committee 
     Telegraph Hill Dwellers 


 
 
cc: Kathrin Moore, Vice President  kathrin.moore@sfgov.org 
 Deland Chan, Commissioner  deland.chan@sfgov.org 
 Sue Diamond, Commissioner  sue.diamond@sfgov.org 
 Frank Fung, Commissioner  frank.fung@sfgov.org 
 Theresa Imperial, Commissioner  theresa.imperial@sfgov.org 
 Rachel Tanner, Commissioner  Rachael.Tanner@sfgov.org 
 Jonas Ionin, Secretary  jonas.ionin@sfgov.org 
 Claudine Aspagh, SF Planning  claudine.asbagh@sfgov.org 
 Aaron Peskin, District 3 Supervisor  Aaron.Peskin@sfgov.org 
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Figure 1.  Shadowing caused by proposed project at 425 Broadway, also showing locations of SRO residence hotels –  
based on project sponsor’s shadow study (darkest blue shading is the most frequent shadowing). 
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Figure 2.  Project sponsor’s photos showing SRO residence hotels at the corner of Broadway and Montgomery, 
at 401-407 Broadway (New Rex, 39 rooms, SW corner), 400 Broadway (Golden Eagle, 118 rooms, NW corner), 


1000-1010 Montgomery (On Lok, 41 rooms, NE corner), and 381-389 Broadway (49 rooms, SE corner) 
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Figure 3.  Section showing extent of proposed office space (gray shading), excerpted from project sponsor’s plans 
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Figure 4.  Physical height above Montgomery and Broadway for two proposed buildings at 425 Broadway  
(Montgomery building = 76 feet, Broadway building = 56 feet) 







  
   

 

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

  

On Lok SRO 
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Golden Eagle SRO 

New Rex SRO 
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
To: Jimenez, Sylvia (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: Sweetgreen at 2040 Chestnut St.
Date: Thursday, November 04, 2021 9:36:12 AM

 
 
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
 
 

From: jessica cooper <jesscooper35@gmail.com>
Date: Wednesday, November 3, 2021 at 8:15 PM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Cc: "Ionin, Jonas (CPC)" <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>, "joel.koppel@sfgov.org"
<joel.koppel@sfgov.org>, "Moore, Kathrin (CPC)" <kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>, "Chan, Deland
(CPC)" <deland.chan@sfgov.org>, "Diamond, Susan (CPC)" <sue.diamond@sfgov.org>, "Fung,
Frank (CPC)" <frank.fung@sfgov.org>, Theresa Imperial <theresa.imperial@sfgov.org>
Subject: Sweetgreen at 2040 Chestnut St.
 

 

Dear Members of the Planning Commission-
 
Please do not approve this project!  I just heard about this. This is a big chain restaurant shop and
they do not belong on Chestnut St. or any other SF  'neighborhood' street, like Union, Sacramento,
Fillmore etc.!
 
Allowing them to open is going to take business away from already existing restaurants in the
immediate vicinity. There are already 'salad' specific restaurants in this area and many other
restaurants which serve salads.  All of our beleaguered neighborhood restaurants have suffered
greatly due to this ghastly pandemic!  I do not know how any one of you could approve this project
at this time, it would be so unfair, and show a complete lack of empathy.  
 
Furthermore, it has been pointed out to me that this location would potentially be a huge traffic
problem with delivery people and others coming and going, double parking.  It is already congested
enough.  That corner was already a problem and why they made Mallorca a right turn only onto
Chestnut. Plus you have the bank across the street with two driveways , a couple of crosswalks.  
 
Please, NO!  Please be fair to our existing businesses and the rest of us who don't support this sort of

mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
mailto:Sylvia.Jimenez@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/


chain restaurant being located in our neighborhood.  
 
Thank you-
Jess Cooper
 
 



From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: Continuance request for Sweetgreen at 2040 Chestnut Street
Date: Thursday, November 04, 2021 9:33:47 AM
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Commissioners,
Please be advised that Sweetgreen on today’s Agenda is requesting a continuance to January.
 
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
 
 

From: "Jimenez, Sylvia (CPC)" <sylvia.jimenez@sfgov.org>
Date: Wednesday, November 3, 2021 at 9:09 PM
To: "Ionin, Jonas (CPC)" <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>
Subject: Fwd: Sweetgreen at 2040 Chestnut Street
 
Hi Jonas,
 
Sponsor is asking for a January date now….please see below.
 
Thanks!
 
Sylvia Jimenez, Principal Planner
Southwest Team, Current Planning Division
San Francisco Planning
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7348 | www.sfplanning.org
San Francisco Property Information Map
 

From: Chloe V. Angelis <cangelis@reubenlaw.com>
Sent: Wednesday, November 3, 2021 8:56 PM
To: Jimenez, Sylvia (CPC)
Subject: Re: Sweetgreen at 2040 Chestnut Street
 
Hi Sylvia,
 
Any chance we could calendar this one for January instead? Ideally 1/13? Apparently the
Sweetgreen head of real estate (who’s been handling this one) is going to be out of the country in
December, and he’s concerned about having enough time to properly respond to the new concerns.
 
Thanks very much.
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Chloe Angelis, Partner
One Bush Street, Suite 600
San Francisco, CA  94104
T.  (415) 567-9000
F.  (415) 399-9480
cangelis@reubenlaw.com
www.reubenlaw.com
 
Please note that I am out of the office on Fridays.
 
PRIVILEGE AND CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE – This transmittal is intended solely for use by its addressee, and
may contain confidential or legally privileged information.  If you receive this transmittal in error, please email a
reply to the sender and delete the transmittal and any attachments.
 
 
 

From: "Jimenez, Sylvia (CPC)" <sylvia.jimenez@sfgov.org>
Date: Wednesday, November 3, 2021 at 5:34 PM
To: "Chloe V. Angelis" <cangelis@reubenlaw.com>
Subject: RE: Sweetgreen at 2040 Chestnut Street
 
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender.

 
Hi Chloe,
 
Attached are the letters we received so far. Jonas also confirmed rescheduling this item to 12/9.
 
I’ll forward any others that come in.
 
Thanks,
Sylvia
 
Sylvia Jimenez, Principal Planner
Southwest Team l Current Planning Division
 
San Francisco Planning
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7348 | www.sfplanning.org
San Francisco Property Information Map

 
Due to COVID-19, San Francisco Planning is not providing any in-person
services, but we are operating remotely. Our staff are available by e-mail, and
the Planning and Historic Preservation Commissions are convening remotely.
The public is encouraged to participate. Find more information on our
services here. 
 

From: Chloe V. Angelis <cangelis@reubenlaw.com> 
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Sent: Wednesday, November 03, 2021 3:42 PM
To: Jimenez, Sylvia (CPC) <sylvia.jimenez@sfgov.org>
Subject: RE: Sweetgreen at 2040 Chestnut Street
 
Will you please send over all of the opposition letters whenever you have a few minutes?
 
Thanks for all your help!
 

 
Chloe Angelis, Partner
Tel:  (415) 567-9000
Fax: (415) 399-9480
cangelis@reubenlaw.com
www.reubenlaw.com
 
SF Office:
One Bush Street, Suite 600
San Francisco, CA 94122
 
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
 

From: Chloe V. Angelis 
Sent: Wednesday, November 03, 2021 3:17 PM
To: Jimenez, Sylvia (CPC) <sylvia.jimenez@sfgov.org>
Subject: RE: Sweetgreen at 2040 Chestnut Street
 
Hi Sylvia – Just talking to team now. We’d like to shoot for a hearing on December 9 if we can. We’re
thinking we’ll need that much time to gather support and respond to these new concerns.
 
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
 

From: Jimenez, Sylvia (CPC) <sylvia.jimenez@sfgov.org> 
Sent: Wednesday, November 03, 2021 10:58 AM
To: Chloe V. Angelis <cangelis@reubenlaw.com>; Sabrina Eshaghi <seshaghi@reubenlaw.com>
Subject: RE: Sweetgreen at 2040 Chestnut Street
 
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender.

 
Sounds good, 1:30 works for me!
 
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
Sent: Wednesday, November 03, 2021 10:24 AM
To: Jimenez, Sylvia (CPC) <sylvia.jimenez@sfgov.org>; Sabrina Eshaghi <seshaghi@reubenlaw.com>
Subject: RE: Sweetgreen at 2040 Chestnut Street
 
Hi Sylvia - I could talk at 1:30 or at 4pm.
 
Thanks.
 

 
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
Sent: Wednesday, November 03, 2021 10:21 AM
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
 
Are you available to hop on a call today? Received 15 letters (and counting) overnight in opposition.
Would like to discuss next steps. I’m free around noon-2 or after 4pm.
 
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
Sent: Tuesday, November 02, 2021 11:12 AM
To: Jimenez, Sylvia (CPC) <sylvia.jimenez@sfgov.org>; Sabrina Eshaghi <seshaghi@reubenlaw.com>
Subject: Re: Sweetgreen at 2040 Chestnut Street
 
Thanks Sylvia.
 
We’ll be calling in from my cell phone. That number is 925-212-8571.
 
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
Date: Tuesday, November 2, 2021 at 11:09 AM
To: "Chloe V. Angelis" <cangelis@reubenlaw.com>, Sabrina Eshaghi
<seshaghi@reubenlaw.com>
Subject: FW: Sweetgreen at 2040 Chestnut Street
 
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender.

 
Another letter below.
 
Chloe- is the number in your signature the number you’ll be calling from?
 
Sylvia Jimenez, Principal Planner
Southwest Team, Current Planning Division
San Francisco Planning Department
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7348 | www.sfplanning.org
San Francisco Property Information Map

 
Expanded in-person services at the Permit Center at 49 South Van Ness Avenue are
available. Most other San Francisco Planning functions are being conducted remotely. Our
staff are available by e-mail, and the Planning and Historic Preservation Commissions are
convening remotely. The public is encouraged to participate. Find more information on our
services here. 
 
 

From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>
Date: Tuesday, November 2, 2021 at 11:07 AM
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
 
 

From: Julia Kniesche <juliakniesche@gmail.com>
Date: Tuesday, November 2, 2021 at 10:52 AM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>, "Ionin, Jonas (CPC)"
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
Subject: Sweetgreen at 2040 Chestnut Street
 

 

November 2nd, 2021
 
Dear President Koppel and Members of the Planning Commission,
 
I am writing to you today with the recommendation you do not approve the Sweetgreen application
at 2040 Chestnut Street.
 
I have lived in the Marina neighborhood for over a decade and grew up going to school here as well
and am concerned about the amount of traffic that a new Sweetgreen location will create. I work in
SOMA and have seen the traffic congestion of delivery drivers at their 2nd St. location. It is
dangerous for pedestrians and especially children who are in the area to go to school and the
playgrounds.
 
This type of restaurant is also unnecessary in our neighborhood. We already have great healthy
eating options and Sweetgreen coming in will only make it harder for local restaurants to survive. I
would love to see more retail and diverse businesses coming to the Marina.
 
I urge you to vote to deny Sweetgreen’s application for another location at 2040 Chestnut Street.
 
 
Warmly,
 
Julia Kniesche
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This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
Cc: Jimenez, Sylvia (CPC); Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: Sweetgreen at 2040 Chestnut St.
Date: Thursday, November 04, 2021 8:08:14 AM

 
 
 
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
Sent: Wednesday, November 03, 2021 8:15 PM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Cc: Ionin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>; Koppel, Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>; Moore,
Kathrin (CPC) <kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>; Chan, Deland (CPC) <deland.chan@sfgov.org>; Diamond,
Susan (CPC) <sue.diamond@sfgov.org>; Fung, Frank (CPC) <frank.fung@sfgov.org>; Imperial,
Theresa (CPC) <theresa.imperial@sfgov.org>
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
Date: Thursday, November 04, 2021 7:41:10 AM

 
 
 
Commission Affairs
San Francisco Planning
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7600 | www.sfplanning.org
San Francisco Property Information Map

 
 

From: Jessie Babiarz <jbabiarz1@gmail.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, November 03, 2021 8:41 PM
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
 

 

I have heard of the proposal to open a Sweetgreen on Chestnut Street. I would encourage you to
vote no on this proposal. One of the best parts of San Francisco's neighborhoods is the local
businesses (particularly restaurants!) that make each area unique. These businesses have had a hard
time maintaining throughout the pandemic - and have struggled to hire and maintain a staff to serve
the neighborhoods. Sweetgreen is a massive chain restaurant that has never been profitable and is
about to IPO. They can undercut margins for businesses who have tried so hard to stay afloat during
the pandemic.  Let's keep our neighborhoods local. Please vote no on the proposal. Thank you for
your consideration. 
 
Best wishes,
Jessie Babiarz
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From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
To: Jimenez, Sylvia (CPC); Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: FW: Sweetgreen at 2040 Chestnut St.
Date: Thursday, November 04, 2021 7:40:49 AM
Attachments: Screen Shot 2021-11-03 at 8.23.25 AM.png
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From: Sean Scales <scales.sean@gmail.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, November 03, 2021 8:30 PM
To: Luis Cuadra <LCuadra@bergdavis.com>
Cc: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
<jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>; Koppel, Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>; Moore, Kathrin (CPC)
<kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>; Chan, Deland (CPC) <deland.chan@sfgov.org>; Diamond, Susan (CPC)
<sue.diamond@sfgov.org>; Fung, Frank (CPC) <frank.fung@sfgov.org>; Imperial, Theresa (CPC)
<theresa.imperial@sfgov.org>; Tanner, Rachael (CPC) <rachael.tanner@sfgov.org>
Subject: Re: FW: Sweetgreen at 2040 Chestnut St.
 
 
 
On Wed, Nov 3, 2021 at 8:28 PM Sean Scales <scales.sean@gmail.com> wrote:

Mr. Cuadra-
 
WOW!  
So, I send an email voicing my traffic and safety concerns re this proposed Sweetgreen location
and I get a response from a 'hired gun', lobbyist?!
Your reply does not add clarity, but has actually muddied the waters. You sent me a
'project fact sheet'.  The following is verbatim....
 
With more than 11 locations
throughout the U.S., sweetgreen is
considered Formula Retail which requires a
Conditional Use Permit (CUP).
 
OK, sure, TRUE statement, but is that the same TRUE statement you're going to use to pitch to an
investor or to pump your IPO?  Or are you going to go with the equally true, but more ACCURATE
statement of With more than 100 locations....?  
 
Please clarify, expound on Sweetgreen's definition of what a 'non delivery-focused restaurant' is.  I
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Sweetgreen, Inc.

sweetgreen

The original sweetgreen, located on historic M
Street in Washington, D.C., was founded in

2007.

Trade name  Sweetgreen
Type Private
Industry Restaurants
Genre Fast casual
Founded August 2007; 14 years ago
Founders Nicolas Jammet

Nathaniel Ru

Jonathan Neman! /2!
Headquarters Culver City, California, U.S.

Numberof 121 (2021)
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mean, just because  --  This location is planned to be a flagship retail store for sweetgreen
that will provide ample indoor dining with community tables, booth seating, and
proposed outdoor seating with detailed interior finishes to create an inviting dining
experience --  this is not going to keep delivery orders from being taken.  Are you
going to refute that this flagship will be taking ALL comers, whether by in house,
phone, on line or whatever?  It is a business and as such has a fiduciary responsibility
to its investors to maximize their ROI?  
 
Please explain what you mean by -- this store has limited capacity to fulfill digital orders
?  Why?  What are the limiting factors?  You provide no data, just feel good
statements in order to placate.
 
Just because -- as a matter of practice sweetgreen prioritizes customer pick-up orders
submitted through sweetgreen’s app versus fulfilling 3rd party orders that are delivered to
customers. --  This does not mean that there won't be a high volume of deliveries
creating added traffic, double parking, safety issues.
 
How does your 'prioritization' process do anything except maybe create a little
longer wait time / delivery time for the 'non-prioritized' orders?  Whatever orders
you receive are going to be fulfilled.  Your flagship is going to service the entire
Marina, all of the Presidio, Russian Hill and up to the top of Pac Heights.
 
Based on the data you have from the more than 120 locations....What are your
projections for % of in house meals VS. take away VS. delivery?
Surely, you have a ballpark for these numbers?
 
 
Hello Members of the Planning Commission-
 
Now all of my alarm bells are ringing!  What exactly is the point of having a No formula retail
restricted area?  Is it just a disingenuous feel good phrase to placate the neighborhood, create the
illusion of a more folksy 'Mom and Pop' business environment? 
This corporate entity is not a value add to the neighborhood.
What about all of the existing restaurants, trying to get back on their feet after this
terrible, business killing pandemic?
Lastly, I stand firmly on my belief that if this establishment is permitted to open at this location
there will be a negative impact on traffic and safety.
Attacnement, screenshot from wikipedia.  
Also, have you all read this article?
Please do not permit this project. 
 
Best regards-
Sean Scales
 

https://www.eater.com/2021/10/28/22750957/sweetgreen-ipo-profit-losses-salad-chain-as-a-
tech-company
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On Tue, Nov 2, 2021 at 4:14 PM Luis Cuadra <LCuadra@bergdavis.com> wrote:

Dear Mr. Scales,

I’m contacting you on behalf of sweetgreen restaurant. The planning department
forwarded your email regarding the proposed sweetgreen restaurant at 2040
Chestnut Street and I would like to respond.
 
I want to clarify that this proposed location on Chestnut Street is not a delivery-
focused restaurant. This location is planned to be a flagship retail store for
sweetgreen that will provide ample indoor dining with community tables, booth
seating, and proposed outdoor seating with detailed interior finishes to create an
inviting dining experience.  
 
Further, this store has limited capacity to fulfill digital orders and as a matter of
practice sweetgreen prioritizes customer pick-up orders submitted through
sweetgreen’s app versus fulfilling 3rd party orders that are delivered to customers. 
As a result, we expect limited delivery orders out of this store. Considering
sweetgreen had two other stores in San Francisco that are larger than this
proposed location and centrally located, we expect that the majority of food
delivery in San Francisco can be serviced at its existing stores not this proposed
location on Chestnut Street. 
 
Attached is a project fact sheet with additional information about the proposal.
Please let me know if I can answer any questions.
 
Thank you.
 
 
Luis Cuadra
BergDavis Public Affairs
T - 415-572-0798

 
 

From: Sean Scales <scales.sean@gmail.com>
Date: Tuesday, November 2, 2021 at 8:57 AM
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
 
I am firmly against the approval of Sweetgreen's application to open for business at 2040
Chestnut St..  Please do not approve this!  Leave aside the fact that this enterprise exemplifies
the definition of 'formula retail' and go straight to the negative impact it will have on traffic and
safety.  
 
I live in Cow Hollow, on Webster St., around the corner from Shake Shack, so I am very familiar
with the negative impact that a popular chain restaurant has to a neighborhood...an increase in
traffic, double parked cars, cars 'temporarily' blocking driveways and litter.  I walk along
Chestnut St. on most days of the week, sometimes just for exercise and fresh air, others for
dining or whatever shopping needs arise. Chestnut St. is already crowded enough with cars,
electric scooters, bikes, buses and pedestrians.  Considering that Sweetgreen's business model
involves a large scale delivery operation, I can't begin to imagine the traffic nightmare that will
ensue if you allow them to open at this location.  You are looking at creating a dangerous
monster involving delivery people who are on the clock and in a hurry vs. drivers in other
vehicles, trying to go about their business, who will get frustrated by the added congestion and
double parked cars, and also pedestrians, of which some are undoubtedly going to get hit.  On
Filbert St., in front of Shake Shack, I have witnessed many drivers speed up to zip around 
double parked cars, trying to beat out the car coming from the opposite direction.  Have you
looked at the data re pedestrians getting hit by cars recently?  Now add in the fact that there is
a school a block away. The scenario is distracted drivers, impatient delivery drivers and a bunch
of kids staring at their phones, just waiting to get hit by a car or a motorbike.  The bottom line is
that Chestnut St., without the addition of this soon to be IPO'd giant, is already busy and
dangerous enough, not to mention the fact that I am pretty sure there are plenty of established
restaurants already serving 'greens'?
 
I am not anti-business and would be excited to see this proposed Sweetgreen operation open in
an appropriate location, befitting its size and scope.  Seems to me that someplace like the Ferry
Building would be a much safer and sensible location.  Is the old Sur la Table space still vacant?
 
Thank you for your time and careful consideration re this issue. 
 
Please vote No for the oversized Sweetgreen proposal on Chestnut....it isn't appropriate for this
neighborhood or any other neighborhood in the city.  Vote Yes for having them open this
operation in an appropriate SF location which could safely absorb the traffic.
 
Best regards-
Sean Scales



 
This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: CPC November 4 Hearing - 2040 Chestnut St - 2021-005183CUA
Date: Thursday, November 04, 2021 7:40:29 AM

 
 
 
Commission Affairs
San Francisco Planning
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7600 | www.sfplanning.org
San Francisco Property Information Map

 
 

From: Cindy Beckman <cbeckman@sfmca.org> 
Sent: Wednesday, November 03, 2021 4:44 PM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Jimenez, Sylvia (CPC)
<sylvia.jimenez@sfgov.org>
Subject: Re: CPC November 4 Hearing - 2040 Chestnut St - 2021-005183CUA
 

 

Dear Ms. Jimenez and Planning Commissioners,
 
The Marina Community Association has reviewed the proposed project for Sweetgreen at 2040
Chestnut Street (at the corner of Mallorca Street) and has a concern raised by the plans provided for
review.
 
The door that opens to Mallorca is described by the applicant as being used for
"secondary ADA accessibility along Mallorca."  However, the plans label this as a
"Pickup" door.  Mallorca is a very narrow two-way street with residential parking on
both sides, and turns are restricted onto Mallorca from Chestnut Street.  Any "Pickup"
location for food delivery would block traffic for residents on this street, as we all know
food-delivery drivers often double-park for their pickups.
 
The Marina Community Association is opposed to the door facing Mallorca being used
for anything other than required exiting.
 
We have no objection to the formula-retail use of the space by Sweetgreen, as it
replaces a tenant that was also formula retail (Body Gap).
 
Thank you for your time and your attention to this concern.
 
Cindy Beckman
MCA Neighborhood Planning Committee chair 
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
Subject: FW: Letter of Support for Sweetgreen on Chestnut St.
Date: Wednesday, November 03, 2021 4:29:59 PM

 
 
 
Commission Affairs
San Francisco Planning
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7600 | www.sfplanning.org
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From: Stephanie Yaplee <stephanieyaplee@gmail.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, November 03, 2021 12:47 PM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Chan, Deland (CPC)
<deland.chan@sfgov.org>; Fung, Frank (CPC) <frank.fung@sfgov.org>; Moore, Kathrin (CPC)
<kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>; Tanner, Rachael (CPC) <rachael.tanner@sfgov.org>; Diamond, Susan
(CPC) <sue.diamond@sfgov.org>; Imperial, Theresa (CPC) <theresa.imperial@sfgov.org>; Koppel,
Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>; Ionin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>
Subject: Letter of Support for Sweetgreen on Chestnut St.
 

 

Dear President Koppel and Members of the Planning Commission,
 
I am writing to you today with the recommendation that you approve the Sweetgreen application
at 2040 Chestnut Street.
 
I currently live in the Marina neighborhood and chose this specific neighborhood for the
lifestyle this part of the city affords me.  While I understand I pay a premium to live in the
Marina, one of the major draws of this area is the retail along Chestnut Street.  
 
Sweetgreen would be the perfect addition to this street as they share a number of the same
values that I do (healthy and real food, fair employer practices, sustainable sourcing).
 
I urge you to vote to approve Sweetgreen’s application for this location.
 
 
Warmly,

Stephanie Yaplee
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This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
Cc: Perry, Andrew (CPC); Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: Record No. 2018-007380PRJ; 1320 Washington Street
Date: Wednesday, November 03, 2021 4:29:37 PM
Attachments: 1320Washington-Brochure-10-14-11ComstockImageDeck(1)-20211013.pdf
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From: Richard Manso <rmanso2016@gmail.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, November 03, 2021 2:55 PM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Cc: Gail Manso <gmanso355@gmail.com>
Subject: Record No. 2018-007380PRJ; 1320 Washington Street
 

 

Commissions Secretary,
 
We are writing to you about the subject record, for which there is a Conditional Use Authorization
and Variances public meeting on November 4, at 1:00 pm.
 
We are residents of Unit 406 in The Comstock Apartment Corporation's building at 1333 Jones
Street, which is across the street from the subject property. If completed as proposed, we will look
directly into the front units of the subject property and contrary to statements by the applicant in
the literature they provided our building (see the attachment), our views will not be improved.
 
Instead, we will lose lighting that comes from that direction as a result of the height of the proposed
project, which is higher than the buildings on its sides on Washington Street, as well as views
currently of the bay surrounding Alcatraz Island and south of Angel Island. Shadows from the
proposed building, especially the floor that is higher than these adjacent buildings, will probably
deprive us of afternoon sunlight. While several years ago the applicant had promised us drawings
that would accurately show the impact of their proposed building on our unit, none have been
provided. My sense is this may be because they knew if the drawings were accurate, people would
be more upset than they presently are about the project.
 
In addition, the architectural character of the proposed top floor is very aesthetically different from
its adjacent buildings. 
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1320 Washington Street
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INTRODUCING THE VASATI NOB HILL 


Urban Land Development (ULD) is pleased to propose The 
Vasati Nob Hill at 1320 Washington Street, a modern, timeless 
addition to San Francisco’s venerable Nob Hill neighborhood.


The Vasati will replace an outdated parking garage with a 
refined 65-foot residential building featuring twenty-five 
elegant homes, incorporating generous green spaces adjacent 
to nearby homes and a beautifully landscaped pedestrian 
frontage and rooftop. Residents of The Vasati will enjoy easy 
access to the downtown core, shopping, parks, the waterfront 
and restaurants.


Urban Land Development’s vision for The Vasati has been 
informed through community dialogue in order to seamlessly 
integrate into Nob Hill’s storied landscape and to ensure 
the building’s design, operations, resident and neighbor 
experiences are positive for the community, visitors, and 
tourists alike. Our team’s commitment to high-quality design 
and construction is unwavering, and The Vasati looks forward 
to joining its neighbors as part of the fabric of this iconic San 
Francisco neighborhood.


1320 WASHINGTON STREET 
AT A GLANCE...


NUMBER OF UNITS: 
25 condominiums


PARKING:
25 car spaces and 25 bike spaces


OPEN SPACE:
Rooftop gardens and private open
spaces


TRANSIT PROXIMITY:
Adjacent to the iconic San 
Francisco cable car and easy access 
to multiple MUNI stops


1320 Washington Street


*The rendering is for purposes of massing and scale, and does not represent a final design.


OTHER INTERESTING FACTS
• ULD will build The Vasati to 65-feet, within the 


neighborhood’s height and bulk restrictions. Backyard 


and side green spaces will provide new breathing room 


to adjacent neighbors.


• The thoughtful and boutique design from Handel 


Architects will complement the surrounding community 


by observing and respecting traditional style and 


materiality while adding contemporary updates, 


including a welcoming and meticulously maintained 


public realm to uplift the pedestrian experience.


• Homes at The Vasati will be divided among one-, two-, 


and three-bedroom units.


• Urban Land Development will participate in the 


inclusionary housing program by paying fees to the 


City’s affordable housing fund. This type of payment


has the potential to provide a greater benefit than 


producing a small number of below-market rate 


units on-site within this small, for-sale condominium 


building.


• 1320 Washington will include an underground garage 


with 25 car spaces. Cars will enter and exit via a garage 


door off Washington near Jones Street.


• The building will house 25 bicycle spaces. The 


bicycle parking and transit proximity will help reduce 


residents’ reliance on personal vehicles.


• The project is located next to the Powell – Hyde cable 


car line. Additionally, multiple MUNI stops and the 


highly anticipated Central Subway are a short walk 


away.


GROUND FLOOR PLAN


If you would like more information about the project or would like to contact the project team, please email 
1320Washington@gmail.com or call 415.788.1000 x 200. Our team members look forward to hearing from you!
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


The Vasati will bring a refined 65-foot residential building 
featuring twenty-five homes to Nob Hill. The project will 
incorporate generous green spaces adjacent to nearby homes 
and a beautifully landscaped pedestrian frontage and rooftop. 


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
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Views from The Comstock will be significantly 
improved by small private terraces on the roof of 
1320 Washington Street for the project’s residents 


The Comstock


1320 Washington 
Street concepts for 
private roof top 
terraces


ROOFTOP VIEWS
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There is also some confusion as to whether there will be a roof deck on top of the shown top floor,
or whether the roof deck is at the same level as the shown top floor. The drawings provided by the
applicant show a street-level floor, plus three similar floors, topped by a top floor that is quite
different in design. The applicant's literature mentions a basement (presumably for the 25 parking
spaces). If those are the 6 stories, then would the roof deck be on top of the last shown top floor?
 
We would be remiss if we didn't mention that removing the garage will definitely adversely affect
the neighborhood due to the loss of those off-street parking spaces. However, while realizing that
fully opposing the project may be a non-starter with the Commission, we do firmly assert that the
height of the proposed building should be reduced. We concur that San Francisco needs more
housing. But as recent decisions by the Board of Supervisors have indicated, the City is not willing to
build any and all housing regardless of its impact on the residents of the affected neighborhood.  
 
We respectfully request the Commission to require the applicant to re-work their proposal so that
the building height is more consistent with the buildings adjacent to their property.
 
Regards,
Richard Manso                                Gail Manso
(408) 316-9102                                (408) 891-9731
Rmanso2016@gmail.com                Gmanso355@gmail.com
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
Date: Wednesday, November 03, 2021 4:26:46 PM

 
 
 
Commission Affairs
San Francisco Planning
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7600 | www.sfplanning.org
San Francisco Property Information Map

 
 

From: Basil Ayoub <basilcube@hotmail.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, November 03, 2021 4:04 PM
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
 

 

To Whom it May Concern,
 
I am writing to you in opposition of the proposed Sweetgreen at 2040 Chestnut Street.
 
The basis of my opposition is twofold:
 

1. Objection to Formula Retail in the Marina (Sweetgreen has 121 locations in the US) with such
a high number of direct competitors in the immediate area (Blue Barn, Mixt, etc).

2. A huge concern over the additional parking and traffic constraints that Chestnut Street is
already plagued by.  Pre-COVID, Chestnut Street was already impacted by a lack of parking
and dangerous traffic conditions for both vehicles and pedestrian traffic.  During COVID, with
the addition of the many parklets, the parking and traffic problems have grown exponentially. 
Specifically, the loop from 2040 Chestnut Street, west on Chestnut Street, north on Pierce
Street, east on Toledo Street and south on Mallorca Street has turned into a “racetrack” for
cars looking for parking, rideshare vehicles and delivery vehicles (Uber Eats, Doordash, etc).  

My family and I currently live on Pierce Street @ Toledo Street and the current parking and
traffic situation makes a very unsafe condition for us and our children, as well as the other

mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/


families that live in the neighborhood.  My understanding is that Sweetgreen conducts a high
volume of digital sales (vs traditional onsite dining), which will ultimately lead to a significant
increase in vehicle parking demands and traffic constraints in the neighborhood.  At a
minimum, there should be a parking and traffic study conducted that can explain the direct
impact of Sweetgreen to the neighborhood.

 
Thank you for your time and consideration.
Basil Ayoub
 
 



From: May, Christopher (CPC)
To: Tanner, Rachael (CPC); Koppel, Joel (CPC); Moore, Kathrin (CPC); Imperial, Theresa (CPC); Diamond, Susan

(CPC); Fung, Frank (CPC); Chan, Deland (CPC)
Cc: CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY
Subject: 478-484 Haight Street
Date: Wednesday, November 03, 2021 12:53:18 PM

Good afternoon, Commissioners.

I wanted to make a clarification regarding the project at 478-484 Haight Street, which is returning to the
Commission tomorrow with proposed amendments to the conditions of approval adopted by the Commission on
September 2, 2021.

The Inclusionary Affordable Housing affidavit submitted by the project sponsor prior to the September hearing did
indicate that the project proposed to pay the in-lieu fee, however the plans and the Transportation Demand
Management (TDM) Plan both indicated that the project would be providing on-site below market rate units, which
was reflected in the final motion and conditions of approval. It wasn’t until shortly after the hearing that the
discrepancy was noticed, and the Project Sponsor requested that the conditions of approval in Planning Commission
Motion No. 20976 be amended to reflect this. The project sponsor has since submitted revised plans and a revised
TDM Plan that no longer indicate the provision of on-site BMR units. 

Based on the residential gross square footage, the project would be required to pay an in-lieu fee of approximately
$371,373 in accordance with the 2021 Impact Fee Schedule.

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Christopher May, Senior Planner
Northwest Team, Current Planning Division
San Francisco Planning Department 
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7359 | www.sfplanning.org
San Francisco Property Information Map
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This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

From: Angulo, Sunny (BOS)
To: Ionin, Jonas (CPC); Feliciano, Josephine (CPC); Asbagh, Claudine (CPC); Steven Vettel
Cc: Maggie Dong (maggie.dong@chinatowncdc.org); Koppel, Joel (CPC); Peskin, Aaron (BOS); Moore, Kathrin (CPC);

Chan, Deland (CPC); Diamond, Susan (CPC); Fung, Frank (CPC); Imperial, Theresa (CPC); Tanner, Rachael
(CPC); myeung@chinatowncdc.org; Yan, Calvin (BOS); gabriella.ruiz@chinatowncdc.org; Matthias Mormino;
saraysteve@aol.com

Subject: Re: Request Continuance for 425 Broadway CUA 11/4/21 Planning Commission Hearing
Date: Wednesday, November 03, 2021 11:50:23 AM

Thanks for the update.

Get Outlook for iOS

From: Vettel, Steven <SVettel@fbm.com>
Sent: Wednesday, November 3, 2021 11:40:37 AM
To: Ionin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>; Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
<josephine.feliciano@sfgov.org>; Asbagh, Claudine (CPC) <claudine.asbagh@sfgov.org>
Cc: Maggie Dong (maggie.dong@chinatowncdc.org) <maggie.dong@chinatowncdc.org>; Koppel,
Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>; Peskin, Aaron (BOS) <aaron.peskin@sfgov.org>; Moore, Kathrin
(CPC) <kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>; Chan, Deland (CPC) <deland.chan@sfgov.org>; Diamond, Susan
(CPC) <sue.diamond@sfgov.org>; Fung, Frank (CPC) <frank.fung@sfgov.org>; Imperial, Theresa
(CPC) <theresa.imperial@sfgov.org>; Tanner, Rachael (CPC) <rachael.tanner@sfgov.org>;
myeung@chinatowncdc.org <myeung@chinatowncdc.org>; Angulo, Sunny (BOS)
<sunny.angulo@sfgov.org>; Yan, Calvin (BOS) <calvin.yan@sfgov.org>;
gabriella.ruiz@chinatowncdc.org <gabriella.ruiz@chinatowncdc.org>; Matthias Mormino
<matthias.mormino@chinatowncdc.org>; saraysteve@aol.com <saraysteve@aol.com>
Subject: RE: Request Continuance for 425 Broadway CUA 11/4/21 Planning Commission Hearing
 
All, the 425 Broadway project sponsor is agreeable to a four week continuance to December 2,
2021.  I have just got off the phone with Maggie Dong at CCDC, who requested the continuance. 
Maggie has agreed to facilitate an outreach meeting with the residents of the 401-407 Broadway
building, some of whom are not proficient in English.  We hope to schedule an initial meeting for
next week.
 

From: Maggie Dong <maggie.dong@chinatowncdc.org> 
Sent: Tuesday, November 02, 2021 7:17 PM
To: Koppel, Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>; CPC-Commissions Secretary
<commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Peskin, Aaron (BOS) <aaron.peskin@sfgov.org>; Moore,
Kathrin (CPC) <kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>; Chan, Deland (CPC) <deland.chan@sfgov.org>; Diamond,
Susan (CPC) <sue.diamond@sfgov.org>; Fung, Frank (CPC) <frank.fung@sfgov.org>; Imperial,
Theresa (CPC) <theresa.imperial@sfgov.org>; Tanner, Rachael (CPC) <rachael.tanner@sfgov.org>
Cc: myeung@chinatowncdc.org; Angulo, Sunny (BOS) <sunny.angulo@sfgov.org>; Yan, Calvin (BOS)
<calvin.yan@sfgov.org>; Gabriella Ruiz <gabriella.ruiz@chinatowncdc.org>; Matthias Mormino
<matthias.mormino@chinatowncdc.org>
Subject: Request Continuance for 425 Broadway CUA 11/4/21 Planning Commission Hearing
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Dear Commissioners,
 
Please see attached. We are requesting a continuance for the 425 Broadway CUA that is
schedule for this Thursday's Planning Commission. 
 
Sincerely,
 
Maggie Dong (she/her)
Planner
Chinatown Community Development Center
Phone: 415.935.2472| Email: maggie.dong@chinatowncdc.org

This email has been scanned for email related threats and delivered safely by Mimecast.
For more information please visit http://www.mimecast.com
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
Subject: FW: 2017-015678CUA 425 Broadway Planning Commission Hearing 11/4/2021 IN OPPOSITION
Date: Wednesday, November 03, 2021 11:32:51 AM

 
 
 
Commission Affairs
San Francisco Planning
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7600 | www.sfplanning.org
San Francisco Property Information Map

 
 

From: T Flandrich <tflandrich@yahoo.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, November 03, 2021 11:13 AM
To: Koppel, Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>; Moore, Kathrin (CPC) <kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>;
Chan, Deland (CPC) <deland.chan@sfgov.org>; Fung, Frank (CPC) <frank.fung@sfgov.org>; Tanner,
Rachael (CPC) <rachael.tanner@sfgov.org>; Diamond, Susan (CPC) <sue.diamond@sfgov.org>;
Imperial, Theresa (CPC) <theresa.imperial@sfgov.org>; CPC-Commissions Secretary
<commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Cc: Alexander, Christy (CPC) <christy.alexander@sfgov.org>; Asbagh, Claudine (CPC)
<claudine.asbagh@sfgov.org>
Subject: 2017-015678CUA 425 Broadway Planning Commission Hearing 11/4/2021 IN OPPOSITION
 

 

Dear Commissioners,
 
***I support Chinatown Community Development Center's request for continuance ***
 
As the Co-Founder of the North Beach Tenants Committee, as a decades long resident of North Beach and as
someone who lives five blocks from the site of this project, I write in opposition to this particular project. This
surface lot should indeed be used to create housing, but only  the type of housing that is most needed in this
community to house workers in all  need to applaud the use of this space at 425 Broadway Street for housing. I am,
however, extremely disappointed that this is not the desperately needed 100% affordable housing project that our
community needs. Displacement and unaffordable housing has played a huge role in destroying the very fabric of
our community and forced our essential workers not only out of our city, but to the outer boundaries of the Bay area.
Our hope has long been that truly affordable housing would be built on any & all underutilized space here in District
3 allowing for our displaced neighbors to return. This project excludes their return and as well as housing for our
restaurant workers, baristas, those who work at entertainment venues, in other words, affordable rental housing for
those who keep the city running and are struggling to remain in the city.
The current project proposal also impacts our low-income residents in nearby residential hotels and this is a huge
concern we have.
The New Rex Single Residential Occupancy Hotel(SRO) at 401-406 Broadway immediately adjacent to this site,
Broadway/Montgomery is the 39 room home to 61 tenants. These are extremely low-income elders, families, the
majority of whom are monolingual Chinese. I visited this SRO at the peak of "shelter-in-place" due to concerns
around food access and spoke directly with several tenants there. What I noted  during this mid-day visit was that it
was dark, that there was little natural light, as well as the fact that it felt quite damp. With the height of this project,
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as well as  the windows no longer fully open on both the west and rear sides of the SRO, diminished light &
ventilation, I am concerned about the health & safety of these 61 people. The fact that community outreach did not
include these residents, nor those in the 3 SROs at this intersection, is especially disturbing. There is a lack of a
racial & equitable lens as it applies to these residents. The L shaped development plan of the two buildings will
impact  the health & safety of these tenants.
 
This project would indeed be detrimental  to our Chinatown/North Beach communities. We need affordable rental
housing to house those who serve our communities: the teachers at the nearby elementary school, the preschool
teachers/workers at Wu Yee, staff at On-Lok, workers at the entertainment venues along the Broadway corridor,
restaurant workers, those at grocery stores, delis, hotel workers, retail shop workers, medical staff at clinics and
nearby Chinese Hospital. Many of these workers were residents here, displaced with Ellis Act evictions, speculators
buying buildings, and converting them to condos, while only more and more luxury condos are built. Gentrification
has meant that many of our BIPOC neighbors are now commuting from Antioch to continue working here &
maintaining family & cultural ties.
Market rate condos will only serve the developer's pockets: he can build, make immediate windfall profit and leave.
We in this Northeast corner will continue to suffer the loss of our neighbors, our affordable housing, and never reach
the RHINA numbers for affordable housing for the low-income to middle-income housing.   
                                                                                                    
There is an extremely limited amount of space left here in one of the most densely populated areas, whatever
available land must be used for the housing we most need. 
 
The sponsor, HAC, YIMBYs -those in support of the project, have not witnessed the past decades of our neighbors
being unable to remain here as rents skyrocketed and incomes have not risen to keep up with housing costs. They do
not have deep roots in our communities, I feel it necessary to focus my comments on community needs. This
project, 41 market rate condos, the unprecedented mass of office area space, the deliberate attempt to not use all
available space to build affordable rentals and create neighborhood serving services, all will serve the developer
only.  
Proof of community needs, the need for affordable housing here: a 75 unit 100% affordable housing project built in
2015 at Broadway/Sansome had 6000 applicants. Some families were able to use their Displacement Certificate of
Preference here, and yet it still meant that 5,925 people were not able to find the needed affordable housing. The
Planning Commission must deny this project.
 
The above describes our communities' needs, and now to address the specific impact on immediate neighbors to this
project site. An additional reason to deny this project is that it will indeed have a detrimental impact on the adjacent
New Rex Hotel. I have visited with tenants at the 401-407 Broadway SRO Hotel Rex here in July 2020, during
Shelter In Place, as well as on October 27th. Tenants were bewildered with project plans and fearful of impacts.
Major Concerns:

Health & safety for 60 residents in adjacent Rex SRO Hotel- 

Fire exits at windows on 2nd/3rd floors,  history of 
Fire on 2nd floor meant Fire Dept ladder truck used Verdi Place to access building (Public Right of
Access)
Large windows in corridors means access to full sunlight, ventilation throughout hallways & into
rooms
Proximity to Bay and fog means greater than normal humidity levels, serious health hazard for
seniors especially

Long-term Tenants on Oct 27 voiced concerns of safety and diminished air & sun

Majority of residents are monolingual Chinese seniors and  and some families w/ small children 

Lack of Community outreach, and in their language, as well as not reaching out to the other 3 SROs nearby
There are no Community, Neighborhood services in the current plan, rather, a bloated area for offices in an



area with so many vacancies along Montgomery and Pacific Avenue
Ex. the nearest laundromat for the 4 SRO buildings here is 6 very long blocks away, up hill.

The question is, are you going to leave the existing, long time, low-income residents to try to survive as
mushrooms in the dark, harming their quality of life?  Not fulfilling the policy requirement for creating more
permanent affordable housing. Will you allow the sponsor to create "amazing views"  for the few, so that a
developer can fulfill his single desire to create immediate windfall profit for himself? See his ad:425
Broadway in San Francisco, CA - prices, reviews, condos for sale | iNewHomes

 
I implore you to deny this project today and help us get the type of housing we most need.
 
Gratefully yours,
Theresa Flandrich
North Beach Tenants Committee
Decades long advocate for North Beach/Chinatown
 
Image 1-New Rex Hotel corridor leading to window, fire exit clearly marked in English on left side, and in Chinese
at window. Drop down ladder from balcony outside window at 2nd floor residential level (10/27/21)
Image 2- staircase leading from 2nd floor level down to 1st floor, then to ground level entrance/exit door on
Broadway
Image 3-partial view of some windows of Rex Hotel facing west at parking lot
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
Subject: FW: 2040 Chestnut Change of Use permit
Date: Wednesday, November 03, 2021 11:29:32 AM
Attachments: Scan0018.pdf

 
 
Jonas P. Ionin,
Director of Commission Affairs
 
Planning Department│City & County of San Francisco
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 415-558-6309│Fax: 415-558-6409
 
jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
www.sfplanning.org
 

From: Virginia Plant <vplant@gmail.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, November 03, 2021 11:19 AM
To: Ionin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>; Jimenez, Sylvia (CPC) <sylvia.jimenez@sfgov.org>;
StefaniStaff, (BOS) <stefanistaff@sfgov.org>
Cc: neighbors@marinacowhollowneighborsandmerchants.com
Subject: 2040 Chestnut Change of Use permit
 

 

Dear Members of the Planning Commission,
 
Attached is a petition signed by our neighbors that live on Mallorca Way.  
 
While I support businesses in the Marina, the planning department needs to reconsider the change
of use from a retail location to a restaurant.  
 
The change of use will intensify the use of the space.  A restaurant draws many more people than a
retail use.  The number of people that once shopped at Body Gap every day is small compared to a
restaurant.  
 
I live at 19 Mallorca Way directly across the street to the proposed Sweetgreens.   Mallorca Way has
very limited parking, and our driveway is often used as a loading zone for UPS/Fedex and pick up
zone for Uber eats and delivery drivers.  1 Mallorca Way is currently being renovated, and they are
converting their garages into residential units.  The project at the Wells Fargo bank is taking away
the bank parking, and proposing 49 residential units with no parking for the residents.  Our
neighborhood had limited parking before the pandemic allowed for parklet dining, and now it is a
bigger problem.
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If the Planning department keeps allowing developments and changes to the use without
consideration for the environmental impacts such as parking, traffic, garbage, etc, the Marina's
businesses will be hurt because it will not be easy to visit the Marina to shop and eat.
 
Thank you for your consideration.
Virginia Plant





 
This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: Sweetgreen, 2040 Chestnut
Date: Wednesday, November 03, 2021 10:13:48 AM

 
 
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
 
 

From: Ted Plant <tedplant@gmail.com>
Date: Tuesday, November 2, 2021 at 6:26 PM
To: "Ionin, Jonas (CPC)" <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>, "Jimenez, Sylvia (CPC)"
<sylvia.jimenez@sfgov.org>, "StefaniStaff, (BOS)" <stefanistaff@sfgov.org>
Cc: "neighbors@marinacowhollowneighborsandmerchants.com"
<neighbors@marinacowhollowneighborsandmerchants.com>
Subject: Sweetgreen, 2040 Chestnut
 

 

We live at 19 Mallorca Way directly across from the proposed Sweetgreens. Parking has become
increasingly difficult to find, and this is before multiple new factors will exacerbate this lack of
parking dramatically. Regardless of what you decide with Sweetgreens, there must be a solution to
protect our neighborhood from all this coming congestion. 
 
Frankly, approving large housing developments without tenant parking is a major disservice.
Hopefully public transportation will be utilized, but don't tell me we won't have new cars looking to
park on our block, where we have very limited parking. 
 
Pre Pandemic, we could sometimes find a parking space. Now it is difficult if not impossible to find
space. Pre pandemic, it was unusual to have someone blocking our driveway; now we can expect it
nearly every time. 
 
We don't know how much worse it can get, but we suspect we will soon find out. 
 
While parklets are great, there is nowhere for drivers to park, or stand to pick up food, and no place
for trucks to make deliveries on Chestnut or Steiner. 
 
Drivers have little choice but to wait on Mallorca Way. 
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The reason we are headed the wrong way and will soon be much worse: 

1 Mallorca Way, at Chestnut, directly opposite Sweetgreen, mostly vacant the past 30 years,
now under renovation to add 10+ new housing units, and convert four garages to housing.
We will lose four off-street parking spaces and the driveways where drivers have used to turn
around, or park while visiting Chestnut and Steiner, will soon be gone. Soon my driveway will
be the first one off Chestnut.   
 
The Wells Fargo development site, on Chestnut at our intersection, will add 50 housing units
and 24,000 sq ft of retail and restaurants; the project will have only limited parking for the
commercial businesses, and no parking for the 50 family housing units.  

 
Sweetgreens is great, but they intend 800 takeout orders a day. There is no place that their
drivers or customers could stop to pick up orders or park. The more successful the business,
the more congestion we can anticipate for Mallorca Way. 

We hope you can find a solution for Mallorca Way's congestion. To date, it has been a nice place to
live.
 
Kind regards,
 
 
Ted Plant
19 Mallorca Way



 
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
Date: Wednesday, November 03, 2021 10:13:28 AM

 
 
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
 
 

From: Caitlin Fitzpatrick <caitlinfitzpatrick8@gmail.com>
Date: Tuesday, November 2, 2021 at 6:29 PM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>, "Ionin, Jonas (CPC)"
<jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>
Cc: "Tanner, Rachael (CPC)" <rachael.tanner@sfgov.org>
Subject: Sweetgreen at 2040 Chestnut Street
 

 

To whom it may concern,
 
I am writing to vote NO to the proposal of a Sweetgreens restaurant on Chestnut Street. 
 
I am a resident of this neighborhood and I feel strongly that this would NOT be a good fit for
this property. Not only does it go against the mom and pop  local businesses that make a
neighborhood a neighborhood but it will create a nightmare when it comes to traffic, parking,
double parked cars, safety for our children etc.
 
Please understand that smaller businesses have struggled for the past 2 years to get by and to allow
a  formula retail store into this space makes my head spin. It is NOT the right fit. 
 
Thank you for your time. 
--
Caitlin Fitzpatrick
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
Date: Wednesday, November 03, 2021 10:13:12 AM

 
 
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
 
 

From: Clare Durkin <clare.durkin@gmail.com>
Date: Tuesday, November 2, 2021 at 6:53 PM
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
 

 

To Whom It May Concern,
 
I am writing to express my concern about the pending Sweetgreen on Chestnut Street. I feel that this
would be detrimental to local businesses in the area and significantly take away from the charm and
character that is the Marina District. For the aforementioned reasons, I am voting NO to the
proposal of Sweetgreen on Chestnut and sincerely hope you all feel the same.
 
Thank you,
Clare Durkin
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
Date: Wednesday, November 03, 2021 10:10:55 AM

 
 
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
 
 

From: Sarah Gilster <sarah.gilster@gmail.com>
Date: Wednesday, November 3, 2021 at 9:16 AM
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
 

 

Hello There,
 
I am writing to voice my strong opposition to Sweetgreen opening at 2040 Chestnut Street
in the Marina. 
 
As someone who moved to San Francisco from New York, I am concerned that welcoming
more corporate businesses - especially restaurants such as Sweetgreen, which has just
begun the IPO process - is a slippery slope and threatens the colorful fabric and
authenticity of our city in addition to severely disrupting the neighborhoods. 
 
To be clear, I actually like Sweetgreen. I enjoy their salads and think they have a decent
product but I do not think this is a business we need in the city of San Francisco,
particularly in the Marina on Chestnut Street. 
 
First and foremost, Sweetgreen would unquestionably lead to MORE chaos on and around
Chestnut on weekdays, weeknights and weekends. There would be a significant increase in
congestion and traffic - by car, bike and foot - on the roads and the sidewalks. There would
be more double-parked cars and less parking in an area where it is already borderline
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impossible to drive and park. All of this would severely impact the other businesses already
there not to mention the quality of life for the neighborhood residents.
 
Beyond that, Sweetgreen would directly compete with two beloved San Francisco
restaurants - Blue Barn and Souvla - both local establishments that have worked so hard to
succeed and cultivate a loyal following, not to mention fought like hell for the past year to
keep their doors open. These restaurants know their market and have a fantastic product
but I truly believe part of their success is due to the lack of commercial competition in their
areas of operation. SF doesn't have a Chop't, Sweetgreen, DigInn or Chipotle on every
corner (thank goodness) and where this type of business does exist in the city has typically
been concentrated in the downtown business district. I personally hope it stays that way.
 
What I truly love about San Francisco - and one of the many things that makes it unique - is
that it's a city that feels like a town. It's not oversaturated with chain businesses and
restaurants. We have incredible shops, restaurants and bars that are home-grown, local
establishments with CHARACTER. San Francisco is not and never has been a cookie
cutter place (and hopefully it never will be...). My biggest fear is San Francisco becoming
too commercial and I think a Sweetgreen at 2040 Chestnut Street pushes us in that
direction.
 
Thank you for your time and consideration.
 
Sarah Gilster
 



 
This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
To: Jimenez, Sylvia (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: NO to Sweetgreen at 2040 chestnut st
Date: Wednesday, November 03, 2021 10:09:49 AM

 
 
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
 
 

From: Harper Cullen <harper.cullen@gmail.com>
Date: Wednesday, November 3, 2021 at 8:44 AM
To: "Tanner, Rachael (CPC)" <rachael.tanner@sfgov.org>, CPC-Commissions Secretary
<commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>, "Chan, Deland (CPC)" <deland.chan@sfgov.org>, "Fung,
Frank (CPC)" <frank.fung@sfgov.org>, "joel.koppel@sfgov.org" <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>,
"Ionin, Jonas (CPC)" <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>, "Moore, Kathrin (CPC)"
<kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>, "Diamond, Susan (CPC)" <sue.diamond@sfgov.org>, Theresa
Imperial <theresa.imperial@sfgov.org>
Subject: NO to Sweetgreen at 2040 chestnut st
 

 

I firmly vote no to the proposed location.  
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
Date: Wednesday, November 03, 2021 10:07:59 AM

 
 
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
 
 

From: Harry Ashforth <harry.ashforth@gmail.com>
Date: Wednesday, November 3, 2021 at 9:56 AM
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
 

 

I vote NO on the Sweetgreen proposal to occupy retail space on Chestnut Street.
 
A restaurant chain/wannabe tech company is the last thing that Chestnut Street needs.
Sweetgreens' presence on Chestnut will hurt local business owners and detract from the
neighborhood charm that makes Chestnut Street such a wonderful San Francisco experience.
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
Date: Wednesday, November 03, 2021 10:05:08 AM

 
 
 
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
Sent: Wednesday, November 03, 2021 9:15 AM
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
Date: Wednesday, November 03, 2021 10:05:00 AM

 
 
 
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
Sent: Wednesday, November 03, 2021 9:58 AM
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
Date: Wednesday, November 03, 2021 8:56:52 AM

 
 
 
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
Sent: Tuesday, November 02, 2021 6:53 PM
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
Date: Wednesday, November 03, 2021 9:03:02 AM

 
 
 
Commission Affairs
San Francisco Planning
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7600 | www.sfplanning.org
San Francisco Property Information Map

 
 

From: strykersf@yahoo.com <strykersf@yahoo.com> 
Sent: Monday, November 01, 2021 12:17 PM
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
 

 

 

Dear President Koppel and other Members of the Planning Commission,

San Francisco has already lost so much culture and identity, not to mention former residents,
to Big Tech and giant corporations. Make no mistake, Sweetgreens is both - a huge
corporation that relentlessly employs technology to not only dominate competition and profit
from customer’s data but to now also try to replace its workers with robots. We urge you and
the other members of the commission to recall the City’s one-time fiercely independent and
locally grown spirit that gave rise to such anti-formula retail laws in the first-place - in order to
protect individual neighborhood’s character and the artisan-driven small businesses that make
them, and thus our City, diverse and unique. We urge you to not let Chestnut Street, or any
other of San Francisco’s vibrant corridors, further become corporate strip malls and approving
an application for a company with 140 locations, $670 million in the bank, a whopping 1.87
billion-dollar valuation and in the process of applying for a public offering to double their
store count in the next five years will do just that.

For what it is worth, my business partner and I own and operate 3 restaurants on the Chestnut
Street corridor – each one completely unique. We grew up together in Marin and both lived in
the City for close to two decades. My grandparents lived in the City until their deaths and that
is where my Mother grew up, lived and eventually had me at Children’s Hospital. My great
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ancestor emigrated here from Scotland in 1880 and worked in the steel mill at the foot of
Potrero Hill. We were all here, and doing just fine, long before Big Tech and we lament not
just all that it has taken from us but the immense problems it has given us in return. Countless
co-workers, employees, community leaders, fellow artisans, industry veterans, friends and
family have been forced to leave an incredible area no longer affordable to them and with each
departure we have all lost a bit of what an absolutely unique and diverse place this City and
area used to be.

It’s time to turn the tide and your decisions today can do just that. Please give the little guys
and gals a chance. Please do not make it any harder than it already is for the City’s established
local artisans and small businesses by granting exceptions to well-conceived laws for
companies with ridiculously deep pockets. Please do not worry about the landlords – we all
know they will be just fine. Please keep jobs for San Franciscans and not create them for
robots. Please keep our neighborhoods uniquely San Franciscan and do not let them become
just another wing in the great Mall of America. Please do not allow Chestnut Street to become
the one hundred and forty first location of a giant, venture capital-backed national formula
chain restaurant that does not care in the least about what our City has been and can still be.

Thank you for your time and consideration,

Sam Josi & Stryker Scales

Mamanoko Restaurant

Padrecito Restaurant

The Tipsy Pig Restaurant

Blue Barn Gourmet

 
 
 



 
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
Date: Wednesday, November 03, 2021 9:02:50 AM
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
Sent: Tuesday, November 02, 2021 8:56 AM
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
 
I am firmly against the approval of Sweetgreen's application to open for business at 2040 Chestnut
St..  Please do not approve this!  Leave aside the fact that this enterprise exemplifies the definition of
'formula retail' and go straight to the negative impact it will have on traffic and safety.  
 
I live in Cow Hollow, on Webster St., around the corner from Shake Shack, so I am very familiar with
the negative impact that a popular chain restaurant has to a neighborhood...an increase in traffic,
double parked cars, cars 'temporarily' blocking driveways and litter.  I walk along Chestnut St. on
most days of the week, sometimes just for exercise and fresh air, others for dining or whatever
shopping needs arise. Chestnut St. is already crowded enough with cars, electric scooters, bikes,
buses and pedestrians.  Considering that Sweetgreen's business model involves a large scale delivery
operation, I can't begin to imagine the traffic nightmare that will ensue if you allow them to open at
this location.  You are looking at creating a dangerous monster involving delivery people who are on
the clock and in a hurry vs. drivers in other vehicles, trying to go about their business, who will get
frustrated by the added congestion and double parked cars, and also pedestrians, of which some are
undoubtedly going to get hit.  On Filbert St., in front of Shake Shack, I have witnessed many drivers
speed up to zip around  double parked cars, trying to beat out the car coming from the opposite
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direction.  Have you looked at the data re pedestrians getting hit by cars recently?  Now add in the
fact that there is a school a block away. The scenario is distracted drivers, impatient delivery drivers
and a bunch of kids staring at their phones, just waiting to get hit by a car or a motorbike.  The
bottom line is that Chestnut St., without the addition of this soon to be IPO'd giant, is already busy
and dangerous enough, not to mention the fact that I am pretty sure there are plenty of established
restaurants already serving 'greens'?
 
I am not anti-business and would be excited to see this proposed Sweetgreen operation open in an
appropriate location, befitting its size and scope.  Seems to me that someplace like the Ferry Building
would be a much safer and sensible location.  Is the old Sur la Table space still vacant?
 
Thank you for your time and careful consideration re this issue. 
 
Please vote No for the oversized Sweetgreen proposal on Chestnut....it isn't appropriate for this
neighborhood or any other neighborhood in the city.  Vote Yes for having them open this operation
in an appropriate SF location which could safely absorb the traffic.
 
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
Date: Wednesday, November 03, 2021 9:02:36 AM
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From: Julia Kniesche <juliakniesche@gmail.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, November 02, 2021 10:52 AM
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
Cc: Horn, Jeffrey (CPC); Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: Hello Commissioners, I am voting NO on allowing the project located at 247 Upper Terrace
Date: Wednesday, November 03, 2021 9:02:24 AM
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From: Justin Kuzmanich <justin.kuzmanich@gmail.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, November 02, 2021 12:09 PM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Eden Ghebray
<eden@noelflores.com>
Subject: Hello Commissioners, I am voting NO on allowing the project located at 247 Upper Terrace
 

 

Hello Commissioners,

Justin, Eden, Bella & Robel Kuzmanich here, good to meet you.

We are property owners at 300 Upper Terrace and we do not want the project at 247 Upper
Terrace to move forward.

Honestly, it smacks of a shady commercial real estate developer being behind it and not a
remodel or regular home upgrade etc. This new building is way too large for our quiet street
and we and several others do not want it approved.

Here are some more specific reasons below as well:
 
The following concerns are why I do not want the Conditional Use Authorization to be
granted for the above captioned project:

1.  
2.  
3. Violates the use code for Sec.249.77.CORONA HEIGHTS LARGE RESIDENCE
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SPECIAL USE DISTRICT which
4. allows for a development to be 3000 sq. ft. Owners of the project want a 4,081 sq. ft.

development.
5.  
6.  
7.  
8.  
9. Will

10. eliminate parking garage for 245 Upper
11. Terrace a 2-unit dwelling. Will provide one car parking for 247 Upper
12. Terrace a large proposed 2-unit development. The neighborhood will now have 4-units

with only a one car garage for parking. The additional cars on the street does not make it
13. compatible for the surrounding neighborhood. 
14.  
15.  
16.  
17. Upper Terrace does not need additional housing
18. stock it is already too congested. The traffic up and down the narrow street of Upper

Terrace is noisy and dangerous. Fire trucks can hardly make it up the street. In 1990 or
19. 1991 I was hit head-on in the 200 block of Upper Terr right at the bend going up the

street just approximately 4 or 5 houses away from my home.
20.  
21.  
22.  
23. One of the arguments for having this project is that San Francisco wants more

affordable housing. 
24. This project does not accomplish that goal. This is a high-end rental area.
25.  
26.  
27.  
28.  
29. Cutting down the majestic, historic tree will weaken the hillside and cause a great

environmental
30. loss. Sadly, our little neighborhood squirrels, birds etc.  will lose their homes.
31.  
32.  
33.  
34.  
35. The removal of the tree will take away the filtered view that the tree now provides for

the neighbors
36. along with the environmental benefits. 
37.  
38.  
39.  
40. In the Executive Summary Conditional Use – Basis for Recommendation it states that

the Department
41. finds the project to be necessary, desirable, and compatible with the surrounding



neighborhood, and not to be detrimental to persons or adjacent properties in the vicinity.
These findings are just not true.  It is not necessary to have more housing in this

42. already congested neighborhood, the size of the project makes it undesirable and not
compatible with the surrounding neighborhood, and is absolutely detrimental to persons
or adjacent properties in the vicinity because it will cause a loss to the value

43. of neighbor’s property.
44.  
45.  
46.  
47.  
48. Having said all of the above I want our good neighbors to have their development but

within the
49. spirit of creating a neighbor friendly development with some consideration for the

neighbors. An adjustment to the size and staying within the use code in number 1 above
would help. 

50.  
 

Thank you,

 

Justin & Family

Justin Kuzmanich
Founder + Creative Director
Blu Sky Films

 
1-415-225-7151

justin@bluskyfilms.com

BluSkyFilms.com
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https://avanan.url-protection.com/v1/url?o=https%3A//www.instagram.com/bluskyfilms/&g=YTNiMjQ5NjkwMWY3ODM4MA==&h=N2EwNDU1MzlkYWI1OTZiMWM3MzhmM2U2M2Q0NjllZDQ4ODNkYjVjNTdlNWQyNGVjNTllMjczZTcyZDE1NTUwYg==&p=YXAzOnNmZHQyOmF2YW5hbjpvOjYxODQxYTM4NTFmZjYxNDgyZDA4MTk3ZTk3NTVmZjIyOnYxOmg=
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From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
Cc: Jimenez, Sylvia (CPC); Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: Sweetgreen at 2040 Chestnut Street
Date: Wednesday, November 03, 2021 9:01:39 AM
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From: Caitlin Fitzpatrick <caitlinfitzpatrick8@gmail.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, November 02, 2021 6:29 PM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
<jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>
Cc: Tanner, Rachael (CPC) <rachael.tanner@sfgov.org>
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
Cc: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Subject: FW: NO to Sweetgreen at 2040 chestnut st
Date: Wednesday, November 03, 2021 9:01:08 AM
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From: Harper Cullen <harper.cullen@gmail.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, November 03, 2021 8:44 AM
To: Tanner, Rachael (CPC) <rachael.tanner@sfgov.org>; CPC-Commissions Secretary
<commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Chan, Deland (CPC) <deland.chan@sfgov.org>; Fung, Frank
(CPC) <frank.fung@sfgov.org>; Koppel, Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>; Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
<jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>; Moore, Kathrin (CPC) <kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>; Diamond, Susan (CPC)
<sue.diamond@sfgov.org>; Imperial, Theresa (CPC) <theresa.imperial@sfgov.org>
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
Cc: May, Christopher (CPC); Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: In support of 478-484 Haight St project (record number 2016-013012CUA)
Date: Wednesday, November 03, 2021 8:59:33 AM
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From: Patrick Barry <pbarry@gmail.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, November 03, 2021 7:21 AM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Subject: In support of 478-484 Haight St project (record number 2016-013012CUA)
 

 

Hi there, I live at 135 Webster St, around the corner from the proposed project at 474-484 Haight St.
I am very excited to have more neighbors, and as a parent of a young child I'm very excited that
they're planning to open a child care business, that would be incredibly convenient to me!
 
In general, I support building as much new housing as possible. Our housing crisis needs to be
addressed on all fronts, and building as much new housing of any type as fast as possible is the most
important thing we can be doing in this city.
 
If it would help for me to join the zoom call, please let me know. I've never given input on a SF
planning project before, so I have no idea what I'm doing.
 
Thanks,
Patrick Barry
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
Subject: FW: No on 2040 Chestnut Street
Date: Wednesday, November 03, 2021 8:58:42 AM
Attachments: sweetgreen at 2040 Chestnut.pdf

NO on 2040 Chestnut Street.pdf
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From: anne swallow <awswallow@gmail.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, November 02, 2021 8:48 PM
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
Subject: Fwd: No on 2040 Chestnut Street
 

 

Please find attached both a letter stating my opposition to the sweetgreen project at 2040
Chestnut Street as well as an additional fact sheet with important information regarding traffic
numbers that I urge the commission to review.
 
Thank you,
Anne Swallow (Marina Resident)
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sweetgreen at 2040 Chestnut 
 


 
A Parking Problem 


 
Simple math anticipates over 600 delivery vehicle trips a day to this one location. 


 
The math: 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
    *Data derived from public sweetgreen comments and industry standards for business sustainability 
 
The above estimates indicate that Chestnut, Mallorca, and the surrounding area will be log-jammed 
with cars at sweetgreen, increasing the already difficult traffic, parking, pedestrian, and emergency 
vehicle accessibility problems the neighborhood is facing at this corner. These are not potential 
shoppers at other businesses, and would therefore not benefit the rest of the merchant corridor.  
 
 


More Online Orders, Less Employees 
 
The proposed OLO line found in the Chestnut project 
floorplans is nearly double the square footage of the 
eat in/take out customer line.  


• OLO offers 64’ of shelving for pickup and 
delivery orders, which can handle up to 100 
orders simultaneously 


• The project only offers 30 seats for in-store 
dining 


• 11 planned trash cans indicate high-volume 
expectations. Restaurants typically need 3-4. 


sweetgreen recently purchased a robotics-driven 
retailer (Spyce) that minimize in-store labor needs 


 
 


The Marina is already  
saturated with similar,  


SF-founded dining options 
MIXT • Blue Barn • Asian Box 


Squat & Gobble • Tacolicious 


Pacific Catch • Los Hermonos 


Delarosa • The Sandwich Spot 


Bonita Taqueria • Souvla  


Toma • World Wrapps  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Location Size (sq ft)           3,485 
Rent per sq. ft.           $130 
NNN Charges per sq. ft. (Real Estate Tax, Property Mgmt) @ 10% of rent    $13 
Total annual rent expense          $498,355 
Est. annual revenue needed to support a 10% occupancy cost*     $4,983,550 
Average order total *          $14 
# of Pick Up & Delivery Orders per day (80% of rev from digital orders)*    804 
_________________________________________________________________________________ 
Estimated Delivery Orders fulfilled per day       603 
 


sweetgreen already serves the Marina 
 
With an existing outpost at Blue Bottle at 2453 Fillmore 
about half a mile away, as well as a robust citywide 
delivery service, this neighborhood is already 
adequately serviced by sweetgreen. 


In addition, with over 120 locations, 
an additional 700 outpost locations, 
and over $670,000,000 in capital 
raised to devote to their marketing 
budget, sweetgreen is a much larger-
scale business than any other 
comparable dining offering in this 
neighborhood. Its presence would be 
out of scale and character for the 
Marina.  








 
 
 
November 2, 2021 
 
 
 
Dear President Koppel and Members of the Planning Commission, 
 
 
Please do not approve the Sweetgreen application at 2040 Chestnut Street. 
 
As a resident of this neighborhood, I have deep concerns about the amount of traffic that a new 
Sweetgreen location will create. This company has a long history of serving customers with 
delivery orders. Based on the company’s history, it is fair to expect this one location to generate 
several hundred delivery orders a day.  
 
This will likely result in up to 600 additional delivery cars and other vehicles coming and going 
from this corner every day. 
 
While it may be that Sweetgreen has stated that they do not “intend” to focus on delivery or 
pick up at this location, the company’s history indicates otherwise. How can the neighborhood 
be guaranteed assurances that this location will not heavily rely on delivery, thereby causing 
extreme traffic problems? 
 
I am extremely worried about this project. 
 
I urge you to vote to deny Sweetgreen’s application for another location at 2040 Chestnut 
Street. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
  
Anne Swallow 
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
To: Asbagh, Claudine (CPC); Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Cc: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Subject: FW: Request Continuance for 425 Broadway CUA 11/4/21 Planning Commission Hearing
Date: Wednesday, November 03, 2021 8:58:24 AM
Attachments: 425 Broadway CCDC Opposition.pdf

 
 
 
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
  
Joel Koppel, President   
San Francisco Planning Commission  
49 South Van Ness Avenue  
San Francisco, CA 94103  
  
Dear President Koppel and Members of the Commission,   
  
On behalf of the Chinatown Community Development Center (CCDC), I am writing to urge the 


Planning Commission to grant a continuance for item 2017-015678CUA regarding the 425 


Broadway project to address our ongoing concerns. CCDC is a nonprofit community development 


organization that aims to build community and enhance the quality of life for San Francisco residents. We 


work closely with low-income, monolingual, immigrant families living in single room occupancy hotels 


(SROs) particularly in the Chinatown and North Beach neighborhoods.   


  
We support the concerns that have been made by the Telegraph Hill Dwellers and the SRO residents of 


401 Broadway. The concerns include inadequate outreach to neighborhood-serving organizations, 


residents, and property owners of nearby buildings; health and safety issues related to the design of the 


proposed project; and the issue of state density bonus projects not meeting the affordable housing needs 


of San Francisco and the loss of local zoning controls.  


  
These issues are pervasive to all of San Francisco and are especially problematic in Chinatown and the 


surrounding neighborhoods including where the proposed project is located. New market-rate housing 


development combined with the state density bonus will fuel gentrification and displacement in an area 


that is already experiencing the loss of long-time residents from Ellis Act evictions, condominium 


conversions, and skyrocketing rents.   


  
1. Outreach Concerns   


  
At 401 Broadway, there are 39 low-income households living in the building, with a vast majority 


speaking primarily Cantonese. The project sponsor failed to comply with Section 333 of the San 


Francisco Planning code, which requires notices to include the languages spoken by a Substantial Number 


of Limited English Speaking Persons. We are particularly disappointed that the project sponsor has only 


gotten support from groups that do not represent the residents of the neighborhood and is choosing to 


ignore the serious concerns that adjacent neighbors are raising. Even after we shared this feedback with 


the project sponsor, there was no subsequent effort to conduct any outreach to the residents.  
  
2. Health and Safety Concerns  
 
With the 425 Broadway buildings being taller than 401 Broadway, the light wells would be insufficient at 


providing enough sunlight and ventilation and would also impact the residents who currently do not have 


access to natural light. The 401 Broadway residents are also concerned about fire truck accessibility on 


Verdi Alley as the fire escapes are located on the south side of the building.   
 


The Broadway corridor is seeing an increase in market-rate housing and office space development in an 


area that has been seeing a decline in working-class residents. While this project does not directly 


displace residents or community-serving businesses, the cumulative effect of creating unaffordable 
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housing will fuel real estate speculation, gentrification, and displacement. The impact that low-income 


residents face from being forced out of their own neighborhood is immeasurable.   


  
3. State Density Bonus Concerns  
 
The purpose for utilizing the state density bonus provides that an incentive is allowed if “required to 


provide for affordable housing costs”. The concession for non-residential uses is antithetical to the state 


density bonus law which incentivizes more residential density. We are also puzzled by the circumvention 


of local zoning control that results in more office and less housing being built on the site.  
  
For these reasons, we ask the commission to grant a continuance for item 2017-015678CUA for the 


425 Broadway project.   
  
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
Subject: FW: Voting NO to Sweetgreen at 2040 Chestnut Street
Date: Wednesday, November 03, 2021 8:57:24 AM

 
 
 
Commission Affairs
San Francisco Planning
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7600 | www.sfplanning.org
San Francisco Property Information Map

 
 

From: lee hollingsworth <lee.m.hollingsworth@gmail.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, November 02, 2021 7:03 PM
To: Tanner, Rachael (CPC) <rachael.tanner@sfgov.org>; CPC-Commissions Secretary
<commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Chan, Deland (CPC) <deland.chan@sfgov.org>; Fung, Frank
(CPC) <frank.fung@sfgov.org>; Moore, Kathrin (CPC) <kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>; Diamond, Susan
(CPC) <sue.diamond@sfgov.org>; Imperial, Theresa (CPC) <theresa.imperial@sfgov.org>
Subject: Voting NO to Sweetgreen at 2040 Chestnut Street
 

 

Hello,
 
Writing you to protect our local business and NOT allow Sweet Greens to open shop in the marina
and inevitably jeopardize those who fought long and hard to keep their doors open these
challenging past two years. 
 
Thanks very much,
Lee Hollingsworth 

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
Date: Tuesday, November 02, 2021 4:04:57 PM
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



mailto:joel.koppel@sfgov.org
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
Date: Tuesday, November 02, 2021 12:06:56 PM

 
 
 
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
Sent: Tuesday, November 02, 2021 11:56 AM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Subject: 1320 Washington Street
 

 

Honorable Members of the San Francisco Planning Commission:
 
We are writing to object to the granting of a Conditional Use Authorization for the proposed
condominium project at 1320 Washington Street (the "Project").  The lot is zoned for a building only
40 feet in height but the Project proposes to build a building 65 feet in height (up to 79 feet if you
include the mechanical on the roof).  This height will block views, limit sunlight and is inconsistent
with the height of the other buildings on the northside of Washington Street all of which are three
and four stories tall.  The Project will also eliminate parking that is badly needed in a neighborhood
that includes large hotels, Grace Cathedral and the Masonic auditorium. 
 
Thank you for your consideration.   Mark and Robin Anderson 

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
Subject: FW: Petitions Signers Supporting 425 Broadway
Date: Tuesday, November 02, 2021 12:05:07 PM
Attachments: 425 Broadway Petition Signers 11.02.2021.xlsx

 
 
 
Commission Affairs
San Francisco Planning
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7600 | www.sfplanning.org
San Francisco Property Information Map

 
 

From: Corey Smith <corey@sfhac.org> 
Sent: Tuesday, November 02, 2021 10:05 AM
To: Koppel, Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>; Fung, Frank (CPC) <frank.fung@sfgov.org>;
Diamond, Susan (CPC) <sue.diamond@sfgov.org>; Chan, Deland (CPC) <deland.chan@sfgov.org>;
Imperial, Theresa (CPC) <theresa.imperial@sfgov.org>; Tanner, Rachael (CPC)
<rachael.tanner@sfgov.org>; Moore, Kathrin (CPC) <kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>
Cc: Alexander, Christy (CPC) <christy.alexander@sfgov.org>; CPC-Commissions Secretary
<commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Steve Saray (saraysteve@aol.com) <saraysteve@aol.com>; Ian
Birchall <ian@ibadesign.com>; Vidhi Patel <vidhi@ibadesign.com>; Steven Vettel
<SVettel@fbm.com>; Todd David <todd@sfhac.org>; Laura Clark <laura@yimbyaction.org>
Subject: Re: Petitions Signers Supporting 425 Broadway
 

 

Good morning Commissioners,
 
I've attached an updated petition signer list ahead of Thursday's hearing. Please let me know if you
have any questions.
 
Best,
Corey
 
On Mon, Oct 11, 2021 at 12:41 PM Corey Smith <corey@sfhac.org> wrote:

Members of the San Francisco Planning Commission,
 
On behalf of the Housing Action Coalition and YIMBY Action, please see the attached document
with petition signers in support of the 425 Broadway proposal.
 
Here is a link to the Housing Action Coalition's report card of the project. Please note that there

mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/
mailto:corey@sfhac.org
https://avanan.url-protection.com/v1/url?o=https%3A//actionnetwork.org/petitions/support-new-homes-at-425-broadway/&g=ZjY4YWU0NzkwMjI3NDg2YQ==&h=MGRiMmJjYjRjMzczODUxYWQ1NWMwYTVmYjdkMWQxYmRlN2YyYmY4ZmI4MzgxMTk4NjNjYzc2OWVjYzQyNzU2ZA==&p=YXAzOnNmZHQyOmF2YW5hbjpvOjdmM2Y0OTg5ZmJiNzExOTZkZDAwZTRmMTRmYzE4MTYzOnYxOmg=
https://avanan.url-protection.com/v1/url?o=https%3A//www.sfhac.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/09/Updated-HAC-Project-Review-Report-Card-425-Broadway-.pdf&g=NThjODNkZTVjZDM1ODg3YQ==&h=MTI4ZGIyYTk0OGNiN2I0ZGFiYjg3NmRhM2FiZDNlMjY4NDAwODA4YmNmMzAzMjI5Mzk4OTk0NWU5MTQwZGNhMg==&p=YXAzOnNmZHQyOmF2YW5hbjpvOjdmM2Y0OTg5ZmJiNzExOTZkZDAwZTRmMTRmYzE4MTYzOnYxOmg=

Petition Signers 11.02.2021

		First Name		Last Name		Email		Zip Code		Personalizied Message		Time Stamp

		Townsend		Walker		townsend@townsendwalker.com		94109		A perfect place for new housing in a community with shops, stores and transit.		2021-09-16 17:41:52 EST

		Tom		Lockard		marlock@pacbell.net		94133		As a long term resident of North Beach I strongly support the proposed development.		2021-09-16 15:23:49 EST

		Weston		Cooper		weston.cooperuo@gmail.com		94133		Excited for more neighbors, as well as more customers for neighborhood restaurants and business.		2021-09-21 17:33:51 EST

		Ignacio		Barandiaran		ignacio.barandiaran@gmail.com		94611		I fully support this project, we need more housing now!		2021-09-16 14:47:52 EST

		Kate		McGee		kate.urbus@gmail.com		94133		I live 8 blocks away and am in support of the project.		2021-09-22 13:57:45 EST

		Alex		Noor		alex.noor7@gmail.com		94133		I live a block away and 100% support this project. North Beach is one of the best neighborhoods in the city and I want more people to be able to enjoy and experience it.		2021-09-16 19:20:23 EST

		Nicholas		Marinakis		hoyanakis@gmail.com		94133		I live in North Beach and strongly support more housing here		2021-09-21 17:33:05 EST

		Charles		Whitfield		whitfield.cw@gmail.com		94114		More housing means more diverse, more equitable, more vibrant cities, and protects the planet from harmful urban sprawl		2021-10-29 15:21:02 EST

		Michael		Chen		mychen10@yahoo.com		94109		More housing near transit would be great. More people who can support local businesses would be great. More homes for people struggling to make it is great.		2021-09-16 14:25:34 EST

		Steven		Aiello		pstevenaiello@gmail.com		94952		Nice re-use project. Keep it up! -S		2021-09-21 17:38:54 EST

		Davey		Kim		daveymkim@hotmail.com		94109		Nob Hill resident, who wants to see more housing, especially smaller units to add our housing supply! More neighbors mean more support for our iconic local businesses! We need more ridership on our transit lines as well!		2021-09-21 12:17:03 EST

		brett		Gladstone		b_gladstone@comcast.net		94117		Please approve this well designed project. We do not need parking as much as we need parking.		2021-09-21 18:37:34 EST

		Millicent		Tolleson		millietolleson@gmail.com		94109		Support this better use of the land to create housing!		2021-09-16 14:59:31 EST

		Mona		Lovgreen		mlovgreen@dialogdesign.ca		94111		Supporting more housing and this development.		2021-09-21 17:34:02 EST

		Jacinta		McCann		jacintamccann1@gmail.com		94109		This is an excellent infill development proposal and adds much needed housing.		2021-09-22 01:20:16 EST

		Victoria		Wallis		vwallis93@gmail.com		94108		This project is wonderful and will brighten the community! North Beach is impossibly difficult to build new housing and I really hope this succeeds.		2021-09-21 14:34:39 EST

		lisa		church		lmc.public@gmail.com		94108		We need this and 1324 Powell Street!		2021-09-16 14:30:30 EST

		Jos√© Pablo		Gonzalez-Brenes		josepablog@gmail.com		94109		Why. only 41 homes? Shouldn't we build with higher density?		2021-09-16 14:24:38 EST

		Michael		Pacheco		mpacheco8@icloud.com		94105		Yes - More market rate housing!		2021-09-16 15:39:17 EST

		Evan		Sipe		eesipe@gmail.com		94133		Yes! I support new affordable homes in North Beach that encourage alternatives to driving, and maximize this transit-rich location.		2021-09-16 14:23:21 EST

		Jack		Gardner		jgardner@jsco.net		94109		You may also add "The John Stewart Company" as a corporate supporter.		2021-09-23 16:14:17 EST

		Cindy		Downing		cindycdowning@gmail.com		94619				2021-09-16 16:12:46 EST

		John		Holtzclaw		john.holtzclaw@sierraclub.org		94133				2021-09-16 18:20:38 EST

		Raul		Maldonado		rmaldonadocloud@gmail.com		94132				2021-10-07 14:43:28 EST

		Julia		Vetromile		julia.vetromile@gmail.com		941081041				2021-09-18 19:33:45 EST

		Gabe		Zitrin		gzitrin@gmail.com		94109				2021-09-16 20:04:31 EST

		Scott		K		slksfca@gmail.com		94122				2021-10-31 16:56:05 EST

		Bilal		Mahmood		m.b.mahmood@gmail.com		94105				2021-10-29 13:56:46 EST

		Matt		Babcock		mbabcock05@gmail.com		94109				2021-09-16 14:30:02 EST

		dorian		hollis		dorianhollis@yahoo.com		94109				2021-09-21 17:39:05 EST

		Beverly		Mills		bev@studiobeverly.com		94109				2021-09-21 18:15:11 EST

		Colin		Kerrigan		crkerrigan@gmail.com		94103				2021-11-01 19:15:57 EST

		Jennifer		Gee		geewhiz97@gmail.com		94111				2021-09-18 22:17:05 EST

		Mark		English		mark@markenglisharchitects.com		94108				2021-09-16 14:28:03 EST

		Joey		Babbitt		jrbabbitt@gmail.com		94133				2021-09-20 14:46:26 EST

		Ziwei		Hao		ziwei.hao@gmail.com		94109				2021-09-21 17:30:30 EST

		Armand		Domalewski		armanddomalewski@gmail.com		94115				2021-10-29 14:18:51 EST

		Chris		Heriot		cheriot@gmail.com		94110				2021-09-19 19:26:26 EST

		Zack		Subin		zack.subin@fastmail.fm		94112				2021-10-09 15:13:32 EST

		Ali		Moss		ali.moss13@gmail.com		94117				2021-09-17 06:40:19 EST

		Danny		Sauter		sauterdj@gmail.com		94133				2021-09-22 00:58:27 EST

		Andrew		O'Shea		andyosh@gmail.com		94109				2021-11-02 00:11:24 EST

		Anne		Fougeron		anne@fougeron.com		94111				2021-09-23 11:58:30 EST

		Frances		Fisher-Wolff		flfisher2010@gmail.com		94109				2021-11-02 11:45:00 EST

		Anika		Steig		anika.steig@gmail.com		94117				2021-10-29 14:08:55 EST

		Harold		Metzger		harry19023@gmail.com		94109				2021-09-16 14:35:55 EST

		Andrew		Rowny		drew.rowny@gmail.com		94114				2021-10-29 22:02:21 EST

		David		Stone		david.curtis.stone@gmail.com		94122				2021-11-01 18:35:45 EST

		Andy		Day		aday.nu@gmail.com		94115				2021-10-29 16:24:47 EST

		luisa		james		luisa.thephone@gmail.com		94109				2021-09-19 03:01:19 EST

		Neil		Shah		neilpshah@gmail.com		94109				2021-09-24 12:44:44 EST

		Ira		Kaplan		iradkaplan@gmail.com		94133				2021-09-20 14:53:30 EST

		Adam		Buck		adambuck@gmail.com		94158				2021-10-29 13:24:57 EST

		Myoko		Shallenberger		myokoshallenberger@gmail.com		94109				2021-09-21 19:11:09 EST

		Spencer		Guthrie		spencer.guthrie@gmail.com		94118				2021-11-01 22:04:47 EST

		Karen		Wong		cloudsrest789@gmail.com		94108				2021-09-16 15:57:35 EST

		TK		Polevoy		tk.polevoy@gmail.com		94108				2021-09-16 15:37:48 EST

		Thais		Miller		thaism@aol.com		94109				2021-09-21 18:13:17 EST

		Sasha		Heuer		sashacheuer@gmail.com		94110				2021-10-05 18:46:05 EST

		Sabeek		Pradhan		sabeekpradhan@gmail.com		94105				2021-10-29 22:21:41 EST

		Dan		Federman		dfed@me.com		94117				2021-09-17 00:17:16 EST

		Luis		Ramirez		luis@lmramirez.io		94110				2021-11-01 17:54:10 EST

		Louis		Magarshack		louis.magarshack@gmail.com		94116				2021-09-16 18:46:08 EST

		Marie		Torres		twoheartedsociopath@gmail.com		94109				2021-09-20 14:38:40 EST

		Rishabh		Kumar		r@misterkumar.com		94133				2021-11-01 17:27:49 EST

		Andres		Salerno		andreslsalerno@gmail.com		94109				2021-11-01 17:29:42 EST

		Scot		Conner		scot.conner@berkeley.edu		94123				2021-09-16 20:25:26 EST

		Chad		Fusco		crf15@case.edu		94109				2021-09-21 18:09:05 EST

		Tory		R.		toryray@gmail.com		94133				2021-09-25 17:33:01 EST

		Corey		Smith		corey@sfhac.org		94103				2021-09-10 19:26:09 EST

		Ansh				self@anshukla.com		94114				2021-10-29 15:06:55 EST

		Raquel		Bito		b2sfca@gmail.com		94105				2021-09-21 21:01:30 EST

		Ben		Donahue		ben@bendonahue.com		94117				2021-10-29 13:41:32 EST

		Brian		Lese		blese56@gmail.com		94109				2021-09-21 17:32:19 EST

		Suzanne		Gregg		sg@investsf.com		94131				2021-09-21 14:12:38 EST

		Ross		Ahya		ross.ahya@gmail.com		94110				2021-10-29 21:58:24 EST

		Diane		Filippi		dfilippisf@gmail.com		94133				2021-09-21 18:07:17 EST

		Krish		Ahya		krishahya@gmail.com		94404				2021-10-29 22:24:08 EST

						kellenwohl28@gmail.com		94010				2021-09-21 19:26:22 EST

		Charles		Ayers		cayers99@gmail.com		94103				2021-10-29 16:09:48 EST

		Charlene		Chambliss		chamblisscs@gmail.com		94612				2021-09-16 14:33:08 EST

		Matt		Graves		gravesforrent@gmail.com		94103				2021-10-29 15:23:08 EST

		Steve		Naventi		steve.naventi@gmail.com		94102				2021-10-29 13:33:48 EST

		Vamsi		Uppala		uvvamsikrishna@gmail.com		94109				2021-09-16 14:21:34 EST

		Teddy		Kramer		theodore.kramer@gmail.com		94133				2021-09-16 16:56:12 EST

		Brad		Dickason		bdickason@maracordev.com		94611				2021-09-21 17:46:14 EST

		Carol		Chandler		carolsibook@yahoo.com		94114				2021-10-31 15:13:53 EST

		Ewan		Barker Plummer		ewanbarkerplummer@gmail.com		94122				2021-11-01 23:28:52 EST

		Antonio		Quilici		aquilici97@gmail.com		94109				2021-09-20 20:05:28 EST

		Jonathan		Buenemann		jonathanbuenemann@gmail.com		94123				2021-09-24 19:09:55 EST

		Dominique		Meroux		dmeroux@gmail.com		94134				2021-10-29 17:15:29 EST

		Raquel		Bito		rbito@steinberghart.com		94111				2021-09-21 21:03:05 EST

		Aisling		Peterson		apeterson@openhousesf.org		94102				2021-11-02 12:19:46 EST

		Sachin		Agarwal		sachin@growsf.org		94122				2021-10-29 13:26:05 EST

		Kevin		Samples		kevin.samples@gmail.com		94108				2021-09-17 12:40:21 EST

		Jeska		Dzwigalski		jeska.dzwigalski@gmail.com		94133				2021-09-16 16:38:16 EST

		Hector		Rubio		hectorr@hellermanus.com		94111				2021-09-21 20:45:39 EST

		Daniela		Ades		dades@greenbelt.org		94109				2021-09-22 14:26:17 EST

		Barry		Chauser		barrychauser@gmail.com		94116				2021-11-01 14:15:08 EST

		Luvia		Silva		luvia4152012@gmail.com		94110				2021-09-17 23:21:00 EST

		Kevin		Utschig		ku1313@icloud.com		94110				2021-09-18 16:39:02 EST

		Angelina		Perez		angelinarenee.perez@gmail.com		94109				2021-09-18 19:41:37 EST

		Simon		Cai		bijinezu@gmail.com		94108				2021-09-26 14:43:33 EST

		Oliver		Baseley		olibaseley@gmail.com		94103				2021-10-29 22:11:53 EST

		Akhil		Gupta		nrd981@gmail.com		94107				2021-10-31 07:29:19 EST

		Molly		Bierman		mollybierman@gmail.com		94123				2021-09-19 11:32:13 EST

		Avishai		Halev		avishaihalev@gmail.com		94133				2021-09-21 18:55:15 EST

		Silas		Wilkinson		silaskwilkinson@gmail.com		94606				2021-10-30 14:03:52 EST

		Dylan		Hunn		dylhunn@gmail.com		94110				2021-09-16 14:40:07 EST

		Deepti		Rajendran		deeptiraj7@gmail.com		94110				2021-10-29 22:41:19 EST

		Lawrence		Dann-Fenwick		lawrencedf@gmail.com		94121				2021-10-31 14:15:28 EST

		Christina		Sheffey		christinalsheffey@gmail.com		94109				2021-09-21 19:13:54 EST

		Jonathan		Tyburski		jtyburski@gmail.com		94117				2021-10-29 16:40:54 EST

		Lindsay		Haddix		lindsayleighhaddix@gmail.com		94108				2021-09-16 15:48:21 EST

		joan		rost		joanr0623@gmail.com		94109				2021-09-21 17:37:24 EST

		Gabriel		Handford		gabrielh@gmail.com		94043				2021-10-29 13:46:22 EST

		Robert		Fruchtman		rfruchtose@gmail.com		94117				2021-09-18 16:00:09 EST

		Andy		Lynch		andylynchd@gmail.com		94107				2021-09-21 19:57:40 EST

		Keshav		Agrawal		keshav98271@gmail.com		94105				2021-10-29 22:17:20 EST

		Corey		Smith		cwsmith17@gmail.com		94117				2021-09-16 20:18:13 EST

		Steve		Marzo		smarzo@alumni.nd.edu		94112				2021-09-16 18:33:07 EST

		Jessica		Perla		jessica@jperla.com		94107-3739				2021-09-17 14:54:43 EST

		Joseph		Swaub		jfswain@gmail.com		94104				2021-09-16 15:14:58 EST

		Michiko		Scott		soulhealing868@yahoo.co.jp		94706				2021-09-16 15:20:22 EST

		Emily		Johnston		confusethegoose@gmail.com		94114				2021-10-29 21:08:52 EST

		Ravi		Mulani		ravimulani1@gmail.com		8479124971				2021-10-30 16:45:39 EST

		Kushal		Amin		kushal.amin.07@gmail.com		94041				2021-10-29 22:12:10 EST

		Chelsea		Harrison		cjwilson09@gmail.com		94110				2021-11-01 22:43:51 EST

		Timothy		Buck		timothybuck13@gmail.com		94133				2021-09-24 10:50:46 EST

		Alex		Myers		aj.myers93@gmail.com		94108				2021-09-23 23:08:17 EST

		Lizzie		Siegle		lizzie.siegle@gmail.com		94108				2021-10-30 12:28:35 EST

		Radha		Ahya		radhaahya@gmail.com		94115				2021-10-29 22:03:02 EST

		Annie		De Lancie		annie@delancie.org		94133				2021-09-21 17:58:18 EST

		Melanie		Stein		melanie.anne.stein@gmail.com		94133				2021-09-16 14:53:18 EST

		Richard		McCoy		rdmccoy@dons.usfca.edu		94118				2021-10-30 10:24:11 EST

		Julie		Heinzler		julie@martinbuilding.com		94611				2021-09-21 17:41:43 EST

		Jessica		Perla		jessica.perla@cbnorcal.com		94107				2021-10-29 13:26:37 EST

		David		Casey		dcasey@bararch.com		94111				2021-09-16 15:59:47 EST

		Kelsey		Frost		kelseyafrost@gmail.com		94109				2021-09-17 23:57:39 EST

		Simon		Blount		simon.blount@polyglobal.com		94104				2021-09-22 02:13:51 EST

		Jaya		Verma		to.jayaa@gmail.com		94102				2021-10-29 22:02:43 EST

		Ishan		Chhabra		ishan.chhabra@gmail.com		94107				2021-10-29 22:16:13 EST

						ryantmcmichael@gmail.com		94107				2021-10-29 23:08:52 EST

		Rikhil		Bajaj		rikhil.bajaj@gmail.com		10036				2021-10-29 23:31:33 EST

		Vivek		Goyal		banshee1989@gmail.com		94301				2021-10-30 18:41:49 EST







have been updates to the project since our July review. These updates are not reflected in the
report card but we view the changes as positive (ie more affordable housing).
 
Please let me know if you have any questions.
 
Respectfully,
Corey Smith
Deputy Director, HAC
 
--
Corey Smith 陈锐 | Pronouns: He/Him
Deputy Director | Housing Action Coalition
95 Brady Street, San Francisco, CA 94103
Office: (415) 541-9001 | Cell: (925) 360-5290

Email: corey@sfhac.org | Web: sfhac.org
 
To opt out of all HAC emails, respond to this email with "unsubscribe all".

 
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
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First Name Last Name Email Zip Code
Townsend Walker townsend@townsendwalker.com 94109
Tom Lockard marlock@pacbell.net 94133
Weston Cooper weston.cooperuo@gmail.com 94133
Ignacio Barandiaran ignacio.barandiaran@gmail.com 94611
Kate McGee kate.urbus@gmail.com 94133

Alex Noor alex.noor7@gmail.com 94133
Nicholas Marinakis hoyanakis@gmail.com 94133

Charles Whitfield whitfield.cw@gmail.com 94114

Michael Chen mychen10@yahoo.com 94109
Steven Aiello pstevenaiello@gmail.com 94952

Davey Kim daveymkim@hotmail.com 94109
brett Gladstone b_gladstone@comcast.net 94117
Millicent Tolleson millietolleson@gmail.com 94109
Mona Lovgreen mlovgreen@dialogdesign.ca 94111
Jacinta McCann jacintamccann1@gmail.com 94109

Victoria Wallis vwallis93@gmail.com 94108
lisa church lmc.public@gmail.com 94108
Jos√© Pablo Gonzalez-Brenes josepablog@gmail.com 94109
Michael Pacheco mpacheco8@icloud.com 94105

Evan Sipe eesipe@gmail.com 94133
Jack Gardner jgardner@jsco.net 94109
Cindy Downing cindycdowning@gmail.com 94619
John Holtzclaw john.holtzclaw@sierraclub.org 94133
Raul Maldonado rmaldonadocloud@gmail.com 94132
Julia Vetromile julia.vetromile@gmail.com 941081041
Gabe Zitrin gzitrin@gmail.com 94109
Scott K slksfca@gmail.com 94122
Bilal Mahmood m.b.mahmood@gmail.com 94105
Matt Babcock mbabcock05@gmail.com 94109



dorian hollis dorianhollis@yahoo.com 94109
Beverly Mills bev@studiobeverly.com 94109
Colin Kerrigan crkerrigan@gmail.com 94103
Jennifer Gee geewhiz97@gmail.com 94111
Mark English mark@markenglisharchitects.com 94108
Joey Babbitt jrbabbitt@gmail.com 94133
Ziwei Hao ziwei.hao@gmail.com 94109
Armand Domalewski armanddomalewski@gmail.com 94115
Chris Heriot cheriot@gmail.com 94110
Zack Subin zack.subin@fastmail.fm 94112
Ali Moss ali.moss13@gmail.com 94117
Danny Sauter sauterdj@gmail.com 94133
Andrew O'Shea andyosh@gmail.com 94109
Anne Fougeron anne@fougeron.com 94111
Frances Fisher-Wolff flfisher2010@gmail.com 94109
Anika Steig anika.steig@gmail.com 94117
Harold Metzger harry19023@gmail.com 94109
Andrew Rowny drew.rowny@gmail.com 94114
David Stone david.curtis.stone@gmail.com 94122
Andy Day aday.nu@gmail.com 94115
luisa james luisa.thephone@gmail.com 94109
Neil Shah neilpshah@gmail.com 94109
Ira Kaplan iradkaplan@gmail.com 94133
Adam Buck adambuck@gmail.com 94158
Myoko Shallenberger myokoshallenberger@gmail.com 94109
Spencer Guthrie spencer.guthrie@gmail.com 94118
Karen Wong cloudsrest789@gmail.com 94108
TK Polevoy tk.polevoy@gmail.com 94108
Thais Miller thaism@aol.com 94109
Sasha Heuer sashacheuer@gmail.com 94110
Sabeek Pradhan sabeekpradhan@gmail.com 94105
Dan Federman dfed@me.com 94117
Luis Ramirez luis@lmramirez.io 94110
Louis Magarshack louis.magarshack@gmail.com 94116
Marie Torres twoheartedsociopath@gmail.com 94109
Rishabh Kumar r@misterkumar.com 94133
Andres Salerno andreslsalerno@gmail.com 94109



Scot Conner scot.conner@berkeley.edu 94123
Chad Fusco crf15@case.edu 94109
Tory R. toryray@gmail.com 94133
Corey Smith corey@sfhac.org 94103
Ansh self@anshukla.com 94114
Raquel Bito b2sfca@gmail.com 94105
Ben Donahue ben@bendonahue.com 94117
Brian Lese blese56@gmail.com 94109
Suzanne Gregg sg@investsf.com 94131
Ross Ahya ross.ahya@gmail.com 94110
Diane Filippi dfilippisf@gmail.com 94133
Krish Ahya krishahya@gmail.com 94404

kellenwohl28@gmail.com 94010
Charles Ayers cayers99@gmail.com 94103
Charlene Chambliss chamblisscs@gmail.com 94612
Matt Graves gravesforrent@gmail.com 94103
Steve Naventi steve.naventi@gmail.com 94102
Vamsi Uppala uvvamsikrishna@gmail.com 94109
Teddy Kramer theodore.kramer@gmail.com 94133
Brad Dickason bdickason@maracordev.com 94611
Carol Chandler carolsibook@yahoo.com 94114
Ewan Barker Plummer ewanbarkerplummer@gmail.com 94122
Antonio Quilici aquilici97@gmail.com 94109
Jonathan Buenemann jonathanbuenemann@gmail.com 94123
Dominique Meroux dmeroux@gmail.com 94134
Raquel Bito rbito@steinberghart.com 94111
Aisling Peterson apeterson@openhousesf.org 94102
Sachin Agarwal sachin@growsf.org 94122
Kevin Samples kevin.samples@gmail.com 94108
Jeska Dzwigalski jeska.dzwigalski@gmail.com 94133
Hector Rubio hectorr@hellermanus.com 94111
Daniela Ades dades@greenbelt.org 94109
Barry Chauser barrychauser@gmail.com 94116
Luvia Silva luvia4152012@gmail.com 94110
Kevin Utschig ku1313@icloud.com 94110
Angelina Perez angelinarenee.perez@gmail.com 94109
Simon Cai bijinezu@gmail.com 94108



Oliver Baseley olibaseley@gmail.com 94103
Akhil Gupta nrd981@gmail.com 94107
Molly Bierman mollybierman@gmail.com 94123
Avishai Halev avishaihalev@gmail.com 94133
Silas Wilkinson silaskwilkinson@gmail.com 94606
Dylan Hunn dylhunn@gmail.com 94110
Deepti Rajendran deeptiraj7@gmail.com 94110
Lawrence Dann-Fenwick lawrencedf@gmail.com 94121
Christina Sheffey christinalsheffey@gmail.com 94109
Jonathan Tyburski jtyburski@gmail.com 94117
Lindsay Haddix lindsayleighhaddix@gmail.com 94108
joan rost joanr0623@gmail.com 94109
Gabriel Handford gabrielh@gmail.com 94043
Robert Fruchtman rfruchtose@gmail.com 94117
Andy Lynch andylynchd@gmail.com 94107
Keshav Agrawal keshav98271@gmail.com 94105
Corey Smith cwsmith17@gmail.com 94117
Steve Marzo smarzo@alumni.nd.edu 94112
Jessica Perla jessica@jperla.com 94107-3739
Joseph Swaub jfswain@gmail.com 94104
Michiko Scott soulhealing868@yahoo.co.jp 94706
Emily Johnston confusethegoose@gmail.com 94114
Ravi Mulani ravimulani1@gmail.com 8479124971
Kushal Amin kushal.amin.07@gmail.com 94041
Chelsea Harrison cjwilson09@gmail.com 94110
Timothy Buck timothybuck13@gmail.com 94133
Alex Myers aj.myers93@gmail.com 94108
Lizzie Siegle lizzie.siegle@gmail.com 94108
Radha Ahya radhaahya@gmail.com 94115
Annie De Lancie annie@delancie.org 94133
Melanie Stein melanie.anne.stein@gmail.com 94133
Richard McCoy rdmccoy@dons.usfca.edu 94118
Julie Heinzler julie@martinbuilding.com 94611
Jessica Perla jessica.perla@cbnorcal.com 94107
David Casey dcasey@bararch.com 94111
Kelsey Frost kelseyafrost@gmail.com 94109
Simon Blount simon.blount@polyglobal.com 94104



Jaya Verma to.jayaa@gmail.com 94102
Ishan Chhabra ishan.chhabra@gmail.com 94107

ryantmcmichael@gmail.com 94107
Rikhil Bajaj rikhil.bajaj@gmail.com 10036
Vivek Goyal banshee1989@gmail.com 94301



Personalizied Message Time Stamp
A perfect place for new housing in a community with shops, stores and transit. 2021-09-16 17:41:52 EST
As a long term resident of North Beach I strongly support the proposed development. 2021-09-16 15:23:49 EST
Excited for more neighbors, as well as more customers for neighborhood restaurants and business. 2021-09-21 17:33:51 EST
I fully support this project, we need more housing now! 2021-09-16 14:47:52 EST
I live 8 blocks away and am in support of the project. 2021-09-22 13:57:45 EST
I live a block away and 100% support this project. North Beach is one of the best neighborhoods in the city and I 
want more people to be able to enjoy and experience it. 2021-09-16 19:20:23 EST
I live in North Beach and strongly support more housing here 2021-09-21 17:33:05 EST
More housing means more diverse, more equitable, more vibrant cities, and protects the planet from harmful 
urban sprawl 2021-10-29 15:21:02 EST
More housing near transit would be great. More people who can support local businesses would be great. More 
homes for people struggling to make it is great. 2021-09-16 14:25:34 EST
Nice re-use project. Keep it up! -S 2021-09-21 17:38:54 EST

Nob Hill resident, who wants to see more housing, especially smaller units to add our housing supply! More 
neighbors mean more support for our iconic local businesses! We need more ridership on our transit lines as well! 2021-09-21 12:17:03 EST
Please approve this well designed project. We do not need parking as much as we need parking. 2021-09-21 18:37:34 EST
Support this better use of the land to create housing! 2021-09-16 14:59:31 EST
Supporting more housing and this development. 2021-09-21 17:34:02 EST
This is an excellent infill development proposal and adds much needed housing. 2021-09-22 01:20:16 EST
This project is wonderful and will brighten the community! North Beach is impossibly difficult to build new 
housing and I really hope this succeeds. 2021-09-21 14:34:39 EST
We need this and 1324 Powell Street! 2021-09-16 14:30:30 EST
Why. only 41 homes? Shouldn't we build with higher density? 2021-09-16 14:24:38 EST
Yes - More market rate housing! 2021-09-16 15:39:17 EST
Yes! I support new affordable homes in North Beach that encourage alternatives to driving, and maximize this 
transit-rich location. 2021-09-16 14:23:21 EST
You may also add "The John Stewart Company" as a corporate supporter. 2021-09-23 16:14:17 EST

2021-09-16 16:12:46 EST
2021-09-16 18:20:38 EST
2021-10-07 14:43:28 EST
2021-09-18 19:33:45 EST
2021-09-16 20:04:31 EST
2021-10-31 16:56:05 EST
2021-10-29 13:56:46 EST
2021-09-16 14:30:02 EST



2021-09-21 17:39:05 EST
2021-09-21 18:15:11 EST
2021-11-01 19:15:57 EST
2021-09-18 22:17:05 EST
2021-09-16 14:28:03 EST
2021-09-20 14:46:26 EST
2021-09-21 17:30:30 EST
2021-10-29 14:18:51 EST
2021-09-19 19:26:26 EST
2021-10-09 15:13:32 EST
2021-09-17 06:40:19 EST
2021-09-22 00:58:27 EST
2021-11-02 00:11:24 EST
2021-09-23 11:58:30 EST
2021-11-02 11:45:00 EST
2021-10-29 14:08:55 EST
2021-09-16 14:35:55 EST
2021-10-29 22:02:21 EST
2021-11-01 18:35:45 EST
2021-10-29 16:24:47 EST
2021-09-19 03:01:19 EST
2021-09-24 12:44:44 EST
2021-09-20 14:53:30 EST
2021-10-29 13:24:57 EST
2021-09-21 19:11:09 EST
2021-11-01 22:04:47 EST
2021-09-16 15:57:35 EST
2021-09-16 15:37:48 EST
2021-09-21 18:13:17 EST
2021-10-05 18:46:05 EST
2021-10-29 22:21:41 EST
2021-09-17 00:17:16 EST
2021-11-01 17:54:10 EST
2021-09-16 18:46:08 EST
2021-09-20 14:38:40 EST
2021-11-01 17:27:49 EST
2021-11-01 17:29:42 EST



2021-09-16 20:25:26 EST
2021-09-21 18:09:05 EST
2021-09-25 17:33:01 EST
2021-09-10 19:26:09 EST
2021-10-29 15:06:55 EST
2021-09-21 21:01:30 EST
2021-10-29 13:41:32 EST
2021-09-21 17:32:19 EST
2021-09-21 14:12:38 EST
2021-10-29 21:58:24 EST
2021-09-21 18:07:17 EST
2021-10-29 22:24:08 EST
2021-09-21 19:26:22 EST
2021-10-29 16:09:48 EST
2021-09-16 14:33:08 EST
2021-10-29 15:23:08 EST
2021-10-29 13:33:48 EST
2021-09-16 14:21:34 EST
2021-09-16 16:56:12 EST
2021-09-21 17:46:14 EST
2021-10-31 15:13:53 EST
2021-11-01 23:28:52 EST
2021-09-20 20:05:28 EST
2021-09-24 19:09:55 EST
2021-10-29 17:15:29 EST
2021-09-21 21:03:05 EST
2021-11-02 12:19:46 EST
2021-10-29 13:26:05 EST
2021-09-17 12:40:21 EST
2021-09-16 16:38:16 EST
2021-09-21 20:45:39 EST
2021-09-22 14:26:17 EST
2021-11-01 14:15:08 EST
2021-09-17 23:21:00 EST
2021-09-18 16:39:02 EST
2021-09-18 19:41:37 EST
2021-09-26 14:43:33 EST



2021-10-29 22:11:53 EST
2021-10-31 07:29:19 EST
2021-09-19 11:32:13 EST
2021-09-21 18:55:15 EST
2021-10-30 14:03:52 EST
2021-09-16 14:40:07 EST
2021-10-29 22:41:19 EST
2021-10-31 14:15:28 EST
2021-09-21 19:13:54 EST
2021-10-29 16:40:54 EST
2021-09-16 15:48:21 EST
2021-09-21 17:37:24 EST
2021-10-29 13:46:22 EST
2021-09-18 16:00:09 EST
2021-09-21 19:57:40 EST
2021-10-29 22:17:20 EST
2021-09-16 20:18:13 EST
2021-09-16 18:33:07 EST
2021-09-17 14:54:43 EST
2021-09-16 15:14:58 EST
2021-09-16 15:20:22 EST
2021-10-29 21:08:52 EST
2021-10-30 16:45:39 EST
2021-10-29 22:12:10 EST
2021-11-01 22:43:51 EST
2021-09-24 10:50:46 EST
2021-09-23 23:08:17 EST
2021-10-30 12:28:35 EST
2021-10-29 22:03:02 EST
2021-09-21 17:58:18 EST
2021-09-16 14:53:18 EST
2021-10-30 10:24:11 EST
2021-09-21 17:41:43 EST
2021-10-29 13:26:37 EST
2021-09-16 15:59:47 EST
2021-09-17 23:57:39 EST
2021-09-22 02:13:51 EST



2021-10-29 22:02:43 EST
2021-10-29 22:16:13 EST
2021-10-29 23:08:52 EST
2021-10-29 23:31:33 EST
2021-10-30 18:41:49 EST



From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED CELEBRATES OFFICIAL LAUNCH OF SAN FRANCISCO

WELCOME AMBASSADORS PROGRAM
Date: Tuesday, November 02, 2021 11:53:19 AM
Attachments: 11.02.2021 Welcome Ambassadors.pdf

 
 
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
Date: Tuesday, November 2, 2021 at 11:52 AM
To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED CELEBRATES OFFICIAL LAUNCH OF
SAN FRANCISCO WELCOME AMBASSADORS PROGRAM
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Tuesday, November 2, 2021
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED CELEBRATES OFFICIAL LAUNCH

OF SAN FRANCISCO WELCOME AMBASSADORS
PROGRAM

Two-year, $12.5 million initiative stations Welcome Ambassadors downtown and in
key transit and tourist areas to greet and assist employees, commuters, visitors, and

residents
 

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today announced the official launch of
the San Francisco Welcome Ambassadors Program, which aims to create a safer and
more hospitable environment for returning employees, commuters, visitors, and
residents to the City’s downtown and tourist areas. As part of Mayor Breed’s
Downtown Recovery Plan, ambassadors will connect people in need with services and
provide a welcoming presence throughout the City’s busiest corridors.
 
Once fully operating, the program will deploy 50 Welcome Ambassadors to locations
throughout the City, including all downtown BART stations, Market Street, Moscone
Center, East Cut, the Ferry Building, Pier 39, Fisherman’s Wharf, the Embarcadero,
Chinatown, North Beach, Union Square, and the Cable Car turnarounds. The program
is expected to create over 100 jobs.
 
“This program represents a major investment to advance the City’s economic recovery,” said

mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/
mailto:mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org
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TELEPHONE: (415) 554-6141 


 


 


FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE: 


Tuesday, November 2, 2021 


Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org 


 


*** PRESS RELEASE *** 


MAYOR LONDON BREED CELEBRATES OFFICIAL LAUNCH 


OF SAN FRANCISCO WELCOME AMBASSADORS PROGRAM 
Two-year, $12.5 million initiative stations Welcome Ambassadors downtown and in key 


transit and tourist areas to greet and assist employees, commuters, visitors, and 


residents 


 


San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today announced the official launch of the 


San Francisco Welcome Ambassadors Program, which aims to create a safer and more 


hospitable environment for returning employees, commuters, visitors, and residents to the 


City’s downtown and tourist areas. As part of Mayor Breed’s Downtown Recovery Plan, 


ambassadors will connect people in need with services and provide a welcoming presence 


throughout the City’s busiest corridors. 


 


Once fully operating, the program will deploy 50 Welcome Ambassadors to locations 


throughout the City, including all downtown BART stations, Market Street, Moscone 


Center, East Cut, the Ferry Building, Pier 39, Fisherman’s Wharf, the Embarcadero, 


Chinatown, North Beach, Union Square, and the Cable Car turnarounds. The program is 


expected to create over 100 jobs. 


 


“This program represents a major investment to advance the City’s economic recovery,” said 


Mayor Breed. “By making downtown and key tourist areas feel welcoming, attractive and safe, 


people will be excited to engage in our City’s vibrancy while supporting our local businesses. 


This collaborative effort is another example of our commitment to doing everything we can to 


create a more welcoming city and bounce back from this pandemic stronger than ever before.” 


 


Since its soft launch on October 7, 2021, the program has deployed 25 Welcome Ambassadors 


daily from 8 a.m. to 8 p.m. to the locations listed above. The ambassadors’ locations will shift 


regularly according to need, commuter patterns, special events, visitor arrivals, and the reopening 


of businesses and offices. As of Friday, October 29, the ambassadors had recorded 92,000 


interactions with people.  


 


The Welcome Ambassadors program builds on the success of the cleaning and safety 


ambassador programs created by Community Benefit Districts in the downtown area.  


Ambassadors will coordinate with other City safety and cleanliness initiatives including, 


the SFPD Community Ambassadors and SFPD’s Tourism Deployment Plan to create a 


safe and welcoming environment for individuals returning to San Francisco’s downtown.  


The San Francisco Tourism Improvement District is managing the Welcome Ambassadors 


Program through a grant from the Office of Economic and Workforce Development.   



mailto:mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org
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"We as a city need to do more to help bring life back to downtown. We need to do all we can to 


make things safer, cleaner, more friendly, and more vibrant. The Downtown Recovery Plan and 


the launch of more community ambassadors will help us get there," said District 6 Supervisor 


Matt Haney. 


 


 “Tourism is San Francisco’s number one industry. With the resumption of international travel to 


the U.S. on Nov. 8, this program is vitally important to ensure our visitors receive an ‘Only in 


SF’ welcome. The ambassadors embody San Francisco’s embracing spirit and will help tourists 


and convention attendees feel safe and cared for when they come here,” said Ike Kwon, 


California Academy of Science’s Chief Operating Officer and Head of Government Affairs and 


San Francisco Tourism Association’s Incoming Chair. 


 


"As San Francisco's largest private employer, we are deeply committed to the City and its 


recovery. It's great to see the renewed energy downtown, as our employees start to come back 


into our offices," said Michele Schneider, SVP of Real Estate Global Workplace Services at 


Salesforce. "We are proud to continue supporting the City and are grateful for the Mayor's 


continued leadership.”  


 


“In Yerba Buena we have the highest concentration of arts and culture west of the Hudson. The 


City’s incredible arts and cultural attractions draw people from near and far, and we are thrilled 


to have Welcome Ambassadors in place to help visitors find their way around the city and 


discover new experiences. They’re not only a sign of investment for our city’s recovery, but also 


an investment in our visitors and residents – it is proof that San Francisco values you and wants 


you to feel safe and cared for so you can enjoy your time in the City,” said Monetta White, 


Executive Director of the Museum of the African Diaspora. 


 


For more information on San Francisco Welcome Ambassador program, visit www.sftid.org. 


 


### 


 


 



http://www.sftid.org/





Mayor Breed. “By making downtown and key tourist areas feel welcoming, attractive and
safe, people will be excited to engage in our City’s vibrancy while supporting our local
businesses. This collaborative effort is another example of our commitment to doing
everything we can to create a more welcoming city and bounce back from this pandemic
stronger than ever before.”
 
Since its soft launch on October 7, 2021, the program has deployed 25 Welcome Ambassadors
daily from 8 a.m. to 8 p.m. to the locations listed above. The ambassadors’ locations will shift
regularly according to need, commuter patterns, special events, visitor arrivals, and the
reopening of businesses and offices. As of Friday, October 29, the ambassadors had recorded
92,000 interactions with people.
 
The Welcome Ambassadors program builds on the success of the cleaning and safety
ambassador programs created by Community Benefit Districts in the downtown area.
 Ambassadors will coordinate with other City safety and cleanliness initiatives
including, the SFPD Community Ambassadors and SFPD’s Tourism Deployment Plan
to create a safe and welcoming environment for individuals returning to San
Francisco’s downtown.  The San Francisco Tourism Improvement District is managing
the Welcome Ambassadors Program through a grant from the Office of Economic and
Workforce Development. 
"We as a city need to do more to help bring life back to downtown. We need to do all we can
to make things safer, cleaner, more friendly, and more vibrant. The Downtown Recovery Plan
and the launch of more community ambassadors will help us get there," said District 6
Supervisor Matt Haney.
 
“Tourism is San Francisco’s number one industry. With the resumption of international travel
to the U.S. on Nov. 8, this program is vitally important to ensure our visitors receive an ‘Only
in SF’ welcome. The ambassadors embody San Francisco’s embracing spirit and will help
tourists and convention attendees feel safe and cared for when they come here,” said Ike
Kwon, California Academy of Science’s Chief Operating Officer and Head of Government
Affairs and San Francisco Tourism Association’s Incoming Chair.
 
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
 
“In Yerba Buena we have the highest concentration of arts and culture west of the Hudson.
The City’s incredible arts and cultural attractions draw people from near and far, and we are
thrilled to have Welcome Ambassadors in place to help visitors find their way around the city
and discover new experiences. They’re not only a sign of investment for our city’s recovery,
but also an investment in our visitors and residents – it is proof that San Francisco values you
and wants you to feel safe and cared for so you can enjoy your time in the City,” said Monetta
White, Executive Director of the Museum of the African Diaspora.
 
For more information on San Francisco Welcome Ambassador program, visit
www.sftid.org.
 

###

http://www.sftid.org/


 
 
 



  This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources.

From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
To: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: General Public Comment November 4, 2021
Date: Tuesday, November 02, 2021 8:10:24 AM
Attachments: Screen Shot 2021-11-01 at 10.30.40 AM.png

Screen Shot 2021-11-01 at 10.30.23 AM.png
Screen Shot 2021-11-01 at 10.49.34 AM.png
Screen Shot 2021-11-01 at 10.48.12 AM.png
2020 Warning Letter.pdf
2021 Warning Letter.pdf

 
 
 
Commission Affairs
San Francisco Planning
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7600 | www.sfplanning.org
San Francisco Property Information Map

 
 

From: Thomas Schuttish <schuttishtr@sbcglobal.net> 
Sent: Monday, November 01, 2021 6:04 PM
To: Koppel, Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>; mooreurban@aol.com; Chan, Deland (CPC) <deland.chan@sfgov.org>; Diamond, Susan (CPC) <sue.diamond@sfgov.org>; Fung, Frank (CPC) <frank.fung@sfgov.org>; Imperial, Theresa (CPC) <theresa.imperial@sfgov.org>; Tanner, Rachael (CPC) <rachael.tanner@sfgov.org>; CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
<jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>; Lynch, Laura (CPC) <laura.lynch@sfgov.org>
Cc: Hillis, Rich (CPC) <rich.hillis@sfgov.org>; Teague, Corey (CPC) <corey.teague@sfgov.org>; Sanchez, Scott (CPC) <scott.sanchez@sfgov.org>; Tam, Tina (CPC) <tina.tam@sfgov.org>; Merlone, Audrey (CPC) <audrey.merlone@sfgov.org>; Watty, Elizabeth (CPC) <elizabeth.watty@sfgov.org>; YANG, AUSTIN (CAT) <Austin.Yang@sfcityatty.org>; JENSEN, KRISTEN (CAT) <Kristen.Jensen@sfcityatty.org>; Winslow, David (CPC)
<david.winslow@sfgov.org>; Jimenez, Sylvia (CPC) <sylvia.jimenez@sfgov.org>
Subject: General Public Comment November 4, 2021
 

 

 
Dear Commissioners:
 
Attached are two sets of screenshots for two different projects that received "warning letters" for being extremely close to the thresholds of the Section 317 Demolition Calculations.
 
The "warning letter" for each project is at the end of this email.  The address for each project receiving the “warning letter” is obscured.  That was done for their privacy by me.
 
There are two sets, with two matrices, of Demo Calcs for both projects shown below in the screenshots.
 
One matrix in a set is apparently before Staff Review and the other matrix in a set is apparently after Staff Review which precipitated the need for the “warning letters".
 
The same staff person issued both “warning letters" and this staff person should be commended for their professionalism. 
 
The two “warning letters" were published on the SFPIM.  I think these “warning letters” raise several questions:
 
1.  Why are project sponsors, licensed professionals, submitting plans that have Demo Calcs that turn out to be questionable and so close to the thresholds?  
 
2.  Have there been many more projects like the two here, that have not been caught by Staff or even actually exceeded the Demo Calcs?  (Remember back in late 2015 the Staff, after a request from a Commissioner looked at a sample of five Noe Valley Alteration projects and found that 40% should have been reviewed as Demolitions per Section 317 Tantamount to Demolition under the existing Demo Calcs.)
 
3.  Shouldn’t the Demo Calcs, which have never been adjusted, be adjusted by the Planning Commission as the Commission is empowered to do under Section 317 (b) (2) (D) so that plans will not veer so very close to becoming Demolitions and Section 317 can be implemented as intended?
 
4.  If there are projects with Demo Calcs so very close to or possibly exceeding the thresholds doesn’t this ignore or contradict the intent of Planning Code Section 317 to preserve existing housing, while allowing for reasonable expansions and alterations?
 
5.  How many other projects since 2008 when Section 317 was added to the Planning Code should have received “warning letters”?
 
One of the projects with the “warning letter" is under construction and the other project has not yet had the Site Permit issued.
 
Thank you.
Sincerely,
Georgia Schuttish
 
 
Demolition Calcs for 2021 Warning Letter
#1

#2

 

 
Demolition Calcs for 2020 Warning Letter

#1
October 29, 2019 Plans Demo Calcs

mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/

April 10, 2019 Plans Demo Calcs

1 |[A:FRONT FACADE (SOUTH) 30.30 3.50 116%
B: REAR FACADE (NORTH) 38.10 38.10 100.0%
FRONT/ REAR TOTAL 68.4 416 60.8% 60.8%
1: SOUTH FACADE 303 35 11.6%
2 |[2:NORTH FACADE 381 38.1 100.0%
K: WEST FACADE 39.4 9.1 23.1%
L: EASTFACADE 41.1 5.1 12.4%
LINEAL TOTAL (I-L) 148.9 55.8 37.5% 37.5%
[/ERTICAL ENVELOPE ELEMENTS - SURF ASUREMENTS
(E) AREA
C: SOUTH FAGADE
1 [DiNORTH FACADE 760 636
E: WEST FACADE 1324 122
F: EAST FACADE 1172 214
VERT. TOTAL (C-F) 4116 1064 25.9%
G: SECOND FLOOR 11210 180.0 16.1%
€2 |H: THIRD FLOOR 11240 69.0 6.1%
|: ROOF 1007.0 117.0 11.6%
HORIZ. TOTAL (G-H) 32520 | 3660 113% 113%

S.F.P.C. SEC. 317(B)(2) DEFINITION "DEMOLITION OF RESIDENTIAL BUILDINGS"

(2) "DEMOLITION OF RESIDENTIAL BUILDINGS" SHALL MEAN ANY OF THE FOLLOWING:
(A) ANY WORK ON A RESIDENTIAL BUILDING FOR WHICH THE DEPARTMENT OF BUILDING INSPECTION DETERMINES THAT AN APPLICATION PERMIT IS
REQUIRED, OR
(B1) A MAJOR ALTERATION OF A RESIDENTIAL BUILDING THAT PROPOSES THE REMOVAL OF MORE THAN 50% OF THE SUM OF THE FRONT FACADE AND REAR
FAGADE AND (B2) ALSO PROPOSES THE REMOVAL OF MORE THAN 65% OF THE SUM OF ALL EXTERIOR WALLS, MEASURED IN LINEAL FEET AT THE

FOUNDATION LEVEL, OR
(C1) AMAJOR ALTERATION OF A RESIDENTIAL BUILDING THAT PROPOSES THE REMOVAL OF MORE THAN 50% OF THE VERTICAL ENVELOPE ELEMENTS AND
(C2) MORE THAN 50% OF THE HORIZONTAL ELEMENTS OF THE EXISTING BUILDING, AS MEASURED IN SQUARE FEET OF ACTUAL SURFACE AREA.

CONCLUSION:
THIS PROJECT IS NOT CONSIDERED DEMOLITION

CONCLUSION:
THIS PROJECT IS NOT CONSIDERED DEMOLITION




May 14, 2021 Plans Demo Calcs

EXTERIOR FACADES - LINEAL FOUNDATION MEASUREMENTS

(E) LENGTH [LENGTH REMOVED| % REMOVED | TOTAL % REMOVED
a1 /A< FRONT FACADE (SOUTH] _ 25' 45" 17.7% 58.8%
B: REAR FACADE (NORTH) | 25' 25' 100%
FRONT/REAR TOTAL 50' 295" 58.8%
* INCLUDES ANGLED WALL
EXTERIOR WALLS - LINEAL FOUNDATION MEASUREMENTS
(E) LENGTH [LENGTH REMOVED| % REMOVED | TOTAL % REMOVED concLusion:
I: SOUTH FACADE 25' =g 17.7% 37.6% THIS PROJECT IS NOT CONSIDERED DEMOLITION
J: NORTH FACADE 25' 25' 100%
B2 [K: WEST FACADE 537" 170" 14.3%
L: EAST FACADE 588" 14-7" 26.6%
LINEAL TOTAL (I-) 162-3" 610" 311%
* INCLUDES ANGLED WALL & LIGHT WELL ** INCLUDES LIGHT WELL
VERTICAL ENVELOPE ELEMENTS - SURFACE AREA MEASUREMENTS
(E)AREA | AREAREMOVED | % REMOVED | TOTAL % REMOVED
C: SOUTH FACADE 851 381 45% 47.9%
¢4 |0 NORTH FACADE 801 801 100%
E: WEST FACADE 1095 351 321%
F: EAST FACADE 1192 354 29.7% ConCLUSION:
VERTICAL TOTAL (C-F) 3939 1887 47.9% THIS PROJECT IS NOT CONSIDERED DEMOLITION
* INCLUDES LIGHT WELL
HORIZONTAL ENVELOPE ELEMENTS - SURFACE AREA MEASUREMENTS
(E)AREA | AREAREMOVED | % REMOVED | TOTAL % REMOVED
G: FIRST FLOOR 738 738 100% 502%
H: SECOND FLOOR 1366 503 36.8%
C2 |I: THIRD FLOOR 938 161 17.2%
J: ROOF 847 551 61.9%
HORIZONTAL TOTAL (G-)) | 3889 1953 502%

S.F.P.C. SEC. 317(8)(2) DEFINITION "DEMOLITION OF RESIDENTIAL BUILDINGS"
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
FACADE AND (B2) ALSO PROPOSES THE REMOVAL OF MORE THAN 65% OF THE SUM OF ALL EXTERIOR WALLS, MEASURED IN LINEAL FEET AT THE

FOUNDATION LEVEL, OR

(C1) A MAJOR ALTERATION OF A RESIDENTIAL BUILDING THAT PROPOSES THE REMOVAL OF MORE THAN 50% OF THE VERTICAL ENVELOPE ELEMENTS AND
(C2) MORE THAN 50% OF THE HORIZONTAL ELEMENTS OF THE EXISTING BUILDING, AS MEASURED IN SQUARE FEET OF ACTUAL SURFACE AREA.





RESIDENTIAL DEMOLITION AREA CALCULATIONS

CODE REQS (E) BUILDING REMAINING IN (P) OUTCOME/ (CODE) COMPLIANCE
FRONT & REAR FACADE FRONT (SOUTH)=49'-8" | FRONT (SOUTH)=29'-3" | 53.1% REMAINING
REAR (NORTH)=49'-8" REAR (NORTH)=23"-6" OR COMPLIANT

LINEAR FT AT FOUNDATION | TOTAL= 99'—4” TOTAL=52'-9" 46.9% DEMO < 50% CODE
ALL EXTERIOR WALLS WEST=44"-2" WEST=30"-0"
SOUTH=24"-10" SOUTH=24"-10" 6W‘48%RREMA'N‘NG
LINEAR FT AT FOUNDATION | EAST= 44'-2" FAST=30"-0"
NORTH=24'—10" NORTH=0 38.52% DEMO < 65% CODE COMPLIANT
TOTAL=138"-0" TOTAL=84'—10"
VERTICAL ELEMENTS EAST=1133 SF FAST=690 SF
WEST=1050 SF WEST=517 SF 45% REMAINING NOT
SF OF SURFACE AREA SOUTH=520 SF SOUTH=206 SF OR COMPLIANT
NORTH=513 SF NORTH=36 SF 55% DEMO < 50% CODE
TOTAL=3216 SF TOTAL=1449 SF
HORIZONTAL ELEMENTS 1ST FLR=1002 1ST FLR=1002 64.6% REMAINING
OND FLR=1202 SF OND FLR=1202 SF OR COMPLIANT
SF OF SURFACE AREA ROOF=1208 SF ROOF=0 SF 35.4% DEMO < 50% CODE

TOTAL=3412 SF

TOTAL=2204 SF





mmmm EXTERIOR WALLS TO REMAIN
WA EXTERIOR WALLS TO BE DEMOLISHED

SECTION
317(b)(2)(B):

SECTION
317(b)(2)(C):

SUMMARY

RESIDENTIAL DEMOLITION AREA CALCULATIONS

SF OF SURFACE AREA

50% MAXIMUM

CODE REQS (E) BUILDING REMAINING IN_(P) OUTCOME/ (CODE) COMPLIANCE
ek abica ISP R -5
o on ITRRERA R I 1. I A
éEREEAéUEﬁ\'\éENT/\;EA TOTAL = 2707 SF TOTAL = 1370 SF ;8;5 BE;A\(I\)AUM COMPLIANT
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From: Lynch, Laura (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC); CPC-Commissions Secretary
Subject: FW: Planning Commissioners Training
Date: Monday, November 01, 2021 5:44:51 PM

Commissioners,
 
Please see the email below.
 
Thank you,
 
Laura Lynch, Senior Planner
Manager of Commission Affairs
San Francisco Planning
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628-652-7554| www.sfplanning.org
San Francisco Property Information Map

 
Expanded in-person services at the Permit Center at 49 South Van Ness Avenue are
available. Most other San Francisco Planning functions are being conducted remotely. Our
staff are available by e-mail, and the Planning and Historic Preservation Commissions are
convening remotely. The public is encouraged to participate. Find more information on our
services here. 
 

 
 
 

From: Craciun, Florentina (CPC) <florentina.craciun@sfgov.org> 
Sent: Monday, November 1, 2021 4:30 PM
To: Lynch, Laura (CPC) <laura.lynch@sfgov.org>
Subject: Planning Commissioners Training
 
Laura,
 
Not sure if you distribute these types of opportunities to City Decision Makers but it would be a
great resource:
 
https://mailchi.mp/ilapa/plan-commissioner-training-11-17-21?e=1dfc53d7bc
 
Thank you,
 
Florentina Craciun, AICP
Senior Environmental Planner
Environmental Planning Division
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628-652-7510 | sfplanning.org | www.sfplanning.org
San Francisco Property Information Map
 

mailto:laura.lynch@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/
https://sfplanning.org/staff-directory
https://sfplanning.org/node/1978
https://sfplanning.org/covid-19
https://mailchi.mp/ilapa/plan-commissioner-training-11-17-21?e=1dfc53d7bc
http://www.sfplanning.org/
http://propertymap.sfplanning.org/


From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** SAN FRANCISCO EXPANDS PILOT TO IMPROVE STREET CLEANING RESPONSE

TIME
Date: Monday, November 01, 2021 3:42:34 PM
Attachments: 11.01.2021 Connected Worker App.pdf

 
 
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
 

From: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org> 
Sent: Monday, November 01, 2021 3:40 PM
To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** SAN FRANCISCO EXPANDS PILOT TO IMPROVE STREET CLEANING
RESPONSE TIME
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Monday, November 1, 2021
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
SAN FRANCISCO EXPANDS PILOT TO IMPROVE STREET

CLEANING RESPONSE TIME   
Connected Worker App increases efficiency of 311 responses by sending direct referrals to
Community Benefit District cleaners, eliminating duplicative responses and getting issues

addressed more quickly
 
San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today announced that the City will build on a
successful pilot to improve street cleaning service response times. The Connected Worker App
program run in partnership between the City’s 311 service and Community Benefit Districts
(CBDs) will improve efficiency by eliminating duplicative responses and addressing cleaning
requests more quickly in areas covered by partnering CBDs.
 
San Francisco’s Connected Worker App allows cleaners from Community Benefit Districts to
get direct referrals for street cleaning when residents call 311. Under normal circumstances, all
311 cleaning requests get routed to the Department of Public Works, which then dispatches
City workers to address the issues. But CBDs have street cleaners already out in the
community proactively cleaning, and often Public Works employees arrive on scene to find
out that the CBD had already addressed the issue.
 
After a successful pilot with the East Cut CBD, the program is expanding to include the

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


311 cleaning requests get routed to the Department of Public Works, which then dispatches City 


workers to address the issues. But CBDs have street cleaners already out in the community 


proactively cleaning, and often Public Works employees arrive on scene to find out that the CBD 


had already addressed the issue. 


 


After a successful pilot with the East Cut CBD, the program is expanding to include the 


following CBDs: Downtown, Fisherman’s Wharf, SOMA West, Tenderloin, and Yerba Buena.   


 


“We are working hard every day to improve how we deliver services for our residents, especially 


around keeping our City clean,” said Mayor London Breed. “We have so many great City 


workers and private partners who are working hard to clean up our streets and get rid of graffiti 


and other garbage, and this will allow us to be more efficient and respond faster when our 


residents call for service. This is all part of our efforts to work together to make our City shine.” 


 


The recent pilot of the Connected Worker App with the East Cut CBD focused on routing calls 


to deal with loose garbage and graffiti directly to CBD workers. The average resolution times for 


requests handled directly by the CBD were significantly better as workers were already on scene 


and ready to address issues. Resolution times included: 


 


• 5 hours for loose trash, compared to 34 hours Citywide 


• 4 hours for graffiti in the public space, compared to 6 days Citywide 


• 13 hours for graffiti in private space, compared to 9 days Citywide 


 


 



mailto:mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org
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SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-4681 
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“The East Cut CBD is proud to partner with the City to improve sidewalk cleanliness,” said 


Andrew Robinson, executive director of The East Cut CBD. “The 311 project makes it easier for 


our team to handle cleaning requests and communicate with City departments, allowing each 


team to be more efficient. The pilot phase of the project has proven very beneficial to us and our 


community.” 


 


Benefits of the Connected Worker App include: 


• Eliminates duplicate dispatch of resources. Often, requests submitted through 311 


would be routed to Public Works, and Public Works would dispatch a crew only to find 


out CBDs had already addressed the issue. This tool will route some cases directly to the 


CBD, if within their geographic area, for CBDs to address. If the CBD does not address 


the issue within the agreed-upon time, Public Works would then service the request. 


• Field workers can see 311 requests in "real time"  with visibility to all request details: 


location, contact information, description, and picture (if submitted by the user). This 


allows field workers to address 311 requests that pop up while they are on their shift.   


• Field workers can take a picture of the completed work and close requests in "real 


time," which would notify the person who submitted the request while also closing it out 


in the 311 system. This provides transparency and validation of the work being done by 


field workers. 311 staff are also able to see the status of the request from beginning to 


end. 


 


This new street cleaning effort is part of Shine On SF, a coalition of public and private sector 


organizations which aims to support immediate and long-term cleaning improvements and 


systems changes while also bringing together residents to care for city streets and public spaces, 


producing a visible change over the next three years.  The initiative is composed of two main 


components: creating civic engagement opportunities for San Franciscans to volunteer and 


directly contribute to creating a cleaner and more cared-for city; and expanding and improving 


the City’s cleaning and beautification programs through immediate investments and long-term 


systemic changes.  


 


### 


 


 







following CBDs: Downtown, Fisherman’s Wharf, SOMA West, Tenderloin, and Yerba
Buena. 
 
“We are working hard every day to improve how we deliver services for our residents,
especially around keeping our City clean,” said Mayor London Breed. “We have so many
great City workers and private partners who are working hard to clean up our streets and get
rid of graffiti and other garbage, and this will allow us to be more efficient and respond faster
when our residents call for service. This is all part of our efforts to work together to make our
City shine.”
 
The recent pilot of the Connected Worker App with the East Cut CBD focused on routing calls
to deal with loose garbage and graffiti directly to CBD workers. The average resolution times
for requests handled directly by the CBD were significantly better as workers were already on
scene and ready to address issues. Resolution times included:
 

5 hours for loose trash, compared to 34 hours Citywide
4 hours for graffiti in the public space, compared to 6 days Citywide
13 hours for graffiti in private space, compared to 9 days Citywide

 
“The East Cut CBD is proud to partner with the City to improve sidewalk cleanliness,” said
Andrew Robinson, executive director of The East Cut CBD. “The 311 project makes it easier
for our team to handle cleaning requests and communicate with City departments, allowing
each team to be more efficient. The pilot phase of the project has proven very beneficial to us
and our community.”
 
Benefits of the Connected Worker App include:

Eliminates duplicate dispatch of resources. Often, requests submitted through 311
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
Field workers can see 311 requests in "real time"  with visibility to all request
details: location, contact information, description, and picture (if submitted by the user).
This allows field workers to address 311 requests that pop up while they are on their
shift. 
Field workers can take a picture of the completed work and close requests in "real
time," which would notify the person who submitted the request while also closing it
out in the 311 system. This provides transparency and validation of the work being done
by field workers. 311 staff are also able to see the status of the request from beginning
to end.

 
This new street cleaning effort is part of Shine On SF, a coalition of public and private sector
organizations which aims to support immediate and long-term cleaning improvements and
systems changes while also bringing together residents to care for city streets and public
spaces, producing a visible change over the next three years.  The initiative is composed of
two main components: creating civic engagement opportunities for San Franciscans to
volunteer and directly contribute to creating a cleaner and more cared-for city; and expanding
and improving the City’s cleaning and beautification programs through immediate investments



and long-term systemic changes.
 

###
 
 
 



From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
To: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: 733 Treat Avenue - 2021-000209CUA - Redline Motion
Date: Monday, November 01, 2021 3:02:17 PM
Attachments: Draft Motion - 733 Treat Avenue (redline).pdf

 
 
 
Commission Affairs
San Francisco Planning
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7600 | www.sfplanning.org
San Francisco Property Information Map

 
 

From: Samonsky, Ella (CPC) <ella.samonsky@sfgov.org> 
Sent: Monday, November 01, 2021 1:34 PM
To: Koppel, Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>; Chan, Deland (CPC) <deland.chan@sfgov.org>;
Moore, Kathrin (CPC) <kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>; Diamond, Susan (CPC)
<sue.diamond@sfgov.org>; Tanner, Rachael (CPC) <rachael.tanner@sfgov.org>; Imperial, Theresa
(CPC) <theresa.imperial@sfgov.org>; Fung, Frank (CPC) <frank.fung@sfgov.org>
Cc: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Sucre, Richard (CPC)
<richard.sucre@sfgov.org>; Ionin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>
Subject: 733 Treat Avenue - 2021-000209CUA - Redline Motion
 
Dear Planning Commission,
 
Attached is a redline of the draft motion for the project at 733 Treat Avenue (2021-000209CUA). The
redline motion includes the findings specific to demolition of a UDU, relating to the financial
feasibility of legalization.
 
Sincerely,
 
Ella Samonsky, Senior Planner
Southeast Team/ Current Planning Division
San Francisco Planning
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7417 | sfplanning.org
San Francisco Property Information Map
 

mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/
https://sfplanning.org/
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Planning Commission Draft Motion 
HEARING DATE: November 4October 21, 2021 


Continued from October 21,2021 


 
 
Record No.: 2021-000209CUA 
Project Address: 733 Treat Avenue 
Zoning: RH-3 (Residential-House, Three Family) Zoning District 
 40-X Height and Bulk District
Block/Lot: 3612/064 
Project Sponsor: John Kevlin, Reuben, Junius & Rose, LLP 
 One Bush Street, Suite 600 
 San Francisco, CA 94104 
Property Owner: 733 Treat Ave, LLC 
 2501 Mission Street 
 San Francisco, CA 94110 
Staff Contact: Ella Samonsky – (628) 652-7417 
 Ella.Samonsky@sfgov.org  
 
 
ADOPTING FINDINGS RELATING TO A CONDITIONAL USE AUTHORIZATION, PURSUANT TO PLANNING CODE 
SECTIONS 209.1, 303 AND 317, TO ALLOW DWELLING UNIT DENSITY AT A RATIO OF ONE UNIT PER 1,000 SQUARE 
FEET OF LOT AREA AND THE DEMOLITION OF THE EXISTING 7,581 SQUARE-FOOT, TWO-STORY COMMERCIAL 
BUILDING CONTAINING AN UNAUTHORIZED DWELLING UNIT AND NEW CONSTRUCTION OF  A FOUR-STORY 
15,807 SQUARE-FOOT RESIDENTIAL BUILDING CONTAINING SIX DWELLING UNITS AND AN ACCESSORY 
DWELLING UNIT (ADU) LOCATED AT 733 TREAT AVENUE, LOT 064 IN ASSESSOR’S BLOCK 3612, WITHIN THE RH-3 
(RESIDENTIAL-HOUSE, THREE FAMILY) ZONING DISTRICT AND A 40-X HEIGHT AND BULK DISTRICT, AND ADOPT 
FINDINGS UNDER THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT.   
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PREAMBLE 


On January 5, 2020, SIA Consulting Corp. on behalf of 733 Treat, LLC (hereinafter "Project Sponsor") filed 
Application No. 2021-000209CUA (hereinafter “Application”) with the Planning Department (hereinafter 
“Department”) for a Conditional Use Authorization to construct a new four-story, 40-ft tall, residential building with 
six dwelling units and an accessory dwelling unit (ADU) (hereinafter “Project”) at 733 Treat Avenue, Block 3612 Lot 
064 (hereinafter “Project Site”). 
 
On August 11, 2021, the Project was determined to be exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act 
(“CEQA”) as a Class 32 Categorical Exemption under CEQA as described in the determination contained in the 
Planning Department files for this Project. 
 
On October 21, 2021, the San Francisco Planning Commission (hereinafter “Commission”) conducted a duly 
noticed public hearing at a regularly scheduled meeting on Conditional Use Authorization Application No. 2021-
000209CUA2, and continued it to November 4, 2021.  
 
On November 4, 2021, the San Francisco Planning Commission (hereinafter “Commission”) conducted a duly 
noticed public hearing at a regularly scheduled meeting on Conditional Use Authorization Application No. 2021-
000209CUA2.  
 
The Planning Department Commission Secretary is the Custodian of Records; the File for Record No. 2021-
000209CUA is located at 49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, California. 
 
The Commission has heard and considered the testimony presented to it at the public hearing and has further 
considered written materials and oral testimony presented on behalf of the applicant, Department staff, and other 
interested parties. 
 
MOVED, that the Commission hereby authorizes the Conditional Use as requested in Application No. 2021-
000209CUA, subject to the conditions contained in “EXHIBIT A” of this motion, based on the following findings: 
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FINDINGS 


Having reviewed the materials identified in the preamble above, and having heard all testimony and arguments, 
this Commission finds, concludes, and determines as follows: 
 


1. The above recitals are accurate and constitute findings of this Commission. 


2. Project Description. The Project includes demolition of the existing two-story commercial building 
(approximately 7,600 gross square feet) containing an unauthorized dwelling unit, and new construction 
of a four-story, residential building containing six dwelling units and an accessory dwelling unit (ADU)  
(approximately 15,800 gross square feet) with seven vehicle parking spaces, eight Class 1 bicycle parking 
spaces, and 2 Class 2 bicycle parking spaces. The Project includes a dwelling unit mix consisting of six 
three-bedroom units and a one-bedroom ADU. The Project includes 2,345 square feet of common open 
space in the rear yard and on the roof deck, and 731 square feet of private open space on decks.  


3. Site Description and Present Use. The Project is located on a rectangular lot measuring 6,125 square 
feet (sf) with 50 feet of frontage along Treat Avenue. The project site contains an existing two-story 
commercial building, that previously housed a non-conforming commercial use (refrigeration service) 
and was used as an unauthorized dwelling unit.  The property has been vacant since 2015 and the non-
conforming use is now considered abandoned. 


4. Surrounding Properties and Neighborhood. The Project Site is located within the RH-3 Zoning District 
in the Mission Area Plan. The surrounding neighborhood is mixed in character with residential, 
commercial, PDR, and public uses. The immediate surroundings includes two- and three-story residential 
buildings to the north and the west across Treat Avenue, the Mission Recreation Center to the south, and 
a five-story live/work building to the east along Harrison Street. Other zoning districts in the vicinity of the 
project site include: P (Public), UMU (Urban Mixed-Use), and the NC-2 (Neighborhood Commercial, Small-
Scale) Zoning District. 


5. Public Outreach and Comments. The Sponsor has hosted one meeting within the community on 
October 20, 2020, which was attended by three members of the public and Recreation and Parks 
Department Staff. Questions were raised about height, density, unit sizes and the fire-damaged property 
adjacent to the project site, support for on-site parking and privacy concerns. The Department has 
received correspondence in support of the project from nine residents and correspondence from one 
member of the public expressing concern about the 40-foot height of the proposed building and potential 
reduction in the availability of street parking. 


6. Planning Code Compliance. The Commission finds that the Project is consistent with the relevant 
provisions of the Planning Code in the following manner: 


A. Use. Planning Code Section 209.1 permits up to three dwelling units per lot, or conditionally permits 
up to one dwelling unit per 1,000 square feet of lot area, in RH-3 Zoning District. 


The Project Site has a lot area of 6,125 square feet. The Project would construct a residential building 
containing six dwelling units and therefore requires Conditional Use Authorization. Additionally, the 
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project proposes to construct an ADU at the ground floor of the new Building, which may exceed the 
permitted density of the lot per State Law. 


 
B. Residential Demolition. Pursuant to Planning Code Section 317 and 209.1, Conditional Use 


Authorization is required for applications proposing to demolish a residential unit, including an 
unauthorized dwelling unit (UDU) in a RH-3 Zoning District. This Code Section establishes criteria that 
the Planning Commission shall consider in the review of applications for Residential Demolition.  


The Project proposes the demolition of an existing two-story commercial building that contained a UDU, 
and therefore requires Conditional Use Authorization. The additional criteria specified under Section 317 
have been incorporated as findings in Subsection 8 below. 


C. Rear Yard. Planning Code Section 134 requires a rear yard equal to 45 percent of the total depth, or 
the average of the adjacent rear yard but no less than 25 percent of the lot depth in RH-3 Zoning 
Districts.  


The subject property has a lot depth of 122 feet 6 inches and is required to maintain a rear yard of at 
least 30 feet 8 inches. The Project proposes a rear yard of 30 feet 8 inches. Thus, the Project provides a 
code-compliant rear yard. 


D. Useable Open Space. In the RH-3 Zoning District, Planning Code Section 135 requires 100 square feet 
of useable open space for each dwelling unit if all private, or 133 square feet of common usable open 
space for each dwelling unit. 


The Project contains six dwelling units and an ADU. The rear yard and roof deck provide 2,345 square 
feet of common open space. Four units, numbers 02, 04, 06, and the ADU each have access to private 
open space on a deck or porch. Thus, the Project provides a code complaint amount of usable open 
space for seven dwelling units. 


 
E. Dwelling Unit Exposure. Planning Code Section 140 requires that at least one room of all dwelling 


units face onto a public street or public alley at least 30 feet in width, a side yard at least 25 feet in 
width, a rear yard meeting the requirements of the Code or other open area that meets minimum 
requirements for area and horizontal dimensions. 


The four front units have direct exposure onto the public street and the three rear units have direct 
exposure on to the Code-compliant rear yard. 


 
F. Off-Street Parking. Planning Code Section 151 does not require a minimum number of off-street 


parking spaces and permits a maximum of 1.5 parking space for each dwelling unit. 


The Project will provide seven off-street parking spaces, which is one parking space per dwelling unit. 


G. Bicycle Parking. Planning Code Section 155.2 requires at least one Class 1 bicycle parking space for 
each dwelling unit and one Class 2 bicycle parking space for each 20 dwelling units. 


The Project proposes eight Class 1 bicycle parking spaces and two Class 2 bicycle parking spaces. 
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H. Height.  Planning Code Section 252 and 270 establish a height limit of 40 feet, without bulk restrictions 
in the 40-X Height and Bulk District.  


The total height of the proposed building is 40 feet.  


I. Residential Child-Care Impact Fee. Planning Code Section 411 is applicable to any residential 
development that results in at least one new residential unit.  


The Project includes approximately 13,300 gross square feet of new residential use. This use is subject to 
Residential Child-Care Impact Fee, as outlined in Planning Code Section 411A. This fee must be paid prior 
to the issuance of the building permit application. 


J. Eastern Neighborhoods  Impact Fee and Public Benefit Fund.  Planning Code Section 423 is applicable 
to any development project within the Mission Area Plan that results in at least one new dwelling unit.  


The Project includes the construction of six new dwelling units and an ADU. The Project shall receive 
credit for existing uses on the project site. The residential use is subject to Eastern Neighborhoods Impact 
Fee and Public Benefit Fund, as outlined in Planning Code Section 423. These fees must be paid prior to 
the issuance of the building permit application. 


7. Conditional Use Findings. Planning Code Section 303 establishes criteria for the Planning Commission 
to consider when reviewing applications for Conditional Use authorization. On balance, the project 
complies with said criteria in that: 


A. The proposed new uses and building, at the size and intensity contemplated and at the proposed 
location, will provide a development that is necessary or desirable, and compatible with, the 
neighborhood or the community. 


The proposed small scale residential building is keeping with the general scale of development in the 
neighborhood and contributes to the primarily residential character of the block. The intent of the RH-3 
Zoning District is to provide neighborhoods of small residential structures, predominately large flats on 
25-foot-wide lots with fine or moderate pattern of entries from the street. The Project would replace a 
non-conforming commercial building, that covers the entire 50-foot-wide lot, with a four-story 
residential building with front and rear yards and a ground that provide a more active and fine grain 
pattern along the street frontage. While the Project proposes demolition of a UDU, the Project increases 
the number of dwelling units on the site. The proposed units are sized appropriately for the 
neighborhood and provides six family-sized units with two or more bedrooms. Therefore, the Project is 
necessary and desirable given the quality and design of the new residences, and replacement of a non-
conforming use and structure with a residential use.  


B. The proposed project will not be detrimental to the health, safety, convenience or general welfare of 
persons residing or working in the vicinity. There are no features of the project that could be 
detrimental to the health, safety or convenience of those residing or working the area, in that:  


(1) Nature of proposed site, including its size and shape, and the proposed size, shape and 
arrangement of structures; 
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The proposed building will be four-stories, stepping down to three stories at the rear. The Project 
will provide an open rear yard to connect with the existing mid-block open space and a small 
front setback. 


(2) The accessibility and traffic patterns for persons and vehicles, the type and volume of such 
traffic, and the adequacy of proposed off-street parking and loading; 


The Planning Code does not require parking or loading for a 15,000 square-foot residential 
building. The Project provides seven vehicle parking spaces and eight bicycle parking spaces in 
a secured lockers.  The proposed use should not generate significant amounts of vehicular trips 
from the immediate neighborhood or citywide. 


(3) The safeguards afforded to prevent noxious or offensive emissions such as noise, glare, dust 
and odor; 


As the Project is residential in nature, the proposed residential use is not expected to produce 
noxious or offensive emissions. 


(4) Treatment given, as appropriate, to such aspects as landscaping, screening, open spaces, 
parking and loading areas, service areas, lighting and signs; 


Sufficient open space has been provided for the seven dwelling units in the rear yard, rear decks 
and roof decks. The front setback is landscaped and the rear yard provides usable open space 
and direct in-ground planting. All vehicle parking is within the building and screened from the 
street, and is accessed by a single 10-foot wide garage entrance. 


C. That the use as proposed will comply with the applicable provisions of the Planning Code and 
will not adversely affect the General Plan. 


The Project complies with all relevant requirements and standards of the Planning Code and is 
consistent with objectives and policies of the General Plan as detailed below. 


D. That use or feature as proposed will provide development that is in conformity with the stated 
purpose of the applicable Use District. 


The proposed project is consistent with the stated purposed of RH-3 Zoning District in that it provides  
small scale residential building containing larger units suitable for family occupancy and sizable 
open spaces. .  


8. Residential Demolition Findings. Section 317 of the Planning Code establishes criteria for the Planning 
Commission to consider when reviewing applications to demolish or convert residential buildings. In 
addition to the criteria of Section 303(c) of this Code, the Commission shall consider the extent to which 
the following criteria are met pursuant to Section 317(g)(6): 


a) Whether the property is free of a history of serious, continuing code violations; 
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A review of the Department of Building Inspection and the Planning Department databases show that 
all code enforcement complaints have been abated.  


b) Whether the housing has been maintained in a decent, safe, and sanitary condition; 


The unauthorized dwelling unit did not appear to be in decent, safe, and sanitary condition. The building 
was primarily a warehouse for a refrigeration service, which had minimal kitchen and bath facilities, and 
had  recently been subject to multiple code enforcement complaints due to blight.  


c) Whether the property is an "historical resource" under CEQA; 


The property is not a historical resource. 


d) Whether the removal of the resource will have a substantial adverse impact under CEQA; 


The existing building is not a historical resource and its removal will not have any substantial adverse 
impacts under CEQA. 


 
e)  Whether the Project converts rental housing to other forms of tenure or occupancy; 


The existing building was not a rental property and was used as a UDU by a relative of the prior 
property owner.  The Project proposes six dwelling units and one ADU for rental units. 


f) Whether the Project removes rental units subject to the Rent Stabilization and Arbitration Ordinance; 


The Planning Department cannot definitively determine whether a specific unit is subject to the 
Residential Rent Stabilization and Arbitration Ordinance; this being under the purview of the Rent Board. 
The Project Sponsor has reported that the property has been vacant since 2015 and do not have 
knowledge of the property being rented as housing, but was illegally used as a residence by a relative 
of the prior property owner in 2018. 
 


g) Whether the Project conserves existing housing to preserve cultural and economic neighborhood 
diversity; 


  The Project removes a commercial building that contained a UDU. The proposed residential building 
will provide seven code-complaint dwelling units, which will l provide new opportunity for diverse 
households in the neighborhood. 


 
h) Whether the Project conserves neighborhood character to preserve neighborhood cultural and 


economic diversity; 


The Project conserves neighborhood character by replacing a non-conforming commercial use with a 
residential use that is appropriate in  scale, architecture and density for a residential block in the RH-3 
Zoning District.   


i) Whether the Project protects the relative affordability of existing housing; 
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The Project removes a commercial building that was also used as an unauthorized dwelling unit. The 
commercial building was not built to be a residence and provided substandard habitation. The Project 
results in seven code -compliant units, with open space and other residential amenities, that contribute 
positively to the City's housing stock. 


 
j) Whether the Project increases the number of permanently affordable units as governed by Section 


415; 


The Project is not subject to the provisions of Planning Code Section 415, as the Project proposes fewer 
than ten units. The Project does not include construction of affordable housing, as defined in Planning 
Code Section 415. 


 
k) Whether the Project locates in-fill housing on appropriate sites in established neighborhoods; 


 The Project represents the redevelopment of a non-residential parcel within an established 
neighborhood. 


 
l) Whether the project increases the number of family-sized units on-site; 


 The Project increases the number of family-sized housing units on-site by constructing six three-
bedroom dwelling units.  The property contained one UDU with two bedrooms. 


 
m) Whether the Project creates new supportive housing; 


 The Project does not create supportive housing. 
 


n) Whether the Project is of superb architectural and urban design, meeting all relevant design 
guidelines, to enhance existing neighborhood character; 


 On balance, the overall scale, design, and materials of the proposed building is consistent with the 
Residential Design Guidelines. The Project compliments the neighborhood character with angled bay 
windows and finishes typical of nearby residential development, as well as providing a new rear yard 
open space and front setback with landscape. 


 
o) Whether the Project increases the number of on-site dwelling units; 


 The Project would replace one UDU with seven dwelling units, for a net increase of six units on the project 
site. 


 
p) Whether the Project increases the number of on-site bedrooms. 


 The UDU contains two bedrooms. The Project contains a total of nineteen bedrooms. 
 
q) Whether or not the replacement project would maximize density on the subject lot; and, 
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The RH-3 Zoning District permits a maximum of one dwelling unit per 1,000 square feet of lot area One 
accessory dwelling unit is allowed above the density limit of the site per State Law. The Project will 
maximize the allowed density on-site by providing six dwelling units and an ADU. 


 
r) If replacing a building not subject to the Residential Rent Stabilization and Arbitration Ordinance, 


whether the new project replaces all the existing units with new dwelling units of a similar size and 
with the same number of bedrooms. 


The replacement project would provide six three-bedroom units and a one-bedroom ADU. The UDU was 
in a warehouse, and therefore was large in area (approximately 2,500 square feet) but only had two 
bedrooms. All of the dwelling units would provide more bedrooms but would be smaller in floor area 
than the UDU. 


s) Removal of Unauthorized Units. Pursuant to Planning Code Section 317(g)(6), the Planning 
Commission shall also consider the following criteria in the review of applications for Removal of 
Unauthorized Units: 


i. The costs to legalize the Unauthorized Unit or Units under the Planning, Building, and other 
applicable Codes is reasonable based on how such cost compares to the average cost of 
legalization per unit derived from the cost of projects on the Planning Department's Master 
List of Additional Dwelling Units Approved required by Section 207.3(k) of this Code;  


The cost to legalize the Unauthorized Unit  has been estimated to be $956,600.  The average cost 
of legalization per dwelling unit is currently $70,170.24.  


ii. Financially feasibility to legalize the Unauthorized Unit or Units. Such determination will be 
based on the costs to legalize the Unauthorized Unit(s) under the Planning, Building, and 
other applicable Codes in comparison to the added value that legalizing said Units would 
provide to the subject property. The gain in the value of the subject property shall be based 
on the current value of the property with the Unauthorized Unit(s) compared to the value of 
the property if the Unauthorized Unit(s) is/are legalized. The calculation of the gain in value 
shall be conducted and approved by a California licensed property appraiser. Legalization 
would be deemed financially feasible if gain in the value of the subject property is equal to or 
greater than the cost to legalize the Unauthorized Unit.  


The proposed project is deemed not financially feasible. The project sponsor submitted two 
property appraisal reports, conducted and approved by a California licensed property 
appraiser, that state the value of the property at $2,100,000 as is and $2,600,000 with a legalized 
dwelling unit.  The proposed legalization is not financially feasible for the property owner as 
there is an estimate $500,000 gain in property value and the estimated cost of construction is 
$956,600 to legalize.  


iii. If no City funds are available to assist the property owner with the cost of legalization, whether 
the cost would constitute a financial hardship.  


To date, the Planning Department has not found the existence of any City funding sources or 
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programs to assist the property owner with the cost of legalization. The cost to improve the 
property and legalize the unauthorized group housing would unduly burden the property owner 
and constitute a financial hardship for reasons beyond the financial feasibility of the potential 
property value gained which have been outline in the property 


 


9. General Plan Compliance. The Project is, on balance, consistent with the following Objectives and 
Policies of the General Plan: 


HOUSING ELEMENT 


Objectives and Policies 
 
OBJECTIVE 1 
IDENTIFY AND MAKE AVAILABLE FOR DEVELOPMENT ADEQUATE SITES TO MEET THE CITY’S 
HOUSING NEEDS, ESPECIALLY PERMANENTLY AFFORDABLE HOUSING. 
 
Policy 1.1 
Plan for the full range of housing needs in the City and County of San Francisco, especially affordable 
housing. 
 
Policy 1.10 
Support new housing projects, especially affordable housing, where households can easily rely on public 
transportation, walking and bicycling for the majority of daily trips. 
 
OBJECTIVE 4 
FOSTER A HOUSING STOCK THAT MEETS THE NEEDS OF ALL RESIDENTS ACROSS LIFECYCLES. 
 
Policy 4.1 
Develop new housing, and encourage the remodeling of existing housing, for families with children. 
 
Policy 4.4 
Encourage sufficient and suitable rental housing opportunities, emphasizing permanently affordable 
rental units wherever possible. 
 
OBJECTIVE 11 
SUPPORT AND RESPECT THE DIVERSE AND DISTINCT CHARACTER OF SAN FRANCISCO’S 
NEIGHBORHOODS. 
 
Policy 11.1 
Promote the construction and rehabilitation of well-designed housing that emphasizes beauty, flexibility, 
and innovative design, and respects existing neighborhood character. 
 
Policy 11.2 
Ensure implementation of accepted design standards in project approvals. 
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Policy 11.3 
Ensure growth is accommodated without substantially and adversely impacting existing residential 
neighborhood character. 


 
Policy 11.6 
Foster a sense of community through architectural design, using features that promote community 
interaction. 


 
OBJECTIVE 12 
BALANCE HOUSING GROWTH WITH ADEQUATE INFRASTRUCTURE THAT SERVES THE CITY’S 
GROWING POPULATION. 
 
Policy 12.2 
Consider the proximity of quality of life elements such as open space, child care, and neighborhood 
services, when developing new housing units. 
 


URBAN DESIGN ELEMENT 


Objectives and Policies 
 
OBJECTIVE 1 
EMPHASIS OF THE CHARACTERISTIC PATTERN WHICH GIVES TO THE CITY AND ITS 
NEIGHBORHOODS AN IMAGE, A SENSE OF PURPOSE, AND A MEANS OF ORIENTATION. 
 
Policy 1.3 
Recognize that buildings, when seen together, produce a total effect that characterizes the city and its 
districts. 
 
Policy 1.7 
Recognize the natural boundaries of districts, and promote connections between districts. 


 


MISSION AREA PLAN 


Land Use 
Objectives and Policies 
 
OBJECTIVE 1.2 
IN AREAS OF THE MISSION WHERE HOUSING AND MIXED-USE IS ENCOURAGED, MAXIMIZE 
DEVELOPMENT POTENTIAL IN KEEPING WITH NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTER. 
 
Policy 1.2.1 
Ensure that in-fill housing development is compatible with its surroundings. 


 
Housing 
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Objectives and Policies 
 
OBJECTIVE 2.3 
ENSURE THAT NEW RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENTS SATISFY AN ARRAY OF HOUSING NEEDS 
WITH RESPECT TO TENURE, UNIT MIX AND COMMUNITY SERVICES. 
 
Policy 2.3.1 
Target the provision of affordable units for families. 
 
Policy 2.3.3 
Require that a significant number of units in new developments have two or more bedrooms, except 
Senior Housing and SRO developments unless all Below Market Rate units are two or more bedrooms. 
 
Policy 2.3.6 
Establish an impact fee to be allocated towards an Eastern Neighborhoods Public Benefit Fund to 
mitigate the impacts of new development on transit, pedestrian, bicycle, and street improvements, park 
and recreational facilities, and community facilities such as libraries, child care and other neighborhood 
services in the area. 
 
Urban Form 
Objectives and Policies 
 
OBJECTIVE 3.1 
PROMOTE AN URBAN FORM THAT REINFORCES THE MISSION’S DISTINCTIVE PLACE IN THE 
CITY’S LARGER FORM AND STRENGTHENS ITS PHYSICAL FABRIC AND CHARACTER. 
 
Policy 3.1.8 
New development should respect existing patterns of rear yard open space. Where an existing pattern of 
rear yard open space does not exist, new development on mixed-use-zoned parcels should have greater 
flexibility as to where open space can be located. 
 
The Project is an infill residential development within an established neighborhood in the Mission Area Plan, 
on a block that is predominately residential. While the project will demolish an unauthorized dwelling unit, 
said unit is located in a non-conforming commercial building that provides for substandard housing.  The 
Project will replace the commercial building with a residential building consistent with the use, scale and 
density of the District and meets all the requirements of the Planning and Building Codes... Although the 
Project will not provide permanent affordable housing, it will provide seven new dwelling units, including six 
family-sized units, where households can easily rely on public transportation, walking and bicycling for the 
majority of daily trips. Furthermore, the new construction will be required to pay the Eastern Neighborhoods 
Impact Fee and Public Benefit Fund, which will contribute towards community facilities and neighborhood 
services. 
 
The Project adds a well-designed residential building, which features traditional forms and materials, 
including angled bay windows, smooth plaster and horizontal wood siding, to complement the existing 
residential buildings in the neighborhood streets. The Project creates a rear yard to add the mid-block open 
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space and adds a front setback to transition between the Mission Recreation Center and the front yards of 
the residential buildings on the block. The street frontage is designed with a walk-up residential unit and 
lobby, a minimized garage entrance, and landscaping to create an inviting transition to the street. On 
balance, the Project is consistent with the Objectives and Policies of the General Plan. 


 
10. Planning Code Section 101.1(b) establishes eight priority-planning policies and requires review of 


permits for consistency with said policies. On balance, the project complies with said policies in that:  


A. That existing neighborhood-serving retail uses be preserved and enhanced and future 
opportunities for resident employment in and ownership of such businesses be enhanced.  
 
The project site does not possess any neighborhood-serving retail uses. The Project provides seven 
new dwelling units, which will enhance the nearby retail uses by providing new residents, who may 
patronize and/or own these businesses. 


B. That existing housing and neighborhood character be conserved and protected in order to 
preserve the cultural and economic diversity of our neighborhoods. 


The Project removes an unauthorized dwelling unit in a commercial building to create seven new 
housing units. While preservation of existing housing is a goal of the City, the City also prioritizes 
increasing the housing supply to serve the City’s growing population.  


C. That the City's supply of affordable housing be preserved and enhanced, 


The Project does not currently possess any existing affordable housing.  


D. That commuter traffic not impede MUNI transit service or overburden our streets or 
neighborhood parking.  


As a small residential project it should not significantly increase commuter traffic in the overall 
neighborhood. The Project Site is accessible by nearby public transportation options; it is located 
within a few blocks of two MUNI bus lines. The Project provides seven on-site parking spaces and 
sufficient bicycle parking for residents and their guests.  


E. That a diverse economic base be maintained by protecting our industrial and service sectors from 
displacement due to commercial office development, and that future opportunities for resident 
employment and ownership in these sectors be enhanced. 


The Project does not include commercial office development. Although the project does not create 
new commercial space, it provides new housing near neighborhood commercial corridors and 
employment opportunities. 


F. That the City achieve the greatest possible preparedness to protect against injury and loss of life 
in an earthquake. 


The Project will be designed and constructed to conform to the structural and seismic safety 
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requirements of the Building Code. As such, this Project will improve the property’s ability to 
withstand an earthquake. 


G. That landmarks and historic buildings be preserved. 


The Project Site does not contain any City Landmarks or historic buildings. 


H. That our parks and open space and their access to sunlight and vistas be protected from 
development.  
 
The Project does not impact any nearby parks or public open spaces.  


11. The Project is consistent with and would promote the general and specific purposes of the Code provided 
under Section 101.1(b) in that, as designed, the Project would contribute to the character and stability of 
the neighborhood and would constitute a beneficial development.  


12. The Commission hereby finds that approval of the Conditional Use Authorization would promote the 
health, safety and welfare of the City. 
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DECISION 


That based upon the Record, the submissions by the Applicant, the staff of the Department and other interested 
parties, the oral testimony presented to this Commission at the public hearings, and all other written materials 
submitted by all parties, the Commission hereby APPROVES Conditional Use Authorization Application No. 
2021-000209CUA subject to the following conditions attached hereto as “EXHIBIT A” in general conformance with 
plans on file, dated June 10, 2021, and stamped “EXHIBIT B”, which is incorporated herein by reference as though 
fully set forth. 
 
APPEAL AND EFFECTIVE DATE OF MOTION: Any aggrieved person may appeal this Conditional Use Authorization 
to the Board of Supervisors within thirty (30) days after the date of this Motion. The effective date of this Motion 
shall be the date of this Motion if not appealed (after the 30-day period has expired) OR the date of the decision of 
the Board of Supervisors if appealed to the Board of Supervisors. For further information, please contact the Board 
of Supervisors at (415) 554-5184, City Hall, Room 244, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, San Francisco, CA 94102. 
 
Protest of Fee or Exaction: You may protest any fee or exaction subject to Government Code Section 66000 that is 
imposed as a condition of approval by following the procedures set forth in Government Code Section 66020. The 
protest must satisfy the requirements of Government Code Section 66020(a) and must be filed within 90 days of 
the date of the first approval or conditional approval of the development referencing the challenged fee or 
exaction. For purposes of Government Code Section 66020, the date of imposition of the fee shall be the date of 
the earliest discretionary approval by the City of the subject development.  
 
If the City has not previously given Notice of an earlier discretionary approval of the project, the Planning 
Commission’s adoption of this Motion, Resolution, Discretionary Review Action or the Zoning Administrator’s 
Variance Decision Letter constitutes the approval or conditional approval of the development and the City hereby 
gives NOTICE that the 90-day protest period under Government Code Section 66020 has begun. If the City has 
already given Notice that the 90-day approval period has begun for the subject development, then this document 
does not re-commence the 90-day approval period. 
 
I hereby certify that the Planning Commission ADOPTED the foregoing Motion on October 21November 4, 2021. 
 
 
Jonas P. Ionin 
Commission Secretary 
 
 
AYES:   


NAYS:   


ABSENT:   


RECUSED:  


ADOPTED: October 21November 4, 2021 
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EXHIBIT A 
Authorization 


This authorization is for a conditional use to allow dwelling unit density at a ratio of one dwelling unit per 1,000 
square feet of lot area and to demolish an existing 7,600 square-foot, two-story commercial building containing 
an unauthorized dwelling unit and the construction of a new four-story 15,807 square-foot residential building 
containing six dwelling units and an accessory dwelling unit located at 733 Treat Avenue, Block 3612, and Lot 064 
pursuant to Planning Code Sections 209.1, 303 and 317 within the RH-3  Zoning District and a 40-X Height and Bulk 
District; in general conformance with plans, dated June 10, 2021, and stamped “EXHIBIT B” included in the docket 
for Record No. 2021-000209CUA and subject to conditions of approval reviewed and approved by the Commission 
on October 21, 2021 under Motion No. XXXXXX. This authorization and the conditions contained herein run with 
the property and not with a particular Project Sponsor, business, or operator. 
 


Recordation of Conditions of Approval 


Prior to the issuance of the building permit or commencement of use for the Project the Zoning Administrator 
shall approve and order the recordation of a Notice in the Official Records of the Recorder of the City and County 
of San Francisco for the subject property. This Notice shall state that the project is subject to the conditions of 
approval contained herein and reviewed and approved by the Planning Commission on October 21, 2021 under 
Motion No. XXXXXX. 
 


Printing of Conditions of Approval on Plans 


The conditions of approval under the 'Exhibit A' of this Planning Commission Motion No. XXXXXX shall be 
reproduced on the Index Sheet of construction plans submitted with the site or building permit application for the 
Project. The Index Sheet of the construction plans shall reference to the Conditional Use authorization and any 
subsequent amendments or modifications.  
 


Severability 


The Project shall comply with all applicable City codes and requirements. If any clause, sentence, section or any 
part of these conditions of approval is for any reason held to be invalid, such invalidity shall not affect or impair 
other remaining clauses, sentences, or sections of these conditions. This decision conveys no right to construct, 
or to receive a building permit. “Project Sponsor” shall include any subsequent responsible party. 
 


Changes and Modifications  


Changes to the approved plans may be approved administratively by the Zoning Administrator. Significant 
changes and modifications of conditions shall require Planning Commission approval of a new Conditional Use 
authorization.  
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Conditions of Approval, Compliance,  
Monitoring, and Reporting 


 


Performance 


1. Validity. The authorization and right vested by virtue of this action is valid for three (3) years from the effective 
date of the Motion. The Department of Building Inspection shall have issued a Building Permit or Site Permit 
to construct the project and/or commence the approved use within this three-year period. 


For information about compliance, contact Code Enforcement, Planning Department at 628.652.7463, 
www.sfplanning.org 


2. Expiration and Renewal. Should a Building or Site Permit be sought after the three (3) year period has lapsed, 
the project sponsor must seek a renewal of this Authorization by filing an application for an amendment to 
the original Authorization or a new application for Authorization. Should the project sponsor decline to so file, 
and decline to withdraw the permit application, the Commission shall conduct a public hearing in order to 
consider the revocation of the Authorization. Should the Commission not revoke the Authorization following 
the closure of the public hearing, the Commission shall determine the extension of time for the continued 
validity of the Authorization. 


For information about compliance, contact Code Enforcement, Planning Department at 628.652.7463,  
www.sfplanning.org 


3. Diligent Pursuit. Once a site or Building Permit has been issued, construction must commence within the 
timeframe required by the Department of Building Inspection and be continued diligently to completion. 
Failure to do so shall be grounds for the Commission to consider revoking the approval if more than three (3) 
years have passed since this Authorization was approved. 


For information about compliance, contact Code Enforcement, Planning Department at 628.652.7463, 
www.sfplanning.org 


4. Extension. All time limits in the preceding three paragraphs may be extended at the discretion of the Zoning 
Administrator where implementation of the project is delayed by a public agency, an appeal or a legal 
challenge and only by the length of time for which such public agency, appeal or challenge has caused delay. 
 
For information about compliance, contact Code Enforcement, Planning Department at 628.652.7463, 
www.sfplanning.org 


5. Conformity with Current Law. No application for Building Permit, Site Permit, or other entitlement shall be 
approved unless it complies with all applicable provisions of City Codes in effect at the time of such approval. 
 
For information about compliance, contact Code Enforcement, Planning Department at 628.652.7463, 
www.sfplanning.org 
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Design – Compliance at Plan Stage 


6. Final Materials. The Project Sponsor shall continue to work with Planning Department on the building design. 
Final materials, glazing, color, texture, landscaping, and detailing shall be subject to Department staff review 
and approval. The architectural addenda shall be reviewed and approved by the Planning Department prior 
to issuance.  


For information about compliance, contact the Ella Samonsky, Planning Department at 628.652.7417, 
www.sfplanning.org 


7. Garbage, Composting and Recycling Storage. Space for the collection and storage of garbage, composting, 
and recycling shall be provided within enclosed areas on the property and clearly labeled and illustrated on 
the building permit plans. Space for the collection and storage of recyclable and compostable materials that 
meets the size, location, accessibility and other standards specified by the San Francisco Recycling Program 
shall be provided at the ground level of the buildings.  


For information about compliance, contact the Ella Samonsky, Planning Department at 628.652.7417 
www.sfplanning.org 


8. Rooftop Mechanical Equipment. Pursuant to Planning Code 141, the Project Sponsor shall submit a roof 
plan to the Planning Department prior to Planning approval of the building permit application. Rooftop 
mechanical equipment, if any is proposed as part of the Project, is required to be screened so as not to be 
visible from any point at or below the roof level of the subject building. 


For information about compliance, contact the Ella Samonsky, Planning Department at 628.652.7417, 
www.sfplanning.org  


Parking and Traffic 


9. Bicycle Parking. The Project shall provide no fewer than seven (7) Class 1 bicycle parking spaces as required 
by Planning Code Sections 155.1 and 155.2. 


For information about compliance, contact Code Enforcement, Planning Department at 628.652.7463, 
www.sfplanning.org 


10. Parking Maximum. Pursuant to Planning Code Section 151, the Project shall provide no more than ten (10) 
off-street parking spaces.  


For information about compliance, contact Code Enforcement, Planning Department at 628.652.7463, 
www.sfplanning.org 


11. Managing Traffic During Construction. The Project Sponsor and construction contractor(s) shall coordinate 
with the Traffic Engineering and Transit Divisions of the San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency 
(SFMTA), the Police Department, the Fire Department, the Planning Department, and other construction 
contractor(s) for any concurrent nearby Projects to manage traffic congestion and pedestrian circulation 
effects during construction of the Project. 
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For information about compliance, contact Code Enforcement, Planning Department at 628.652.7463, 
www.sfplanning.org 


Provisions 


12. Residential Child Care Impact Fee. The Project is subject to the Residential Child Care Fee, as applicable, 
pursuant to Planning Code Section 414A. 


For information about compliance, contact the Ella Samonsky, Planning Department at 628.652.7417, 
www.sfplanning.org 


13. Eastern Neighborhoods Infrastructure Impact Fee. The Project is subject to the Eastern Neighborhoods 
Infrastructure Impact Fee, as applicable, pursuant to Planning Code Section 423. 


For information about compliance, contact the Case Planner, Planning Department at 628.652.7314, 
www.sfplanning.org 


Monitoring - After Entitlement 


14. Enforcement. Violation of any of the Planning Department conditions of approval contained in this Motion or 
of any other provisions of Planning Code applicable to this Project shall be subject to the enforcement 
procedures and administrative penalties set forth under Planning Code Section 176 or Section 176.1. The 
Planning Department may also refer the violation complaints to other city departments and agencies for 
appropriate enforcement action under their jurisdiction. 


For information about compliance, contact Code Enforcement, Planning Department at 628.652.7463, 
www.sfplanning.org 


15. Monitoring. The Project requires monitoring of the conditions of approval in this Motion. The Project Sponsor 
or the subsequent responsible parties for the Project shall pay fees as established under Planning Code 
Section 351(e) (1) and work with the Planning Department for information about compliance. 


For information about compliance, contact Code Enforcement, Planning Department at 628.652.7463, 
www.sfplanning.org 


16. Revocation due to Violation of Conditions. Should implementation of this Project result in complaints from 
interested property owners, residents, or commercial lessees which are not resolved by the Project Sponsor 
and found to be in violation of the Planning Code and/or the specific conditions of approval for the Project as 
set forth in Exhibit A of this Motion, the Zoning Administrator shall refer such complaints to the Commission, 
after which it may hold a public hearing on the matter to consider revocation of this authorization. 
 
For information about compliance, contact Code Enforcement, Planning Department at 628.652.7463, 
www.sfplanning.org 


Operation 


17. Sidewalk Maintenance. The Project Sponsor shall maintain the main entrance to the building and all 
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sidewalks abutting the subject property in a clean and sanitary condition in compliance with the Department 
of Public Works Streets and Sidewalk Maintenance Standards. 


For information about compliance, contact Bureau of Street Use and Mapping, Department of Public Works, 
628.271.2000, www.sfpublicworks.org 


18. Community Liaison. Prior to issuance of a building permit to construct the project and implement the 
approved use, the Project Sponsor shall appoint a community liaison officer to deal with the issues of concern 
to owners and occupants of nearby properties. The Project Sponsor shall provide the Zoning Administrator 
and all registered neighborhood groups for the area with written notice of the name, business address, and 
telephone number of the community liaison. Should the contact information change, the Zoning 
Administrator and registered neighborhood groups shall be made aware of such change. The community 
liaison shall report to the Zoning Administrator what issues, if any, are of concern to the community and what 
issues have not been resolved by the Project Sponsor. 


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



Draft Motion   RECORD NO. 2021-000209CUA 
October 21 November 4, 2021  733 Treat Avenue 
 
 

  17  
 

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
Date: Monday, November 1, 2021 at 2:01 PM
To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED SWEARS IN DAVID CHIU AS SAN
FRANCISCO CITY ATTORNEY
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Monday, November 1, 2021
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED SWEARS IN DAVID CHIU AS SAN

FRANCISCO CITY ATTORNEY
David Chiu, who previously represented the 17th Assembly District and served as President of

the San Francisco Board of Supervisors, replaces Dennis Herrera, who served as City
Attorney since 2001

 
San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today swore in David Chiu as San
Francisco’s new City Attorney. Chiu succeeds Dennis Herrera, who served in that role since
2001 and now serves as General Manager of the San Francisco Public Utilities Commission.
 
“I am proud to swear in David Chiu as San Francisco City Attorney. He has dedicated his
career to serving our City and has consistently demonstrated strong leadership from his time at
the Board of Supervisors through his work as an Assemblymember,” said Mayor Breed.
“David’s experience fighting for San Francisco’s most vulnerable communities and
advocating for equitable and just policies makes him the right person for this position.”
 
Chiu represented the 17th Assembly District from 2014 up until his swearing-in, during which
time he authored a wide range of bills on issues relating to housing, homelessness,
transportation, education, environment, health, public safety, and civil rights. Before entering
public office, Chiu served as a civil rights attorney with the Lawyers’ Committee for Civil
Rights of the San Francisco Bay Area, a criminal prosecutor with the San Francisco District
Attorney’s Office, Democratic Counsel to the United States Senate Constitution

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


MAYOR LONDON BREED SWEARS IN DAVID CHIU AS  


SAN FRANCISCO CITY ATTORNEY 
David Chiu, who previously represented the 17th Assembly District and served as President of 


the San Francisco Board of Supervisors, replaces Dennis Herrera, who served as City Attorney 


since 2001 


 


San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today swore in David Chiu as San Francisco’s 


new City Attorney. Chiu succeeds Dennis Herrera, who served in that role since 2001 and now 


serves as General Manager of the San Francisco Public Utilities Commission. 


 


“I am proud to swear in David Chiu as San Francisco City Attorney. He has dedicated his career 


to serving our City and has consistently demonstrated strong leadership from his time at the 


Board of Supervisors through his work as an Assemblymember,” said Mayor Breed. “David’s 


experience fighting for San Francisco’s most vulnerable communities and advocating for 


equitable and just policies makes him the right person for this position.” 


 


Chiu represented the 17th Assembly District from 2014 up until his swearing-in, during which 


time he authored a wide range of bills on issues relating to housing, homelessness, 


transportation, education, environment, health, public safety, and civil rights. Before entering 


public office, Chiu served as a civil rights attorney with the Lawyers’ Committee for Civil Rights 


of the San Francisco Bay Area, a criminal prosecutor with the San Francisco District Attorney’s 


Office, Democratic Counsel to the United States Senate Constitution Subcommittee, and a law 


clerk for Judge James R. Browning of the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit. 


 


“Serving as San Francisco’s City Attorney is an incredible honor,” said City Attorney David 


Chiu. “I am excited and inspired to lead such a reputable office with an impressive group of legal 


minds. Together, we will use the power of the law to stand up for San Franciscans and confront 


our city’s greatest challenges. I salute outgoing City Attorney Dennis Herrera, who accomplished 


so much over 20 years while leading with integrity, independence, and boldness.” 


 


In the State Legislature, Chiu authored significant legislation to expand and strengthen the civil 


rights of women, immigrants, and LGBTQ+ Californians. As chair of the Assembly Housing and 


Community Development Committee, he worked to protect tenants from evictions during 


COVID, and passed the largest expansion of tenants’ rights in California in decades. Chiu often 


fought to protect consumers through the regulation of entrenched interests like pharmaceutical 


companies, Wall Street banks, lead paint companies, for-profit colleges, and gun manufacturers. 


 



mailto:mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org
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Chiu received his undergraduate, master’s, and law degrees from Harvard University. The son of 


immigrant parents, he grew up in Boston, Massachusetts, and moved to San Francisco in 1996. 


Chiu is the first Asian American City Attorney of San Francisco. 


 


The City Attorney’s Office is tasked with providing legal services for the City and County of San 


Francisco. This includes representing the City in all legal proceedings, providing advice and 


written opinions, making recommendations to the Board of Supervisors regarding settlements or 


dismissal of legal proceedings, investigating claims made against the City, and pursuing 


allegations of unfair and unlawful competition in the City. 


 


“The City Attorney’s Office is something very special to me, but I know I’m leaving it in good 


hands,” said former City Attorney Dennis Herrera said. “David Chiu has shown he has the 


integrity, skill, and clarity of vision to use the power of the law to help those in need. In my 


view, this office is the premier public law office in the country. We have attorneys and staff who 


are not only highly skilled, they have the utmost integrity and a passion to help others. I’m 


confident David is going to build on that legacy. He is going to be a great City Attorney.” 


  


Chiu replaces Dennis Herrera, who was first elected as City Attorney in 2001, and now serves as 


General Manager of the San Francisco Public Utilities Commission. 


 


The Governor will now call for a special election to be held within the next 140 days for the 


Assembly District 17 seat. 


 


"David's tireless work to protect and expand tenant rights in California as an Assemblymember 


has prevented evictions and homelessness, especially during the COVID-19 pandemic,” said 


Lupe Arreola, Executive Director of Tenants Together. “As City Attorney for San Francisco, he 


will continue to advocate for tenants in enforcing state and local laws, holding slumlords and 


evictors accountable." 


 


“I am thrilled by David Chiu's appointment as San Francisco City Attorney,” said Brett 


Andrews, CEO of Positive Resource Center & Co-Chair of the Black Leadership Council. 


“David has been a stalwart supporter and advocate of effective HIV/AIDS and behavioral health 


programs that help those most in need in our beautiful city. He is a champion of racial equity, 


and looks at innovative ways to help end homelessness. PRC and the Black Leadership Council 


have been working alongside David to create policy to get those most vulnerable the help they 


desperately need. The City of San Francisco will benefit from his boundless energy and integrity, 


and we salute Mayor London Breed for making a great choice.” 


 


“During his time in Sacramento, David Chiu has stood by workers 100 percent of the time,” said 


Rudy Gonzalez, Secretary-Treasurer of the San Francisco Building and Construction Trades 


Council, AFL-CIO. “While we will miss his leadership there, we are looking forward to having 


him home. San Francisco faces many challenges, and the people expect clean government and 


progressive action from the Office of the City Attorney. David will restore the sacred trust of the 


citizens and help move our City forward.” 
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“David’s interfaith upbringing profoundly influenced his ethical, civil and human rights 


formation,” said Michael G. Pappas, Executive Director of the San Francisco Interfaith Council. 


“Throughout his public service, David has constantly and diligently collaborated with our City’s 


interfaith leaders on the critical social justice causes he’s championed. This consciousness and 


these relationships he brings to his new call as City Attorney will serve him well as he seeks to 


advance right in San Francisco.” 


 


“David Chiu’s appointment comes on the heels of a historic time for API communities, not just 


in San Francisco, but across the nation,” said Cally Wong, Director of API Council of San 


Francisco. “He’s been one of our city’s biggest champions in the Capitol. From his work fighting 


for affordable housing to small businesses, David has never let up, and he’s never forgotten 


where he comes from. From his early years as a civil rights attorney to serving as President of 


the Board of Supervisors, David has amassed a unique skill set to serve in this new post. API 


Council stands behind our new City Attorney and offers him support and congratulations.” 


 


### 


 


 







Subcommittee, and a law clerk for Judge James R. Browning of the U.S. Court of Appeals for
the Ninth Circuit.
 
“Serving as San Francisco’s City Attorney is an incredible honor,” said City Attorney David
Chiu. “I am excited and inspired to lead such a reputable office with an impressive group of
legal minds. Together, we will use the power of the law to stand up for San Franciscans and
confront our city’s greatest challenges. I salute outgoing City Attorney Dennis Herrera, who
accomplished so much over 20 years while leading with integrity, independence, and
boldness.”
 
In the State Legislature, Chiu authored significant legislation to expand and strengthen the
civil rights of women, immigrants, and LGBTQ+ Californians. As chair of the Assembly
Housing and Community Development Committee, he worked to protect tenants from
evictions during COVID, and passed the largest expansion of tenants’ rights in California in
decades. Chiu often fought to protect consumers through the regulation of entrenched interests
like pharmaceutical companies, Wall Street banks, lead paint companies, for-profit colleges,
and gun manufacturers.
 
Chiu received his undergraduate, master’s, and law degrees from Harvard University. The son
of immigrant parents, he grew up in Boston, Massachusetts, and moved to San Francisco in
1996. Chiu is the first Asian American City Attorney of San Francisco.
 
The City Attorney’s Office is tasked with providing legal services for the City and County of
San Francisco. This includes representing the City in all legal proceedings, providing advice
and written opinions, making recommendations to the Board of Supervisors regarding
settlements or dismissal of legal proceedings, investigating claims made against the City, and
pursuing allegations of unfair and unlawful competition in the City.
 
“The City Attorney’s Office is something very special to me, but I know I’m leaving it in good
hands,” said former City Attorney Dennis Herrera said. “David Chiu has shown he has the
integrity, skill, and clarity of vision to use the power of the law to help those in need. In my
view, this office is the premier public law office in the country. We have attorneys and staff
who are not only highly skilled, they have the utmost integrity and a passion to help others.
I’m confident David is going to build on that legacy. He is going to be a great City Attorney.”
 
Chiu replaces Dennis Herrera, who was first elected as City Attorney in 2001, and now serves
as General Manager of the San Francisco Public Utilities Commission.
 
The Governor will now call for a special election to be held within the next 140 days for the
Assembly District 17 seat.
 
"David's tireless work to protect and expand tenant rights in California as an
Assemblymember has prevented evictions and homelessness, especially during the COVID-19
pandemic,” said Lupe Arreola, Executive Director of Tenants Together. “As City Attorney for
San Francisco, he will continue to advocate for tenants in enforcing state and local laws,
holding slumlords and evictors accountable."
 
“I am thrilled by David Chiu's appointment as San Francisco City Attorney,” said Brett
Andrews, CEO of Positive Resource Center & Co-Chair of the Black Leadership Council.
“David has been a stalwart supporter and advocate of effective HIV/AIDS and behavioral



health programs that help those most in need in our beautiful city. He is a champion of racial
equity, and looks at innovative ways to help end homelessness. PRC and the Black Leadership
Council have been working alongside David to create policy to get those most vulnerable the
help they desperately need. The City of San Francisco will benefit from his boundless energy
and integrity, and we salute Mayor London Breed for making a great choice.”
 
“During his time in Sacramento, David Chiu has stood by workers 100 percent of the time,”
said Rudy Gonzalez, Secretary-Treasurer of the San Francisco Building and Construction
Trades Council, AFL-CIO. “While we will miss his leadership there, we are looking forward
to having him home. San Francisco faces many challenges, and the people expect clean
government and progressive action from the Office of the City Attorney. David will restore
the sacred trust of the citizens and help move our City forward.”
 
“David’s interfaith upbringing profoundly influenced his ethical, civil and human rights
formation,” said Michael G. Pappas, Executive Director of the San Francisco Interfaith
Council. “Throughout his public service, David has constantly and diligently collaborated with
our City’s interfaith leaders on the critical social justice causes he’s championed. This
consciousness and these relationships he brings to his new call as City Attorney will serve him
well as he seeks to advance right in San Francisco.”
 
“David Chiu’s appointment comes on the heels of a historic time for API communities, not
just in San Francisco, but across the nation,” said Cally Wong, Director of API Council of San
Francisco. “He’s been one of our city’s biggest champions in the Capitol. From his work
fighting for affordable housing to small businesses, David has never let up, and he’s never
forgotten where he comes from. From his early years as a civil rights attorney to serving as
President of the Board of Supervisors, David has amassed a unique skill set to serve in this
new post. API Council stands behind our new City Attorney and offers him support and
congratulations.”
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
Date: Monday, November 01, 2021 1:03:23 PM

 
 
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

San Francisco has already lost so much culture and identity, not to mention former
residents, to Big Tech and giant corporations. Make no mistake, Sweetgreens is both
- a huge corporation that relentlessly employs technology to not only dominate
competition and profit from customer’s data but to now also try to replace its workers
with robots. We urge you and the other members of the commission to recall the
City’s one-time fiercely independent and locally grown spirit that gave rise to such
anti-formula retail laws in the first-place - in order to protect individual neighborhood’s
character and the artisan-driven small businesses that make them, and thus our City,
diverse and unique. We urge you to not let Chestnut Street, or any other of San
Francisco’s vibrant corridors, further become corporate strip malls and approving an
application for a company with 140 locations, $670 million in the bank, a whopping
1.87 billion-dollar valuation and in the process of applying for a public offering to
double their store count in the next five years will do just that.

mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
mailto:Sylvia.Jimenez@sfgov.org
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mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
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For what it is worth, my business partner and I own and operate 3 restaurants on the
Chestnut Street corridor – each one completely unique. We grew up together in Marin
and both lived in the City for close to two decades. My grandparents lived in the City
until their deaths and that is where my Mother grew up, lived and eventually had me
at Children’s Hospital. My great ancestor emigrated here from Scotland in 1880 and
worked in the steel mill at the foot of Potrero Hill. We were all here, and doing just
fine, long before Big Tech and we lament not just all that it has taken from us but the
immense problems it has given us in return. Countless co-workers, employees,
community leaders, fellow artisans, industry veterans, friends and family have been
forced to leave an incredible area no longer affordable to them and with each
departure we have all lost a bit of what an absolutely unique and diverse place this
City and area used to be.

It’s time to turn the tide and your decisions today can do just that. Please give the little
guys and gals a chance. Please do not make it any harder than it already is for the
City’s established local artisans and small businesses by granting exceptions to well-
conceived laws for companies with ridiculously deep pockets. Please do not worry
about the landlords – we all know they will be just fine. Please keep jobs for San
Franciscans and not create them for robots. Please keep our neighborhoods uniquely
San Franciscan and do not let them become just another wing in the great Mall of
America. Please do not allow Chestnut Street to become the one hundred and forty
first location of a giant, venture capital-backed national formula chain restaurant that
does not care in the least about what our City has been and can still be.

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
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** SAN FRANCISCO LAUNCHES NEW FIRST YEAR FREE PROGRAM FOR SMALL

BUSINESSES
Date: Monday, November 01, 2021 12:08:25 PM
Attachments: 11.01.2021 First Year Free.pdf

 
 
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
Sent: Monday, November 01, 2021 10:44 AM
To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** SAN FRANCISCO LAUNCHES NEW FIRST YEAR FREE PROGRAM FOR
SMALL BUSINESSES
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Monday, November 1, 2021
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
SAN FRANCISCO LAUNCHES NEW FIRST YEAR FREE

PROGRAM FOR SMALL BUSINESSES
Program will waive first-year permit fees for small businesses and support the City’s

economic recovery
 
San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed, Treasurer José Cisneros, and Supervisor
Hillary Ronen today announced the launch of First Year Free, an innovative new Citywide
pilot program that waives first-year permit, initial license, and initial business registration fees
for new small businesses.
 
To qualify for First Year Free, a business must open a new ground floor commercial location
between November 1, 2021, and October 31, 2022. Only small businesses with less than $2
million in San Francisco gross receipts are eligible, and the program is not applicable to
formula retail locations.
 
“If you are an aspiring entrepreneur or small business owner who is considering opening a
new storefront, now is the time. San Francisco is here to help,” said Mayor Breed. “Opening a
small business in San Francisco was difficult and expensive well before the pandemic, and as
we move forward with our economic recovery, we need to do all that we can to support local
entrepreneurs. First Year Free addresses a major hurdle in opening a small business in this

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
Program will waive first-year permit fees for small businesses and support the City’s economic 


recovery 


 


San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed, Treasurer José Cisneros, and Supervisor 


Hillary Ronen today announced the launch of First Year Free, an innovative new Citywide pilot 


program that waives first-year permit, initial license, and initial business registration fees for new 


small businesses.  


 


To qualify for First Year Free, a business must open a new ground floor commercial location 


between November 1, 2021, and October 31, 2022. Only small businesses with less than $2 


million in San Francisco gross receipts are eligible, and the program is not applicable to formula 


retail locations. 


 


“If you are an aspiring entrepreneur or small business owner who is considering opening a new 


storefront, now is the time. San Francisco is here to help,” said Mayor Breed. “Opening a small 


business in San Francisco was difficult and expensive well before the pandemic, and as we move 


forward with our economic recovery, we need to do all that we can to support local 


entrepreneurs. First Year Free addresses a major hurdle in opening a small business in this City 


and represents our commitment to our diverse entrepreneur communities.” 


 


Supervisor Ronen sponsored legislation to create the program, and Mayor Breed and the Board 


of Supervisors allocated $12 million in the budget to fund the pilot year. 


 


“Right now, opening a restaurant in San Francisco requires about twenty different permits while 


opening a retail shop requires up to eleven. Each of these permits comes with a fee,” said 


Supervisor Hillary Ronen. “First Year Free is a message to new, small businesses: we value your 


contributions, we recognize the obstacles before you, and we are here to make it easier for you to 


open up in this great city.”  


 


When an individual registers a new business or a new business location with the Office of the 


Treasurer & Tax Collector, they will be automatically screened for eligibility into First Year 


Free. For those eligible and who agree to sign up, enrollment is immediate. Individuals will 


receive an email and letter confirming they are part of the program, which they can bring to 


permitting agencies to have fees waived on the spot. Waived fees include: 


 


• Initial year business registration fee (for new businesses only) 
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• Application, inspection, and one-time permit fees  


• Initial license fees 


 


“It’s no secret that the pandemic hit small businesses hard. We all want to see our commercial 


corridors thrive again,” said Treasurer José Cisneros. “First Year Free will give quick and 


substantive relief to new businesses, without any red tape. From the beginning our goal was to 


provide a seamless Citywide experience for time-strapped small business owners.”  


 


“First Year Free is a wonderful opportunity for up and coming entrepreneurs who are looking to 


start their own business and open a new storefront in San Francisco,” said Kate Sofis, Director of 


the Office of Economic and Workforce Development. “As our economic recovery gains 


momentum, we want our aspiring business owners to be able to begin their dream without having 


to worry about these initial start-up costs. This program is a win and one of many tools for the 


city to fill vacancies and reduce barriers in of support our small businesses.” 


 


First Year Free is led by the Office of the Treasurer & Tax Collector, with support from the 


Office of Small Business and the Office of Economic and Workforce Development. Participating 


City Departments include the Department of Building Inspection, the Department of Public 


Health, the Department of Public Works, the Entertainment Commission, the Fire Department, 


the Planning Department, the Police Department, and the Public Utilities Commission.  


 


“Worried that it’s too expensive to start or expand a small business in San Francisco? The City 


just made it cheaper with First Year Free,” said Small Business Commission President Sharky 


Laguna. “This program will support the growth and prosperity of all small businesses to foster an 


inclusive San Francisco.” 


 


“This program is vital to the growth and birth of Black owned business in San Francisco, who 


historically have faced financial barriers in starting and maintaining businesses in San Francisco. 


Small business has always been the soul of San Francisco,” said Tiffany Carter, Owner of Boug 


Cali and Co-Founder of SF Black Wallstreet. 


 


To learn more about First Year Free, visit: sftreasurer.org/FirstYearFree.  
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City and represents our commitment to our diverse entrepreneur communities.”
 
Supervisor Ronen sponsored legislation to create the program, and Mayor Breed and the
Board of Supervisors allocated $12 million in the budget to fund the pilot year.
 
“Right now, opening a restaurant in San Francisco requires about twenty different permits
while opening a retail shop requires up to eleven. Each of these permits comes with a fee,”
said Supervisor Hillary Ronen. “First Year Free is a message to new, small businesses: we
value your contributions, we recognize the obstacles before you, and we are here to make it
easier for you to open up in this great city.”
 
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
 

Initial year business registration fee (for new businesses only)
Application, inspection, and one-time permit fees
Initial license fees

 
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
 
“First Year Free is a wonderful opportunity for up and coming entrepreneurs who are looking
to start their own business and open a new storefront in San Francisco,” said Kate Sofis,
Director of the Office of Economic and Workforce Development. “As our economic recovery
gains momentum, we want our aspiring business owners to be able to begin their dream
without having to worry about these initial start-up costs. This program is a win and one of
many tools for the city to fill vacancies and reduce barriers in of support our small
businesses.”
 
First Year Free is led by the Office of the Treasurer & Tax Collector, with support from the
Office of Small Business and the Office of Economic and Workforce Development.
Participating City Departments include the Department of Building Inspection, the
Department of Public Health, the Department of Public Works, the Entertainment
Commission, the Fire Department, the Planning Department, the Police Department, and the
Public Utilities Commission.
 
“Worried that it’s too expensive to start or expand a small business in San Francisco? The City
just made it cheaper with First Year Free,” said Small Business Commission President Sharky
Laguna. “This program will support the growth and prosperity of all small businesses to foster
an inclusive San Francisco.”
 
“This program is vital to the growth and birth of Black owned business in San Francisco, who
historically have faced financial barriers in starting and maintaining businesses in San
Francisco. Small business has always been the soul of San Francisco,” said Tiffany Carter,
Owner of Boug Cali and Co-Founder of SF Black Wallstreet.



 
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
Date: Monday, November 01, 2021 10:13:53 AM

 
 
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
 
 

From: Sandra Fitzgerald <sandra.a.fitzgerald@gmail.com>
Date: Monday, November 1, 2021 at 7:13 AM
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
 

 

November 1, 2021
 
 
Dear President Koppel and Members of the Planning Commission,
 
Please do not approve the Sweetgreen application at 2040 Chestnut Street.
 
I am a resident of this neighborhood on Retiro Way and I have deep concerns about the amount of traffic 
that a new Sweetwater location will create. This company has a long history of serving customers with 
delivery orders. Based on the company’s history, it is fair to expect this one location to generate several 
hundred delivery orders a day. This will likely result in up to 600 additional delivery cars and other vehicles 
coming and going from this corner every day.
 
As you know, Chestnut Street is already a very busy street, and can often be difficult and dangerous to cross 
as a pedestrian. These difficulties have only increased with the addition of many parakeets in front of 
restaurants over the past year, which have removed already limited parking spaces and have decreased 

mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
mailto:Sylvia.Jimenez@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/


visibility for both pedestrians and drivers.
 
As an older resident that depends upon safe crosswalks for my daily needs, I do not think a restaurant that 
will produce this much additional traffic on Chestnut Street will be a benefit to the neighborhood. I believe 
older residents like myself, as well as younger children from the Middle School will be at added risk of 
danger.
 
I urge you to vote to deny Sweetgreen’s application for another location at 2040 Chestnut Street.
 
Sincerely,
 
Sandra Fitzgerald
56 Retiro Way Apt 5
San Francisco, CA 94123



  This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources.

From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
To: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: Regarding Minutes for October 23rd re: SB-9 presentation and RH-1 Development Issues
Date: Monday, November 01, 2021 9:56:46 AM
Attachments: IMG_8039.PNG

 
 
 
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
Sent: Saturday, October 30, 2021 11:40 AM
To: Ionin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>; CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Lynch, Laura (CPC) <laura.lynch@sfgov.org>
Cc: Koppel, Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>; Kathrin Moore <mooreurban@aol.com>; Chan, Deland (CPC) <deland.chan@sfgov.org>; Diamond, Susan (CPC) <sue.diamond@sfgov.org>; Fung, Frank (CPC) <frank.fung@sfgov.org>; Imperial, Theresa (CPC) <theresa.imperial@sfgov.org>; Tanner, Rachael (CPC) <rachael.tanner@sfgov.org>; Hillis,
Rich (CPC) <rich.hillis@sfgov.org>; Merlone, Audrey (CPC) <audrey.merlone@sfgov.org>; sheila.nickolopoulous@sfgov.org; Conner, Kate (CPC) <kate.conner@sfgov.org>; YANG, AUSTIN (CAT) <Austin.Yang@sfcityatty.org>; JENSEN, KRISTEN (CAT) <Kristen.Jensen@sfcityatty.org>; Teague, Corey (CPC) <corey.teague@sfgov.org>; Sanchez, Scott
(CPC) <scott.sanchez@sfgov.org>; Rodgers, AnMarie (CPC) <anmarie.rodgers@sfgov.org>; Watty, Elizabeth (CPC) <elizabeth.watty@sfgov.org>
Subject: Regarding Minutes for October 23rd re: SB-9 presentation and RH-1 Development Issues
 

 

Dear Mr. Ionin and Ms. Lynch,
Good morning.
Attached is my October 16th email about the SB-9 Informational hearing which was on October 23rd.
I think the intent of my two minutes was to ask for protection of the current RH-1 homes owners that the Staff Report highlighted to allow for owner occupied investment under SB-9….not to “cash out”.  (See the screenshot with the email from the Staff Report)
When I called in on October 23rd, I mentioned the "Property Tax Bills" as a way of notifying these RH-1 homeowners….as a method of outreach.
(But I have a feeling it is too late in the year for that.  But there are still the Water Bills and the trash bills, or even JK Dinnen.)
Nevertheless I would appreciate it if you could change what is listed on the October 23, 2021 Draft Minutes for my Comments from "Property Tax Bills” to “Protection of RH-1 Owners”.
That is more in keeping with what I believe I said and what may be needed to assist these owners who may need help from the City as the Staff Report detailed.
I didn’t see my attached email in the pre hearing correspondence, even though I did address it to the “commissions.secretary” address, but I did not send it to the Commissioners.
So I am doing that now, as well as expanding the addressees, as my earlier email may be pertinent to the upcoming hearing on November 18th on “Four Unit Density Exception for Residential Districts” #2021-0107762PCA. 
Please see the highlighted part below.
Thanks much and sorry if this makes extra work.
Sincerely,
Georgia
 

Begin forwarded message:
 
From: SchuT <schuttishtr@sbcglobal.net>
Subject: Informational Hearing on SB9
Date: October 16, 2021 at 3:14:48 PM PDT
To: Kate.Conner@sfgov.org, sheila.nickolopoulous@sfgov.org
Cc: Commissions.Secretary@sfgov.org, jonas.ionin@sfgov.org, Laura Lynch <laura.lynch@sfgov.org>, Rich Hillis <rich.hillis@sfgov.org>, "Watty, Elizabeth (CPC)" <elizabeth.watty@sfgov.org>, "Rodgers, AnMarie (CPC)" <anmarie.rodgers@sfgov.org>
 
﻿
﻿Dear Ms. Connor and Ms. Nickolopoulous,
Thank you for your very thorough analysis of SB 9.  
The law is very complicated so I will listen closely on Thursday as it is hard to keep all the details in my brain.
I attached below a screenshot from page 14 of your Executive Summary.
I think the potential your Summary raises here is very worrying for people who own and live in some RH-1 zoned neighborhoods regarding selling or “cashing-out”.
This is particularly true for owners in who may have lived in and owned their homes for many years.  (And in some cases may already have a reverse mortgage.)
As someone who is in that “above 65” cohort, I am aware of the aging generation of my peer group as well as this cohort’s parents peer group who are disappearing even faster, and that both groups may be long time home owners.
In other words, there are a lot of elders.
Here is a suggestion:  In the next round of SF Property Tax bills to owners in the RH-1 Districts, information should be included to protect all owners from any predatory attempts to purchase their homes as well as any programs or potential programs that could allow the current owner (or their heirs) to use SB-9 to their benefit and
not sell off to a speculator.
This could be a little flyer just like we get every month in the water bill.  Maybe it should also be with the water bill as well?  Or maybe even Recology would also be willing to mention it in their flyer?
Also, the Section 317 Demo Calcs need to be adjusted to more closely align with the 25% threshold in the bill for the conversion of these RH-1 homes to duplex to also forestall speculative development.
Sincerely,
Georgia Schuttish
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Executive Summary CASE NO. 2018-016522CWP
Hearing Date: October 21, 2021

SB 9 does not produce below-market-rate (BMR) units, without a substantial increase in supply, it will not
realistically assist moderate, low, or extremely low income households (below 120% AMI) obtain housing.

Many areas of the city with lower land values, high percentages of households of color, and/or with lower
outcomes in health, wealth, and life expectancy also have high rates of owner-occupied single family
housing, for example, the Bayview (73%), Visitation Valley (70%), and Outer Mission (75%). SB 9 may offer
these homeowners the opportunity to add units for extended families or to generate rental income, or
gain wealth through lot splits. However, there are significant hurdles to realize these gains. Acquiring
financing for project development, navigating a complex permitting process, and having the resiliency to

manage the significant disruption and take financial risks of construction are major barriers facing
existing homeowners in communities of color and low-income communities. Without City investment in
programs that support owner-occupied development, such as construction loans or funding prioritized
for owners of color or low-income owners, the more straightforward option would be for existing owners
to sell their property, or “cash out,” and leave San Francisco for areas with lower home costs. While the
bill includes a provision that the applicant of an SB 9 lot split is required to occupy one of the housing
units as their principal residence for a minimum of three years from the date of the lot split approval, it
does not apply to SB 9 project without the lot split. And while selling may financially benefit an individual
household, this practice has been incrementally devastating to communities of color, Cultural Districts,
and areas of the city where residents have a common sense of cultural identity, and a historic and major
loss to San Francisco as a whole.

Additional Considerations

Beyond the issues addressed above, there are unintended consequences for any legislation and these
conditions can be difficult to study and anticipate. Some property owners or developers may use SB 9 to
streamline the redevelopment of smaller, existing homes into larger, more expensive single family homes
with a small additional unit that may never be rented, undermining the intent of creating more housing
stock. Renters are protected by SB 9, but may be vulnerable to unscrupulous landlords due to a variety of
circumstances, like being undocumented, in a dire financial state, or otherwise exploited. While the city
must implement projects that meet the requirements of SB 9, and other state requirements such as SB
330, the Housing Accountability Act, and others, it may also consider allowable measures to tailor SB 9
through local implementation such as creating owner-occupied development programs that prioritize
households of color and low income households, unit parity requirements that balance housing unit size,
or others new programs.

SB 10 Summary





 
This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: Opposition: 4300 17th Street (2019-013808CUA/VAR)
Date: Monday, November 01, 2021 9:53:58 AM

 
 
 
Commission Affairs
San Francisco Planning
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7600 | www.sfplanning.org
San Francisco Property Information Map

 
 

From: Marvin Lehrman <marvinlehrman@gmail.com> 
Sent: Sunday, October 31, 2021 6:17 PM
To: Horn, Jeffrey (CPC) <jeffrey.horn@sfgov.org>
Cc: Mandelman, Rafael (BOS) <rafael.mandelman@sfgov.org>; MandelmanStaff, [BOS]
<mandelmanstaff@sfgov.org>; CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>;
Info@corbettneighbors.com; wm@holtzman.com
Subject: Opposition: 4300 17th Street (2019-013808CUA/VAR)
 

 

Dear Mr. Horn,

I am writing to express my opposition to the proposed development at 4300 17th Street.

While I am not against the creation of housing, the current design has a disproportionate impact on
its neighbors and it sets a bad precedent for all open space in our Special Use District. I would be
more comfortable if this project adhered to our 45% setback requirements and if it were mindful of
the light, air and privacy of its neighbors. Thank you for your attention to this matter.

Best regards, 
Marv & Paisha Lehrman

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
Date: Monday, November 01, 2021 9:53:34 AM

 
 
 
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
Sent: Sunday, October 31, 2021 6:18 PM
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
Marv and Paisha Lehrman
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
Date: Monday, November 01, 2021 9:52:13 AM

 
 
 
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
Sent: Monday, November 01, 2021 7:14 AM
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
Cc: CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY; CTYPLN - SENIOR MANAGERS; STACY, KATE (CAT); YANG, AUSTIN (CAT);

JENSEN, KRISTEN (CAT)
Subject: CPC Calendars for November 4, 2021
Date: Friday, October 29, 2021 4:00:48 PM
Attachments: 20211104_cal.docx

20211104_cal.pdf
Advance Calendar - 20211104.xlsx
CPC Hearing Results 2021.docx

Commissioners,
Attached are your Calendars for November 4, 2021.
 
Cheers,
 
Jonas P Ionin
Director of Commission Affairs
San Francisco Planning
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7589 | www.sfplanning.org
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Notice of Hearing

&

Agenda





Remote Hearing

via video and teleconferencing



Thursday, November 4, 2021

1:00 p.m.

Regular Meeting



Commissioners:

Joel Koppel, President

Kathrin Moore, Vice President

Deland Chan, Sue Diamond, Frank Fung,

Theresa Imperial, Rachael Tanner



Commission Secretary:

Jonas P. Ionin





Hearing Materials are available at:

Planning Commission Packet and Correspondence









Commission Hearing Broadcasts:

Live stream: https://sfgovtv.org/planning 

Live, Thursdays at 1:00 p.m., Cable Channel 78

Re-broadcast, Fridays at 8:00 p.m., Cable Channel 26











Disability and language accommodations available upon request to:

[bookmark: _Hlk63346654] commissions.secretary@sfgov.org or (628) 652-7589 at least 48 hours in advance.




Ramaytush Ohlone Acknowledgement 

The Planning Commission acknowledges that we are on the unceded ancestral homeland of the Ramaytush Ohlone, who are the original inhabitants of the San Francisco Peninsula. As the indigenous stewards of this land and in accordance with their traditions, the Ramaytush Ohlone have never ceded, lost, nor forgotten their responsibilities as the caretakers of this place, as well as for all peoples who reside in their traditional territory. As guests, we recognize that we benefit from living and working on their traditional homeland. We wish to pay our respects by acknowledging the Ancestors, Elders, and Relatives of the Ramaytush Ohlone community and by affirming their sovereign rights as First Peoples.



Know Your Rights Under the Sunshine Ordinance

[bookmark: _Hlk879281]Government's duty is to serve the public, reaching its decisions in full view of the public. Commissions, boards, councils and other agencies of the City and County exist to conduct the people's business. This ordinance assures that deliberations are conducted before the people and that City operations are open to the people's review. 



For more information on your rights under the Sunshine Ordinance (Chapter 67 of the San Francisco Administrative Code) or to report a violation of the ordinance, contact the Sunshine Ordinance Task Force at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 409; phone (415) 554-7724; fax (415) 554-7854; or e-mail at sotf@sfgov.org. Copies of the Sunshine Ordinance can be obtained from the Clerk of the Sunshine Task Force, the San Francisco Library and on the City’s website at www.sfbos.org/sunshine.

 

Privacy Policy

Personal information that is provided in communications to the Planning Department is subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act and the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided will not be redacted. 



Members of the public are not required to provide personal identifying information when they communicate with the Planning Department and its commissions. All written or oral communications that members of the public submit to the Department regarding projects or hearings will be made available to all members of the public for inspection and copying. The Department does not redact any information from these submissions. This means that personal information including names, phone numbers, addresses and similar information that a member of the public elects to submit to the Department and its commissions may appear on the Department’s website or in other public documents that members of the public may inspect or copy.

 

Accessible Meeting Information

Commission hearings are held in Room 400 at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place in San Francisco. City Hall is open to the public Monday through Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. and is accessible to persons using wheelchairs and other assistive mobility devices. Ramps are available at the Grove, Van Ness and McAllister entrances. A wheelchair lift is available at the Polk Street entrance. 



Transit: The nearest accessible BART station is Civic Center. Accessible MUNI Metro lines are the F, J, K, L, M, N, T (exit at Civic Center or Van Ness stations). MUNI bus routes also serving the area are the 5, 6, 9, 19, 21, 47, 49, 71, and 71L. For more information regarding MUNI accessible services, call (415) 701-4485 or call 311.



Parking: Accessible parking is available at the Civic Center Underground Parking Garage (McAllister and Polk), and at the Performing Arts Parking Garage (Grove and Franklin). Accessible curbside parking spaces are located all around City Hall. 



Disability Accommodations: To request assistive listening devices, real time captioning, sign language interpreters, readers, large print agendas or other accommodations, please contact the Commission Secretary at (628) 652-7589, or commissions.secretary@sfgov.org at least 72 hours in advance of the hearing to help ensure availability. 



Language Assistance: To request an interpreter for a specific item during the hearing, please contact the Commission Secretary at (628) 652-7589, or commissions.secretary@sfgov.org at least 48 hours in advance of the hearing.



Allergies: In order to assist the City in accommodating persons with severe allergies, environmental illness, multiple chemical sensitivity or related disabilities, please refrain from wearing scented products (e.g. perfume and scented lotions) to Commission hearings.



SPANISH: Agenda para la Comisión de Planificación. Si desea asistir a la audiencia, y quisiera obtener información en Español o solicitar un aparato para asistencia auditiva, llame al (628) 652-7589. Por favor llame por lo menos 48 horas de anticipación a la audiencia.



CHINESE: 規劃委員會議程。聽證會上如需要語言協助或要求輔助設備，請致電(628) 652-7589。請在聽證會舉行之前的

至少48個小時提出要求。



FILIPINO: Adyenda ng Komisyon ng Pagpaplano. Para sa tulong sa lengguwahe o para humiling ng Pantulong na Kagamitan para sa Pagdinig (headset), mangyari lamang na tumawag sa (628) 652-7589. Mangyaring tumawag nang maaga  (kung maaari ay 48 oras) bago sa araw ng Pagdinig. 

RUSSIAN: Повестка дня Комиссии по планированию. За помощью переводчика или за вспомогательным слуховым устройством на время слушаний обращайтесь по номеру (628) 652-7589. Запросы должны делаться минимум за 48 часов до начала слушания. 





Remote Access to Information and Participation 



In accordance with Governor Newsom’s statewide order for all residents to Shelter-in-place - and the numerous preceding local and state proclamations, orders and supplemental directions - aggressive directives have been issued to slow down and reduce the spread of the COVID-19 virus. 



On April 3, 2020, the Planning Commission was authorized to resume their hearing schedule through the duration of the shelter-in-place remotely. Therefore, the Planning Commission meetings will be held via videoconferencing and allow for remote public comment. The Commission strongly encourages interested parties to submit their comments in writing, in advance of the hearing to commissions.secretary@sfgov.org. Visit the SFGovTV website (https://sfgovtv.org/planning) to stream the live meetings or watch on a local television station. 



Public Comment call-in: (415) 655-0001 / Access code:  	2497 652 9473



The public comment call-in line number will also be provided on the Department’s webpage https://sfplanning.org/ and during the live SFGovTV broadcast.



As the COVID-19 emergency progresses, please visit the Planning website regularly to be updated on the current situation as it affects the hearing process and the Planning Commission.




ROLL CALL:		

[bookmark: _Hlk429617]		President:	Joel Koppel		Vice-President:	Kathrin Moore

		Commissioners:                	Deland Chan, Sue Diamond, Frank Fung,

			Theresa Imperial, Rachael Tanner 



A. CONSIDERATION OF ITEMS PROPOSED FOR CONTINUANCE



The Commission will consider a request for continuance to a later date.  The Commission may choose to continue the item to the date proposed below, to continue the item to another date, or to hear the item on this calendar.



1.	2020-007481CUA	(G. PANTOJA: (628) 652-7380)

5367 DIAMOND HEIGHTS BOULEVARD (1900 DIAMOND STREET) – east side between Gold Mine Drive and Diamond Street; Lot 018 in Assessor’s Block 7535 (District 8) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization for a Planned Unit Development (PUD) pursuant to Planning Code Sections 209.2, 303, and 304 for the subdivision of an existing approximately 34, 714 square foot lot into six new lots and the construction of a detached parking garage and 14 residential buildings (10 duplexes and four single-family residences) for a total of 24 residential dwelling units, 36 off-street parking spaces, and 48 Class 1 bicycle-parking spaces within a RM-1 (Residential-Mixed, Low Density) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. The dwelling units will range in size from 1,789 to 3,954 square feet in area and contain three to four bedrooms. Under the Planned Unit Development, the proposal is seeking exceptions from the lot area (Planning Code Section 121), front setback (Planning Code Section 132), and rear yard (Planning Code Section 134) requirements. The proposal is also seeking a Conditional Use Authorization required per interim controls Board File No. 201370 (Resolution No. 10-21) for the construction of a residential development that does not maximize the principally permitted residential density of the subject lot. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

(Continued from Regular hearing on October 14, 2021)

(Proposed for Continuance to December 2, 2021)



2.	2021-000215CUA	(L. HOAGLAND: (628) 652-7320)

400 HYDE STREET – northeast corner of Ellis Street; Lot 006A in Assessor’s Block 0322 (District 6) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 209.3 and 303 to install a new rooftop Macro Wireless Telecommunications Services Facility consisting of the installation of twelve (12) antennas and ancillary equipment as part of the Verizon Wireless Telecommunications Network. The antennas will be screened within 30” diameter FRP vent pipes and the ancillary equipment will be screened behind an 8’ screen wall. The Project site is located within a R-C-4 (Residential-Commercial, High Density) Zoning District and 80-T Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). 

Preliminary Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions

(Proposed for Continuance to December 9, 2021)



3a.	2019-020031CUA	(K. DURANDET: (628) 652-7315)

2867 SAN BRUNO AVE (AKA 90-98 WOOLSEY STREET) – northeast corner of Woolsey Street; Lots 037 and 022 in Assessor’s Block 5457 (District 9) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization pursuant to Planning Code Section(s) 303, 317, 207(c)(4), and 207.7  for a significant modification to the project approved by Motion No. 18782, a dwelling unit mix modification, and a residential demolition to establish a total of 27 dwelling units on the site, within the San Bruno Avenue NCD (Neighborhood Commercial District) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

(Continued from Regular hearing on September 30, 2021)

(Proposed for Indefinite Continuance)



3b.	2019-020031VAR	(K. DURANDET: (628) 652-7315)

2867 SAN BRUNO AVE (AKA 90-98 WOOLSEY STREET) – northeast corner of Woolsey Street; Lots 037 and 022 in Assessor’s Block 5457 (District 9) – Request for Variance from the rear yard and usable open space and pursuant to Planning Code Section(s) 134 and 135 within the San Bruno Avenue NCD (Neighborhood Commercial District) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District.

(Continued from Regular hearing on September 30, 2021)

(Proposed for Indefinite Continuance)



B.	COMMISSION MATTERS 



4.	Consideration of Adoption:

· Draft Minutes for October 21, 2021



5.	Commission Comments/Questions

· Inquiries/Announcements.  Without discussion, at this time Commissioners may make announcements or inquiries of staff regarding various matters of interest to the Commissioner(s).

· Future Meetings/Agendas.  At this time, the Commission may discuss and take action to set the date of a Special Meeting and/or determine those items that could be placed on the agenda of the next meeting and other future meetings of the Planning Commission.


C.	DEPARTMENT MATTERS



6.	Director’s Announcements



7.	Review of Past Events at the Board of Supervisors, Board of Appeals and Historic Preservation Commission

	

8.	2021-009977CRV – Remote Hearings – Consideration of action to allow teleconferenced meetings and adopting findings under California government code section 54953(e) to allow remote meetings during the COVID-19 emergency; continue remote meetings for the next 30 days; direct the Commission Secretary to schedule a similar resolution [motion] at a commission meeting within 30 days.

D.	GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT 



At this time, members of the public may address the Commission on items of interest to the public that are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Commission except agenda items.  With respect to agenda items, your opportunity to address the Commission will be afforded when the item is reached in the meeting.  Each member of the public may address the Commission for up to three minutes. When the number of speakers exceed the 15-minute limit, General Public Comment may be moved to the end of the Agenda.



E. REGULAR CALENDAR  



The Commission Hearing Procedures provide for presentations by staff; followed by the project sponsor team; followed by public comment for and against the proposal.  Please be advised that the project sponsor team includes: the sponsor(s) or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors.



9.	2018-004217GPA	(A. RODGERS: (628) 652-7471)

OVERVIEW OF GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENTS – Informational Presentation – This presentation is to provide an overview of the pending amendments to the General Plan. The presentation will consist of a brief review of the state and local requirements for San Francisco's General Plan; a review of the status of the ten "Elements" of the General Plan; an overview of the four primary amendments in progress, namely the "Housing Element", the "Safety and Resilience Element", the "Environmental Justice Framework", and the Transportation Element"; and a sequence for regular, rotating updates to ensure that the General Plan remains timely will be offered.  

Preliminary Recommendation: None - Informational



10a.	2019-011944OFA	(A. WESTHOFF: (628) 652-7314)

660 03RD STREET – west side between Brannan and Townsend Streets; Lot 008 in Assessor’s Block 3787 (District 6) – Request for Office Development Authorization pursuant to Planning Code Sections 321 and 322 to legalize approximately 40,212 square feet of office use from the 2020-2021 Office Development Annual Limit within an existing four-story former industrial building. The project site is located within a CMUO (Central SoMa Mixed-Use Office) Zoning District, Central SoMa SUD (Special Use District), and 65-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions

(Continued from Regular hearing on October 14, 2021)



10b.	2019-011944VAR	(A. WESTHOFF: (628) 652-7314)

660 03RD STREET – west side between Brannan and Townsend Streets; Lot 008 in Assessor’s Block 3787 (District 6) – Request for Variance from the Zoning Administrator to address the Planning Code requirements for ground floor active use requirements pursuant to Planning Code Section 145.1 and 249.78(c)(1)(B). In the Central SoMa Special Use District, office use is not considered an active use on the ground floor. The project site is located within a CMUO (Central SoMa Mixed Use Office) Zoning District, Central SoMa SUD (Special Use District), and 65-X Height and Bulk District.

(Continued from Regular hearing on October 14, 2021)



11.	2017-015678CUA	(C. ASBAGH: (628) 652-7329)

425 BROADWAY – south side between Montgomery and Kearny Streets; Lot 002 in Assessor's Block 0163 (District 3) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization pursuant to Planning Code Sections 121.1, 121.2, 253.1, 303 and 714, to develop on a large lot, exceed use size limits, and construct two buildings greater than 40 feet in height. The project would demolish the existing parking structure and construct two mixed-use buildings reaching heights of five-stories (56 feet) on Broadway and seven-stories (64 feet) on Montgomery Street with approximately 51,625 gross square feet of residential use, 4,940 gross square feet of retail use, and 18,735 gross square feet of design professional office use. The proposed project includes a total of 41 dwelling units, with a mix of 15 one-bedroom units, 21 two-bedroom units, and five three-bedroom units with five dwelling units provided as on-site affordable units. The Project would provide 17 off-street vehicle parking spaces, 46 Class 1 and seven Class 2 bicycle parking spaces, and one freight loading. The Project is utilizing the Individually Requested State Density Bonus Program to achieve a 20% density bonus thereby maximizing residential density on the Site pursuant to California Government Code Sections 65915-95918. The Project requests three (3) waivers from: Bulk (Section 270), Rear Yard (Section 134), and Dwelling Unit Exposure (Section 140). The Project Site is located within the Broadway NCD (Neighborhood Commercial District) Zoning District and 65-A-1 Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

(Continued from Regular hearing on October 14, 2021)



12.	2021-000209CUA	(E. SAMONSKY: (628) 652-7417)

[bookmark: _Hlk84935191]733 TREAT AVENUE – east side between 20th Street and 21st Street; Lot 064 in Assessor's Block 3612 (District 9) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization pursuant to Planning Code Sections 209.1, 303 and 317 to allow dwelling unit density at a ratio of one unit per 1,000 square feet of lot area and to demolish a two-story, 7,581-square-foot commercial building containing an unauthorized dwelling unit and construct a four-story, 15,807-square-foot residential building containing six dwelling units and an accessory dwelling unit (ADU) within a RH-3 (Residential-House, Three-Family) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions 

(Continued from Regular hearing on October 21, 2021)



13a.	2018-007380CUA	(A. PERRY: (628) 652-7430)

1320 WASHINGTON STREET – north side between Jones and Leavenworth Streets; Lot 006 in Assessor's Block 0188 (District 3) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization pursuant to Planning Code Sections 303 and 253, and 762, to demolish the existing two-story commercial public parking garage and construct a new six-story over basement residential building in excess of 40 feet in height on a lot with more than 50 feet of frontage within a RM-4 (Residential-Mixed, High Density) Zoning District and 65-A Height and Bulk District. The project will include 25 dwelling units (12 one-bedrooms, nine two-bedrooms, and four three-bedrooms) and provide 25 vehicle parking spaces and 25 Class 1 bicycle parking spaces at the basement garage level. The project includes private open space for seven units and provides a 1,780 square foot roof deck to satisfy the common open space requirement for 18 units. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions



13b.	2018-007380VAR	(A. PERRY: (628) 652-7430)

1320 WASHINGTON STREET – north side between Jones and Leavenworth Streets; Lot 006 in Assessor's Block 0188 (District 3) – Request for Variances to address requirements for rear yards pursuant to Planning Code Section 134 and exposure requirements for eight dwelling units pursuant to Planning Code Section 140, in order to demolish the existing two-story commercial public parking garage and construct a new six-story over basement residential building within a RM-4 (Residential-Mixed, High Density) Zoning District and 65-A Height and Bulk District. The project will include 25 dwelling units (12 one-bedrooms, nine two-bedrooms, and four three-bedrooms) and provide 25 vehicle parking spaces and 25 Class 1 bicycle parking spaces at the basement garage level. The project includes private open space for seven units and provides a 1,780 square foot roof deck to satisfy the common open space requirement for 18 units.



14.	2016-013012CUA	(C. MAY: (628) 652-7959)

478-484 HAIGHT STREET – north side between Fillmore and Webster Streets; Lot 019 in Assessor's Block 0849 (District 5) – Request to Amend Conditions of Approval of Planning Commission Motion No. 20976, adopted September 2, 2021, for the project proposing the demolition of the existing two-story building containing one dwelling unit above ground floor retail space and the construction of a new four-story building containing 9 principally-permitted dwelling units and 9 accessory dwelling units above two floors of child care uses totaling approximately 9,942 square feet within the Lower Haight Street Neighborhood Commercial Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. The project scope remains unchanged except it now proposes to satisfy its Inclusionary Affordable Housing Program requirements by paying an in-lieu fee rather than by providing on-site below market rate units. The approval action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h), was the Planning Commission’s approval of the Conditional Use Authorization that occurred September 2, 2021.

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions



15.	2021-005183CUA	(S. JIMENEZ: (628) 652-7348)

2040 CHESTNUT STREET – northeast corner of Mallorca Way; Lot 024B in Assessor’s Block 0467A (District 2) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 303, 303.1, and 711 to establish an approximately 3,485 square foot Formula Retail use (d.b.a. Sweetgreen) within the vacant ground floor space of an existing one-story commercial building within a NC-2 (Neighborhood-Commercial, Small Scale) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions



[bookmark: OLE_LINK2][bookmark: OLE_LINK1]


F. DISCRETIONARY REVIEW CALENDAR  



The Commission Discretionary Review Hearing Procedures provide for presentations by staff; followed by the DR requestor team; followed by public comment opposed to the project; followed by the project sponsor team; followed by public comment in support of the project.  Please be advised that the DR requestor and project sponsor teams include: the DR requestor and sponsor or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors.



16.	2018-003779DRP-02	(D. WINSLOW: (628) 652-7335)

619 22ND AVENUE – west side between Cabrillo and Balboa Streets; Lot 002 in Assessor’s Block 1622 (District 1) – Request for Discretionary Review of Building Permit 2018.0315.3729 to construct a rear horizontal addition at the first and second stories (totaling 266 square feet), and a two-story vertical addition (totaling 1,974 square feet) to create a new second unit to the existing single-family home within a RH-2 (Residential House, Two Family) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation:  Do Not Take Discretionary Review and Approve 



ADJOURNMENT


Hearing Procedures

The Planning Commission holds public hearings regularly, on most Thursdays. The full hearing schedule for the calendar year and the Commission Rules & Regulations may be found online at: www.sfplanning.org. 



Public Comments: Persons attending a hearing may comment on any scheduled item. 

· When speaking before the Commission in City Hall, Room 400, please note the timer indicating how much time remains.  Speakers will hear two alarms.  The first soft sound indicates the speaker has 30 seconds remaining.  The second louder sound indicates that the speaker’s opportunity to address the Commission has ended.



Sound-Producing Devices Prohibited: The ringing of and use of mobile phones and other sound-producing electronic devices are prohibited at this meeting. Please be advised that the Chair may order the removal of any person(s) responsible for the ringing or use of a mobile phone, pager, or other similar sound-producing electronic devices (67A.1 Sunshine Ordinance: Prohibiting the use of cell phones, pagers and similar sound-producing electronic devices at and during public meetings).



For most cases (CU’s, PUD’s, 309’s, etc…) that are considered by the Planning Commission, after being introduced by the Commission Secretary, shall be considered by the Commission in the following order:



1. A thorough description of the issue(s) by the Director or a member of the staff.

2. A presentation of the proposal by the Project Sponsor(s) team (includes sponsor or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors) would be for a period not to exceed 10 minutes, unless a written request for extension not to exceed a total presentation time of 15 minutes is received at least 72 hours in advance of the hearing, through the Commission Secretary, and granted by the President or Chair.

3. A presentation of opposition to the proposal by organized opposition for a period not to exceed 10 minutes (or a period equal to that provided to the project sponsor team) with a minimum of three (3) speakers.  The intent of the 10 min block of time provided to organized opposition is to reduce the number of overall speakers who are part of the organized opposition.  The requestor should advise the group that the Commission would expect the organized presentation to represent their testimony, if granted.  Organized opposition will be recognized only upon written application at least 72 hours in advance of the hearing, through the Commission Secretary, the President or Chair.  Such application should identify the organization(s) and speakers.

4. Public testimony from proponents of the proposal:  An individual may speak for a period not to exceed three (3) minutes.

5. Public testimony from opponents of the proposal:  An individual may speak for a period not to exceed three (3) minutes.

6. Director’s preliminary recommendation must be prepared in writing.

7. Action by the Commission on the matter before it.

8. In public hearings on Draft Environmental Impact Reports, all speakers will be limited to a period not to exceed three (3) minutes.

9. The President (or Acting Chair) may impose time limits on appearances by members of the public and may otherwise exercise his or her discretion on procedures for the conduct of public hearings.

10. Public comment portion of the hearing shall be closed and deliberation amongst the Commissioners shall be opened by the Chair;

11. A motion to approve; approve with conditions; approve with amendments and/or modifications; disapprove; or continue to another hearing date, if seconded, shall be voted on by the Commission.



Every Official Act taken by the Commission must be adopted by a majority vote of all members of the Commission, a minimum of four (4) votes.  A failed motion results in the disapproval of the requested action, unless a subsequent motion is adopted. Any Procedural Matter, such as a continuance, may be adopted by a majority vote of members present, as long as the members present constitute a quorum (four (4) members of the Commission).



For Discretionary Review cases that are considered by the Planning Commission, after being introduced by the Commission Secretary, shall be considered by the Commission in the following order:



1. A thorough description of the issue by the Director or a member of the staff.

2. A presentation by the DR Requestor(s) team (includes Requestor(s) or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors) would be for a period not to exceed five (5) minutes for each requestor.

3. Testimony by members of the public in support of the DR would be up to three (3) minutes each.

4. A presentation by the Project Sponsor(s) team (includes Sponsor(s) or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors) would be for a period up to five (5) minutes, but could be extended for a period not to exceed 10 minutes if there are multiple DR requestors.

5. Testimony by members of the public in support of the project would be up to three (3) minutes each.

6. DR requestor(s) or their designees are given two (2) minutes for rebuttal.

7. Project sponsor(s) or their designees are given two (2) minutes for rebuttal.

8. The President (or Acting Chair) may impose time limits on appearances by members of the public and may otherwise exercise his or her discretion on procedures for the conduct of public hearings.



The Commission must Take DR in order to disapprove or modify a building permit application that is before them under Discretionary Review.  A failed motion to Take DR results in a Project that is approved as proposed.



Hearing Materials

Advance Submissions: To allow Commissioners the opportunity to review material in advance of a hearing, materials must be received by the Planning Department eight (8) days prior to the scheduled public hearing.  All submission packages must be delivered to 49 South Van Ness Ave, 14th Floor, by 5:00 p.m. and should include fifteen (15) hardcopies and a .pdf copy must be provided to the staff planner. Correspondence submitted to the Planning Commission after eight days in advance of a hearing must be received by the Commission Secretary no later than the close of business the day before a hearing for it to become a part of the public record for any public hearing. 



Correspondence submitted to the Planning Commission on the same day, must be submitted at the hearing directly to the Planning Commission Secretary. Please provide ten (10) copies for distribution. Correspondence submitted in any other fashion on the same day may not become a part of the public record until the following hearing.



Correspondence sent directly to all members of the Commission, must include a copy to the Commission Secretary (commissions.secretary@sfgov.org) for it to become a part of the public record.



These submittal rules and deadlines shall be strictly enforced and no exceptions shall be made without a vote of the Commission.



Persons unable to attend a hearing may submit written comments regarding a scheduled item to: Planning Commission, 49 South Van Ness Ave, 14th Floor, San Francisco, CA  94103-2414.  Written comments received by the close of the business day prior to the hearing will be brought to the attention of the Planning Commission and made part of the official record.  



Appeals

The following is a summary of appeal rights associated with the various actions that may be taken at a Planning Commission hearing.



		Case Type

		Case Suffix

		Appeal Period*

		Appeal Body



		Office Allocation

		OFA (B)

		15 calendar days

		Board of Appeals**



		Conditional Use Authorization and Planned Unit Development

		CUA (C)

		30 calendar days

		Board of Supervisors



		Building Permit Application (Discretionary Review)

		DRP/DRM (D)

		15 calendar days

		Board of Appeals



		EIR Certification

		ENV (E)

		30 calendar days

		Board of Supervisors



		Coastal Zone Permit

		CTZ (P)

		15 calendar days

		Board of Appeals



		Planning Code Amendments by Application

		PCA (T)

		30 calendar days

		Board of Supervisors



		Variance (Zoning Administrator action)

		VAR (V)

		10 calendar days

		Board of Appeals



		Large Project Authorization in Eastern Neighborhoods 

		LPA (X)

		15 calendar days

		Board of Appeals



		Permit Review in C-3 Districts, Downtown Residential Districts

		DNX (X)

		15-calendar days

		Board of Appeals



		Zoning Map Change by Application

		MAP (Z)

		30 calendar days

		Board of Supervisors







* Appeals of Planning Commission decisions on Building Permit Applications (Discretionary Review) must be made within 15 days of the date the building permit is issued/denied by the Department of Building Inspection (not from the date of the Planning Commission hearing).  Appeals of Zoning Administrator decisions on Variances must be made within 10 days from the issuance of the decision letter.



**An appeal of a Certificate of Appropriateness or Permit to Alter/Demolish may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project requires Board of Supervisors approval or if the project is associated with a Conditional Use Authorization appeal.  An appeal of an Office Allocation may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project requires a Conditional Use Authorization.



For more information regarding the Board of Appeals process, please contact the Board of Appeals at (415) 575-6880.  For more information regarding the Board of Supervisors process, please contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors at (415) 554-5184 or board.of.supervisors@sfgov.org. 



An appeal of the approval (or denial) of a 100% Affordable Housing Bonus Program application may be made to the Board of Supervisors within 30 calendar days after the date of action by the Planning Commission pursuant to the provisions of Sections 328(g)(5) and 308.1(b). Appeals must be submitted in person at the Board’s office at 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244. For further information about appeals to the Board of Supervisors, including current fees, contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors at (415) 554-5184. 



An appeal of the approval (or denial) of a building permit application issued (or denied) pursuant to a 100% Affordable Housing Bonus Program application by the Planning Commission or the Board of Supervisors may be made to the Board of Appeals within 15 calendar days after the building permit is issued (or denied) by the Director of the Department of Building Inspection. Appeals must be submitted in person at the Board's office at 1650 Mission Street, 3rd Floor, Room 304. For further information about appeals to the Board of Appeals, including current fees, contact the Board of Appeals at (415) 575-6880. 



Challenges

Pursuant to Government Code Section 65009, if you challenge, in court, (1) the adoption or amendment of a general plan, (2) the adoption or amendment of a zoning ordinance, (3) the adoption or amendment of any regulation attached to a specific plan, (4) the adoption, amendment or modification of a development agreement, or (5) the approval of a variance, conditional-use authorization, or any permit, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at the public hearing described in this notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the Planning Commission, at, or prior to, the public hearing.



CEQA Appeal Rights under Chapter 31 of the San Francisco Administrative Code

If the Commission’s action on a project constitutes the Approval Action for that project (as defined in S.F. Administrative Code Chapter 31, as amended, Board of Supervisors Ordinance Number 161-13), then the CEQA determination prepared in support of that Approval Action is thereafter subject to appeal within the time frame specified in S.F. Administrative Code Section 31.16.  This appeal is separate from and in addition to an appeal of an action on a project.  Typically, an appeal must be filed within 30 calendar days of the Approval Action for a project that has received an exemption or negative declaration pursuant to CEQA.  For information on filing an appeal under Chapter 31, contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244, San Francisco, CA 94102, or call (415) 554-5184.  If the Department’s Environmental Review Officer has deemed a project to be exempt from further environmental review, an exemption determination has been prepared and can be obtained on-line at http://www.sf-planning.org/index.aspx?page=3447. Under CEQA, in a later court challenge, a litigant may be limited to raising only those issues previously raised at a hearing on the project or in written correspondence delivered to the Board of Supervisors, Planning Commission, Planning Department or other City board, commission or department at, or prior to, such hearing, or as part of the appeal hearing process on the CEQA decision.



Protest of Fee or Exaction

You may protest any fee or exaction subject to Government Code Section 66000 imposed as a condition of approval in accordance with Government Code Section 66020.  The protest must satisfy the requirements of Government Code Section 66020(a) and must be filed within 90 days of the date of the first approval or conditional approval of the development referencing the challenged fee or exaction.  For purposes of Government Code Section 66020, the date of imposition of the fee shall be the date of the earliest discretionary approval by the City of the subject development.   



The Planning Commission’s approval or conditional approval of the development subject to the challenged fee or exaction as expressed in its Motion, Resolution, or Discretionary Review Action or the Zoning Administrator’s Variance Decision Letter will serve as Notice that the 90-day protest period under Government Code Section 66020 has begun.



Proposition F

Under Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 1.127, no person or entity with a financial interest in a land use matter pending before the Board of Appeals, Board of Supervisors, Building Inspection Commission, Commission on Community Investment and Infrastructure, Historic Preservation Commission, Planning Commission, Port Commission, or the Treasure Island Development Authority Board of Directors, may make a campaign contribution to a member of the Board of Supervisors, the Mayor, the City Attorney, or a candidate for any of those offices, from the date the land use matter commenced until 12 months after the board or commission has made a final decision or any appeal to another City agency from that decision has been resolved.  For more information about this restriction, visit sfethics.org.



San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance

Individuals and entities that influence or attempt to influence local legislative or administrative action may be required by the San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance [SF Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 21.00-2.160] to register and report lobbying activity. For more information about the Lobbyist Ordinance, please contact the San Francisco Ethics Commission at 25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 220, San Francisco, CA 94102; phone (415) 252-3100; fax (415) 252-3112; and online http://www.sfgov.org/ethics.
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
 commissions.secretary@sfgov.org or (628) 652-7589 at least 48 hours in advance. 


  



https://sfplanning.org/resource/planning-commission-packet-november-4-2021
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Ramaytush Ohlone Acknowledgement  
The Planning Commission acknowledges that we are on the unceded ancestral homeland of the Ramaytush Ohlone, who are the original inhabitants 
of the San Francisco Peninsula. As the indigenous stewards of this land and in accordance with their traditions, the Ramaytush Ohlone have never 
ceded, lost, nor forgotten their responsibilities as the caretakers of this place, as well as for all peoples who reside in their traditional territory. As 
guests, we recognize that we benefit from living and working on their traditional homeland. We wish to pay our respects by acknowledging the 
Ancestors, Elders, and Relatives of the Ramaytush Ohlone community and by affirming their sovereign rights as First Peoples. 
 
Know Your Rights Under the Sunshine Ordinance 
Government's duty is to serve the public, reaching its decisions in full view of the public. Commissions, boards, councils and other agencies of the 
City and County exist to conduct the people's business. This ordinance assures that deliberations are conducted before the people and that City 
operations are open to the people's review.  
 
For more information on your rights under the Sunshine Ordinance (Chapter 67 of the San Francisco Administrative Code) or to report a violation of 
the ordinance, contact the Sunshine Ordinance Task Force at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 409; phone (415) 554-7724; fax (415) 
554-7854; or e-mail at sotf@sfgov.org. Copies of the Sunshine Ordinance can be obtained from the Clerk of the Sunshine Task Force, the San 
Francisco Library and on the City’s website at www.sfbos.org/sunshine. 
  
Privacy Policy 
Personal information that is provided in communications to the Planning Department is subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act 
and the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided will not be redacted.  
 
Members of the public are not required to provide personal identifying information when they communicate with the Planning Department and its 
commissions. All written or oral communications that members of the public submit to the Department regarding projects or hearings will be made 
available to all members of the public for inspection and copying. The Department does not redact any information from these submissions. This 
means that personal information including names, phone numbers, addresses and similar information that a member of the public elects to submit 
to the Department and its commissions may appear on the Department’s website or in other public documents that members of the public may 
inspect or copy. 
  
Accessible Meeting Information 
Commission hearings are held in Room 400 at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place in San Francisco. City Hall is open to the public Monday 
through Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. and is accessible to persons using wheelchairs and other assistive mobility devices. Ramps are available at 
the Grove, Van Ness and McAllister entrances. A wheelchair lift is available at the Polk Street entrance.  
 
Transit: The nearest accessible BART station is Civic Center. Accessible MUNI Metro lines are the F, J, K, L, M, N, T (exit at Civic Center or Van Ness 
stations). MUNI bus routes also serving the area are the 5, 6, 9, 19, 21, 47, 49, 71, and 71L. For more information regarding MUNI accessible services, 
call (415) 701-4485 or call 311. 
 
Parking: Accessible parking is available at the Civic Center Underground Parking Garage (McAllister and Polk), and at the Performing Arts Parking 
Garage (Grove and Franklin). Accessible curbside parking spaces are located all around City Hall.  
 
Disability Accommodations: To request assistive listening devices, real time captioning, sign language interpreters, readers, large print agendas or 
other accommodations, please contact the Commission Secretary at (628) 652-7589, or commissions.secretary@sfgov.org at least 72 hours in 
advance of the hearing to help ensure availability.  
 
Language Assistance: To request an interpreter for a specific item during the hearing, please contact the Commission Secretary at (628) 652-7589, or 
commissions.secretary@sfgov.org at least 48 hours in advance of the hearing. 
 
Allergies: In order to assist the City in accommodating persons with severe allergies, environmental illness, multiple chemical sensitivity or related 
disabilities, please refrain from wearing scented products (e.g. perfume and scented lotions) to Commission hearings. 
 
SPANISH: Agenda para la Comisión de Planificación. Si desea asistir a la audiencia, y quisiera obtener información en Español o solicitar un aparato 
para asistencia auditiva, llame al (628) 652-7589. Por favor llame por lo menos 48 horas de anticipación a la audiencia. 
 
CHINESE: 規劃委員會議程。聽證會上如需要語言協助或要求輔助設備，請致電(628) 652-7589。請在聽證會舉行之前的 
至少48個小時提出要求。 
 
FILIPINO: Adyenda ng Komisyon ng Pagpaplano. Para sa tulong sa lengguwahe o para humiling ng Pantulong na Kagamitan para sa Pagdinig 
(headset), mangyari lamang na tumawag sa (628) 652-7589. Mangyaring tumawag nang maaga  (kung maaari ay 48 oras) bago sa araw ng Pagdinig.  


RUSSIAN: Повестка дня Комиссии по планированию. За помощью переводчика или за вспомогательным слуховым 
устройством на время слушаний обращайтесь по номеру (628) 652-7589. Запросы должны делаться минимум за 48 
часов до начала слушания.  



mailto:sotf@sfgov.org

http://www.sfbos.org/sunshine

mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org

mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org
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Remote Access to Information and Participation  
 


In accordance with Governor Newsom’s statewide order for all residents to Shelter-in-place - and the 
numerous preceding local and state proclamations, orders and supplemental directions - aggressive 
directives have been issued to slow down and reduce the spread of the COVID-19 virus.  
 
On April 3, 2020, the Planning Commission was authorized to resume their hearing schedule through 
the duration of the shelter-in-place remotely. Therefore, the Planning Commission meetings will be 
held via videoconferencing and allow for remote public comment. The Commission strongly 
encourages interested parties to submit their comments in writing, in advance of the hearing to 
commissions.secretary@sfgov.org. Visit the SFGovTV website (https://sfgovtv.org/planning) to stream 
the live meetings or watch on a local television station.  
 
Public Comment call-in: (415) 655-0001 / Access code:   2497 652 9473 
 
The public comment call-in line number will also be provided on the Department’s webpage 
https://sfplanning.org/ and during the live SFGovTV broadcast. 
 
As the COVID-19 emergency progresses, please visit the Planning website regularly to be updated on 
the current situation as it affects the hearing process and the Planning Commission. 


  



mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org

https://sfgovtv.org/planning

https://sfplanning.org/
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ROLL CALL:   
  President: Joel Koppel 


 Vice-President: Kathrin Moore 
  Commissioners:                 Deland Chan, Sue Diamond, Frank Fung, 
   Theresa Imperial, Rachael Tanner  
 
A. CONSIDERATION OF ITEMS PROPOSED FOR CONTINUANCE 
 


The Commission will consider a request for continuance to a later date.  The Commission may 
choose to continue the item to the date proposed below, to continue the item to another date, or 
to hear the item on this calendar. 


 
1. 2020-007481CUA (G. PANTOJA: (628) 652-7380) 


5367 DIAMOND HEIGHTS BOULEVARD (1900 DIAMOND STREET) – east side between Gold 
Mine Drive and Diamond Street; Lot 018 in Assessor’s Block 7535 (District 8) – Request for 
Conditional Use Authorization for a Planned Unit Development (PUD) pursuant to Planning 
Code Sections 209.2, 303, and 304 for the subdivision of an existing approximately 34, 714 
square foot lot into six new lots and the construction of a detached parking garage and 14 
residential buildings (10 duplexes and four single-family residences) for a total of 24 
residential dwelling units, 36 off-street parking spaces, and 48 Class 1 bicycle-parking 
spaces within a RM-1 (Residential-Mixed, Low Density) Zoning District and 40-X Height and 
Bulk District. The dwelling units will range in size from 1,789 to 3,954 square feet in area 
and contain three to four bedrooms. Under the Planned Unit Development, the proposal is 
seeking exceptions from the lot area (Planning Code Section 121), front setback (Planning 
Code Section 132), and rear yard (Planning Code Section 134) requirements. The proposal 
is also seeking a Conditional Use Authorization required per interim controls Board File No. 
201370 (Resolution No. 10-21) for the construction of a residential development that does 
not maximize the principally permitted residential density of the subject lot. This action 
constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San 
Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). 
(Continued from Regular hearing on October 14, 2021) 
(Proposed for Continuance to December 2, 2021) 


 
2. 2021-000215CUA (L. HOAGLAND: (628) 652-7320) 


400 HYDE STREET – northeast corner of Ellis Street; Lot 006A in Assessor’s Block 0322 
(District 6) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code 
Sections 209.3 and 303 to install a new rooftop Macro Wireless Telecommunications 
Services Facility consisting of the installation of twelve (12) antennas and ancillary 
equipment as part of the Verizon Wireless Telecommunications Network. The antennas 
will be screened within 30” diameter FRP vent pipes and the ancillary equipment will be 
screened behind an 8’ screen wall. The Project site is located within a R-C-4 (Residential-
Commercial, High Density) Zoning District and 80-T Height and Bulk District. This action 
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
 



https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/san_francisco/latest/sf_admin/0-0-0-15178

https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/san_francisco/latest/sf_admin/0-0-0-15178





San Francisco Planning Commission  Thursday, November 4, 2021 


 


Notice of Remote Hearing & Agenda        Page 5 of 13 
 


3a. 2019-020031CUA (K. DURANDET: (628) 652-7315) 
2867 SAN BRUNO AVE (AKA 90-98 WOOLSEY STREET) – northeast corner of Woolsey Street; 
Lots 037 and 022 in Assessor’s Block 5457 (District 9) – Request for Conditional Use 
Authorization pursuant to Planning Code Section(s) 303, 317, 207(c)(4), and 207.7  for a 
significant modification to the project approved by Motion No. 18782, a dwelling unit mix 
modification, and a residential demolition to establish a total of 27 dwelling units on the 
site, within the San Bruno Avenue NCD (Neighborhood Commercial District) Zoning District 
and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the 
project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 
31.04(h). 
Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions 
(Continued from Regular hearing on September 30, 2021) 
(Proposed for Indefinite Continuance) 
 


3b. 2019-020031VAR (K. DURANDET: (628) 652-7315) 
2867 SAN BRUNO AVE (AKA 90-98 WOOLSEY STREET) – northeast corner of Woolsey Street; 
Lots 037 and 022 in Assessor’s Block 5457 (District 9) – Request for Variance from the rear 
yard and usable open space and pursuant to Planning Code Section(s) 134 and 135 within 
the San Bruno Avenue NCD (Neighborhood Commercial District) Zoning District and 40-X 
Height and Bulk District. 
(Continued from Regular hearing on September 30, 2021) 
(Proposed for Indefinite Continuance) 
 


B. COMMISSION MATTERS  
 


4. Consideration of Adoption: 
• Draft Minutes for October 21, 2021 


 
5. Commission Comments/Questions 


• Inquiries/Announcements.  Without discussion, at this time Commissioners may 
make announcements or inquiries of staff regarding various matters of interest to 
the Commissioner(s). 


• Future Meetings/Agendas.  At this time, the Commission may discuss and take 
action to set the date of a Special Meeting and/or determine those items that 
could be placed on the agenda of the next meeting and other future meetings of 
the Planning Commission. 


 
C. DEPARTMENT MATTERS 


 
6. Director’s Announcements 
 
7. Review of Past Events at the Board of Supervisors, Board of Appeals and Historic 


Preservation Commission 
  
8. 2021-009977CRV – Remote Hearings – Consideration of action to allow teleconferenced 


meetings and adopting findings under California government code section 54953(e) to 
allow remote meetings during the COVID-19 emergency; continue remote meetings for 
the next 30 days; direct the Commission Secretary to schedule a similar resolution [motion] 
at a commission meeting within 30 days. 



http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll/California/administrative/chapter31californiaenvironmentalqualitya?f=templates$fn=default.htm$3.0$vid=amlegal:sanfrancisco_ca$anc=JD_31.04

https://commissions.sfplanning.org/cpcpackets/20211021_cal_min.pdf

https://commissions.sfplanning.org/cpcpackets/2021-009977CRV_11042021.pdf
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D. GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT  
 


At this time, members of the public may address the Commission on items of interest to the public 
that are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Commission except agenda items.  With 
respect to agenda items, your opportunity to address the Commission will be afforded when the 
item is reached in the meeting.  Each member of the public may address the Commission for up to 
three minutes. When the number of speakers exceed the 15-minute limit, General Public Comment 
may be moved to the end of the Agenda. 


 
E. REGULAR CALENDAR   


 
The Commission Hearing Procedures provide for presentations by staff; followed by the project 
sponsor team; followed by public comment for and against the proposal.  Please be advised that 
the project sponsor team includes: the sponsor(s) or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, 
expediters, and/or other advisors. 


 
9. 2018-004217GPA (A. RODGERS: (628) 652-7471) 


OVERVIEW OF GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENTS – Informational Presentation – This 
presentation is to provide an overview of the pending amendments to the General Plan. 
The presentation will consist of a brief review of the state and local requirements for San 
Francisco's General Plan; a review of the status of the ten "Elements" of the General Plan; 
an overview of the four primary amendments in progress, namely the "Housing Element", 
the "Safety and Resilience Element", the "Environmental Justice Framework", and the 
Transportation Element"; and a sequence for regular, rotating updates to ensure that the 
General Plan remains timely will be offered.   
Preliminary Recommendation: None - Informational 


 
10a. 2019-011944OFA (A. WESTHOFF: (628) 652-7314) 


660 03RD STREET – west side between Brannan and Townsend Streets; Lot 008 in Assessor’s 
Block 3787 (District 6) – Request for Office Development Authorization pursuant to 
Planning Code Sections 321 and 322 to legalize approximately 40,212 square feet of office 
use from the 2020-2021 Office Development Annual Limit within an existing four-story 
former industrial building. The project site is located within a CMUO (Central SoMa Mixed-
Use Office) Zoning District, Central SoMa SUD (Special Use District), and 65-X Height and 
Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of 
CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Code Section 31.04(h). 
Preliminary Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 
(Continued from Regular hearing on October 14, 2021) 


 
10b. 2019-011944VAR (A. WESTHOFF: (628) 652-7314) 


660 03RD STREET – west side between Brannan and Townsend Streets; Lot 008 in Assessor’s 
Block 3787 (District 6) – Request for Variance from the Zoning Administrator to address the 
Planning Code requirements for ground floor active use requirements pursuant to 
Planning Code Section 145.1 and 249.78(c)(1)(B). In the Central SoMa Special Use District, 
office use is not considered an active use on the ground floor. The project site is located 
within a CMUO (Central SoMa Mixed Use Office) Zoning District, Central SoMa SUD (Special 
Use District), and 65-X Height and Bulk District. 
(Continued from Regular hearing on October 14, 2021) 
 



https://commissions.sfplanning.org/cpcpackets/2018-004217GPA.pdf

https://commissions.sfplanning.org/cpcpackets/2019-011944OFAVARc1.pdf

https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/san_francisco/latest/sf_admin/0-0-0-15178

https://commissions.sfplanning.org/cpcpackets/2019-011944OFAVARc1.pdf
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11. 2017-015678CUA (C. ASBAGH: (628) 652-7329) 
425 BROADWAY – south side between Montgomery and Kearny Streets; Lot 002 in 
Assessor's Block 0163 (District 3) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization pursuant to 
Planning Code Sections 121.1, 121.2, 253.1, 303 and 714, to develop on a large lot, exceed 
use size limits, and construct two buildings greater than 40 feet in height. The project 
would demolish the existing parking structure and construct two mixed-use buildings 
reaching heights of five-stories (56 feet) on Broadway and seven-stories (64 feet) on 
Montgomery Street with approximately 51,625 gross square feet of residential use, 4,940 
gross square feet of retail use, and 18,735 gross square feet of design professional office 
use. The proposed project includes a total of 41 dwelling units, with a mix of 15 one-
bedroom units, 21 two-bedroom units, and five three-bedroom units with five dwelling 
units provided as on-site affordable units. The Project would provide 17 off-street vehicle 
parking spaces, 46 Class 1 and seven Class 2 bicycle parking spaces, and one freight 
loading. The Project is utilizing the Individually Requested State Density Bonus Program to 
achieve a 20% density bonus thereby maximizing residential density on the Site pursuant 
to California Government Code Sections 65915-95918. The Project requests three (3) 
waivers from: Bulk (Section 270), Rear Yard (Section 134), and Dwelling Unit Exposure 
(Section 140). The Project Site is located within the Broadway NCD (Neighborhood 
Commercial District) Zoning District and 65-A-1 Height and Bulk District. This action 
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


 
12. 2021-000209CUA (E. SAMONSKY: (628) 652-7417) 


733 TREAT AVENUE – east side between 20th Street and 21st Street; Lot 064 in Assessor's 
Block 3612 (District 9) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization pursuant to Planning 
Code Sections 209.1, 303 and 317 to allow dwelling unit density at a ratio of one unit per 
1,000 square feet of lot area and to demolish a two-story, 7,581-square-foot commercial 
building containing an unauthorized dwelling unit and construct a four-story, 15,807-
square-foot residential building containing six dwelling units and an accessory dwelling 
unit (ADU) within a RH-3 (Residential-House, Three-Family) Zoning District and 40-X 
Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the 
purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). 
Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions  
(Continued from Regular hearing on October 21, 2021) 


 
13a. 2018-007380CUA (A. PERRY: (628) 652-7430) 


1320 WASHINGTON STREET – north side between Jones and Leavenworth Streets; Lot 006 
in Assessor's Block 0188 (District 3) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization pursuant 
to Planning Code Sections 303 and 253, and 762, to demolish the existing two-story 
commercial public parking garage and construct a new six-story over basement residential 
building in excess of 40 feet in height on a lot with more than 50 feet of frontage within a 
RM-4 (Residential-Mixed, High Density) Zoning District and 65-A Height and Bulk District. 
The project will include 25 dwelling units (12 one-bedrooms, nine two-bedrooms, and four 
three-bedrooms) and provide 25 vehicle parking spaces and 25 Class 1 bicycle parking 
spaces at the basement garage level. The project includes private open space for seven 
units and provides a 1,780 square foot roof deck to satisfy the common open space 



https://commissions.sfplanning.org/cpcpackets/2017-015678CUAc1.pdf

https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/san_francisco/latest/sf_admin/0-0-0-15178

https://commissions.sfplanning.org/cpcpackets/2021-000209CUA.pdf

https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/san_francisco/latest/sf_admin/0-0-0-15178

https://commissions.sfplanning.org/cpcpackets/2018-007380CUAVAR.pdf
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requirement for 18 units. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the 
purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). 
Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions 


 
13b. 2018-007380VAR (A. PERRY: (628) 652-7430) 


1320 WASHINGTON STREET – north side between Jones and Leavenworth Streets; Lot 006 
in Assessor's Block 0188 (District 3) – Request for Variances to address requirements for 
rear yards pursuant to Planning Code Section 134 and exposure requirements for eight 
dwelling units pursuant to Planning Code Section 140, in order to demolish the existing 
two-story commercial public parking garage and construct a new six-story over basement 
residential building within a RM-4 (Residential-Mixed, High Density) Zoning District and 
65-A Height and Bulk District. The project will include 25 dwelling units (12 one-bedrooms, 
nine two-bedrooms, and four three-bedrooms) and provide 25 vehicle parking spaces and 
25 Class 1 bicycle parking spaces at the basement garage level. The project includes 
private open space for seven units and provides a 1,780 square foot roof deck to satisfy the 
common open space requirement for 18 units. 


 
14. 2016-013012CUA (C. MAY: (628) 652-7959) 


478-484 HAIGHT STREET – north side between Fillmore and Webster Streets; Lot 019 in 
Assessor's Block 0849 (District 5) – Request to Amend Conditions of Approval of Planning 
Commission Motion No. 20976, adopted September 2, 2021, for the project proposing the 
demolition of the existing two-story building containing one dwelling unit above ground 
floor retail space and the construction of a new four-story building containing 9 
principally-permitted dwelling units and 9 accessory dwelling units above two floors of 
child care uses totaling approximately 9,942 square feet within the Lower Haight Street 
Neighborhood Commercial Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. The project 
scope remains unchanged except it now proposes to satisfy its Inclusionary Affordable 
Housing Program requirements by paying an in-lieu fee rather than by providing on-site 
below market rate units. The approval action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, 
pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h), was the Planning 
Commission’s approval of the Conditional Use Authorization that occurred September 2, 
2021. 
Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions 


 
15. 2021-005183CUA (S. JIMENEZ: (628) 652-7348) 


2040 CHESTNUT STREET – northeast corner of Mallorca Way; Lot 024B in Assessor’s Block 
0467A (District 2) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code 
Sections 303, 303.1, and 711 to establish an approximately 3,485 square foot Formula 
Retail use (d.b.a. Sweetgreen) within the vacant ground floor space of an existing one-
story commercial building within a NC-2 (Neighborhood-Commercial, Small Scale) Zoning 
District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for 
the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code 
Section 31.04(h). 
Preliminary Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 


 
  



https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/san_francisco/latest/sf_admin/0-0-0-15178

https://commissions.sfplanning.org/cpcpackets/2018-007380CUAVAR.pdf

https://commissions.sfplanning.org/cpcpackets/2016-013012CUAc1.pdf

https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/san_francisco/latest/sf_admin/0-0-0-15178

https://commissions.sfplanning.org/cpcpackets/2021-005183CUA.pdf

https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/san_francisco/latest/sf_admin/0-0-0-15178
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F. DISCRETIONARY REVIEW CALENDAR   
 


The Commission Discretionary Review Hearing Procedures provide for presentations by staff; 
followed by the DR requestor team; followed by public comment opposed to the project; followed 
by the project sponsor team; followed by public comment in support of the project.  Please be 
advised that the DR requestor and project sponsor teams include: the DR requestor and sponsor or 
their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors. 


 
16. 2018-003779DRP-02 (D. WINSLOW: (628) 652-7335) 


619 22ND AVENUE – west side between Cabrillo and Balboa Streets; Lot 002 in Assessor’s 
Block 1622 (District 1) – Request for Discretionary Review of Building Permit 
2018.0315.3729 to construct a rear horizontal addition at the first and second stories 
(totaling 266 square feet), and a two-story vertical addition (totaling 1,974 square feet) to 
create a new second unit to the existing single-family home within a RH-2 (Residential 
House, Two Family) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action 
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



https://commissions.sfplanning.org/cpcpackets/2018-003779DRP-02.pdf

https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/san_francisco/latest/sf_admin/0-0-0-15178
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Hearing Procedures 
The Planning Commission holds public hearings regularly, on most Thursdays. The full hearing schedule for the calendar year 
and the Commission Rules & Regulations may be found online at: www.sfplanning.org.  
 
Public Comments: Persons attending a hearing may comment on any scheduled item.  
 When speaking before the Commission in City Hall, Room 400, please note the timer indicating how much time remains.  


Speakers will hear two alarms.  The first soft sound indicates the speaker has 30 seconds remaining.  The second louder 
sound indicates that the speaker’s opportunity to address the Commission has ended. 


 
Sound-Producing Devices Prohibited: The ringing of and use of mobile phones and other sound-producing electronic devices are 
prohibited at this meeting. Please be advised that the Chair may order the removal of any person(s) responsible for the ringing or 
use of a mobile phone, pager, or other similar sound-producing electronic devices (67A.1 Sunshine Ordinance: Prohibiting the use 
of cell phones, pagers and similar sound-producing electronic devices at and during public meetings). 
 
For most cases (CU’s, PUD’s, 309’s, etc…) that are considered by the Planning Commission, after being introduced by the 
Commission Secretary, shall be considered by the Commission in the following order: 
 


1. A thorough description of the issue(s) by the Director or a member of the staff. 
2. A presentation of the proposal by the Project Sponsor(s) team (includes sponsor or their designee, lawyers, architects, 


engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors) would be for a period not to exceed 10 minutes, unless a written request 
for extension not to exceed a total presentation time of 15 minutes is received at least 72 hours in advance of the 
hearing, through the Commission Secretary, and granted by the President or Chair. 


3. A presentation of opposition to the proposal by organized opposition for a period not to exceed 10 minutes (or a 
period equal to that provided to the project sponsor team) with a minimum of three (3) speakers.  The intent of the 10 
min block of time provided to organized opposition is to reduce the number of overall speakers who are part of the 
organized opposition.  The requestor should advise the group that the Commission would expect the organized 
presentation to represent their testimony, if granted.  Organized opposition will be recognized only upon written 
application at least 72 hours in advance of the hearing, through the Commission Secretary, the President or Chair.  
Such application should identify the organization(s) and speakers. 


4. Public testimony from proponents of the proposal:  An individual may speak for a period not to exceed three (3) 
minutes. 


5. Public testimony from opponents of the proposal:  An individual may speak for a period not to exceed three (3) 
minutes. 


6. Director’s preliminary recommendation must be prepared in writing. 
7. Action by the Commission on the matter before it. 
8. In public hearings on Draft Environmental Impact Reports, all speakers will be limited to a period not to exceed three 


(3) minutes. 
9. The President (or Acting Chair) may impose time limits on appearances by members of the public and may otherwise 


exercise his or her discretion on procedures for the conduct of public hearings. 
10. Public comment portion of the hearing shall be closed and deliberation amongst the Commissioners shall be opened 


by the Chair; 
11. A motion to approve; approve with conditions; approve with amendments and/or modifications; disapprove; or 


continue to another hearing date, if seconded, shall be voted on by the Commission. 
 
Every Official Act taken by the Commission must be adopted by a majority vote of all members of the Commission, a minimum of 
four (4) votes.  A failed motion results in the disapproval of the requested action, unless a subsequent motion is adopted. Any 
Procedural Matter, such as a continuance, may be adopted by a majority vote of members present, as long as the members 
present constitute a quorum (four (4) members of the Commission). 
 
For Discretionary Review cases that are considered by the Planning Commission, after being introduced by the Commission 
Secretary, shall be considered by the Commission in the following order: 
 


1. A thorough description of the issue by the Director or a member of the staff. 
2. A presentation by the DR Requestor(s) team (includes Requestor(s) or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, 


expediters, and/or other advisors) would be for a period not to exceed five (5) minutes for each requestor. 
3. Testimony by members of the public in support of the DR would be up to three (3) minutes each. 
4. A presentation by the Project Sponsor(s) team (includes Sponsor(s) or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, 


expediters, and/or other advisors) would be for a period up to five (5) minutes, but could be extended for a period not 
to exceed 10 minutes if there are multiple DR requestors. 



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
8. The President (or Acting Chair) may impose time limits on appearances by members of the public and may otherwise 


exercise his or her discretion on procedures for the conduct of public hearings. 
 
The Commission must Take DR in order to disapprove or modify a building permit application that is before them under 
Discretionary Review.  A failed motion to Take DR results in a Project that is approved as proposed. 
 
Hearing Materials 
Advance Submissions: To allow Commissioners the opportunity to review material in advance of a hearing, materials must be 
received by the Planning Department eight (8) days prior to the scheduled public hearing.  All submission packages must be 
delivered to 49 South Van Ness Ave, 14th Floor, by 5:00 p.m. and should include fifteen (15) hardcopies and a .pdf copy must be 
provided to the staff planner. Correspondence submitted to the Planning Commission after eight days in advance of a hearing 
must be received by the Commission Secretary no later than the close of business the day before a hearing for it to become a part 
of the public record for any public hearing.  
 
Correspondence submitted to the Planning Commission on the same day, must be submitted at the hearing directly to the 
Planning Commission Secretary. Please provide ten (10) copies for distribution. Correspondence submitted in any other fashion 
on the same day may not become a part of the public record until the following hearing. 
 
Correspondence sent directly to all members of the Commission, must include a copy to the Commission Secretary 
(commissions.secretary@sfgov.org) for it to become a part of the public record. 
 
These submittal rules and deadlines shall be strictly enforced and no exceptions shall be made without a vote of the Commission. 
 
Persons unable to attend a hearing may submit written comments regarding a scheduled item to: Planning Commission, 49 
South Van Ness Ave, 14th Floor, San Francisco, CA  94103-2414.  Written comments received by the close of the business day prior 
to the hearing will be brought to the attention of the Planning Commission and made part of the official record.   
 
Appeals 
The following is a summary of appeal rights associated with the various actions that may be taken at a Planning Commission 
hearing. 
 


Case Type Case Suffix Appeal Period* Appeal Body 
Office Allocation OFA (B) 15 calendar days Board of Appeals** 
Conditional Use Authorization and Planned Unit 
Development 


CUA (C) 30 calendar days Board of Supervisors 


Building Permit Application (Discretionary 
Review) 


DRP/DRM (D) 15 calendar days Board of Appeals 


EIR Certification ENV (E) 30 calendar days Board of Supervisors 
Coastal Zone Permit CTZ (P) 15 calendar days Board of Appeals 
Planning Code Amendments by Application PCA (T) 30 calendar days Board of Supervisors 
Variance (Zoning Administrator action) VAR (V) 10 calendar days Board of Appeals 
Large Project Authorization in Eastern 
Neighborhoods  


LPA (X) 15 calendar days Board of Appeals 


Permit Review in C-3 Districts, Downtown 
Residential Districts 


DNX (X) 15-calendar days Board of Appeals 


Zoning Map Change by Application MAP (Z) 30 calendar days Board of Supervisors 
 
* Appeals of Planning Commission decisions on Building Permit Applications (Discretionary Review) must be made within 15 days of 
the date the building permit is issued/denied by the Department of Building Inspection (not from the date of the Planning Commission 
hearing).  Appeals of Zoning Administrator decisions on Variances must be made within 10 days from the issuance of the decision 
letter. 
 
**An appeal of a Certificate of Appropriateness or Permit to Alter/Demolish may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project 
requires Board of Supervisors approval or if the project is associated with a Conditional Use Authorization appeal.  An appeal of an 
Office Allocation may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project requires a Conditional Use Authorization. 
 



mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org
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For more information regarding the Board of Appeals process, please contact the Board of Appeals at (415) 575-6880.  For more 
information regarding the Board of Supervisors process, please contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors at (415) 554-5184 or 
board.of.supervisors@sfgov.org.  
 
An appeal of the approval (or denial) of a 100% Affordable Housing Bonus Program application may be made to the Board of 
Supervisors within 30 calendar days after the date of action by the Planning Commission pursuant to the provisions of Sections 
328(g)(5) and 308.1(b). Appeals must be submitted in person at the Board’s office at 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244. 
For further information about appeals to the Board of Supervisors, including current fees, contact the Clerk of the Board of 
Supervisors at (415) 554-5184.  
 
An appeal of the approval (or denial) of a building permit application issued (or denied) pursuant to a 100% Affordable Housing 
Bonus Program application by the Planning Commission or the Board of Supervisors may be made to the Board of Appeals within 
15 calendar days after the building permit is issued (or denied) by the Director of the Department of Building Inspection. Appeals 
must be submitted in person at the Board's office at 1650 Mission Street, 3rd Floor, Room 304. For further information about 
appeals to the Board of Appeals, including current fees, contact the Board of Appeals at (415) 575-6880.  
 
Challenges 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 65009, if you challenge, in court, (1) the adoption or amendment of a general plan, (2) the 
adoption or amendment of a zoning ordinance, (3) the adoption or amendment of any regulation attached to a specific plan, (4) 
the adoption, amendment or modification of a development agreement, or (5) the approval of a variance, conditional-use 
authorization, or any permit, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at the public hearing 
described in this notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the Planning Commission, at, or prior to, the public hearing. 
 
CEQA Appeal Rights under Chapter 31 of the San Francisco Administrative Code 
If the Commission’s action on a project constitutes the Approval Action for that project (as defined in S.F. Administrative Code 
Chapter 31, as amended, Board of Supervisors Ordinance Number 161-13), then the CEQA determination prepared in support of 
that Approval Action is thereafter subject to appeal within the time frame specified in S.F. Administrative Code Section 
31.16.  This appeal is separate from and in addition to an appeal of an action on a project.  Typically, an appeal must be filed 
within 30 calendar days of the Approval Action for a project that has received an exemption or negative declaration pursuant to 
CEQA.  For information on filing an appeal under Chapter 31, contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors at City Hall, 1 Dr. 
Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244, San Francisco, CA 94102, or call (415) 554-5184.  If the Department’s Environmental Review 
Officer has deemed a project to be exempt from further environmental review, an exemption determination has been prepared 
and can be obtained on-line at http://www.sf-planning.org/index.aspx?page=3447. Under CEQA, in a later court challenge, a 
litigant may be limited to raising only those issues previously raised at a hearing on the project or in written correspondence 
delivered to the Board of Supervisors, Planning Commission, Planning Department or other City board, commission or 
department at, or prior to, such hearing, or as part of the appeal hearing process on the CEQA decision. 
 
Protest of Fee or Exaction 
You may protest any fee or exaction subject to Government Code Section 66000 imposed as a condition of approval in 
accordance with Government Code Section 66020.  The protest must satisfy the requirements of Government Code Section 
66020(a) and must be filed within 90 days of the date of the first approval or conditional approval of the development 
referencing the challenged fee or exaction.  For purposes of Government Code Section 66020, the date of imposition of the fee 
shall be the date of the earliest discretionary approval by the City of the subject development.    
 
The Planning Commission’s approval or conditional approval of the development subject to the challenged fee or exaction as 
expressed in its Motion, Resolution, or Discretionary Review Action or the Zoning Administrator’s Variance Decision Letter will 
serve as Notice that the 90-day protest period under Government Code Section 66020 has begun. 
 
Proposition F 
Under Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 1.127, no person or entity with a financial interest in a land use 
matter pending before the Board of Appeals, Board of Supervisors, Building Inspection Commission, Commission on Community 
Investment and Infrastructure, Historic Preservation Commission, Planning Commission, Port Commission, or the Treasure Island 
Development Authority Board of Directors, may make a campaign contribution to a member of the Board of Supervisors, the 
Mayor, the City Attorney, or a candidate for any of those offices, from the date the land use matter commenced until 12 months 
after the board or commission has made a final decision or any appeal to another City agency from that decision has been 
resolved.  For more information about this restriction, visit sfethics.org. 



mailto:board.of.supervisors@sfgov.org
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San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance 
Individuals and entities that influence or attempt to influence local legislative or administrative action may be required by the 
San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance [SF Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 21.00-2.160] to register and report 
lobbying activity. For more information about the Lobbyist Ordinance, please contact the San Francisco Ethics Commission at 25 
Van Ness Avenue, Suite 220, San Francisco, CA 94102; phone (415) 252-3100; fax (415) 252-3112; and online 
http://www.sfgov.org/ethics. 
 


 



http://www.sfgov.org/ethics
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
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Advance



				To:		Planning Commission

				From:		Jonas P. Ionin, Director of Commission Affairs

				Re:		Advance Calendar

						All items and dates are tentative and subject to change.



				November 4, 2021 - CLOSED

		Case No.								Planner

		2020-007481CUA		5367 Diamond Heights Blvd. (1900 Diamond St.) 				fr: 8/26; 10/14		Pantoja

						PUD for the construction of 24 dwelling units in a total of 14 residential buildings		to: 12/2

		2018-015983CUAVAR		136 Delmar St.				fr: 8/26; 10/21		Hoagland

						Demo SFR and construct 2-unit dwelling		to: 12/9

		2021-000215CUA		400 Hyde St.				to: 12/9		Hoagland

						new telecom facility

		2019-020031CUAVAR		2867 San Bruno Ave				fr: 9/9, 9/30		Durandet

						legalize dwelling units, change from onsite BMR to fee		to: Indefinite

				Overview of General Plan Amendments						Rodgers

						Informational

		2019-011944OFAVAR		660 3rd St				fr: 8/26; 10/14		Westhoff

						Small cap office allocation to abate code enforcement case

		2017-015678CUA		425 Broadway				fr: 10/7; 10/14		Asbaugh

						TBD

		2021-000209CUA		733 Treat Avenue				fr: 10/21		Samonsky

						demo and new construction of a four-story building containing 6 dwelling units and one ADU

		2016-013012CUA		478-484 Haight St						May

						BMR condition amendment

		2018-007380CUAVAR		1320 Washington Street						Perry

						6-story over basement residential building with 25 dwelling units 

		2021-005183CUA		2040 Chestnut Street						Jimenez

						formula retail use establishment (dba Sweetgreen)

		2018-003779DRP-02		619 22nd Avenue						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				November 11, 2021 - CANCELED

		Case No.								Planner

				November 18, 2021 - CLOSED

		Case No.								Planner

		2019-022510CRV		240-250 Church Street				to: 12/2		Hicks

						State Density Bonus, new construction of a 7-story, 24 unit mixed-use building

		2021-003142CUA		333 Fremont Street				Withdrawn		Giacomucci

						Wireless CUA 		fr: 8/26

		2020-003971PCA		Dwelling Unit Density Exception for Corner Lots in RHD’s				fr: 9/23; 10/28		Merlone

						Planning Code Amendment

		2019-023037ENVGPA		Waterfront Plan Update						Snyder

						Informational

		2017-012086ENV		770 Woolsey Street						Delumo

						FEIR

		2017-012086CUA		770 Woolsey Street						Durandet

						Conditional Use Authorization for a Planned Unit Development

		2019-014461CUA		1324-1326 Powell Street				fr: 9/30		Enchill

						State Density Bonus new construction of 8-story, 24 unit mixed use building

		2019-013808CUAVAR		4300 17th Street				fr: 9/2; 10/14		Horn

						New Construction is Corona Heights SUD

		2019-022830AHB		3055 Clement St						May

						HOME-SF project 

		2019-013276ENX		560 Brannan Street						Liang

						Demo new construction of 120 units using SDB		fr: 10/21

		2019-005907CUA		1151 Washington Street						Guy

						CU for residential expansion > 2,000 sf without adding density

		2021-003400CUA		1285 10th Ave / 900 Irving St						Agnihotri

						ground floor cannabis retail use

		2021-006602CUA		1881-1885 Lombard St						Ajello

						Cannabis Retail use with on-site consumption lounge

		2020-009358DRP		2605 Post Street						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2019-022419DRP		312 Utah Street						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2016-000302DRP		460 Vallejo Street				fr: 9/30		Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				November 25, 2021 - CANCELED

		Case No.								Planner





				December 2, 2021

		Case No.								Planner

				Remote Hearing						Lynch

						Resolution Adoption

		2020-008417CWP		Economic Recovery and Work Spaces						Pappas

						Informational

		2019-020115ENV		SFPUC Ocean Beach Climate Change Adaptation Project 						Moore

						Informational

		2019-022510CRV		240-250 Church Street				fr: 11/18		Hicks

						State Density Bonus 

		2018-009812CUA		1268 17th Avenue				fr: 10/21		Dito

						PCS 317 to demolish SFD at rear of lot, add two dwelling units 

		2016-005365CUA		230 Anza Street				fr: 10/21		Young

						tantamount to demolition 

		2020-008133CUA		228 Vicksburg St						Horn

						Demo SFR and Construct 2-unit dwelling

		2018-015061CUA		1016 Pierce Street						Ajello

						legalize 2-unit DUM and create new ADU

		2020-007481CUA		5367 Diamond Heights Blvd. (1900 Diamond St.) 				fr: 8/26; 10/14; 10/28		Pantoja

						PUD for the construction of 24 dwelling units in a total of 14 residential buildings

		2021-000997DRP		801 Corbett Avenue						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2021-001219DRM		1228 Funston Street				fr: 10/28		Winslow

						Mandatory DR

				December 9, 2021

		Case No.								Planner

				Automotive Uses; Housing Density						Flores

						Planning Code Amendment

				Group Housing						Grob

						Informational

		2019-020611CUAVAR		5114-5116 3rd Street				fr: 6/17; 7/8; 9/23; 10/28		Sucre

						illegal demolition of a legal dwelling unit

		2018-015983CUAVAR		136 Delmar St.				fr: 8/26; 10/21; 11/4		Hoagland

						Demo SFR and construct 2-unit dwelling

		2020-009146CUA		247 Upper Terrace				fr: 10/28		Horn

						New construction of 2-unit dwelling within Corona Heights SUD

		2021-010715CRV		1201 Sutter Street						Foster

						Change in Section 415 Compliance

		2021-000215CUA		400 Hyde St.				fr: 11/4		Hoagland

						new telecom facility

		2021-004141DRP		2000 Oakdale Avenue						Christensen

						Install cannabis store/office space in existing first floor office space.

		2017-013947DRP		310 Green St 						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				December 16, 2021 - Joint with Health

		Case No.								Planner

				CPMC						Purl

						Informational Update

				December 16, 2021

		Case No.								Planner

		2021-006276CUA		2034 Mission Street				CONSENT		Wu

						Converting a Limited Restaurant Use to a Restaurant

				2022 Hearing Schedule						Ionin

						Adoption

		2021-009791CUA		1501C Sloat Boulevard				CONSENT		Cisneros

						Formula Retail – Change from Sprint to T-Mobile in Lakeshore Plaza

		2021-010875PCA		Bars in the Castro Street Neighborhood Commercial District						Merlone

						Planning Code Amendment

		2018-000983OTH		San Francisco Commercial Strategies						Nickolopoulos

						Informational

		2015-005983CUAVAR		850 Bush Street						Foster

						CUA for height above 50 feet in RC Zoning District

		2019-017009DRP		616 Belvedere Street						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2019-022661DRP		628 Shotwell Street						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				December 23, 2021 - CANCELED

		Case No.								Planner





				December 30, 2021 - CANCELED

		Case No.								Planner

				January 6, 2022

		Case No.								Planner

				Remote Hearing						Lynch

						Resolution Adoption

		2021-002530CUA		2740 McAllister Street 						Dito

						Legalize demo of SFD, construct 3FD

		2021-010563DRP		192-196 Laidley Street						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2016-008167DRP		65 Normandie Terrace						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				January 13, 2022

		Case No.								Planner

		2020-004398PRJ		SFO Shoreline Protection Program						Li

						Informational

		2018-013597ENV		Portsmouth Square Improvement Project						Calpin

						EIR Certification

		2018-013451PRJ		2135 Market Street						Horn

						State Density Bonus new construction of 9-story, 36 unit mixed use building

		2021-000182DRP		140 20th Avenue						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2021-000607DRP		525 Leavenworth Street						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				January 20, 2022

		Case No.								Planner

				January 27, 2022

		Case No.								Planner

		2018-014727AHB		921 O'Farrell Street 						Hoagland

						AHB / HOME-SF 14-story (140 feet) tower with 50 dwelling units and ground-level retail

		2017-013784CUA		2976 Mission Street						Giacomucci

						demolish the existing construct a six-story, mixed use building
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To:           Staff

From:       Jonas P. Ionin, Director of Commission Affairs

Re:           Hearing Results

          	

NEXT MOTION/RESOLUTION No: 21025

 

NEXT DISCRETIONARY REVIEW ACTION No: 763

                  

DRA = Discretionary Review Action; M = Motion; R = Resolution



   October 28, 2021 Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2020-003971PCA

		Dwelling Unit Density Exception for Corner Lots in Residential Districts [Board File No. 210564]

		Merlone

		Continued to November 18, 2021

		+5 -0 (Chan, Diamond absent)



		

		2019-020611CUA

		5114-5116 3rd Street

		Sucre

		Continued to December 9, 2021

		+5 -0 (Chan, Diamond absent)



		

		2019-020611VAR

		5114-5116 3rd Street

		Sucre

		ZA Continued to December 9, 2021

		



		

		2020-009146CUA

		247 Upper Terrace

		Horn

		Continued to December 9, 2021

		+5 -0 (Chan, Diamond absent)



		

		2020-008529DRP

		1857 Church Street

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		

		2020-008529VAR

		1857 Church Street

		Campbell

		ZA Continued to December 1, 2021

		



		

		

		Draft Minutes for October 14, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+5 -0 (Chan, Diamond absent)



		M-21022

		2020-005729CUA

		4 Seacliff Avenue

		May

		Approved with Conditions as amended by Sponsor

		+5 -0 (Chan, Diamond absent)



		M-21023

		2020-009025CUA

		5915 California Street

		Young

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Chan, Diamond absent)



		M-21024

		2021-004963CUA

		3415 California Street

		Agnihotri

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Chan, Diamond absent)



		DRA-762

		2021-002667DRP-03

		4763 19th Street

		Winslow

		No DR

		+5 -0 (Chan, Diamond absent)







   October 21, 2021 Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2021-002667DRP-03

		4763 19th Street

		Winslow

		Continued to October 28, 2021

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		

		2018-015983CUA

		136 Delmar Street

		Hoagland

		Continued to December 9, 2021

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		

		2018-015983VAR

		136 Delmar Street

		Hoagland

		ZA Continued to December 9, 2021

		



		

		2018-009812CUA

		1268 17th Avenue

		Dito

		Continued to December 2, 2021

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		

		2016-005365CUA

		230 Anza Street

		Young

		Continued to December 2, 2021

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for October 7, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		

		2018-008588CWP

		Rail Alignment and Benefits (RAB) Study Implementation

		Harvey

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		2018-016522CWP

		Senate Bill 9 and Senate Bill 10

		Nickolopoulos

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-21019

		2017-011878OFA-02

		420 23rd Street (Potrero Power Station Mixed-Use Development)

		Giacomucci

		Approved with Conditions as amended by Staff

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		M-21020

		2019-019698AHB

		4512 23rd Street

		Hoagland

		Approved with Conditions

		+4 -2 (Imperial and Moore against; Chan absent)



		

		2021-000209CUA

		733 Treat Avenue

		Samonsky

		Without hearing Continued to November 4, 2021

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		M-21021

		2021-003396CUA

		790 Valencia Street

		Balba

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		DRA-761

		2021-003776DRP-02

		3737 22nd Street

		Winslow

		No DR

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)







  October 14, 2021 Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2020-007481CUA

		5367 Diamond Heights Boulevard (1900 Diamond Street)

		Pantoja

		Continued to November 4, 2021

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		

		2016-011827ENX

		1500 15th Street

		Jardines

		Continued Indefinitely

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		

		2017-015678CUA

		425 Broadway

		Alexander

		Continued to November 4, 2021

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		

		2021-000822DRP

		486 Duncan Street

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		

		2021-000822VAR

		486 Duncan Street

		Winslow

		ZA Continued to VAR hearing on October 27, 2021

		



		

		2019-013808CUA

		4300 17th Street

		Horn

		Continued to November 18, 2021

		+4 -2 (Imperial and Moore against; Chan absent)



		

		2019-013808VAR

		4300 17th Street

		Horn

		ZA Continued to November 18, 2021

		



		M-21009

		2021-006602CUA

		2104 Hayes Street

		Ajello

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for September 30, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		R-21010

		2021-007327PCA

		Business Signs on Awnings and Marquees [BF 210810]

		Merlone

		Approved (without Staff modifications)

		+4 -2 (Imperial Moore against; Chan absent)



		R-21011

		2021-007368PCA

		Repealing Article 12 Regarding Oil and Gas Facilities [BF 210807]

		Starr

		Approved with Staff modifications

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		R-21012

		2021-007369PCA

		Requirements for Laundromats and On-Site Laundry Services [BF 210808]

		Flores

		Approved with Staff modifications

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		R-21013

		2021-007832PCA

		Inclusionary Housing Program Updates [BF 210868]

		Grob

		Approved

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		

		2019-016230CWP

		Housing Element 2022 Upate

		Haddadan

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-21014

		2018-004686CUA

		2350 Green Street

		Woods

		Approved with conditions modifying the 3 year performance plan condition to 5 years. 

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		

		2019-011944OFA

		660 03rd Street

		Westhoff

		Without hearing, Continued to November 4th, 2021

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		

		2019-011944VAR

		660 03rd Street

		Westhoff

		Without hearing, ZA Continued to November 4th, 2021

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		M-21015

		2020-001610SHD

		3832 18th Street

		Horn

		Adopted shadow findings based on staff’s recommended design of a project with 5 stories and 19 units. 

		



		M-21016

		2020-001610CUA

		3832 18th Street

		Horn

		Approved with conditions and  staff’s recommended alternative design of a project with 5 stories and 19 units with further plan refinement between staff and the project sponsor. Condition added for a staff prepared memo with revised plans to be provided to the Commission.

		+4-2 (Imperial and Moore against; Chan absent)



		M-21017

		2021-006288CUA

		211 Austin Street

		Ajello

		Approved with Conditions as read into the record by staff

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		M-21018

		2021-001579CUA

		2715 Judah Street

		Campbell

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		DRA-760

		2021-000308DRP

		642 Alvarado Street

		Winslow

		No DR

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)





  

   October 7, 2021 Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2017-015678CUA

		425 Broadway

		Alexander

		Continued to October 14, 2021

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		

		2019-022661CUA

		628 Shotwell Street

		Feeney

		Withdrawn

		



		M-21006

		2020-006344CUA

		37 Vicente Street

		Balba

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Diamond recused; Chan absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes For September 23, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted as amended

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		R-21007

		2021-009977CRV

		Remote Hearings

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		

		2021-007327PCA

		Business Signs on Awnings and Marquees [Board File 210810]

		Merlone

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to October 14, 2021

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		

		2018-017026CWP

		San Francisco Environmental Justice Framework and General Plan Policies

		Chen

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		2015-018094CWP

		Update of Connectsf, San Francisco’s Comprehensive Transportation Planning Program

		Johnson

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-21008

		2021-002698CUA

		317 Cortland Avenue

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)





  

   September 30, 2021 Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-020031CUA

		2867 San Bruno Ave (Aka 90-98 Woolsey Street)

		Durandet

		Continued to November 4, 2021

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		

		2019-020031VAR

		2867 San Bruno Ave (Aka 90-98 Woolsey Street)

		Durandet

		Continued to November 4, 2021

		



		

		2016-000302DRP

		460 Vallejo Street

		Winslow

		Continued to November 18, 2021

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		

		2020-008611DRP

		1433 Diamond Street

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		

		2019-014461CUA

		1324-1326 Powell Street

		Enchill

		Continued to November 18, 2021

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		M-20998

		2021-006247CUA

		6202 03rd Street

		Samonsky

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Diamond recused; Chan absent)



		M-20999

		2021-002468CUA

		2040 Fillmore Street

		Ajello

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		

		2019-022850ENV

		1101-1123 Sutter Street

		Young

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-21000

		2019-013528CUA

		36-38 Gough Street

		Samonsky

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Tanner recused; Chan absent)



		M-21001

		2021-001622CUA

		220 Post Street

		Vimr

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -1 (Moore against; Chan absent)



		M-21002

		2020-008347CUA

		811 Clay Street

		Hoagland

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		R-21003

		2016-015987PCA

		1750 Van Ness Avenue

		May

		Approved

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		M-21004

		2016-015987CUA

		1750 Van Ness Avenue

		May

		Approved with Conditions as amended and read into the record by Staff.

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		

		2016-015987VAR

		1750 Van Ness Avenue

		May

		ZA closed the PH and indicated an intent to Grant

		



		M-21005

		2021-000433CUA

		2428 Clement Street

		Agnihotri

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)





  

   September 23, 2021 Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-020611CUA

		5114-5116 3rd Street

		Sucre

		Continued to October 28, 2021

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		

		2019-020611VAR

		5114-5116 3rd Street

		Sucre

		ZA Continued to October 28, 2021

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		

		2020-005729CUA

		4 Seacliff Avenue

		May

		Continued to October 28, 2021

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		

		2020-003971PCA

		Dwelling Unit Density Exception For Corner Lots In Residential Districts [Board File No. 210564]

		Merlone

		Continued to October 28, 2021

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		

		2019-022661CUA

		628 Shotwell Street

		Feeney

		Continued to October 07, 2021

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		

		2021-000269DRP-02

		3669 21st Street

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		

		

		Draft Minutes for July 22, 2021

		Lynch

		Adopted as amended 

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for September 2, 2021

		Lynch

		Adopted 

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for September 9, 2021

		Lynch

		Adopted 

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		R-20991

		2021-001791PCA

		Review Of Large Residence Developments

		Merlone

		Disapproved with recommendations 

· Community outreach should be completed based on areas of concern. 

· Explore a form-based approach for the size limitation	 

· Look at tenant protection	 

· Ensure that unfinished area can be converted to finished area without triggering the legislation provisions	 

· The date the legislation would go into effect would be the date of the law and grandfathering should not go back to a prior date. 

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		M-20992

		2015-012577CUA

		1200 Van Ness Avenue

		Woods

		Approved with Conditions including modifications read into the record by staff related to open space. 

		+4 -2 (Imperial Moore against; Chan absent)



		M-20993

		2017-000663OFA-02

		610-698 Brannan Street

		Samonsky

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		M-20994

		2020-007565CUA-02

		1336 Chestnut Street

		May

		Approved with Conditions including the addition of a community liaison condition of approval

		+5 -1 (Imperial against; Chan absent)





		M-20995

		2017-015648CUA

		952 Carolina Street

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -1 (Imperial against; Chan absent)



		

		2017-015648VAR

		952 Carolina Street

		Christensen

		ZA Closed the PH and indicated an intent to Grant

		



		M-20996

		2019-019901CUA

		1068 Florida Street

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions

		+4 -2 (Imperial Moore against; Chan absent)



		M-20997

		2021-004901CUA

		1111 California Street

		Agnihotri

		Approved with Conditions including moving the antennas 10-15 feet to the East

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)





  

   September 9, 2021 Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2021-004901CUA

		1111 California Street

		Agnihotri

		Continued to September 23, 2021

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		

		2019-020031CUA

		2867 San Bruno Ave (aka 90-98 Woolsey Street)

		Durandet

		Continued to September 30, 2021

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		

		2019-020031VAR

		2867 San Bruno Ave (aka 90-98 Woolsey Street)

		Durandet

		ZA Continued to September 30, 2021

		



		

		2021-003396CUA

		790 Valencia Street 

		Balba

		Continued to October 21, 2021

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

		



		M-20981

		2020-011473CUA

		2075 Mission Street

		Cisneros

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		M-20982

		2021-005099CUA

		4126 18th Street

		Campbell

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		M-20983

		2021-003600CUA

		506 Castro Street

		Balba

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		M-20984

		2021-003599CUA

		2234 Chestnut Street

		Agnihotri

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		M-20985

		2021-001859CUA

		3800 24th Street

		Horn

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for August 26, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		R-20986

		2021-006353PCA

		Accessory Dwelling Unit Controls [BF 210699]

		Flores

		Approved Planning Code Amendment and adopted a recommendation for approval of Administrative Code Amendment, without Staff modifications

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		

		2018-013597ENV

		Portsmouth Square Improvement Project (733 Kearny Street)

		Calpin

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20987

		2020-005610ENX

		490 Brannan Street

		Liang

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		M-20988

		2020-005610OFA

		490 Brannan Street

		Liang

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		

		2020-005610VAR

		490 Brannan Street

		Liang

		ZA Closed the PH and indicated an intent to Grant

		



		M-20989

		2020-006422CUA

		1728 Larkin Street

		Hoagland

		Approved with Conditions

		+4 -2 (Imperial Moore against; Chan absent)



		M-20990

		2019-001627CUA

		459 Clipper Street

		Horn

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -1 (Imperial against; Chan absent)





  

   September 2, 2021 Hearing Results:

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

		Continued to September 9, 2021

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		R-20971

		2021-006260PCA

		State-Mandated Accessory Dwelling Unit Controls [BF 210585]

		Flores

		Adopted a Resolution Approving with Staff modification

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		M-20972

		2019-023623ENX

		130 Townsend Street

		Westhoff

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		M-20973

		2019-023623OFA

		130 Townsend Street

		Westhoff

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		M-20974

		2019-023623OFA-02

		130 Townsend Street

		Westhoff

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		

		2019-023623VAR

		130 Townsend Street

		Westhoff

		ZA closed the PH, indicated an intent to Grant

		



		M-20975

		2020-009813CUA

		18 Palm Avenue

		Agnihotri

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		M-20976

		2016-013012CUA

		478-484 Haight Street

		May

		Approved with Conditions including those circulated by Staff, and for all units to have full kitchens.

		+5 -1 (Moore against; Chan absent)



		M-20977

		2021-001698CUA

		340 Fell Street

		Hoagland

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		M-20978

		2020-008959CUA

		376 Hill Street

		Horn

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -1 (Moore against; Chan absent)



		M-20979

		2020-006404CUA

		3757 21st Street

		Speirs

		Approved with Conditions as amended to include the condition read into the record by Staff to address both side property line trees.

		+5 -1 (Moore against; Chan absent)



		M-20980

		2019-015440CUA

		472 Greenwich Street

		Vimr

		Approved with Conditions

		+4 -2 (Imperial Moore against; Chan absent)





  

   August 26, 2021 Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2020-007481CUA

		5367 Diamond Heights Boulevard (1900 Diamond Street)

		Pantoja

		Continued to October 14, 2021

		+5 -0 (Chan, Moore absent)



		

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



		

		2020-000788CUA

		722 Wisconsin Street

		Feeney

		WITHDRAWN

		+5 -0 (Chan, Moore absent)



		

		2021-003142CUA

		333 Fremont Street

		Giacomucci

		Continued to November 18, 2021

		+5 -0 (Chan, Moore absent)



		

		2021-004810CRV

		Commission Rules and Regulations

		Lynch

		Continued Indefinitely

		+5 -0 (Chan, Moore absent)



		M-20968

		2021-003994CUA

		3995 Alemany Boulevard

		Balba

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Chan, Moore absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for July 29, 2021 – Joint Rec and Park

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+5 -0 (Chan, Moore absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for July 29, 2021 – Regular Hearing

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+5 -0 (Chan, Moore absent)



		R-20969

		2021-005562PCAMAP

		Small Business Zoning Controls in Chinatown and North Beach and on Polk Street [BF 210600]

		Flores

		Approved with Staff modifications

		+4 -1 (Tanner against; Chan, Moore absent)



		

		2019-021884ENV

		Sfmta: 2500 Mariposa Street

		McKellar

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20970

		2020-009481CUA

		4034 20th Street

		Horn

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Chan, Moore absent)





  

   July 29, 2021 Joint Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		M-20953

		2019-017481APL

		530 Sansome Street

		Callagy

		Upheld the PMND

		+4 -2 (Imperial, Moore against; Chan absent)



		M-20954

		2019-017481SHD

		530 Sansome Street

		Foster

		Raised the Absolute Cumulative Limit for Maritime Plaza and Set the Absolute Cumulative Limit for Sue Bierman Park

		+4 -2 (Imperial, Moore against; Chan absent)



+4 -0 (McDonnell, Low, Mazzola absent)



		

		2019-017481SHD

		530 Sansome Street

		Townes

		Adopted a Recommendation for no significant impact

		+4 -0 (McDonnell, Low, Mazzola absent)



		M-20955

		2019-017481SHD

		530 Sansome Street

		Foster

		Adopted Shadow Findings

		+4 -2 (Imperial, Moore against; Chan absent)



		M-20956

		2019-017481DNX

		530 Sansome Street

		Foster

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		M-20957

		2019-017481CUA

		530 Sansome Street

		Foster

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		M-20958

		2019-017481OFA

		530 Sansome Street

		Foster

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		

		2019-017481VAR

		530 Sansome Street

		Foster

		ZA Closed the PH and indicated an intent to Grant

		





  

  July 29, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

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



		M-20959

		2020-011615CUA

		2022 Mission Street

		Wu

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for July 15, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		M-20960

		2017-014833ENV

		469 Stevenson Street Project

		Delumo

		Certified

		+4 -2 (Imperial, Moore against; Chan absent)



		M-20961

		2017-014833ENV

		469 Stevenson Street

		Foster

		Approved with Conditions as amended by Staff and the CPC to include:

1. Sponsor to continue working with Staff on additional balcony space; 

2. Provide an update memo with all modifications and community benefits; and

Amend the Community Benefits Finding related to overriding considerations to include and attach the letter received at 1:35 pm on July 29, 2021 as referenced by Commissioner Diamond.

		+4 -2 (Imperial, Moore against; Chan absent)



		M-20962

		2017-014833DNX

		469 Stevenson Street

		Foster

		Approved with Conditions as amended by Staff and the CPC to include:

3. Sponsor to continue working with Staff on additional balcony space; 

4. Provide an update memo with all modifications and community benefits; and

3Amend the Community Benefits Finding related to overriding considerations to include and attach the letter received at 1:35 pm on July 29, 2021 as referenced by Commissioner Diamond.

		+4 -2 (Imperial, Moore against; Chan absent)



		M-20963

		2017-014833CUA

		469 Stevenson Street

		Foster

		Approved with Conditions as amended by Staff

		+4 -2 (Imperial, Moore against; Chan absent)



		

		2017-012086ENV

		770 Woolsey Street

		Delumo

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20964

		2016-010671CUA

		809 Sacramento Street

		Foster

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		M-20965

		2019-020818AHB

		5012 03rd Street

		Liang

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		M-20966

		2016-002728CUA-02

		2525 Van Ness Avenue

		May

		Adopted an alternate motion submitted to Approve with Conditions and appropriate Findings

		+5 -1 (Moore against; Chan absent)



		M-20967

		2019-012676DNX

		159 Fell Street

		Guy

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		DRA-758

		2019-023466DRM

		3150 18th Street

		Sucre

		No DR

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		DRA-759

		2016-013505DRP

		35 Ventura Street

		Winslow

		No DR

		+5 -1 (Koppel against; Chan absent)







  July 22, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

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

		Continued to July 29, 2021

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



		M-20942

		2020-002678CUA

		2335 Golden Gate Avenue

		Woods

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for July 8, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		R-20943

		2021-005030PCAMAP

		Life Science and Medical Special Use District [Board File No. 210497]

		Shaw

		Approved with Staff Modifications as amended to include a Grandfathering clause for projects with applications on file by July 22, 2021.

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		R-20944

		2021-005135PCA

		Conditional Use Authorization Requirements Regarding Residential Care Facilities [Board File No. 210535]

		Merlone

		Approved with Staff Modifications

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		

		2021-001791PCA

		Review Of Large Residence Developments

		Merlone

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to September 23, 2021

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		M-20945

		2015-009955CUA

		1525 Pine Street

		Asbagh

		Approved with Conditions as amended to include:

1. Provide full spectrum artificial light the light well as read into the record by Staff; and 

2. Provide a transom window, full spectrum of light for the studio unit on the second floor.

		+4 -2 (Imperial, Moore against; Chan absent)



		M-20946

		2021-002978CUA

		555 Fulton Street

		Asbagh

		Approved with Conditions as amended by Staff to include:

1. A parking attendant and a one-year informational update hearing to review the traffic calming measures;

2. Increasing the parking limit to 90 minutes; and 

3. Providing right turn in and out signage.

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		M-20947

		2020-010710CUA

		400 California Street

		Enchill

		Approved with Conditions (with findings amended by Staff) and amended to include that interior alterations are to be reviewed by Preservation Staff and the Historic Preservation Commission.

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		M-20948

		2020-005897DNX

		233 Geary Street

		Vimr

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		M-20949

		2020-005897CUA

		233 Geary Street

		Vimr

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		M-20950

		2020-005897OFA

		233 Geary Street

		Vimr

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		M-20951

		2020-009312CUA

		1112 Shotwell Street

		Feeney

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		M-20952

		2018-002625CUA

		4716-4722 Mission Street

		Horn

		Approved with Conditions a amended to include:

1. Sponsor to work with Staff and the District Supervisor on animating blank walls; and 

2. Shall provide 13 additional bicycle parking spaces.

		+5 -0 (Chan, Koppel absent)







   July 15, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2020-010710CUA

		400 California Street

		Enchill

		Continued to July 22, 2021

		+5 -0 (Koppel, Chan absent)



		

		2020-010508DRP

		3201 23rd Street

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		M-20939

		2021-002259CUA

		1001 Minnesota Street

		Wu

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Koppel, Chan absent)



		DRA-756

		2020-000058DRM

		2780-2782 Diamond Street

		Pantoja

		No DR and Approved

		+5 -0 (Koppel, Chan absent)



		

		2021-004810CRV

		Commission Rules and Regulations

		Lynch

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to August 26, 2021

		+5 -0 (Koppel, Chan absent)



		

		2018-003614OTH

		Office Of Cannabis

		Christensen

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		R-20940

		2021-004740PCA

		Grandfathered Medical Cannabis Dispensaries [Board File #210452]

		Christensen

		Approved

		+5 -0 (Koppel, Chan absent)



		

		2017-011878PHA-04

		Block 7 of Potrero Power Station

		Giacomucci

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		2020-001610CUA

		3832 18th Street

		Horn

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to Octobrer 14, 2021

		+5 -0 (Koppel, Chan absent)



		

		2020-001610SHD

		3832 18th Street

		Horn

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to Octobrer 14, 2021

		+5 -0 (Koppel, Chan absent)



		M-20941

		2020-010109CUA

		35 Belgrave Avenue

		Gunther

		Approved with Conditions as amended for the ADU to be at least 600 sqft.

		+5 -0 (Koppel, Chan absent)



		DRA-757

		2018-002508DRP-05

		4250 26th Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with Modifications

		+5 -0 (Koppel, Chan absent)







   July 8, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-013412VAR

		146 Jordan Avenue

		Winslow

		ZA Continued to July 28, 2021

		



		

		2019-017481APL

		530 Sansome Street

		Callagy

		Continued to July 29, 2021

		+5 -0 (Koppel, Chan absent)



		

		2020-000788CUA

		722 Wisconsin Street

		Feeney

		Continued to August 26, 2021

		+5 -0 (Koppel, Chan absent)



		

		2019-020611CUA

		5114-5116 3rd Street

		Sucre

		Continued to September 23, 2021

		+5 -0 (Koppel, Chan absent)



		

		2019-020611VAR

		5114-5116 3rd Street

		Sucre

		ZA Continued to September 23, 2021

		



		

		2019-022661CUA

		628 Shotwell Street

		Feeney

		Continued to September 23, 2021

		+5 -0 (Koppel, Chan absent)



		M-20937

		2021-002352CUA

		3401 California Street

		Agnihotri

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Koppel, Chan absent)



		M-20938

		2021-000726CUA

		559 Clay Street

		Hoagland

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Koppel, Chan absent)



		DRA-755

		2019-013412DRP

		146 Jordan Avenue

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with Modifications

		+4 -0 (Diamond recused; Koppel, Chan absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for June 17, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+5 -0 (Koppel, Chan absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for June 24, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+5 -0 (Koppel, Chan absent)



		

		

		Residential Open Space Controls

		Sanchez

		Reviewed and Commented

		







  June 24, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2021-000726CUA

		559 Clay Street

		Hoagland

		Continued to July 8, 2021

		+5 -0 (Fung, Chan absent)



		

		2018-002508DRP-04

		4250 26th Street

		Winslow

		Continued to July 15, 2021

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

		ZA Continued to July 29, 2021

		



		

		2016-013012CUA

		478-484 Haight Street

		May

		Continued to September 2, 2021

		+5 -0 (Fung, Chan absent)



		

		2021-004810CRV

		Commission Rules And Regulations

		

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



		

		

		Draft Minutes for June 10, 2021 – Closed Session

		

		Adopted

		+5 -0 (Fung, Chan absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for June 10, 2021 – Regular

		

		Adopted

		+5 -0 (Fung, Chan absent)



		M-20935

		2013.1535CUA-02

		450-474 O'Farrell Street and 532 Jones Street

		Grob

		Approved with Conditions as amended to include:

1. Increase the number of larger group housing units, wherever feasible;

2. Provide balconies to maximum projection on all sides except O’Farrell Street;

3. Continue working with Staff to increase the number of bicycle parking spaces, up to 200;

4. Convert the ground-floor retail space to group housing units; and 

5. Work with Staff to analyze the feasibility of converting the basement to additional group housing units.

		+4 -2 (Imperial, Moore against; Chan absent)



		M-20936

		2020-001973CUA

		1737 Post Street, Suite 367

		Young

		Approved with Conditions as amended to include:

1. Sponsor to meet/work with the Japantown Taskforce; and 

2. Update memo.

		+5 -1 (Moore against; Chan absent)







  June 17, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-017481APL

		530 Sansome Street

		Callagy

		Continued to July 8, 2021

		+3 -2 (Diamond, Fung against; Koppel, Chan absent)



		

		2019-020611CUA

		5114-5116 3rd Street

		Weissglass

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



		

		2019-014071DRP

		2269 Francisco Street

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		

		

		Draft Minutes for June 3, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+5 -0 (Koppel, Chan absent)



		

		2021-000947PRJ

		555-585 Bryant Street

		Liang

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20934

		2019-023105AHB

		2800 Geary Boulevard

		Dito

		Approved the Geary Bl. driveway access variant, with no bulb-out, with Conditions as amended to include the Sponsor pursue appropriate traffic calming measures to mitigate any disruption to the Geary BRT and senior housing facility.

		+5 -0 (Koppel, Chan absent)







   June 10, 2021 Closed Session Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Conference with Legal Counsel

		Ionin

		Adopted a Motion to to Assert the Attorney-Client Privilege

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		

		

		Closed Session discussion

		Ionin

		Adopted a Motion to to not disclose

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)







   June 10, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2013.1535CUA-02

		450-474 O'Farrell Street and 532 Jones Street

		Grob

		Continued to June 24, 2021

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



		

		2020-011319DRP

		655 Powell Street

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		

		2021-004810CRV

		Commission Rules and Regulations

		Ionin

		Continued to June 24, 2021

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for May 27, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		

		

		State Density Bonus Law

		Conner

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		2020-009640OTH

		Centering Planning on Racial and Social Equity

		Flores

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20932

		2019-017761CUA

		4234 24th Street

		Hicks

		Approved with 

Conditions as modified, replacing the roof penthouse with a roof hatch.

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)



		M-20933

		2020-007152CUA

		5801 Mission Street

		Balba

		After a Motion to Disapprove failed +2 -4 (Diamond, Imperial, Moore, Koppel against); Approved with Condtions

		+4 -2 (Tanner, Fung against; Chan absent)



		DRA-754

		2020-009332DRP

		311 Jersey Street

		Winslow

		No DR

		+6 -0 (Chan absent)







  June 3, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-006578DRP

		2455 Harrison Street

		Westhoff

		Withdrawn

		



		

		

		Draft Minutes for May 20, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		R-20926

		2020-006112PCA

		Massage Establishment Zoning Controls [BF 210381]

		Flores

		Approved with Staff Modifications

		+7 -0



		

		2018-013637CWP

		Islais Creek Southeast Mobility and Adaptation Strategy

		Fisher/ Barata

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20927

		2021-000444CUA

		135 Post Street

		Guy

		Approved with Amendments read into the record by Staff

		+7 -0



		M-20928

		2021-000444OFA

		135 Post Street

		Guy

		Approved with Amendments read into the record by Staff

		+7 -0



		M-20929

		2020-011603CUA

		2424 Polk Street

		Feeney

		Approved with Conditions as amended to include:

1. Applicant to apply for a passenger loading (white) zone;

2. Doors adjacent to the vaping lounge be alarmed; and

3. Windows adjacent to the vaping lounge be inoperative or remain closed during operation.

		+5 -2 (Fung, Moore against)



		M-20930

		2020-003223CUA

		249 Texas Street

		Westhoff

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -2 (Imperial, Moore against)



		[bookmark: OLE_LINK1]M-20931

		2019-006578SHD

		2455 Harrison Street

		Westhoff

		Adopted Shadow Findings

		+7 -0







   May 27, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2020-009481CUA

		4034 20th Street

		Horn

		Continued to June 17, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2021-001698CUA

		340 Fell Street

		Hoagland

		Continued to September 2, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2020-008058DRP

		1950 Franklin Street

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		

		

		CPC Rules&Regs

		Ionin

		Continued to June 10, 2021

		+7 -0



		M-20923

		2021-003760CUA

		4374 Mission Street

		Campbell

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for May 13, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		DRA-753

		2019-017985DRP-05

		25 Toledo Way

		Winslow

		No DR Approved with Modifications

		+7 -0



		M-20924

		2019-012888CUA

		3129-3141 Clement Street

		Young

		Approved with Conditions as amended to include:

1. Outdoor seating to end at 8:00 pm and outdoor noise to end at 10 pm;

2. No outdoor TV’s; and

3. Sound from the Karaoke Bar to be fully contained within the establishment and no noise to bleed outside.

		+7 -0



		M-20925

		2021-000603CUA

		5 Leland Avenue

		Christensen

		Disapproved, citing:

1. Overconcentration and saturation in the immediate vicinity;

2. Limited number of storefronts; and 

3. CU criteria not being met.

		+4 -3 (Tanner, Diamond, Koppel against)







   May 20, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-022661CUA

		628 Shotweel Street

		Feeney

		Continued to July 8, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for May 6, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		M-20922

		2020-007074CUA

		159 Laidley Street

		Horn

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		2020-007734DRP-03

		3441 Washington Street

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		DRA-750

		2019-019822DRP

		4079 Cesar Chavez

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with Modifications

		+7 -0



		DRA-751

		2019-019373DRP

		217 Hugo Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with Modifications

		+7 -0



		DRA-752

		2019-016244DRP

		239 Broad Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with Modifications

		+7 -0







   May 13, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2021-000603CUA

		5 Leland Avenue

		Christensen

		Continued to May 27, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2020-003223CUA

		249 Texas Street

		Westhoff

		Continued to June 3, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2019-019373DRP

		217 Hugo Street

		Winslow

		Continued to May 20, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2020-007734DRP-03

		3441 Washington Street

		Winslow

		Continued to May 20, 2021

		+7 -0



		M-20914

		2020-008474CUA

		3519 California Street

		Young

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20915

		2019-021247CUA

		1537 Mission Street

		Foster

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for April 29, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		

		O Guttenburg Street

		Pantoja

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		R-20916

		2021-002990PCA

		Temporary Closure of Liquor Stores in Polk Street Neighborhood Commercial District[BF 210287]

		Merlone

		Approved with Modifications

		+7 -0



		R-20917

		2021-003184PCAMAP

		2500-2530 18th Street Affordable Housing Special Use District [BF 210182]

		Flores

		Approved with Modifications

		+7 -0



		

		2019-021884CWPENV

		Potrero Yard Modernization Project

		Snyder

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20918

		2018-011249CUA-02

		1567 California Street

		Perry

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20919

		2020-003042AHB

		4712-4720 3rd Street

		Feeney

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20920

		2014.1058CUA

		6424 3rd Street/188 Key Avenue

		Jardines

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		2014.1058VAR

		6424 3rd Street/188 Key Avenue

		Jardines

		ZA closed the PH and indicated an intent to Grant

		



		M-20921

		2020-000886CUA

		575 Vermont Street

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions as amended to include: 

1. A patio for the ADU at grade for the full width of the unit at least ten feet deep;

2. Sponsor continue working with Staff and adjacent neighbors on the north facing fenestration of the top two floors; and 

3. The modifications be submitted to the CPC in the form of an update memo. 

		+7 -0







   May 6, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-019373DRP

		217 Hugo Street

		Winslow

		Continued to May 13, 2021

		+7 -0



		M-20908

		2021-000186CUA

		2675 Geary Boulevard

		May

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for April 22, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		M-20909

		2015-009955ENV

		1525 Pine Street

		Li

		Upheld

		+5 -2 (Imperial, Moore against)



		

		2015-009955CUA

		1525 Pine Street

		Asbagh

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to June 17, 2021 with direction to explore a project that provides more light and air to the adjacent tenants.

		+5 -2 (Imperial, Moore against)



		M-20910

		2019-020740CUA

		468 Turk Street

		Asbagh

		Approved with Conditions as amended to include the minimum kitchen appliances as listed by the Project Sponsor.

		+7 -0



		M-20911

		2021-001979CUA

		141 Leland Avenue

		Horn

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20912

		2021-002277CUA

		220 Dolores Street

		Horn

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		2021-002277VAR

		220 Dolores Street

		Horn

		ZA closed the PH and indicated an intent to Grant

		



		M-20913

		2021-002736CUA

		129 Hyde Street

		Horn

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		2021-002736VAR

		129 Hyde Street

		Horn

		ZA closed the PH and indicated an intent to Grant

		



		DRA-749

		2013.0846DRP

		140-142 Jasper Place

		Winslow

		No DR, Approved with a Finding recognizing the rent-controlled status of the building.

		+5 -2 (Imperial, Moore against)







   April 29, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

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

		4079 Cesar Chavez Street

		Winslow

		Continued to May 20, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2016-012135CUA

		2214 Cayuga Avenue and 3101 Alemany Boulevard

		Pantoja

		Continued Indefinitely

		+7 -0



		

		2013.0846DRP

		140-142 Jasper Place

		Winslow

		Continued to May 6, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2019-023105AHB

		2800 Geary Boulevard

		Dito

		Continued to June 17, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2018-011249CUA-02

		1567 California Street

		Perry

		Continued to May 13, 2021

		+7 -0



		M-20899

		2021-000485CUA

		3910 24th Street

		Cisneros

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		DRA-748

		2021-000389DRP

		366-368 Collingwood Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with Modifications

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for April 15, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		M-20900

		2016-016100ENV

		SFPUC Southern Skyline Boulevard Ridge Trail Extension Project

		Johnston

		Certified

		+7 -0



		M-20901

		2020-005255SHD_

2020-006576SHD	

		474 Bryant Street and 77 Stillman Street

		Liang

		Adopted Findings

		+7 -0



		M-20902

		2020-005255ENX

		474 Bryant Street

		Liang

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20903

		2020-005255OFA

		474 Bryant Street

		Liang

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20904

		2020-006576ENX

		77 Stillman Street

		Liang

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20905

		2020-006576OFA

		77 Stillman Street

		Liang

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20906

		2020-006045CUA

		292 Eureka Street

		Cisneros

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		2020-006045VAR

		292 Eureka Street

		Cisneros

		After hearing and closing public comment; ZA indicated an intent to Grant

		+7 -0



		M-20907

		2020-009424CUA

		231-235 Wilde Avenue

		Wu

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0







   April 22, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

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



		M-20894

		2018-007267OFA-02

		865 Market Street

		Vimr

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		2018-004047CWP-02

		Housing Inventory Report, Housing Balance Report, and update on Monitoring Reports

		Littlefield

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		2019-016230CWP

		Housing Element 2022 Update

		Haddadan

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		2021-003010PRJ

		Transitioning The Shared Spaces To A Permanent City Program

		Abad

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		R-20895

		2021-002933PCA

		Simplify Restrictions On Small Businesses [Board File No. 210285]

		Nickolopoulos

		Approved with Staff Modifications and eliminating the provision related to ADU’s in Chinatown.

		+4 -3 (Chan, Imperial, Moore against)



		

		2019-006114PRJ

		300 5th Street

		Christensen

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20896

		2013.0614ENX-02

		600 South Van Ness

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20897

		2020-010729CUA

		1215 29th Avenue

		Page

		Disapproved

		+7 -0



		M-20898

		2020-009148CUA

		353 Divisadero Street

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		DRA-746

		2020-006525DRP

		1990 Lombard Street

		Winslow

		No DR

		+7 -0



		DRA-747

		2020-002333DRP

		2814 Clay Street

		Winslow

		No DR

		+7 -0







   April 15, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-019822DRP

		4079 Cesar Chavez Street

		Winslow

		Continued to April 29, 2021

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



		M-20888

		2020-011809CUA

		300 West Portal Avenue

		Pantoja

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20889

		2020-009545CUA

		2084 Chestnut Street

		Gunther

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for March 25, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for April 1, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		2013.1535CUA-02

		450-474 O'Farrell Street and 532 Jones Street

		Grob

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to June 10, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2019-020740CUA

		468 Turk Street

		Asbagh

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to May 6, 2021

		+7 -0



		M-20890

		2020-007798CUA

		48 Stockton Street

		Hoagland

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20891

		2020-007798OFA

		48 Stockton Street

		Hoagland

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20892

		2019-023090CUA

		1428-1434 Irving Street

		Young

		Approved with Conditions as amended to include no use of rear yard open space for/by patients.

		+7 -0



		DRA-745

		2020-001578DRP-02

		17 Reed Street

		Winslow

		No DR, Approved as Modified

		+7 -0



		M-20893

		2020-008507CUA

		2119 Castro Street

		Balba

		After being pulled off of Consent; Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0







   April 1, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2020-003223CUA

		249 Texas Street

		Westhoff

		Continued to April 15, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2013.1535CUA-02

		450-474 O'Farrell Street and 532 Jones Street

		Grob

		Continued to April 15, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2013.0614ENX-02

		600 South Van Ness

		Christensen

		Continued to April 22, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2016-000302DRP

		460 Vallejo Street

		Winslow

		Continued Indefinitely

		+7 -0



		M-20881

		2020-006303CUA

		2201 Powell Street

		Weissglass

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Diamond recused)



		M-20882

		2020-011265CUA

		1550 Wallace Avenue

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20883

		2018-013692CUA

		2285 Jerrold Avenue

		Feeney

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for March 18, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		M-20884

		2021-000342CUA

		403 28th Street

		Hoagland

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -2 (Imperial, Moore against)



		M-20885

		2020-007565CUA

		1336 Chestnut Street

		May

		Approved with Conditions as amended such that the roof deck railing be pulled in three-feet and the privacy planters placed outbound of the railing.

		+7 -0



		M-20886

		2017-011827CUA

		26 Hamilton Street

		Durandet

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20887

		2019-017356CUA

		1861 Union Street

		Feeney

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		DRA-744

		2019-015785DRP

		2375 Funston Avenue

		Winslow

		Took DR, Approved with Staff modifications and conditioned no roof deck and transom windows on the north side.

		+7 -0







   March 25, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2020-002333DRP

		2814 Clay Street

		Winslow

		Continued to April 22, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2020-006303CUA

		2201 Powell Street

		Weissglass

		Continued to April 1, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2019-020740CUA

		468 Turk Street

		Asbagh

		Continued to April 15, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2019-006578SHD

		2455 Harrison Street

		Westhoff

		Continued to June 3, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for March 11, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		M-20877

		2021-001410CRV

		42 Otis Street

		Jardines

		Approved

		+7 -0



		M-20878

		2018-001088CUA

		4211 26th Street

		Pantoja

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20879

		2020-007383CUA

		666 Hamilton Street

		Weissglass

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20880

		2020-006747CUA

		3109 Fillmore Street

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -1 (Fung against)



		DRA-742

		2020-010532DRP

		1801 Mission Street

		Sucre

		Took DR and Approved; adding conditions directing the Sponsor to conduct community outreach related to:

1. Multi-lingual menus;

2. Local hire employment opportunites (acknowledging previous employees will have first-right-of-refusal); and

3. Cultural art and other interior amenities.

		+6 -0 (Koppel absent)



		DRA-743

		2020-001414DRP

		308 Duncan Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and denied the BPA.

		+5 -1 (Tanner against; Koppel absent)







   March 18, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

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

		4712 3rd Street

		Feeney

		Continued to April 22, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2015-009955ENV

		1525 Pine Street

		Li

		Continued to May 6, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2015-009955CUA

		1525 Pine Street

		Updegrave

		Continued to May 6, 2021

		+7 -0



		M-20876

		2012.0506CUA-02

		950 Gough Street

		Gunther

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for March 4, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		2021-000342CUA

		403 28th Street

		Hoagland

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to April 1, 2021 with direction to add a second unit.

		+7 -0



		DRA-741

		2019-017673DRP

		46 Racine Lane

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with the condition that the roof deck be pulled in five feet from all sides.

		+7 -0



		

		2018-001088CUA

		4211 26th Street

		Pantoja

		Continued to March 25, 2021

		+7 -0







   March 11, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2013.1535CUA-02

		450-474 O'Farrell Street and 532 Jones Street

		Boudreaux

		Continued to April 1, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2019-014461CUA

		1324-1326 Powell Street

		Updegrave

		Continued Indefinitely 

		+7 -0



		M-20870

		2020-005471CUA

		3741 Buchanan Street

		Botn

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		DRA-738

		2019-000969DRP-02

		4822 19th Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with modifications

		+7 -0



		

		2019-000969VAR

		4822 19th Street

		Pantoja

		ZA closed the PH and indicated an intent to Grant

		



		

		

		Draft Minutes for February 25, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		R-20871

		2021-001805CRV

		Amendments to the TDM Program Standards

		Perry

		Adopted 

		+7 -0



		M-20872

		2018-016721CUA

		0 Guttenberg Street

		Pantoja

		Approved with Conditions as amended to include a memo with detailed plans related to landscaping, increased permeability and lighting be submitted to the CPC within two weeks.

		+7 -0



		

		2018-016721VAR

		0 Guttenberg Street

		Pantoja

		ZA closed the PH and indicated an intent to Grant.

		



		M-20873

		2020-008651CUA

		801 38th Avenue

		Gunther

		Approved with Conditions as proposed, with no requirement for a second dwelling unit.

		+4 -3 (Chan, Imperial, Moore against)



		M-20874

		2020-005251CUA

		1271 46th Avenue

		Pantoja

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		R-20875

		2017-013728CRV

		1021 Valencia Street

		Christensen

		Adopted as amended to include the finding related to open space as read into the record by Staff.

		+7 -0



		DRA-739

		2017-013728DRP-02

		1021 Valencia Street

		Christensen

		Took DR and Approved with modifications and a condition that the roof-deck be increased to 750 sq ft and appropriate window materials as read into the record by Staff.

		+7 -0



		DRA-740

		2020-002743DRP-02

		1555 Oak Street

		Winslow

		No DR, adding a finding to recommend SFMTA extend the red zone for improved visibility.

		+7 -0







   March 4, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2020-003042AHB

		4712 3rd Street

		Feeney

		Continued to March 18, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2020-006525DRP

		1990 Lombard Street

		Winslow

		Continued to April 22, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2013.0846DRP

		140-142 Jasper Place

		Winslow

		Continued to April 29, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2013.0511DNX

		1125 Market Street

		Alexander

		Continued Indefinitely

		+7 -0



		

		2013.0511CUA

		1125 Market Street

		Alexander

		Continued Indefinitely

		+7 -0



		M-20866

		2020-010157CUA

		1100 Van Ness Avenue

		Agnihotri

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for February 18, 2021 – Closed Session

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for February 18, 2021 – Regular

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		2009.3461CWP

		Area Plan Implementation Update and Inter-Department Plan Implementation Committee (IPIC) Report

		Snyder

		Reviewed and Commented

		+7 -0



		R-20867

		2021-000317CRV

		TMASF Connects

		Kran

		Adopted a Resolution Authorizing brokerage services

		+7 -0



		M-20868

		2019-012820AHB

		4742 Mission Street

		Hoagland

		Approved with Conditions as amended to include a design presentation to the CPC related to open space, roof deck, railings and perimeter wall treatment.

		+7 -0



		

		2020-003223CUA

		249 Texas Street

		Westhoff

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to April 1, 2021

		+7 -0



		M-20869

		2017-015988CUA

		501 Crescent Street

		Durandet

		Approved with Conditions as amended by Staff

		+7 -0





 

  February 25, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2013.0614ENX-02

		600 South Van Ness

		Christensen

		Continued to April 1, 2021

		+6 -0 (Tanner absent)



		

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

		Kirby

		Continued to March 25, 2021

		+6 -0 (Tanner absent)



		

		2007.0604X

		1145 Mission Street

		Hoagland

		Continued Indefinitely

		+6 -0 (Tanner absent)



		

		2018-006863DRP

		1263-1265 Clay Street

		Winslow

		WITHDRAWN

		



		M-20859

		2020-008305CUA

		2853 Mission Street

		Wu

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Tanner absent)



		M-20860

		2018-012222CUA

		1385 Carroll Avenue

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Tanner absent)



		R-20861

		2020-006803PCA

		Code Corrections 2020

		Sanchez

		Approved

		+5 -1 (Imperial against; Tanner absent)



		R-20862

		2021-000541PCA

		CEQA Appeals [BF 201284]

		Flores

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+6 -0 (Tanner absent)



		M-20863

		2016-008515CUA

		1049 Market Street

		Hoagland

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20864

		2018-016808SHD

		321 Florida Street

		Christensen

		Adopted Findings

		+6 -1 (Moore against)



		M-20865

		2018-016808ENX

		321 Florida Street

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions as amended to include:

1. Incorporating changes provided by the Sponsor;

2. Pursue additional roof-top open space;

3. Explore two-bdrm units on the ground floor; and

4. Return to the CPC for final design review; 

Adding a Finding, recognizing the desire for outdoor open space, encouraging the Sponsor to pursue providing private usable outdoor open space.

		+7 -0





 

   February 18, 2021 Closed Session Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Conference with Legal Counsel

		Ionin

		Adopted a Motion to assert Attorney-Client privilege

		+7 -0



		

		

		Closed Session discussion

		Ionin

		Announced no action and Adopted a Motion to not disclose.

		+7 -0





 

   February 18, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2013.0846DRP

		140-142 Jasper Place

		Winslow

		Continued to March 4, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2018-016808SHD

		321 Florida Street

		Christensen

		Continued to February 25, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2018-016808ENX

		321 Florida Street

		Christensen

		Continued to February 25, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2019-012567DRP

		36 Delano Avenue

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		

		

		Draft Minutes for January 28, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for February 4, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		R-20854

		2020-011581PCA

		Chinatown Mixed-Used Districts [BF 201326]

		Flores

		Approved

		+7 -0



		M-20855

		2019-020938CUA

		1 Montgomery Street

		Vimr

		Approved with Conditions as Amended by Staff; and the Commission to include a provision for a commercial/retail use under the Public Access condition.

		+6 -1 (Moore against)



		

		2021-001452PCA

		Expanded Compliance Control and Consumer Protections Where History of Significant Violations (BF 210015)

		Starr

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20856

		2018-011430CUA

		1776 Green Street

		May

		Approved with Conditinos as amended to include a min. of 15 bicycle parking spaces, of which 10 may be vertical.

		+7 -0



		

		2018-011430VAR

		1776 Green Street

		May

		ZA closed the PH and indicated an intent to Grant.

		



		M-20857

		2020-008388CUA

		235 Clement Street

		Agnihotri

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20858

		2018-014795ENX

		1560 Folsom Street

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions; adding a Finding, recognizing the desire for outdoor open space, encouraging the Sponsor to pursue providing private usable outdoor open space.

		+7 -0



		

		2017-013728CRV

		1021 Valencia Street

		Christensen

		Continued to March 11, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2017-013728DRP-02

		1021 Valencia Street

		Winslow

		Continued to March 11, 2021

		+7 -0



		DRA-737

		2019-021383DRP-02

		1615-1617 Mason Street

		Winslow

		No DR

		+7 -0





 

   February 4, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2020-003223CUA

		249 Texas Street

		Westhoff

		Continued to March 4, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2019-021010CUA

		717 California Street

		Foster

		Withdrawn

		



		

		2013.1535CUA-02

		450-474 O'Farrell Street and 532 Jones Street

		Boudreaux

		Continued to March 11, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2018-014795ENX

		1560 Folsom Street

		Christensen

		Continued to February 18, 2021

		+7 -0



		M-20850

		2020-007346CUA

		2284-2286 Union Street

		Wilborn

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for January 21, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		R-20851

		2020-010430CRV

		FY 2021-2023 Proposed Department Budget

		Landis

		

Approved

		+7 -0



		

		2017-015181CUA

		412 Broadway

		Perry

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		DRA-735

		2020-001229DRP

		73 Fountain Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with Modifications

		+7 -0



		M-20852

		2020-001286CUA

		576 27th Avenue

		Dito

		Approved with Conditions as amended by Staff

		+7 -0



		M-20853

		2019-020049CUA

		1131 Polk Street

		Guy

		Approved with Conditions as amended, omitting references to “locally owned businesses.”

		+7 -0



		DRA-736

		2018-011022DRP

		2651-2653 Octavia Street

		Winslow

		No DR

		+5 -2 (Imperial, Moore Against)





 

   January 28, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2020-009054PCA

		Temporary Use of HotelS and Motels for Permanent Supportive Housing [BF 201218]

		Flores

		Continued Indefinitely

		+7 -0



		

		2020-010373DRP

		330 Rutledge Street

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



		

		

		Draft Minutes for January 14, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		M-20841

		2016-013312DVA

		542-550 Howard Street (“Transbay Parcel F”) Mixed-Use Project

		Foster

		Approved

		+7 -0



		R-20842

		2016-013312PCAMAP

		542-550 Howard Street (“Transbay Parcel F”) Mixed-Use Project

		Foster

		Approved

		+7 -0



		M-20843

		2016-013312DNX-02

		542-550 Howard Street (“Transbay Parcel F”) Mixed-Use Project

		Foster

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20844

		2016-013312CUA-02

		542-550 Howard Street (“Transbay Parcel F”) Mixed-Use Project

		Foster

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20845

		2016-013312OFA-02

		542-550 Howard Street (“Transbay Parcel F”) Mixed-Use Project

		Foster

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20846

		2015-009163CUA

		77 Geary Street

		Guy

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -1 (Imperial Against)



		M-20847

		2020-006234CUA

		653-656 Fell Street

		Wilborn

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20848

		2020-007075CUA

		2166 Market Street

		Campbell

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20849

		2019-015984CUA

		590 2nd Avenue

		Lindsay

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		DRA-734

		2018-017283DRP

		476 Lombard Street

		Winslow

		No DR 

		+4 -3 (Tanner, Imperial, Moore Against)





 

   January 21, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2020-002743DRP

		1555 Oak Street

		Winslow

		Continued to March 11, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2020-010342DRP

		3543 Pierce Street

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		

		2019-021369DRP

		468 Jersey Street

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		

		2013.1535CUA-02

		450-474 O'Farrell Street and 532 Jones Street

		Boudreaux

		Continued to February 4, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2019-022661CUA

		628 Shotwell Street

		Feeney

		Continued to March 18, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2018-014795ENX

		1560 Folsom Street

		Christensen

		Continued to February 4, 2021

		+7 -0



		DRA-733

		2014.0243DRP-02

		3927-3929 19th Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved as Modified

		+7 -0



		M-20835

		2020-010132CUA

		150 7th Street

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes For January 7, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		

		Election Of Officers

		Ionin

		Koppel – President;

Moore – Vice

		+7 -0



		

		2020-010430CRV

		FY 2021-2023 Proposed Department Budget and Work Program

		Landis

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		R-20836

		2020-006803PCA

		Code Corrections 2020

		Sanchez

		Initiated and Scheduled a hearing on or after February 11, 2021.

		+7 -0



		M-20837

		2016-008743CUA

		446-448 Ralston Avenue

		Hicks

		Approved with Conditions as Amended by Staff

		+7 -0



		

		2016-008743VAR

		446-448 Ralston Avenue

		Hicks

		ZA Closed the PH and took the matter under advisement

		



		M-20838

		2018-015786CUA

		2750 Geary Boulevard

		Dito

		Approved with Conditions as Amended to include a community liaison thru construction and operation of the facility.

		+7 -0



		M-20839

		2019-018013CUA

		2027 20th Avenue

		Pantoja

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20840

		2020-006575CUA

		560 Valencia Street

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions as Amended to include a one-year report-back update hearing with specific attention to the CBA agreement.

		+7 -0







  January 14, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-012567DRP

		36 Delano Avenue

		Winslow

		Continued to January 28, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2019-020049CUA

		1131 Polk Street

		Guy

		Continued to February 4, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2017-013728CRV

		1021 Valencia Street

		Christensen

		Continued to February 18, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2017-013728DRP

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



		M-20829

		2020-009361CUA

		801 Phelps Street

		Liang

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		2020-008417CWP

		Housing Recovery

		Nelson

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20830

		2017-004557ENV

		550 O’Farrell Street

		Mckellar

		Certified

		+7 -0



		M-20831

		2017-004557ENV

		550 O’Farrell Street

		Updegrave

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		M-20832

		2017-004557CUA

		550 O’Farrell Street

		Updegrave

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		2017-004557VAR

		550 O’Farrell Street

		Updegrave

		ZA Closed the PH and Granted the requested Variances

		



		M-20833

		2018-015815AHB

		1055 Texas Street

		Liang

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20834

		2019-006959CUA

		656 Andover Street

		Durandet

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		DRA-732

		2017-011977DRP-02

		3145-3147 Jackson Street

		Winslow

		No DR 

		+6 -1 (Moore Against)







   January 7, 2021 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2018-017283DRP

		476 Lombard Street

		Winslow

		Continued to January 14, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2017-011977DRP-02

		3145-3147 Jackson Street

		Winslow

		Continued to January 14, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2013.1535CUA-02

		450-474 O'Farrell Street and 532 Jones Street

		Boudreaux

		Continued to January 21, 2021

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



		M-20826

		2020-005945CUA

		2265 McKinnon Avenue

		Feeney

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for December 10, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for December 17, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		2020-002347CWP

		UCSF Parnassus MOU

		Switzky

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20827

		2020-007461CUA

		1057 Howard Street

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20828

		2020-007488CUA

		1095 Columbus Avenue

		Feeney

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0
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From: May, Christopher (CPC)
To: Moore, Kathrin (CPC); Chan, Deland (CPC); Imperial, Theresa (CPC)
Cc: CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY
Subject: 478-484 Haight Street
Date: Friday, October 29, 2021 2:32:20 PM
Attachments: M-20976.pdf

Good afternoon, Commissioners.

You have likely received your packets for next week's hearing, and I wanted to advise you of a small revision to the
packet for the project at 478-484 Haight Street, which is returning after having been approved on September 2,
2021 to amend its conditions of approval with regards to its Inclusionary Affordable Housing Program requirements.

While not related to the Inclusionary conditions, the packet you received today included a version of the final
motion (M-20976) as an attachment that did not contain the condition of approval that was added by the
Commission requiring the Project Sponsor to submit to the Planning Department revised floor plans indicating that
each unit would have a full kitchen (the original plans were a bit unclear as to whether the kitchens would have full-
sized stoves). I've attached an updated version with this condition, which can be found on page 20. This condition is
not proposed to be amended at next week's hearing. 

Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any further questions.

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

mailto:Christopher.May@sfgov.org
mailto:kathrin.moore@sfgov.org
mailto:deland.chan@sfgov.org
mailto:theresa.imperial@sfgov.org
mailto:CPC.COMMISSIONSECRETARY@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/
https://sfplanning.org/staff-directory
https://sfplanning.org/node/1978
https://sfplanning.org/covid-19



 


 


Planning Commission Motion No. 20976 
HEARING DATE: SEPTEMBER 2, 2021 


 


Record No.: 2016-013012CUA 
Project Address: 478-484 HAIGHT STREET 
Zoning: Lower Haight Street NCD (Neighborhood Commercial) Zoning District 
 40-X Height and Bulk District
Block/Lot: 0849/019 
Project Sponsor: Jeremy Schaub, Schaub Ly Architects 
 1360 9th Ave 
 San Francisco, CA 94122 
Property Owner: Haight Tower, LLC 
 Burlingame, CA 94010 
Staff Contact: Christopher May – (628) 652-7359 
 Christopher.may@sfgov.org  
 
 
ADOPTING FINDINGS RELATING TO A CONDITIONAL USE AUTHORIZATION PURSUANT TO PLANNING CODE 
SECTIONS 121.2, 303 AND 317 TO PERMIT THE DEMOLITION OF AN EXISTING TWO-STORY BUILDING CONTAINING 
ONE DWELLING UNIT ABOVE GROUND FLOOR RETAIL SPACE AND THE CONSTRUCTION OF A NEW 4-STORY 
BUILDING CONTAINING 9 PRINCIPALLY-PERMITTED DWELLING UNITS AND 9 ACCESSORY DWELLING UNITS ABOVE 
TWO FLOORS OF CHILD CARE FACILITY (COMMUNITY INSTITUTIONAL) USES TOTALING APPROXIMATELY 9,942 
SQUARE FEET, LOCATED AT 478-484 HAIGHT STREET, LOT 019 IN ASSESSOR'S BLOCK 0849, WITHIN THE LOWER 
HAIGHT STREET NCD (NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL) ZONING DISTRICT AND A 40-X HEIGHT AND BULK DISTRICT, 
AND ADOPTING FINDINGS UNDER THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT. 


 
PREAMBLE 
On October 3, 2017, Jeremy Schaub of Schaub Ly Architects (hereinafter "Project Sponsor") filed Application No. 
2016-013012CUA (hereinafter “Application”) with the Planning Department (hereinafter “Department”) for a 
Conditional Use Authorization to permit the demolition of an existing two-story building containing one dwelling 
unit above ground floor retail space and the construction of a new 5-story building containing 12 dwelling units 
above ground floor of Retail uses totaling approximately 1,183 square feet at 478-484 Haight Street, Block 0849 
Lot 019 (hereinafter “Project Site”). The project was subsequently revised to propose a new 4-story building 
containing 9 principally-permitted dwelling units and 9 accessory dwelling units above two floors of Child Care 
Facility (Community Institutional) uses totaling approximately 9,942 square feet (hereinafter “Project”). 
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On June 17, 2021, the Project was determined to be exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act 
(“CEQA”) as a Class 32 Categorical Exemption under CEQA as described in the determination contained in the 
Planning Department files for this Project; 
 
On September 2, 2021, the Commission conducted a duly noticed public hearing at a regularly scheduled meeting 
on Conditional Use Authorization Application No. 2016-013012CUA. 
 
The Planning Department Commission Secretary is the Custodian of Records; the File for Record No. 2016-
013012CUA is located at 49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, California. 
 
The Commission has heard and considered the testimony presented to it at the public hearing and has further 
considered written materials and oral testimony presented on behalf of the applicant, Department staff, and other 
interested parties. 
 
MOVED, that the Commission hereby authorizes the Conditional Use Authorization as requested in Application 
No. 2016-013012CUA, subject to the conditions contained in “EXHIBIT A” of this motion, based on the following 
findings: 


 
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


2. Project Description. The Project includes the demolition of an existing two-story building containing one 
dwelling unit above ground floor retail space and the construction of a new 4-story building containing 9 
principally-permitted dwelling units and 9 accessory dwelling units above a Child Care Facility 
(Community Institutional Use) uses totaling approximately 9,942 square feet on the ground and second 
floors, 36 Class 1 bicycle parking spaces and two Class 2 bicycle parking spaces. The Project includes a 
dwelling unit mix consisting of 8 two-bedroom units and 10 one-bedroom units. 2,394 square feet of 
common open space is proposed on a roof deck, and 1,703 square feet of outdoor play space for the Child 
Care use is proposed in the rear yard on the second floor. No off-street vehicular parking is proposed, and 
the Project would also include the removal of one 12-foot curb cut. 


3. Site Description and Present Use. The Project is located on a flat lot measuring approximately 7,125 
square feet with approximately 75 feet of frontage along Haight Street and a depth of approximately 95 
feet. The Project Site is occupied by one two-story building, constructed circa 1903, with retail uses on the 
ground floor and one dwelling unit above. The existing building has off-street parking in the rear yard 
accessed via a 12-foot curb cut on Haight Street.  


4. Surrounding Properties and Neighborhood. The Project Site is located within the Lower Haight Street 
NCD (Neighborhood Commercial) Zoning District which is characterized primarily by two- and three-story 
buildings containing residential dwellings above ground floor commercial uses. Immediately to the west 
of the subject property is a 4-story multi-unit residential building on the corner of Haight Street and 
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Fillmore Street. Immediately adjacent to the subject property and to the east is a three-story building 
containing residential uses above a restaurant use (d.b.a. Nickie’s). Directly across the street and to the 
south of the subject property are one-, two- and three-story buildings containing a mix of commercial and 
residential uses. 


5. Public Outreach and Comments. The Department has received three emails in response to the proposed 
project, including one from the Lower Haight Merchants and Neighbors Association (LoHaMNA) which is 
in support of the project. One email expressed concerns regarding the lack of parking proposed in the 
project, and another, from the owner of the adjacent restaurant and bar (dba Nickie’s) inquired about 
potential soundproofing measures to ensure that future residents of the proposed building are not 
affected by any potential sounds from the restaurant and bar.  


6. Planning Code Compliance. The Commission finds that the Project is consistent with the relevant 
provisions of the Planning Code in the following manner: 


A. Use and Density. Planning Code Section 743 permits residential uses at a density of one dwelling unit 
per 800 square feet of lot area and principally permits Child Care Facilities on all floors.  


The subject property is approximately 7,125 square feet; therefore a maximum of nine (9) dwelling units 
are permitted. The Project will maximize the permitted density with 9 principally dwelling units and also 
proposes nine (9) additional Accessory Dwelling Units (ADUs). The ADUs are permitted as an exception 
to the dwelling unit density limits pursuant to Planning Code Section 207(c)(4) in new construction 
projects. The Project also proposes the ground and second floors to be occupied by a Child Care Facility 
use. 


 
B. Non-Residential Use Size Limits. Planning Code Section 743 permits non-residential uses up to 3,999 


square feet. Non-residential uses of 4,000 square feet or greater may be permitted as Conditional 
Uses. 


The Project proposes a Child Care Facility on the first two floors which is principally permitted in the 
Lower Haight Street NCD, however the total proposed floor area of that use would occupy approximately 
9,942 square feet; therefore, Conditional Use Authorization is required. The required findings can be 
found in Subsection 8 below. 


C. Basic Floor Area Ratio.  Planning Code Section 124 allows a Floor Area Ratio (FAR) of up to 2.5 to 1 
within the Lower Haight Street NCD. The Project Site has an area of approximately 7,125 square feet; 
therefore, the allowable FAR would permit a building of up to 17,813 square feet of Gross Floor Area. 


Pursuant to Planning Code Section 124(b), FAR limits do not apply to residential uses. The Child Care 
Facility portion of the Project has an FAR of approximately 1.4 to 1, which is within the limit allowed by 
Code. 


D. Rear Yard.  Planning Code Section 134 requires that the project provide a rear yard equal to 25 percent 
of the total lot depth at the second story, and at each succeeding story of the building, and at the first 
story if it contains a dwelling unit. The subject property has a lot depth of 95 feet; therefore, a rear 
yard of 24 feet 9 inches is required at the second floor and above.  
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The Project proposes a rear yard of 24 feet 9 inches at the second floor and above, which is the minimum 
depth required by Planning Code Section 134. 


E. Usable Open Space.  Planning Code Section 135 requires that the project provide a minimum of 133 
square feet of common open space per dwelling unit. Any space credited as common usable open 
space shall be at least 15 feet in every horizontal dimension and shall have a minimum area of 300 
square feet. The Project proposes a total of 18 dwelling units; therefore, a total of 2,394 square feet of 
common usable open space is required.  
 
The Project proposes approximately 2,394 square feet of common usable open space on a rooftop deck, 
which is the minimum required by Planning Code Section 135. While not required by the Planning Code, 
the second-floor terrace within the rear yard is proposed for use as an outdoor play area for the Child 
Care Facility. 


 
F. Dwelling Unit Exposure.  Planning Code Section 140 states that in each dwelling unit, the windows of 


at least one room of 120-square-foot minimum dimensions shall face directly onto a public street, 
public alley at least 20 feet in width, side yard at least 25 feet in width, a Code-complying rear yard, or 
an open area which is unobstructed and is no less than 25 feet in every horizontal dimension for the 
floor at which the dwelling unit in question is located and the floor immediately above it, with an 
increase of five feet in every horizontal dimension at each subsequent floor.   
 


Each of the 18 dwelling units have qualifying dwelling unit exposure by facing directly onto either Haight 
Street or the year yard on the upper two floors.   


G. Street Frontage in Neighborhood Commercial Districts. Section 145.1 of the Planning Code requires 
that, with the exception of space allowed for parking and loading access, building egress, and access 
to mechanical systems, space for active uses shall be provided within the first 25 feet of building depth 
on the ground floor and 15 feet on floors above from any facade facing a street at least 30 feet in width. 
Building systems including mechanical, electrical, and plumbing features may be exempted from this 
requirement by the Zoning Administrator only in instances where those features are provided in such 
a fashion as to not negatively impact the quality of the ground floor space. Building lobbies are 
considered active uses, so long as they do not exceed 40 feet or 25 percent of building frontage, 
whichever is larger. The floors of street-fronting interior spaces housing non-residential active uses 
and lobbies shall be as close as possible to the level of the adjacent sidewalk at the principal entrance 
to these spaces. Frontages with active uses must be fenestrated with transparent windows and 
doorways for no less than 60 percent of the street frontage at the ground level and allow visibility to 
the inside of the building. The use of dark or mirrored glass shall not count towards the required 
transparent area. No more than one-third of the width or 20 feet, whichever is less, of any given street 
frontage shall be devoted to parking ingress or egress.  Ground floor non-residential uses in all NC 
districts within a 40-X Height and Bulk District shall have a minimum floor-to-floor height of 10 feet. 
 
The subject property has approximately 75 feet of frontage on Haight Street with approximately 53 feet 
devoted to the Child Care Facility, which occupies the entire 95-foot depth of the ground floor. 
Approximately 63% of the front façade is treated with transparent fenestration and all non-residential 
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portions of the ground floor will have a floor-to-floor height of at least 10 feet. The remaining portion of 
the frontage is occupied by the residential lobby, emergency egress and mechanical room access, which 
are exempted from the requirements of Planning Code Section 145.1.  
 


H. Off-Street Parking and Loading.  Section 151 of the Planning Code permits a maximum of 1.5 off-street 
parking spaces per dwelling unit and a maximum of 1.5 parking spaces for each 25 children to be 
accommodated at any one time, where the number of such children exceeds 24, for Child Care 
Facilities in a Neighborhood Commercial Zoning District. Planning Code Section 152 does not require 
any off-street loading spaces for non-residential uses with a gross floor area less than 10,000 square 
feet.  
 
The project does not require or propose any off-street parking or loading spaces for the residential and 
non-residential uses. The project therefore complies with these requirements. 


 
I. Bicycle Parking. Planning Code Section 155.2 requires the provision of at least one (1) Class 1 bicycle 


parking space per dwelling unit for residential uses and one (1) Class 1 bicycle parking space per 20 
children for Child Care Facilities. The Planning Code also requires the provision of at least one (1) 
Class 2 bicycle parking space for every 20 dwelling units for residential uses and one (1) Class 2 bicycle 
parking space for every 20 children for Child Care Facilities. The project is required to provide a 
minimum of thirty-two (32) Class 1 bicycle spaces and fifteen (15) Class 2 bicycle spaces. 


The project will provide a total of thirty-six (36) Class 1 bicycle parking spaces in a secure, weather-
protected bicycle storage area on the ground floor, and two (2) Class 2 bicycle parking spaces will be 
provided. Due to the limited space on the sidewalk, the project is deficient by thirteen (13) Class 2 bicycle 
spaces. Therefore, the project sponsor will be required to pay an in-lieu fee. 


 
J. Transportation Demand Management (TDM) Plan. Pursuant to Planning Code Section 169 and the 


TDM Program Standards, the Project shall finalize a TDM Plan prior Planning Department approval of 
the first Building Permit or Site Permit. As currently proposed, the Project must achieve a target of 10 
points.  


As currently proposed, the Project will exceed the target with 14 points through the following TDM 
measures: 


• Parking Supply (Option K) 
• Bicycle Parking (Option B) 
• On-Site Affordable Housing (Option B) 


 
K. Dwelling Unit Mix. Pursuant to Planning Code Section 743, there is no dwelling unit mix requirement 


within the Lower Haight Street NCD. 
 
The project proposes 8 two-bedroom units and 10 one-bedroom units.  
 


L. Building Height. Per Planning Code Section 260, the maximum height limit for the subject property 
is 40 feet.  
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The Project proposes a building height of 40 feet and is therefore compliant with this requirement.  
 


M. Entertainment Commission Outreach. Planning Code Section 314 requires that the Planning 
Department and Planning Commission consider the compatibility of uses when approving residential 
uses adjacent to or near existing permitted Places of Entertainment and shall take all reasonably 
available means through the City's design review and approval processes to ensure that the design of 
such new residential development project takes into account the needs and interests of both the 
Places of Entertainment and the future residents of the new development. 
 
The subject property is located within 300 feet of Underground SF, which is considered an active Place of 
Entertainment. As such, the Entertainment Commission’s standard conditions of approval have been 
included in Exhibit A. In addition to these standard recommendations, the Planning Commission finds 
that additional soundproofing on the east wall of the proposed new building would be necessary to 
provide an increased sound buffer between the adjacent restaurant and bar (dba Nickie’s) and the 
proposed new residential uses. The Commission also finds that a written discloser is necessary, 
advising future residential owners/tenants that the building is adjacent to a Place of Entertainment 
and that elevated levels of noise or odor may be expected at certain times, and that said tenants 
acknowledge this in their written purchase/lease agreements.   
 


N. Residential Demolition. Pursuant to Planning Code Section 317, Conditional Use Authorization is 
required for applications proposing to demolish a residential unit in a Neighborhood Commercial 
Zoning District. This Code Section establishes criteria that Planning Commission shall consider in the 
review of applications for Residential Demolition. 


The project proposes the demolition of an existing single-family dwelling and therefore requires 
Conditional Use Authorization. The additional criteria specified under Section 317 have been 
incorporated as findings in Subsection 9 below. 


 
O. Transportation Sustainability Fee. Planning Code Section 411A is applicable to new development 


that results in new construction of a Non-Residential use in excess of 800 gross square feet. 


 The Project proposes 9,942 square feet of non-residential uses and will pay the appropriate 
Transportation Sustainability Fee prior to issuance of a building permit. 


P. Residential Child-Care Impact Fee. Planning Code Section 414A is applicable to new development 
that results in at least one net new residential unit. 


 The Project includes approximately 10,728 gross square feet of new residential use associated with the 
new construction of 18 dwelling units. This square footage shall be subject to the Residential Child-Care 
Impact Fee, as outlined in Planning Code Section 414A. 


Q. Inclusionary Affordable Housing Program. Planning Code Section 415 sets forth the requirements 
and procedures for the Inclusionary Affordable Housing Program. Under Planning Code Section 
415.3, these requirements apply to projects that consist of 10 or more units. Pursuant to Planning 
Code Section 415.5 and 415.6, the Inclusionary Affordable Housing Program requirement for the On-
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site Affordable Housing Alternative is to provide 12% of the proposed dwelling units as affordable.  


The Project Sponsor has demonstrated that it is eligible for the On-Site Affordable Housing Alternative 
under Planning Code Section 415.5 and 415.6, and has submitted an ”Affidavit of Compliance with the 
Inclusionary Affordable Housing Program: Planning Code Section 415”’ to satisfy the requirements of 
the Inclusionary Affordable Housing Program by providing the affordable housing on-site instead of 
through payment of the Affordable Housing Fee. In order for the Project to be eligible for the On-Site 
Affordable Housing Alternative, the Project must submit an ”Affidavit of Compliance with the 
Inclusionary Affordable Housing Program: Planning Code Section 415” to the Planning Department 
stating that any affordable units designated as on-site units shall be rental units and will remain as 
rental units for the life of the project. The Project Sponsor submitted such Affidavit on May 25, 2021. The 
applicable percentage is dependent on the total number of units in the project, the zoning of the 
property, and the date of the accepted Project Application. A Project Application was accepted on 
October 4, 2017. Pursuant to Planning Code Section 415.3 and 415.6, the on-site requirement is 12%. 
Two (2) units (1 two-bedroom, and 1 one-bedroom) of the 18 total units provided will be affordable units. 
If the Project becomes ineligible to meet its Inclusionary Affordable Housing Program obligation 
through the On-site Affordable Housing Alternative, it must pay the Affordable Housing Fee with interest, 
if applicable. 


 
7. Conditional Use Findings. Planning Code Section 303 establishes criteria for the Planning Commission to 


consider when reviewing applications for Conditional Use authorization. On balance, the project complies 
with said criteria in that: 
 
A. The proposed new uses and building, at the size and intensity contemplated and at the proposed 


location, will provide a development that is necessary or desirable, and compatible with, the 
neighborhood or the community.  


The existing building is the only building containing a single dwelling unit on the subject block, and is 
also the only two-story building. The majority of the neighborhood is occupied by buildings with three 
or four stories, with multiple units per building. The proposed project would bring the lot to closer 
conformity with the prevailing height and density, while adding 24 bedrooms and 6,969 square feet of 
residential floor area.  


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


The project site is a typical rectangular shape, 75 feet wide and 95 feet deep. The massing of the 
building will be fully Code-compliant, with a 25% rear yard provided from the second floor and 
above. The proposed on-site Child Care Facility will provide a much-needed neighborhood amenity.  
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(2) The accessibility and traffic patterns for persons and vehicles, the type and volume of such traffic, 
and the adequacy of proposed off-street parking and loading; 


The subject property has a small driveway and parking area behind the existing building. The 
existing 12-foot curb cut will be removed and replaced with a white loading zone across the 
frontage. A traffic mitigation plan will be developed for drop-off and pick-up of students so as to 
minimize disruptions along Haight Street.  


 
(3) The safeguards afforded to prevent noxious or offensive emissions such as noise, glare, dust and 


odor; 


The proposed residential uses and Child Care Facility are not anticipated to present any significant 
noxious or offensive emissions such as noise, glare, dust and odor. The proposed project would 
mechanically ventilate all exhaust to the roof, away from the adjacent neighbors.  


 
(4) Treatment given, as appropriate, to such aspects as landscaping, screening, open spaces, parking 


and loading areas, service areas, lighting and signs; 


The existing rear yard storage building and surface parking area will be replaced with a open-air 
outdoor play space for the Child Care Facility occupying the ground and second floors. The common 
open space on the rooftop will be landscaped and screened for privacy. No extraordinary signage 
or lighting features are proposed.  


 
C. That the use as proposed will comply with the applicable provisions of the Planning Code and will 


not adversely affect the General Plan. 


The Project complies with all relevant requirements and standards of the Planning Code and is 
consistent with objectives and policies of the General Plan as detailed in Subsection 10 below. 


D. That use or feature as proposed will provide development that is in conformity with the stated 
purpose of the applicable Use District. 


The proposed project is consistent with the stated purposed of NC Districts in that the proposed 
neighborhood-serving Community Institutional Use (Child Care Facility) is located at the ground and 
second floors, which will provide a compatible convenience service for the immediately surrounding 
neighborhoods during daytime hours.  


8. Non-Residential Use Size in NC District Findings. In addition to the criteria of Section 303(c) of this Code, 
the Commission shall consider the extent to which the following criteria are met: 


A. The intensity of activity in the district is not such that allowing the larger use will be likely to foreclose 
the location of other needed neighborhood-serving uses in the area. 


The existing vacant commercial space already exceeds the 4,000 square-foot threshold. The proposed 
Child Care Facility will not prevent other neighborhood-serving uses from operating. 
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B. The proposed use will serve the neighborhood, in whole or in significant part, and the nature of the 
use requires a larger size in order to function. 


The proposed Child Care Facility will primarily draw from the immediate neighborhood, with some 
students coming from farther away. The larger use size allows for efficiencies in staffing, scheduling, 
and programming for the students’ needs. 
  


C. The building in which the use is to be located is designed in discrete elements which respect the scale 
of development in the district. 


The existing building occupies the entire 75-foot commercial frontage along Haight Street. The 
proposed street frontage is articulated with discrete design elements and has been reviewed and is 
supported by the Planning Department’s Design Review staff. 


9. Dwelling Unit Removal Findings. Section 317 of the Planning Code establishes criteria for the Planning 
Commission to consider when reviewing applications to demolish or convert residential buildings. In 
addition to the criteria of Section 303(c) of this Code, the Commission shall consider the extent to which 
the following criteria are met: 


A. Whether the property is free of a history of serious, continuing code violations; 


 A review of the Department of Building Inspection and the Planning Department databases showed 
some code violations for the subject property including the subject property being abandoned, 
foundation issues and sewage backup. 


B. Whether the housing has been maintained in a decent, safe, and sanitary condition; 


The existing building appears to have been vacant since 2017 with several Code violations relating to 
the subject property being abandoned, foundation issues and sewage backup. 


C. Whether the property is an "historical resource" under CEQA; 


Although the existing building is more than 50 years old, a review of supplemental information resulted 
in a determination that the property is not an historical resource. 


D. Whether the removal of the resource will have a substantial adverse impact under CEQA; 


The structure is not an historical resource and its removal will not have a substantial adverse impact. 


E. Whether the Project converts rental housing to other forms of tenure or occupancy; 


The existing single-family dwelling is vacant. The Project Sponsor has indicated that all eighteen (18) 
new dwelling units will be rental units.  


F. Whether the Project removes rental units subject to the Rent Stabilization and Arbitration Ordinance; 


The Planning Department cannot definitively determine whether or not the single-family home is subject 
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to the Rent Stabilization and Arbitration Ordinance; this being under the purview of the Rent Board. The 
Project Sponsor, however, has indicated that the existing single-family dwelling is vacant, and that there 
will be a net increase of seventeen (17) rental units as a result of the Project. 


G. Whether the Project conserves existing housing to preserve cultural and economic neighborhood 
diversity; 


Although the Project proposes the demolition of an existing dwelling unit, the new construction project 
will result in seventeen (17) additional dwelling units containing more habitable square feet and 
bedrooms. 


H. Whether the Project conserves neighborhood character to preserve neighborhood cultural and 
economic diversity; 


The Project conserves neighborhood character with appropriate scale, design, and materials, and 
improves cultural and economic diversity by constructing multi-unit residential uses above 
neighborhood-serving uses that are consistent with the provisions of the Lower Haight Street 
Neighborhood Commercial Zoning District. 


I. Whether the Project protects the relative affordability of existing housing; 


The project removes an older dwelling unit, which is generally considered more affordable than more 
recently constructed units. However, the project also results in seventeen (17) additional units, greater 
habitable floor area, and more bedrooms that contribute positively to the City's housing stock. 


J. Whether the Project increases the number of permanently affordable units as governed by Section 
415; 


The Project proposes to designate two (2) of the units (representing 12% of the total) as permanently 
affordable, consistent with its obligations under Planning Code Section 415. 


K. Whether the Project locates in-fill housing on appropriate sites in established neighborhoods; 


The Project represents the redevelopment of an underutilized parcel within an established 
neighborhood at a dwelling unit density consistent with the requirements of the Lower Haight Street 
Neighborhood Commercial Zoning District. 


L. Whether the project increases the number of family-sized units on-site; 


The Project proposes enhanced opportunities for family-sized housing on-site by constructing eight (8) 
two-bedroom units whereas the property currently contains only one 5-bedroom dwelling unit. 


M. Whether the Project creates new supportive housing; 


The Project does not create supportive housing.   
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N. Whether the Project is of superb architectural and urban design, meeting all relevant design 
guidelines, to enhance existing neighborhood character; 


On balance, the overall scale, design, and materials of the proposed buildings are consistent with the 
block face and compliment the neighborhood character with traditional building materials and a 
contemporary design. 


O. Whether the Project increases the number of on-site dwelling units; 


The Project would add seventeen (17) additional dwelling units to the site. 


P. Whether the Project increases the number of on-site bedrooms. 


The existing dwelling contains five bedrooms. The proposal includes eight (8) two-bedroom units and 
ten (10) one-bedroom units, representing a net increase of twenty-one (21) bedrooms. 


Q. Whether or not the replacement project would maximize density on the subject lot; and, 


The project will maximize the allowed density on-site by providing nine (9) principally permitted dwelling 
units and nine (9) accessory dwelling units. 


R. If replacing a building not subject to the Residential Rent Stabilization and Arbitration Ordinance, 
whether the new project replaces all the existing units with new dwelling units of a similar size and 
with the same number of bedrooms. 


 The Planning Department cannot definitively determine whether the single-family home is subject to 
the Rent Stabilization and Arbitration Ordinance; this being under the purview of the Rent Board. The 
new project will replace the existing five-bedroom dwelling unit with eighteen (18) dwelling units 
containing more bedrooms. 


10. General Plan Compliance. The Project is, on balance, consistent with the following Objectives and Policies 
of the General Plan: 


HOUSING ELEMENT 


Objectives and Policies 
 
OBJECTIVE 1 
IDENTIFY AND MAKE AVAILABLE FOR DEVELOPMENT ADEQUATE SITES TO MEET THE CITYʼS 
HOUSING NEEDS, ESPECIALLY PERMANENTLY AFFORDABLE HOUSING. 
 
Policy 1.1 
Plan for the full range of housing needs in the City and County of San Francisco, especially affordable 
housing. 
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Policy 1.2 
Focus housing growth and infrastructure necessary to support growth according to community plans. 
Complete planning underway in key opportunity areas such as Treasure Island, Candlestick Park and 
Hunter s̓ Point Shipyard. 
 
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
 
Policy 4.5 
Ensure that new permanently affordable housing is located in all of the City s̓ neighborhoods, and 
encourage integrated neighborhoods, with a diversity of unit types provided at a range of income levels. 
 
OBJECTIVE 11 
SUPPORT AND RESPECT THE DIVERSE AND DISTINCT CHARACTER OF SAN FRANCISCOʼS 
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
 
Policy 11.4 
Continue to utilize zoning districts which conform to a generalized residential land use and density plan 
and the General Plan. 
 
Policy 11.6 
Foster a sense of community through architectural design, using features that promote community 
interaction. 
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Policy 11.8 
Consider a neighborhoods̓ character when integrating new uses, and minimize disruption caused by 
expansion of institutions into residential areas. 
 
OBJECTIVE 12 
BALANCE HOUSING GROWTH WITH ADEQUATE INFRASTRUCTURE THAT SERVES THE CITYʼS 
GROWING POPULATION. 
 
Policy 12.2 
Consider the proximity of quality-of-life elements such as open space, child care, and neighborhood 
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
 
The Project’s proposed massing is generally consistent with the character and design of the neighborhood. 
The proposed design is contemporary yet compatible, referencing character-defining features of the 
surrounding buildings on the subject block and is compatible with the district’s size, scale, composition, and 
details. The massing is compatible in terms of lot occupancy, solid-to-void ratio, and vertical articulation, 
including bays and windows designed to relate to the surrounding properties.  
 
The Project would provide additional density in a transit rich area of the City. The Project is located within ¼ 
mile of the 6 – Haight/Parnassus, 7 – Haight/Noriega, 7X – Noriega Express, 21 – Hayes and 22 – Fillmore 
MUNI bus routes and the J and N MUNI Metro lines. The Project also provides bicycle parking for residents 
and their guests. 
 
The Lower Haight Street NCD is a linear, mixed-use corridor that consists of residential units above ground-
story commercial uses. The Project conforms to the purposes of the Lower Haight Street NCD in that it would 
add multi-unit residential uses above active uses at grade along Haight Street. Housing development is 
specifically encouraged on upper stories within the District and the Project succeeds in providing both a 
dense number of dwelling units overall while also having almost half of the units in the Project containing at 
least two bedrooms. Overall, the project’s design is complementary to the context of the district, while 
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providing a neighborhood-serving Child Care Facility and new housing to the neighborhood. For all these 
reasons, the Project is on balance, consistent with the Objectives and Policies of the General Plan. 


 
11. Planning Code Section 101.1(b) establishes eight priority-planning policies and requires review of permits 


for consistency with said policies. On balance, the project complies with said policies in that:  


A. That existing neighborhood-serving retail uses be preserved and enhanced and future 
opportunities for resident employment in and ownership of such businesses be enhanced.  
 
The project site does not possess any neighborhood-serving retail uses, as the ground floor 
commercial space is current vacant. The Project proposes a Child Care Facility to serve 
neighborhood residents and eighteen (18) new dwelling units, which will enhance the nearby retail 
uses by providing new residents, who may patron and/or own these businesses. 


B. That existing housing and neighborhood character be conserved and protected in order to 
preserve the cultural and economic diversity of our neighborhoods. 


The subject property is occupied by one vacant dwelling unit. The Project would provide eighteen 
(18) new dwelling units, thus resulting in an overall increase in the neighborhood housing stock. In 
addition, the Project would add a Child Care Facility (a Community Institutional use), which will 
provide an active use along the Haight Street frontage. The Project is expressive in design and 
relates well to the scale and form of the surrounding neighborhood. For these reasons, the Project 
would protect and preserve the cultural and economic diversity of the neighborhood. 


C. That the City's supply of affordable housing be preserved and enhanced, 


The Project does not currently possess any existing affordable housing. The Project will comply with 
the City’s Inclusionary Housing Program by providing two (2) below-market rate dwelling units for 
rent. Therefore, the Project will increase the stock of affordable housing units in the City. 


D. That commuter traffic not impede MUNI transit service or overburden our streets or 
neighborhood parking.  


The subject property is well served by nearby public transportation options. The Project is located 
within ¼ mile of the 6 – Haight/Parnassus, 7 – Haight/Noriega, 7X – Noriega Express, 21 – Hayes and 
22 – Fillmore MUNI bus routes and the J and N MUNI Metro lines. The Project also provides bicycle 
parking for residents and their guests.  


E. That a diverse economic base be maintained by protecting our industrial and service sectors from 
displacement due to commercial office development, and that future opportunities for resident 
employment and ownership in these sectors be enhanced. 


The Project does not include commercial office development. The Project proposes a new 
Community Institutional use, thus assisting in diversifying the neighborhood character.  
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


Currently, the Project Site does not contain any City Landmarks or historic buildings. 


H. That our parks and open space and their access to sunlight and vistas be protected from 
development.  
 
Since the Project is not more than 40-ft tall, additional study of the shadow impacts was not required 
per Planning Code Section 295.  


12. First Source Hiring. The Project is subject to the requirements of the First Source Hiring Program as they 
apply to permits for residential development (Administrative Code Section 83.11), and the Project 
Sponsor shall comply with the requirements of this Program as to all construction work and on‐going 
employment required for the Project. Prior to the issuance of any building permit to construct or a First 
Addendum to the Site Permit, the Project Sponsor shall have a First Source Hiring Construction and 
Employment Program approved by the First Source Hiring Administrator, and evidenced in writing. In the 
event that both the Director of Planning and the First Source Hiring Administrator agree, the approval of 
the Employment Program may be delayed as needed. 


The Project Sponsor submitted a First Source Hiring Affidavit and prior to issuance of a building permit will 
execute a First Source Hiring Memorandum of Understanding and a First Source Hiring Agreement with the 
City’s First Source Hiring Administration.  


13. The Project is consistent with and would promote the general and specific purposes of the Code provided 
under Section 101.1(b) in that, as designed, the Project would contribute to the character and stability of 
the neighborhood and would constitute a beneficial development.  


14. The Commission hereby finds that approval of the Conditional Use Authorization would promote the 
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
submitted by all parties, the Commission hereby APPROVES Conditional Use Authorization Application No. 2016-
013012CUA subject to the following conditions attached hereto as “EXHIBIT A” in general conformance with plans 
on file, dated January 21, 2021, and stamped “EXHIBIT B”, which is incorporated herein by reference as though 
fully set forth. 
 
APPEAL AND EFFECTIVE DATE OF MOTION: Any aggrieved person may appeal this Conditional Use Authorization 
to the Board of Supervisors within thirty (30) days after the date of this Motion. The effective date of this Motion 
shall be the date of this Motion if not appealed (after the 30-day period has expired) OR the date of the decision 
of the Board of Supervisors if appealed to the Board of Supervisors. For further information, please contact the 
Board of Supervisors at (415) 554-5184, City Hall, Room 244, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, San Francisco, CA 
94102. 
 
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
 
I hereby certify that the Planning Commission ADOPTED the foregoing Motion on September 2, 2021. 
 
 
Jonas P. Ionin 
Commission Secretary 
 
 
AYES:   Tanner, Diamond, Fung, Imperial, Koppel 


NAYS:  Moore 


ABSENT: Chan  


ADOPTED: September 2, 2021 
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EXHIBIT A 
Authorization 


This authorization is for a conditional use to allow the demolition of an existing two-story building containing one 
dwelling unit above ground floor retail space and the construction of a new 4-story building containing 9 
principally-permitted dwelling units and 9 accessory dwelling units above two floors of Child Care Facility 
(Community Institutional) uses totaling approximately 9,942 square feet at 478-484 Haight Street, Block 0849 Lot 
019 pursuant to Planning Code Section(s) 121.2, 303 and 317 within the Lower Haight Street Neighborhood 
Commercial Zoning District and a 40-X Height and Bulk District; in general conformance with plans, dated January 
21, 2021, and stamped “EXHIBIT B” included in the docket for Record No. 2016-013012CUA and subject to 
conditions of approval reviewed and approved by the Commission on September 2, 2021 under Motion No. 20976. 
This authorization and the conditions contained herein run with the property and not with a particular Project 
Sponsor, business, or operator. 
 
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
approval contained herein and reviewed and approved by the Planning Commission on September 2, 2021 under 
Motion No. 20976. 
 
Printing of Conditions of Approval on Plans 


The conditions of approval under the 'Exhibit A' of this Planning Commission Motion No. 20976 shall be 
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
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6. Additional Project Authorization. The Project Sponsor must obtain administrative approval from the Zoning 
Administrator authorizing a waiver from density controls of the Lower Haight Street NCD Zoning District to 
allow for nine (9) Accessory Dwelling Units under Sections 207(c)(4) and 307(l).  


For information about compliance, contact Code Enforcement, Planning Department at 628.652.7463, 
www.sfplanning.org 


Entertainment Commission – Noise Attenuation Conditions 
7. Chapter 116 Residential Projects. The Project Sponsor shall comply with the “Recommended Noise 


Attenuation Conditions for Chapter 116 Residential Projects,” which were recommended by the 
Entertainment Commission on August 25, 2015. These conditions state:  


A. Community Outreach. Project Sponsor shall include in its community outreach process any 
businesses located within 300 feet of the proposed project that operate between the hours of 9PM‐
5AM. Notice shall be made in person, written or electronic form. 


B. Sound Study. Project sponsor shall conduct an acoustical sound study, which shall include sound 
readings taken when performances are taking place at the proximate Places of Entertainment, as well 
as when patrons arrive and leave these locations at closing time. Readings should be taken at 
locations that most accurately capture sound from the Place of Entertainment to best of their ability. 
Any recommendation(s) in the sound study regarding window glaze ratings and soundproofing 
materials including but not limited to walls, doors, roofing, etc. shall be given highest consideration 
by the project sponsor when designing and building the project. 


C. Design Considerations. 


i. During design phase, project sponsor shall consider the entrance and egress location and 
paths of travel at the Place(s) of Entertainment in designing the location of (a) any 
entrance/egress for the residential building and (b) any parking garage in the building. 


ii. In designing doors, windows, and other openings for the residential building, project sponsor 
should consider the POE’s operations and noise during all hours of the day and night. 


D. Construction Impacts. Project sponsor shall communicate with adjacent or nearby Place(s) of 
Entertainment as to the construction schedule, daytime and nighttime, and consider how this 
schedule and any storage of construction materials may impact the POE operations. 


E. Communication. Project Sponsor shall make a cell phone number available to Place(s) of 
Entertainment management during all phases of development through construction. In addition, a 
line of communication should be created to ongoing building management throughout the 
occupation phase and beyond. 


In addition to these standard recommendations, the Planning Commission adopts these site-specific 
conditions into the development approval for this project:   
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F. Design Considerations. Project sponsor shall design for and use soundproofing materials along the 
east property wall abutting Nickie’s restaurant and bar.  
 


G. Communication. Project Sponsor shall include the written discloser below advising future tenants 
that the building is adjacent to a Place of Entertainment and that elevated levels of noise or odor 
may be expected at certain times, and that said tenants acknowledge this in their written lease 
agreements. 


 
"DISCLOSURE OF NEIGHBORING PLACE OF ENTERTAINMENT. You are purchasing or leasing property 
that is adjacent or nearby to Nickie’s, at 466 Haight Street. This venue is an existing Place of 
Entertainment, as defined in Police Code Section 1060, which includes establishments such as live 
music venues, nightclubs and theaters. This establishment may subject you to inconveniences or 
discomfort arising from or associated with its operations, which may include, but are not limited to, 
nighttime noise, odors, and litter. One or more of the inconveniences or discomforts may occur even 
if the Place of Entertainment is operating in conformance with existing laws and regulations and 
locally accepted customs and standards for operations of such use. If you live near a Place of 
Entertainment, you should be prepared to accept such inconveniences or discomforts as a normal 
and necessary aspect of living in a neighborhood with mixed commercial and residential uses." 


 
Design – Compliance at Plan Stage 
8. Final Materials. The Project Sponsor shall continue to work with Planning Department on the building design. 


Final materials, glazing, color, texture, landscaping, and detailing shall be subject to Department staff review 
and approval. The architectural addenda shall be reviewed and approved by the Planning Department prior 
to issuance.  


For information about compliance, contact the Case Planner, Planning Department at 628.652.7359, 
www.sfplanning.org 


9. Kitchens. The Project Sponsor shall submit revised floor plans showing full kitchens, which shall be subject to 
Department staff review and approval. The architectural addenda shall be reviewed and approved by the 
Planning Department prior to issuance.  


For information about compliance, contact the Case Planner, Planning Department at 628.652.7359, 
www.sfplanning.org 


10. Garbage, Composting and Recycling Storage. Space for the collection and storage of garbage, composting, 
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



http://www.sf-planning.org/info

http://www.sfplanning.org/

http://www.sfplanning.org/

http://www.sfplanning.org/





Motion No. 20976  RECORD NO. 2016-013012CUA 
September 2, 2021  478-484 Haight Street 
 


  21  


11. Rooftop Mechanical Equipment. Pursuant to Planning Code 141, the Project Sponsor shall submit a roof plan 
to the Planning Department prior to Planning approval of the building permit application. Rooftop 
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


12. Transformer Vault Location. The location of individual project PG&E Transformer Vault installations has 
significant effects to San Francisco streetscapes when improperly located. However, they may not have any 
impact if they are installed in preferred locations. Therefore, the Planning Department in consultation with 
Public Works shall require the following location(s) for transformer vault(s) for this project: sidewalk or private 
building frontage. The above requirement shall adhere to the Memorandum of Understanding regarding 
Electrical Transformer Locations for Private Development Projects between Public Works and the Planning 
Department dated January 2, 2019.  


For information about compliance, contact Bureau of Street Use and Mapping, Department of Public Works at 
628.271.2000, www.sfpublicworks.org 


Parking and Traffic 
13. Transportation Demand Management (TDM) Program. Pursuant to Planning Code Section 169, the Project 


shall finalize a TDM Plan prior to the issuance of the first Building Permit or Site Permit to construct the project 
and/or commence the approved uses. The Property Owner, and all successors, shall ensure ongoing 
compliance with the TDM Program for the life of the Project, which may include providing a TDM Coordinator, 
providing access to City staff for site inspections, submitting appropriate documentation, paying application 
fees associated with required monitoring and reporting, and other actions. 


Prior to the issuance of the first Building Permit or Site Permit, the Zoning Administrator shall approve and 
order the recordation of a Notice in the Official Records of the Recorder of the City and County of San Francisco 
for the subject property to document compliance with the TDM Program. This Notice shall provide the 
finalized TDM Plan for the Project, including the relevant details associated with each TDM measure included 
in the Plan, as well as associated monitoring, reporting, and compliance requirements. 


For information about compliance, contact the TDM Performance Manager at tdm@sfgov.org or 628.652.7340, 
www.sfplanning.org 


14. Bicycle Parking. Pursuant to Planning Code Sections 155, 155.1, and 155.2, the Project shall provide no fewer 
than 47 bicycle parking spaces (18 Class 1 spaces and 1 Class 2 space for the residential portion of the Project 
and 14 Class 1 spaces and 14 Class 2 spaces for the commercial portion of the Project). SFMTA has final 
authority on the type, placement and number of Class 2 bicycle racks within the public ROW. Prior to issuance 
of first architectural addenda, the project sponsor shall contact the SFMTA Bike Parking Program at 
bikeparking@sfmta.com to coordinate the installation of on-street bicycle racks and ensure that the 
proposed bicycle racks meet the SFMTA’s bicycle parking guidelines. Depending on local site conditions and 
anticipated demand, SFMTA may request the project sponsor pay an in-lieu fee for Class II bike racks required 
by the Planning Code. 
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For information about compliance, contact Code Enforcement, Planning Department at 628.652.7463, 
www.sfplanning.org 


15. Managing Traffic During Construction. The Project Sponsor and construction contractor(s) shall coordinate 
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


16. Anti-Discriminatory Housing. The Project shall adhere to the requirements of the Anti-Discriminatory Housing 
policy, pursuant to Administrative Code Section 1.61. 


For information about compliance, contact the Case Planner, Planning Department at 628.652.7359, 
www.sfplanning.org 


17. First Source Hiring. The Project shall adhere to the requirements of the First Source Hiring Construction and 
End-Use Employment Program approved by the First Source Hiring Administrator, pursuant to Section 
83.4(m) of the Administrative Code. The Project Sponsor shall comply with the requirements of this Program 
regarding construction work and on-going employment required for the Project. 


For information about compliance, contact the First Source Hiring Manager at 415.581.2335, 
www.onestopSF.org 


18. Transportation Sustainability Fee. The Project is subject to the Transportation Sustainability Fee (TSF), as 
applicable, pursuant to Planning Code Section 411A. 


For information about compliance, contact the Case Planner, Planning Department at 628.652.7359, 
www.sfplanning.org 


19. Residential Child Care Impact Fee. The Project is subject to the Residential Child Care Fee, as applicable, 
pursuant to Planning Code Section 414A. 


For information about compliance, contact the Case Planner, Planning Department at 628.652.7359, 
www.sfplanning.org 


Affordable Housing 
20. Number of Required Units. Pursuant to Planning Code Section 415.6, the Project is required to provide 12% 


of the proposed dwelling units as affordable to qualifying households. The Project contains 18 units; 
therefore, 2 affordable units are required. The Project will fulfill this requirement by providing the 2 affordable 
units on-site. If the number of market-rate units change, the number of required affordable units shall be 
modified accordingly with written approval from the Planning Department in consultation with the Mayor's 
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Office of Housing and Community Development (“MOHCD”). 


For information about compliance, contact the Case Planner, Planning Department at (628) 652-7359, 
www.sfplanning.org or the Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community Development at (415) 701-5500, 
www.sfmohcd.org.. 
 


21. Unit Mix. The Project contains 8 one-bedroom and 10 two-bedroom units; therefore, the required affordable 
unit mix is 1 one-bedroom and 1 two-bedroom units. If the market-rate unit mix changes, the affordable unit 
mix will be modified accordingly with written approval from the Planning Department in consultation with 
MOHCD.  
 
For information about compliance, contact the Case Planner, Planning Department at (628) 652-7359, 
www.sfplanning.org or the Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community Development at (415) 701-5500, 
www.sfmohcd.org. 
 


22. Income Levels for Affordable Units. Pursuant to Planning Code Section 415.3, the Project is required to provide 
12% of the proposed dwelling units as affordable to  qualifying households at a rental rate of 55% of Area 
Median Income. If the number of market-rate units change, the number of required affordable units shall be 
modified accordingly with written approval from Planning Department staff in consultation with the Mayor's 
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


 
23. Minimum Unit Sizes. Pursuant to Planning Code Section 415.6(f)(2), the affordable units shall meet the 


minimum unit sizes standards established by the California Tax Credit Allocation Committee (TCAC) as of May 
16, 2017. One-bedroom units must be at least 450 square feet, two-bedroom units must be at least 700 square 
feet, and three-bedroom units must be at least 900 square feet. Studio units must be at least 300 square feet 
pursuant to Planning Code Section 415.6(f)(2). The total residential floor area devoted to the affordable units 
shall not be less than the applicable percentage applied to the total residential floor area of the principal 
project, provided that a 10% variation in floor area is permitted. 
 


 For information about compliance, contact the Case Planner, Planning Department at (628) 652-7359, 
www.sfplanning.org or the Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community Development at (415) 701-5500, 
www.sfmohcd.org. 


 
24. Minimum Unit Sizes. Affordable units are not required to be the same size as the market rate units and may 


be 90% of the average size of the specified unit type. For buildings over 120 feet in height, as measured under 
the requirements set forth in the Planning Code, the average size of the unit type may be calculated for the 
lower 2/3 of the building as measured by the number of floors.  
 
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

http://www.sfmohcd.org/

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
 


  24  


25. Conversion of Rental Units. In the event one or more of the Rental Units are converted to Ownership units, the 
project sponsor shall either (A) reimburse the City the proportional amount of the inclusionary affordable 
housing fee, which would be equivalent to the then-current inclusionary affordable fee requirement for 
Owned Units, or (B) provide additional on-site or off-site affordable units equivalent to the difference between 
the on-site rate for rental units approved at the time of entitlement and the then-current inclusionary 
requirements for Owned Units, The additional units shall be apportioned among the required number of units 
at various income levels in compliance with the requirements in effect at the time of conversion. 


For information about compliance, contact the Case Planner, Planning Department at (628) 652-7359, 
www.sfplanning.org or the Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community Development at (415) 701-5500, 
www.sfmohcd.org. 


26. Notice of Special Restrictions. The affordable units shall be designated on a reduced set of plans recorded as 
a Notice of Special Restrictions on the property prior to the issuance of the architectural addenda. 
 
For information about compliance, contact the Case Planner, Planning Department at (628) 652-7359, 
www.sfplanning.org or the Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community Development at (415) 701-5500, 
www.sfmohcd.org. 


27. Duration. Under Planning Code Section 415.8, all units constructed pursuant to Section 415.6 must remain 
affordable to qualifying households for the life of the project. 


For information about compliance, contact the Case Planner, Planning Department at (628) 652-7359, 
www.sfplanning.org or the Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community Development at (415) 701-5500, 
www.sfmohcd.org. 


28. Expiration of the Inclusionary Rate. Pursuant to Planning Code Section 415.6(a)(10), if the Project has not 
obtained a site or building permit within 30 months of Planning Commission Approval of this Motion No. 
20976, then it is subject to the Inclusionary Affordable Housing Requirements in effect at the time of site or 
building permit issuance.  
 
For information about compliance, contact the Case Planner, Planning Department at (628) 652-7359, 
www.sfplanning.org or the Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community Development at (415) 701-5500, 
www.sfmohcd.org. 


29. Reduction of On-Site Units after Project Approval. Pursuant to Planning Code Section 415.5(g)(3), any changes 
by the project sponsor which result in the reduction of the number of on-site affordable units shall require 
public notice for hearing and approval from the Planning Commission.  
 
For information about compliance, contact the Case Planner, Planning Department at (628) 652-7359, 
www.sfplanning.org or the Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community Development at (415) 701-5500, 
www.sfmohcd.org. 


30. Other Affordable Housing Conditions. The Project is subject to the requirements of the Inclusionary Affordable 
Housing Program under Section 415 et seq. of the Planning Code and City and County of San Francisco 
Inclusionary Affordable Housing Program Monitoring and Procedures Manual ("Procedures Manual"). The 
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Procedures Manual, as amended from time to time, is incorporated herein by reference, as published and 
adopted by the Planning Commission, and as required by Planning Code Section 415. Terms used in these 
conditions of approval and not otherwise defined shall have the meanings set forth in the Procedures Manual. 
A copy of the Procedures Manual can be obtained at the MOHCD at 1 South Van Ness Avenue or on the 
Planning Department or MOHCD websites, including on the internet at:  


http://sf-planning.org/Modules/ShowDocument.aspx?documentid=4451.  
 
As provided in the Inclusionary Affordable Housing Program, the applicable Procedures Manual is the manual 
in effect at the time the subject units are made available for sale. 
 
For information about compliance, contact the Case Planner, Planning Department at (628) 652-7359, 
www.sfplanning.org or the Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community Development at (415) 701-5500, 
www.sfmohcd.org. 


a. The affordable unit(s) shall be designated on the building plans prior to the issuance of the first 
construction document by the Department of Building Inspection (“DBI”). The affordable unit(s) shall (1) 
be constructed, completed, ready for occupancy and marketed no later than the market rate units, and 
(2) be evenly distributed throughout the building floor plates; and (3) be of comparable overall quality, 
construction and exterior appearance as the market rate units in the principal project. The interior 
features in affordable units should be generally the same as those of the market units in the principal 
project, but need not be the same make, model or type of such item as long they are of good and new 
quality and are consistent with then-current standards for new housing. Other specific standards for on-
site units are outlined in the Procedures Manual. 


b. If the units in the building are offered for rent, the affordable unit(s) shall be rented to low-income 
households, as defined in the Planning Code and Procedures Manual. The initial and subsequent rent 
level of such units shall be calculated according to the Procedures Manual. Limitations on (i) occupancy; 
(ii) lease changes; (iii) subleasing, and; are set forth in the Inclusionary Affordable Housing Program and 
the Procedures Manual. 


c. The Project Sponsor is responsible for following the marketing, reporting, and monitoring requirements 
and procedures as set forth in the Procedures Manual. MOHCD shall be responsible for overseeing and 
monitoring the marketing of affordable units. The Project Sponsor must contact MOHCD at least six 
months prior to the beginning of marketing for any unit in the building. 


d. Required parking spaces shall be made available to initial buyers or renters of affordable units according 
to the Procedures Manual.  


e. Prior to the issuance of the first construction permit by DBI for the Project, the Project Sponsor shall record 
a Notice of Special Restriction on the property that contains these conditions of approval and a reduced 
set of plans that identify the affordable units satisfying the requirements of this approval. The Project 
Sponsor shall promptly provide a copy of the recorded Notice of Special Restriction to the Department 
and to MOHCD or its successor. 


f. If the Project fails to comply with the Inclusionary Affordable Housing Program requirement, the Director 
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of DBI shall deny any and all site or building permits or certificates of occupancy for the development 
project until the Planning Department notifies the Director of compliance. A Project’s failure to comply 
with the requirements of Planning Code Section 415 et seq. shall constitute cause for the City to record a 
lien against the development project and to pursue any and all available remedies at law, including 
penalties and interest, if applicable. 


Monitoring - After Entitlement 
31. Enforcement. Violation of any of the Planning Department conditions of approval contained in this Motion or 


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


32. Revocation due to Violation of Conditions. Should implementation of this Project result in complaints from 
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
33. Sidewalk Maintenance. The Project Sponsor shall maintain the main entrance to the building and all 


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


34. Community Liaison. Prior to issuance of a building permit to construct the project and implement the 
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
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35. Rent Stabilization and Arbitration Ordinance. As required by Planning Code Section 207(c)(4)(G), the property 
owner(s) shall enter into a Regulatory Agreement with the City under Planning Code Section 207 (c)(4)(H) 
subjecting the ADU(s) to the San Francisco Residential Rent Stabilization and Arbitration Ordinance (Chapter 
37 of the Administrative Code) as a condition of approval of the ADU(s). For purposes of this requirement, 
Rental Units shall be as defined in Section 37.2(r) of the Administrative Code. 


For information about compliance, contact Code Enforcement, Planning Department at 628.652.7463, 
www.sfplanning.org 
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THE SITE IS COMPRISED OF A SINGLE 7,125 S.F. PARCEL (BLOCK 0849 / LOT 019). THE SITE IS ZONED "NCD -


LOWER HAIGHT NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL DISTRICT" AND IS LOCATED IN THE LOWER HAIGHT DISTRICT.


IT CONTAINS AN EXISTING 2-STORY SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL OVER COMMERCIAL BUILDING WITH A


HISTORIC SURVEY RATING OF "C" CONSTRUCTED IN 1903. THE PROPOSAL IS TO DEMOLISH THIS STRUCTURE


AND REPLACE IT WITH (9) DWELLING UNITS, (9) ACCESSORY DWELLING UNITS AND A TWO LEVEL CHILDCARE


SPACE. THE PROJECT IS PROPOSED AS NINE PRINCIPALLY PERMITTED DWELLING UNITS, AND NINE
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BLOCK 0849, LOT 019
SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94117


GROUND FLOOR PLANNEW MIXED-USE BUILDING
EIGHTEEN DWELLINGS o/ CHILDCARE
478-80 HAIGHT STREET


SCALE:


SCHAUB LY
ARCHITECTS INC.
1360 9TH AVENUE, SUITE 210
SAN FRANCISCO CA 94122
415∙682∙8060
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BLOCK 0849, LOT 019
SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94117


SECOND FLOOR PLANNEW MIXED-USE BUILDING
EIGHTEEN DWELLINGS o/ CHILDCARE
478-80 HAIGHT STREET


SCALE:


SCHAUB LY
ARCHITECTS INC.
1360 9TH AVENUE, SUITE 210
SAN FRANCISCO CA 94122
415∙682∙8060


6
OF 18 SHEETS


SHEET6/8/20 ADU & CHILDCARE JS


6/8/20 UDAT 1 YIP


12/9/20 UDAT 2 YIP


1/21/21 PCL#2 JS
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BLOCK 0849, LOT 019
SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94117


THIRD FLOOR PLANNEW MIXED-USE BUILDING
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


FOURTH FLOOR PLANNEW MIXED-USE BUILDING
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


ROOF PLANNEW MIXED-USE BUILDING
EIGHTEEN DWELLINGS o/ CHILDCARE
478-80 HAIGHT STREET


SCALE:


SCHAUB LY
ARCHITECTS INC.
1360 9TH AVENUE, SUITE 210
SAN FRANCISCO CA 94122
415∙682∙8060


9
OF 18 SHEETS


SHEET6/8/20 ADU & CHILDCARE JS


6/8/20 UDAT 1 YIP


12/9/20 UDAT 2 YIP


1/21/21 PCL#2 JS
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BLOCK 0849, LOT 019
SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94117


FRONT (SOUTH) ELEVATIONNEW MIXED-USE BUILDING
EIGHTEEN DWELLINGS o/ CHILDCARE
478-80 HAIGHT STREET


SCALE:


SCHAUB LY
ARCHITECTS INC.
1360 9TH AVENUE, SUITE 210
SAN FRANCISCO CA 94122
415∙682∙8060
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From: Westhoff, Alex (CPC)
To: Moore, Kathrin (CPC); Chan, Deland (CPC); Imperial, Theresa (CPC)
Cc: CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY
Subject: Updated Packet - 660 3rd St.
Date: Friday, October 29, 2021 11:25:14 AM
Attachments: 2019-011944OFAVAR.pdf

Commissioners Moore, Chan and Imperial,
 
With this email I am sending an updated packet for an item being heard before the Planning

Commission next week – 660 3rd St OFA and VAR (2019-011944OFA/VAR). A few additions were
made per the Zoning Administrator’s request. The changes are limited to identifying the
establishment of the basement as commercial storage use which will be part of the change of use
permit for this project. There is a new bullet on page 2 of the Executive Summary and updated
description on pages 3-4 of the Motion. Please let me know if you have any questions. Thank you!
 
Regards,
 
Alex Westhoff
 
Alex Westhoff, AICP (he/him)
Senior Planner | Current Planning and Preservation
Southeast Quadrant
San Francisco Planning
49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7314 | www.sfplanning.org
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
 

mailto:alex.westhoff@sfgov.org
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



Executive Summary
Office DEVELOPMENT AUTHORIZATION & VARIANCE


HEARING DATE: November 4, 2021


CONTINUED FROM: August 26, 2021, October 14, 2021


Record No.: 2019-011944OFA/VAR
Project Address: 660 3rd Street
Zoning: Central SoMa Mixed Use-Office (CMUO) Zoning District


65-X Height and Bulk District
Central SoMa Special Use District


Block/Lot: 3787/008
Project Sponsor: Jim Reuben


Reuben, Junius and Rose, LLP
One Bush Street #600
San Francisco, CA 94104


Property Owner: Gorr Partners, LLC
21 Locust Avenue, Suite 1
Mill Valley, CA 94941


Staff Contact: Alex Westhoff – (628) 652-7314
alex.westhoff@sfgov.org


Recommendation: Approval with Conditions


Project Description
The Project requests an Office Development Authorization (Office Allocation), pursuant to Planning Code Sections
321 and 322, to legalize approximately 40,212 square feet of office use within a four-story former industrial
building. The proposed legalization of office use includes 16,307 square feet on the first floor, 21,110 square feet
on second floor, and 2,795 square feet on fourth floor. Previously, the Commission authorized 40,000 square feet
of office use per Planning Commission Motion No. 19235. No off-street automobile parking is included, and the
project includes 24 Class 1 and 5 Class 2 bicycle parking spaces.
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Required Commission Action
Because the proposal would establish between 25,000 and 49,999 gross square feet (gsf) of office use, the
Commission must grant a Small Cap Office Allocation pursuant to Planning Code Sections 321 and 322 to legalize
40,212 gsf of existing office use.


Issues and Other Considerations


 Public Comment & Outreach.


o Outreach: This Project did not require a pre-application meeting.


o Support/Opposition: The Department has received one public inquiry on the Project, though it was
neither in support nor opposition.


 Variance. The Project requires a variance from the Zoning Administrator to address the following Planning
Code requirement, pursuant to Planning Code Section 305:


o Active Use – Pursuant to Planning Code Section 249.78(c)(1)(B), office uses are not considered active
uses on the ground floor in the Central SoMa Special Use District; thus, the Project requires a Variance
from the active use requirements in Planning Code Section 145.1.


 Waiver. The project is subject to the active commercial use provision of Section 145.4, which requires active
commercial uses on ground floor spaces fronting 3rd street between Folsom and Townsend Streets within the
Central SoMa SUD. General office use is not defined as an active commercial use. Subsection (e) of this Section
allows this requirement to be waived or modified administratively by the Zoning Administrator per Planning
Code Section 307.


 Basement. The building includes a 17,311 sf basement which is fully devoted to commercial storage use
which is a principally permitted use in the CMUO Zoning District. The basement is used by the property owners
and not by the building’s tenants and is therefore not considered office space. However, establishing this use
in the basement level will be part of the change of use permit for the project.


 Code Enforcement and Board of Appeals Background. In 2014, a code enforcement case was open
(13347_ENF), and a notice of violation was issued for the site’s unauthorized conversion to office space. To
abate this violation, this Office Allocation is being sought to legalize the approximately 36,699 sf of office use
which exists onsite in addition to the approximately 40,000 sf of previously approved office space. The
following is a more detailed timeline of the site’s history as it relates to office use at the subject property:


o On May 13, 2013, the Property Owner submitted Conditional Use Authorization and Office Allocation
applications to change the use of the property from warehouse/auction space to office use (Case No.
2013.0627BC). The applications note that “the Building was formerly used predominately as auction
space, along with accessory offices and storage space. A retail piano store formerly used a portion of
the ground floor. Approximately 16,765 square feet was used for wholesale space. The former auction
business has closed down, as has the wholesale dealer and the piano store.” The application noted
that “auction space” is “classified in Planning Code Section 890.54(b) as wholesale sales, resale of
goods including accessory storage space.” Section 890.54 is titled “Light Manufacturing, Wholesale
Sales, Storage.”


o On February 19, 2014, the Historic Preservation Commission reviewed the project and adopted
findings supporting the feasibility of preserving the subject property for the proposed change in use
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from warehouse to office use (Resolution No. 0731).


o On July 22, 2014, the Planning Department opened an enforcement case on the subject property for
unauthorized conversion of the building from PDR to office use.


o On September 11, 2014 (after multiple hearings on the item), the Planning Commission approved the
Conditional Use Authorization and Office Allocation for the property (Motions Nos. 19234 and 19235);
however, the Planning Commission limited the office conversion to the third and fourth floors of the
subject building (up to 40,000 gross square feet of office space). At the hearing it was noted that the
Property Owner would have to bring the lower two levels of the building into compliance with the
Planning Code by providing uses that are allowed within the SoMa Service/Light Industrial (SLI)
Zoning District. The Planning Commission’s decisions were not appealed and have become final.


o On October 15, 2014, a Notice of Special Restrictions (NSR) containing project description and
Conditions of Approval outlined in the Conditional Use Authorization and Office Allocation were
recorded on the deed of the subject property by the Property Owner (NSR# J961137).


o On October 16, 2014, the Planning Department issued an Enforcement Notice for the subject property.


o On November 25, 2014, Planning Department Enforcement staff performed a site visit and confirmed
the entire building was occupied by office uses. On the same day, the Property Owner submitted
Building Permit Application No. 201411252480 to document the change of use of the third and fourth
floors from warehouse to office use per Planning Commission Motion Nos. 19234 and 19235.


o On December 15, 2014, Building Permit Application No. 201411252480 was approved by the Planning
Department. The subject permit was subsequently issued on February 24, 2015.


o On April 2, 2015, the Zoning Administrator issued a Notice of Violation and Penalty (NOVP) finding that
the building, with office uses at all levels, was in violation of the Planning Commission’s decision
limiting approval of the office conversion to the third and fourth floors.


o On May 19, 2015, the Zoning Administrator held a public hearing on the NOVP to hear evidence
regarding the legal use of the first and second floors of the subject property.


o On August 28, 2015, the Zoning Administrator issued the NOVP Decision confirming that office use at
the subject building, other than that which was authorized by the Planning Commission for the third
and fourth floors, was a violation of the Planning Code.


o On September 11, 2015, the Property Owner filed Appeal No. 15-125 on the Notice of Violation and
Penalty (NOVP) Decision by the Zoning Administrator for the property at 660 3rd Street.


o On November 12, 2015, a Certificate of Final Completion was issued for Building Permit Application
No. 201411252480 to document the change of use of the third and fourth floors of the building from
warehouse to office.


o On May 18, 2016, the Board of Appeals heard Appeal No. 15-125. At this hearing, the Board noted that
the pending Central SoMa Plan may impact the ability of the Property Owner to legalize the office use
on the subject site and continued the item to December 7, 2016. The item was subsequently
continued several times at the request of the parties to allow time for settlement discussions. As a
result of these discussions, the Property Owner and Planning Department agreed upon specific terms
to bring the property into compliance with the Planning Code and the parties jointly requested that
the Board grant the appeal and modify the NOVP subject to specific findings and conditions that were
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proposed by the parties. On July 18, 2018, the Board granted the appeal based upon these findings
and conditions.


o The findings require the Property Owner to bring the Property into compliance with the Planning
Code by September 1, 2019. Compliance is defined as either: 1) all unauthorized office uses on the
first and second floors have been discontinued or 2) work under a Building Permit (with Planning
Department approval) to legalize the office uses on the first and second floors has been completed.
Further, the Property Owner is required to pay administrative penalties of $150 per day commencing
on the date the Notice of Decision and Order for Appeal No. 15-125 was issued (July 30, 2018) until
the Property is brought into compliance or until September 1, 2019 (whichever occurred first). After
September 1, 2019, the administrative penalties increased to $250 per day until the Property is
brought into compliance.


o The Property has not yet been brought into compliance as defined in the Notice of Decision and
Order. The subject Office Allocation is required to legalize the office use on the Property and would
allow the Property Owner to obtain and complete work under a Building Permit to legalize the office
use. If this occurs, the Property will be in compliance with the Planning Code and penalties will cease
to accrue under the Notice of Decision and Order.


Environmental Review


The Project is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) as a Class 1 categorical exemption.


Basis for Recommendation
The Department finds that the Project is, on balance, consistent with the Central SoMa Plan and the Objectives
and Policies of the General Plan. The existing office space provides employment opportunities for city residents
and helps to retain existing commercial activity, and attract new such activity, which is a goal for the City and the
Central SoMa Area Plan. No off-street automobile parking is included in the Project and both Class 1 and Class 2
bicycle spaces are being provided, thus promoting the City’s transit-first goals. The Project will support the
continued use of a historic building, thus helping to conserve neighborhood character. The Department does not
find the project to be detrimental to persons or adjacent properties in the vicinity.


Attachments:


Draft Motion – Office Development Authorization with Conditions of Approval (Exhibit A)
Exhibit B – Plans and Renderings
Exhibit C – Environmental Determination
Exhibit D – Land Use Data
Exhibit E – Maps and Context Photos
Exhibit F - Project Sponsor Brief
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ADOPTING FINDINGS RELATING TO AN ALLOCATION OF OFFICE SQUARE FOOTAGE UNDER THE 2020-2021
ANNUAL OFFICE DEVELOPMENT LIMITATION PROGRAM PURSUANT TO PLANNING CODE SECTIONS 321 AND 322
TO LEGALIZE APPROXIMATELY 40,212 GROSS SQUARE FEET AT THE FIRST, SECOND, AND FOURTH FLOORS OF AN
EXISITNG BUILDING LOCATED AT 660 3RD STREET, LOT 008 IN ASSESSOR’S BLOCK 3787, WITHIN THE CMUO
(CENTRAL SOMA MIXED-USE OFFICE) ZONING DISTRICT, CENTRAL SOMA SPECIAL USE DISTRICT, 65-X HEIGHT AND
BULK DISTRICT, AND ADOPTING FINDINGS UNDER THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT.
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PREAMBLE
On May 22, 2019, Tara Sullivan of Reuben, Junius and Rose (hereinafter "Project Sponsor") filed Application No.
2019-011944OFA (hereinafter “Application”) with the Planning Department (hereinafter “Department”) for an Office
Allocation to legalize approximately 40,212 gross square feet at the first, second and fourth floors of an existing
building (hereinafter “Project”) at 660 3rd Street, Block 3787 Lot 008 (hereinafter “Project Site”).


The Project is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) as a Class 1 categorical exemption.


On November 4, 2021, the San Francisco Planning Commission (hereinafter “Commission”) conducted a duly
noticed public hearing at a regularly scheduled meeting on Office Development Application No. 2019-011944OFA.


The Planning Department Commission Secretary is the Custodian of Records; the File for Record No. 2019-
011944OFA is located at 49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, California.


The Commission has heard and considered the testimony presented to it at the public hearing and has further
considered written materials and oral testimony presented on behalf of the applicant, Department staff, and other
interested parties.


MOVED, that the Commission hereby authorizes the Office Development Authorization as requested in Application
No. 2019-011944OFA, subject to the conditions contained in “EXHIBIT A” of this motion, based on the following
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


2. Project Description. The Project includes the legalization of approximately 40,212 square feet of office
use within a four-story former industrial building. The proposed legalization of office use includes 16,307
square feet on the first floor, 21,110 square feet on second floor, and 2,795 square feet on fourth floor.
Previously, the Commission authorized approximately 40,000 square feet of office use per Planning
Commission Motion No. 19235. No off-street automobile parking is included, and the project includes 24
Class 1 and 5 Class 2 bicycle parking spaces.


3. Site Description and Present Use. The project site at 660 3rd Street (Block 3787 Lot 008), located within a
four-story former industrial brick building which is a contributor to the Article 10 South End Landmark
District. The subject property is approximately 88,000 square feet with approximately 135 feet of street
frontage along both its primary and rear facades (3rd Street and Rich Street, respectively). The building is
fully devoted to office use, with the exception of the 17,311 square foot basement, which will be a separate
commercial storage use. Per Planning Commission Motion No. 19234, the subject building had 40,000
square feet of office space was previously approved in 2014.


4. Surrounding Properties and Neighborhood. The site is located within the CMUO Zoning District in the
Central SoMa Special Use District (SUD). The South End Landmark District, which the subject property falls
in, consists of 55 contributing buildings including one to multi-story masonry and reinforced concrete
warehouses and light industrial structures. The Landmark District is particularly notable due to its
extraordinary concentration of buildings from almost every period of San Francisco’s maritime history,
with a period of significance of 1867-1935. Contemporary development lies within the District as well,
including compatible buildings with comparable heights, massing, and bulk to the historic structures. As
a mixed-use zoning district, surrounding buildings include residential, retail, office uses and more.  The
Central SoMa SUD which was established as part of the interim controls by the Board of Supervisors per
Ordinance No. 280-18. Other zoning districts in the vicinity of the project include: MUO (Mixed-Use Office),
MB-RA (Mission Bay Redevelopment), M-2 (Heavy Industrial), SPD (SoMa – South Park), and more.


5. Public Outreach and Comments. The Department has received one public inquiry on the Project,
though it was neither in support nor opposition.


6. Planning Code Compliance. The Commission finds that the Project is consistent with the relevant
provisions of the Planning Code in the following manner:


A. Permitted Uses in the CMUO Zoning District. Planning Code Section 848 states that office uses,
as a non-retail sales and service use are permitted in the CMUO Zoning District. Additionally,
Planning Code Section 848 states that commercial storage use is a principally permitted use in
the CMUO Zoning District.


The Project proposes to legalize 40,212 square feet of office, which is a permitted use in the CMUO
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District. Additionally establishing the 17,311 sf of commercial storage use in the basement will 
be part of the change of use permit for the project.


B. Floor Area Ratio. Planning Code Section 124 establishes basic floor area ratios (FAR) for all zoning
districts. However, Planning Code Section 848 states that the CMUO Zoning District has no
maximum FAR limit.


Given there is no maximum FAR in the CMUO Zoning District, this Project complies with Planning
Code Section 848.


C. Usable Open Space. Pursuant to Planning Code Section 135.3, Office uses in the EN Mixed-Use
Districts are required to provide 1 square foot of open space per each 50 square feet of occupied
floor area of new, converted or added square footage.


No open space is provided with this Project. Therefore, the Project will be required to pay the Eastern
Neighborhoods non-residential Open Space pursuant to Planning Code Section 426, in lieu of the
required 734 sf of required open space for the 40,212 gsf of office space being legalized.


D. Active Uses. Per Planning Code Section 145.1(c)(3), with the exception of space allowed for
parking and loading access, building egress, and access to mechanical systems, active uses—i.e.
uses which by their nature do not require non-transparent walls facing a public street—must be
located within the first 25 feet of building depth on the ground floor and 15 feet on floors above
facing a street at least 30 feet in width. Lobbies are considered active, so long as they are not
longer than 40 feet or 25% of the building’s frontage, whichever is larger. Pursuant to Planning
Code Section 249.78(c)(1)(B) office uses are not considered active uses on the ground floor in the
Central SoMa Special Use District.


The ground floor of the Project includes office space and therefore is not compliant with Planning
Code Section 249.78(c)(1). Thus, the Project requires a variance from the Zoning Administrator to
address this Planning Code requirement.


E. Required Ground Floor Commercial Use. Per Planning Code Section 145.4 the project is subject
to active commercial use provisions, which require active commercial uses along 3rd Street
between Folsom and Townsend Streets in the Central SoMa SUD. General office is not defined as
an active commercial use. Subsection (e) of this Section allows this requirement to be waived or
modified administratively by the Zoning Administrator per Planning Code Section 307.


The ground floor of the Project includes office space and therefore is not compliant with Planning
Code Section 145.4. Therefore, a waiver from the Zoning Administrator is required to approve the
ground floor office space fronting 3rd Street.


F. Off-Street Parking. Planning Code Section 151.1 states that off-street parking is not required for
any use in the CMUO District and accessory parking is permitted up to certain limits. Office uses
may provide 1 space per each 3,500 square feet of OFA.


No parking is proposed.
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G. Off-Street Freight Loading. Per Planning Code Section 152.1, in the EN Mixed Use Districts, the
number off required loading spaces for Non-Retail Sales and Service Uses, which include office
use, is 0.1 space per 10,000 square feet of occupied floor area (“OFA”). In the CMUO District,
substitution of two service vehicle spaces for each required off-street freight loading space may
be made, provided that a minimum of 50 percent of the required number of spaces are provided
for freight loading.


Given 40,212 sf of office space is being legalized, this requirement is not triggered.


H. Bicycle Parking. Planning Code Section 155.2 establishes bicycle parking requirements for new
developments, depending on use. For office uses, one Class 1 space is required for every 5,000
occupied square feet, and two Class 2 spaces are required for the first 5,000 gross square feet; a
minimum of two Class 2 spaces, plus one Class 2 space for each additional 50,000 occupied
square feet.


Given the subject property includes 80,212 sf of office space, 16 Class 1 and 3 Class 2 bicycle parking
spaces are required. This Project includes 24 Class 1 and 5 Class 2 bicycle parking spaces, therefore
meeting this requirement.


I. Transportation Management Program. Per Planning Code Section 163, a Transportation
Management Program is intended to ensure that adequate services are undertaken to minimize
the transportation impacts of added office employment and residential development by
facilitating the effective use of transit, encouraging ridesharing, and employing other practical
means to reduce commute travel by single-occupant vehicles.  In the Central SoMa Special Use
District where the occupied sf of new, converted or added floor area for office use equals at least
25,000 sf, the property owner shall be required to provide on-site transportation brokerage
services for the lifetime of the project. Prior to the issuance of a temporary permit of occupancy,
the property owner shall execute an agreement with the Planning Department for the provision
of on-site transportation brokerage services.


The Project is adding over 25,000 sf of office area and must comply with this Section. The Project
Sponsor will execute an agreement with the Planning Department for the provision of on-site
brokerage services prior to the issuance of a temporary certificate of occupancy for each phase of
the Project.


J. Transportation Demand Management (TDM) Plan. Pursuant to Planning Code Section 169 and
the TDM Program Standards, the Project shall finalize a TDM Plan prior to Planning Department
approval of the first Building Permit or Site Permit. Within the Central SoMa SUD, Tier B projects
that filed a Development Application or submitted an Environmental Application deemed
complete after September 4, 2016 shall be subject to 100% of such target.  As currently proposed,
the Project must achieve a target of 13 points for Office.


The Project submitted a completed Environmental Evaluation Application after September 4, 2016.
Therefore, the Project must achieve 100% of the point target established in the TDM Program
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Standards, resulting in a required target of 13 points for office. As currently proposed, the Project will
achieve its required target by providing 13 points for Office through the following TDM measures:


 Bicycle Parking (Option A): 1 point


 Delivery Supportive Amenities: 1 point


 Parking Supply (Option K): 11 points


K. Central SoMa SUD Active Uses. Under Section 249.78(c)(1)(E), active uses are required within the
first 10 feet of the building depth. Office use is not considered an active use in the Central SoMa
SUD.


Pursuant to Planning Code Section 249.78, office use is not considered an active use on the ground
floor in the Central SOMA Special Use District. Thus, the Project does not comply with this
requirement and a variance from the Zoning Administrator is required.


L. Central SoMa SUD, Community Development Controls—Land Dedication / Jobs-Housing
Linkage Fee. Section 249.78(e)(2)(B) – the Central SoMa Special Use District Community
Development Control – Land Dedication – states that the Jobs-Housing Linkage Fee in Section
413 applies to any project resulting in a net addition of at least 25,000 gsf of office and retail uses.
In the Central SoMa SUD, Section 249.78(e)(2)(B) states that non-residential projects in the Special
Use District may opt to fulfill their Jobs-Housing Linkage Fee requirement of Section 413 through
the Land Dedication Alternative contained in Section 413.7.


 The Project will comply with the Job-Housing Linkage Fee requirement.


M. Child Care Facilities. Planning Code Section 414.3 requires that office and hotel development
projects proposing the net addition of 25,000 or more gross sf of office or hotel space are subject
to a child-care facility requirement. Section 414.4 requires that prior to issuance of a building or
site permit for a development project subject to the requirements of Section 414.4, the sponsor
shall elect its choice of the options for providing Child Care Facilities as described in subsections
414.5-414.10.


The Project will meet the Child Care Facility requirements by paying the in-lieu fee as required by
Planning Code Section 414.8.


N. Transportation Sustainability Fee (“TSF”). Per Planning Code Section 411A, TSF applies to the
construction of a new non-residential use in excess of 800 gross sf.


The Project Sponsor will comply with this Section by paying the applicable TSF fee to the City.


7. Office Development Authorization. Planning Code Section 321 establishes standards for San Francisco’s
Office Development Annual Limit. In determining if the proposed Project would promote the public
welfare, convenience and necessity, the Commission considered the seven criteria established by Code
Section 321(b)(3), and finds as follows:


A. Apportionment of office space over the course of the approval period in order to maintain a balance
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between economic growth, on the one hand, and housing, transportation and public services, on the
other.


Currently, there are 445, 403 gross square feet of available “Small Cap” office space for allocation. The
Project will legalize approximately 40,212 square feet of office space. If this Project is approved,
approximately 405,191 square feet of space will remain in the Small Cap.


Twenty-four Class 1 and five Class 2 bicycle parking spaces are included in the plans. The Project site’s
close proximity to Caltrain and MUNI lines will facilitate and encourage the office tenants to use
alternative means of transportation to travel to and from work. This is in line with one of the Central
SoMa Plan’s goals to provide safe and convenient transportation that prioritizes walking, bicycling, and
transit. The Central SoMa Plan Initial Study also found that the rezoning and resulting new development
contemplated by the Central SoMa Plan would not have significant impacts on transportation
infrastructure. The Project will be approved in furtherance of the Central SoMa Area Plan, which
specifically encourages new office development in this part of SoMa to create an economically
diversified and lively jobs center.


B. The suitability of the proposed office development for its location, and any effects of the proposed
office development specific to that location.


Use. Office is a principally permitted in the CMUO Zoning District, as well as the Central SoMa Special
Use District. The Central SoMa Plan expressly encourages new development in the Plan Area, including
the development of office space. The Project’s close proximity to public transit will provide employees
and tenants with ample access to the Project site, making it a suitable location for office development.
By supporting the office-related component of San Francisco’s economy, the Project will help strengthen
local neighborhood businesses and offer new employment opportunities to San Francisco residents. The
Project is legalizing 40,212 square feet of new office use, which can assist with the needs of small-to-
medium sized companies that are essential to the City’s economy.


Transit Accessibility. The Project Site is served by nearby public transportation options, including Muni
bus lines, Muni metro lines, and Caltrain. The number of different public transit options makes the site
easily accessible from all over the Bay Area without a car, while not overburdening one type of public
transit. The Project site is located in close proximity to the: 12, 30, 45, 47, 8, 81X, 82X, 83X, 8AX, 8BX, N and
T MUNI bus lines, as well as the Central Subway line along 4th Street and the 4th & King Caltrain and
MUNI light stations. The Central Subway Project to extend the Muni Metro T Third Line through South of
Market, Union Square, and Chinatown with four new stations is also expected to be completed soon.
The T extension would run along 4th Street, a block away from 660 3rd Street. The Project also provides
sufficient bicycle parking, including both Class 1 and Class 2 spaces, for employees and their guests.


Open Space. The Central SoMa Plan envisions creating new parks and open spaces in an area that
currently lacks it. Given no open space is included in the project, the Eastern Neighborhoods Non-
Residential Open Space Fee will be required pursuant to Planning Code Section 426.


Historic Preservation. The subject property, built in 1902, is a contributor to the Article 10 South End
Landmark District. Using the subject property as an office building will help ensure the building’s long-
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term vitality by providing a sound economic use. The proposal does not propose any exterior alterations
to the structure and thus characteristics which define the property including its brick façade, height,
massing, fenestration, and architectural detailing will not be modified through this proposal.


C. Whether the proposed project includes development of New Affordable Housing Units such that all
of the following criteria are satisfied. (i) The New Affordable Housing units are on-site or located within
a Community of Concern as designated by the Board of Supervisors; (ii) The New Affordable Housing
Units will be developed pursuant to a requirement included in a development agreement authorized
by Government Code Section 65865 or any successor section for the proposed office development;
(iii) The number of New Affordable Housing Units is no less than 100% of the New Affordable Housing
Units required to house the future employees of the proposed project’s office development in
accordance with the City’s Affordable Housing Demand Ratio.


The Project will not include the production of new affordable housing; rather, the Project will contribute
to the Jobs-Housing Linkage Fee.


D. The extent to which the project incorporates Community Improvements that exceed the
requirements of zoning and City ordinances applicable to the project. “Community Improvement(s)”
include construction, financing, land dedication, or land exchanges for the creation of any of the
following facilities: community-serving facilities, including without limitation, childcare facilities, tot
lots, community gardens, parks, indoor and outdoor neighborhood-oriented plazas and open space,
neighborhood recreation centers, dog parks, public safety facilities, affordable space for community
serving retail services and food markets, and affordable space for community arts and cultural
activities.


The legalization of existing office at this site does not include the creation of any specific facilities that
would be considered community improvements. However, the Project will be required to pay the
associated impact fees, such as the Eastern Neighborhoods Non-Residential Open Space Fee which will
fund the development and construction of neighborhood amenities that are called out as priorities in
the Central SoMa Plan.


8. General Plan Compliance. The Project is, on balance, consistent with the following Objectives and
Policies of the General Plan:


COMMERCE AND INDUSTRY ELEMENT


Objectives and Policies


OBJECTIVE 1:
MANAGE ECONOMIC GROWTH AND CHANGE TO ENSURE ENHANCEMENT OF THE TOTAL CITY
LIVING AND WORKING ENVIRONMENT.


Policy 1.1:
Encourage development which provides substantial net benefits and minimizes undesirable
consequences. Discourage development which has substantial undesirable consequences that cannot
be mitigated.
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Policy 1.3:
Locate commercial and industrial activities according to a generalized commercial and industrial land
use plan.


OBJECTIVE 2:
MAINTAIN AND ENHANCE A SOUND AND DIVERSE ECONOMIC BASE AND FISCAL STRUCTURE
FOR THE CITY.


Policy 2.1:
Seek to retain existing commercial and industrial activity and to attract new such activity to the city.


OBJECTIVE 3:
PROVIDE EXPANDED EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITIES FOR CITY RESIDENTS, PARTICULARLY
THE UNEMPLOYED AND ECONOMICALLY DISADVANTAGED.


Policy 3.2:
Promote measures designed to increase the number of San Francisco jobs held by San Francisco
residents.


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
CONSERVATION OF RESOURCES WHICH PROVIDE A SENSE OF NATURE, CONTINUITY WITH THE PAST, AND FREEDOM FROM
OVERCROWDING.


Policy 2.4
Preserve notable landmarks and areas of historic, architectural or aesthetic value, and promote the
preservation of other buildings and features that provide continuity with past development.


Policy 2.7
Recognize and protect outstanding and unique areas that contribute in an extraordinary degree to
San Francisco's visual form and character.


CENTRAL SOMA PLAN
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES


OBJECTIVE 3.2:
SUPPORT THE GROWTH OF OFFICE SPACE
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Policy 3.2.1:
Facilitate the growth of office.


OBJECTIVE 4.4:
ENCOURAGE MODE SHIFT AWAY FROM PRIVATE AUTOMOBILE USAGE


Policy 4.4.2:
Utilize Transportation Demand Management strategies to encourage alternatives to the private
automobile.


The Project will legalize 40,212 sf of office space, thus providing employment opportunities for city residents.
These uses will help retain existing commercial activity and attract new such activity as users of the office
space can potentially patronize local retail establishments. The Project will ensure an economically viable
use of a historic structure, thus helping to preserve the character of the Central SoMa neighborhood and
retain architectural and cultural gem important to San Francisco’s unique history.  Given the building’s close
proximity to ample public transportation, lack of automobile parking, and incorporation of Class 1 and Class
2 bicycle parking, the project helps shift from automobile usage. On balance the project is consistent with
the Objectives and Policies of the General Plan and Central SoMa Area Plan.


9. Planning Code Section 101.1(b) establishes eight priority-planning policies and requires review of
permits for consistency with said policies. On balance, the project complies with said policies in that:


A. That existing neighborhood-serving retail uses be preserved and enhanced and future
opportunities for resident employment in and ownership of such businesses be enhanced.


The office space provides local employment opportunities and can attract new patrons to the
neighborhood who can support existing retail establishments.


B. That existing housing and neighborhood character be conserved and protected in order to
preserve the cultural and economic diversity of our neighborhoods.


Through providing an economically viable use, the Project will help preserve a historic building,
which is a contributor to a local landmark district.  In that way the project helps conserve
neighborhood character.


C. That the City's supply of affordable housing be preserved and enhanced,


No affordable housing exists or would be removed for this Project. The Project does not propose
residential uses. Therefore, the proposed development of this site will not affect the City’s available
housing stock. Payment of the jobs-housing linkage fee will contribute to development of affordable
housing in the City.


D. That commuter traffic not impede MUNI transit service or overburden our streets or
neighborhood parking.


The Project Site is served by nearby public transportation options. The Project site is located in close
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proximity to the: 12, 30, 45, 47, 8, 81X, 82X, 83X, 8AX, 8BX, N and T MUNI bus lines, as well as the Central
Subway line along 4th Street and the 4th & King Caltrain and MUNI light stations. The Central
Subway Project to extend the Muni Metro T Third Line through South of Market, Union Square, and
Chinatown with four new stations is also expected to be completed soon. The T extension would run
along 4th Street, a block away from 660 3rd Street. The Project also provides sufficient bicycle parking
for employees and their guests. The number of different public transit options makes the site easily
accessible from all over the Bay Area without a car, while not overburdening one type of public
transit.


E. That the City achieve the greatest possible preparedness to protect against injury and loss of life
in an earthquake.


No seismic improvements are proposed with this project


F. That landmarks and historic buildings be preserved.


The subject property is a contributor to an Article 10 Landmark District. Through providing an
economically viable use, the Project is helping to support the building’s long-term vitality.
Furthermore, no exterior alterations are proposed through this project which would compromise the
character of the property or the historic district in which it lies.


G. That our parks and open space and their access to sunlight and vistas be protected from
development.


This Project will not affect the sunlight access and/or vistas of any of the City’s parks or open spaces.


10. The Project is consistent with and would promote the general and specific purposes of the Code provided
under Section 101.1(b) in that, as designed, the Project would contribute to the character and stability of
the neighborhood and would constitute a beneficial development.


11. The Commission hereby finds that approval of the Office Development Authorization would promote the
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
submitted by all parties, the Commission hereby APPROVES Office Development Authorization Application
No. 2019-011944OFA subject to the following conditions attached hereto as “EXHIBIT A” in general conformance
with plans on file, dated October 26, 2021 and stamped “EXHIBIT B”, which is incorporated herein by reference as
though fully set forth.


APPEAL AND EFFECTIVE DATE OF MOTION: Any aggrieved person may appeal this Section 321 and 322 Office
Development Authorization to the Board of Appeals within fifteen (15) days after the date of this Motion. The
effective date of this Motion shall be the date of adoption of this Motion if not appealed (after the 15-day period
has expired) OR the date of the decision of the Board of Appeals if appealed to the Board of Appeals. For further
information, please contact the Board of Appeals at (628) 652-1150, 49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1475, San
Francisco, CA 94103.


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


I hereby certify that the Planning Commission ADOPTED the foregoing Motion on November 4, 2021.


Jonas P. Ionin
Commission Secretary


AYES:


NAYS:


ABSENT:


RECUSE:


ADOPTED: November 4, 2021
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EXHIBIT A
Authorization


This authorization is for an Office Development Allocation to legalize 40,212 sf of Office Use located at 660 3rd


Street, Block 3787 Lot 008, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 321 and 322 within the CMUO Zoning District,
Central SoMa SUD, and a 65-X Height and Bulk District; in general conformance with plans, dated October 26, 2021,
and stamped “EXHIBIT B” included in the docket for Record No. 2019-011944OFA and subject to conditions of
approval reviewed and approved by the Commission on November 4, 2021 under Motion No. XXXXXX. This
authorization and the conditions contained herein run with the property and not with a particular Project Sponsor,
business, or operator.


Recordation of Conditions Of Approval


Prior to the issuance of the building permit or commencement of use for the Project the Zoning Administrator
shall approve and order the recordation of a Notice in the Official Records of the Recorder of the City and County
of San Francisco for the subject property. This Notice shall state that the project is subject to the conditions of
approval contained herein and reviewed and approved by the Planning Commission on November 4, 2021 under
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
approved unless it complies with all applicable provisions of City Codes in effect at the time of such
approval.


For information about compliance, contact Code Enforcement, Planning Department at 628.652.7463,
www.sfplanning.org
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6. Additional Project Authorization. –The Project Sponsor must obtain a Variance under Planning Code
Section 305 to address the Planning Code requirements for active use (Planning Code 145.1 and
249.78(c)(1)(E)) and satisfy all the conditions thereof. The conditions set forth below are additional conditions
required in connection with the Project. If these conditions overlap with any other requirement imposed on
the Project, the more restrictive or protective condition or requirement, as determined by the Zoning
Administrator, shall apply.


For information about compliance, contact Code Enforcement, Planning Department at 628.652.7463,
www.sfplanning.org


7. Development Timeline - Office. Pursuant to Planning Code Section 321(d)(2), construction of the office
development project shall commence within 18 months of the effective date of this Motion. Failure to begin
work within that period or to carry out the development diligently thereafter to completion, shall be grounds
to revoke approval of the office development under this office development authorization.


For information about compliance, contact Code Enforcement, Planning Department at 628.652.7316,
www.sfplanning.org


Parking and Traffic
8. Transportation Demand Management (TDM) Program. Pursuant to Planning Code Section 169, the Project


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


9. Jobs-Housing Linkage. The Project is subject to the Jobs Housing Linkage Fee, as applicable, pursuant to
Planning Code Section 413.


For information about compliance, contact the Case Planner, Planning Department at 628.652.7314,
www.sfplanning.org


10. Child-Care Requirements for Office and Hotel Development. In lieu of providing an on-site child-care
facility, the Project has elected to meet this requirement by providing an in-lieu fee, as applicable, pursuant to
Planning Code Section 414.
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For information about compliance, contact the Case Planner, Planning Department at 628.652.7314,
www.sfplanning.org


11. Eastern Neighborhoods Usable Open Space In Lieu Fee for EN Mixed Use Non-Residential Projects. The
Project is subject to the Eastern Neighborhoods Usable Open Space In-Lieu Fee, as applicable, pursuant to
Planning Code Section 426.


 For information about compliance, contact the Case Planner, Planning Department at 628.652.7314,
www.sfplanning.org


Monitoring - After Entitlement
12. Enforcement. Violation of any of the Planning Department conditions of approval contained in this Motion or


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


13. Monitoring. The Project requires monitoring of the conditions of approval in this Motion. The Project Sponsor
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


14. Sidewalk Maintenance. The Project Sponsor shall maintain the main entrance to the building and all
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


15. Community Liaison. Prior to issuance of a building permit to construct the project and implement the
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







 B:


Plans and Renderings







3RD STREET


B
R


A
N


N
A


N
 S


T
R


E
E


T


RITCH STREET


T
O


W
N


S
E


N
D


 S
T


R
E


E
T


PROJECT 
SITE


BIKE PARKING:
5 SPACES (CLASS 2), V.I.F OFFICE ALLOCATION SUMMARY (GSF)


LEVEL 1 - EXISTING
LEVEL 1 - FUTURE
LEVEL 2 - EXISTING
LEVELS 1+2


LEVEL 3 - EXISTING
LEVEL 4 - EXISTING
LEVELS 3+4


LEVELS 1+2+3+4


10,830
5,477
20,074
36,381


19,805
20,513
40,318


76,699


4,763
UNCHANGED
1,036
5,799


1,617
860
2,477


8,276


TOTAL GSF: 42,795


TOTAL GSF: 42,180


TOTAL GSF: 84,975


CONCLUSION:
LEVELS 1&2:


      36,381 SF SEEKING OFFICE ALLOCATION


LEVELS 3&4:
40,000 SF PERMITED IN 2014 AS OFFICE UNDER MOTION NO. 19234


318 SF SEEKING OFFICE ALLOCATION @ LEVEL 4


OFFICE (SF)
COMMON 
SPACE (SF)


TOTAL SF SEEKING OFFICE ALLOCATION: 36,699 SF


1420 Sutter St San Francisco, CA  94109


T 415.391.7918  F 415.391.7309


TEFarch.com


A
rc


h
it
e
c
t 


a
n
d
 m


a
y
 n


o
t 


b
e
 d


u
p
lic


a
te


d
, 


u
s
e
d
 o


r 
d
is


c
lo


s
e
d
 w


it
h
o
u
t 


c
o
n
s
e
n
t 


o
f 


A
rc


h
it
e
c
t.


A
ll 


d
ra


w
in


g
s
 a


n
d
 w


ri
tt


e
n
 m


a
te


ri
a
l 
a
p
p
e
a
ri
n
g
 h


e
re


in
 c


o
n
s
ti
tu


te
 o


ri
g
in


a
l 
a
n
d
 u


n
p
u
b
lis


h
e
d
 w


o
rk


 o
f 


th
e


NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION
FOR INFORMATION ONLY


PROJECT


JOB #
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TITLE


SCALE


DRAWING


As indicated5/21/2019 4:44:53 PM


COVER SHEET


21907.00


660 3rd St Office Allocation


A0.01


OWNER: RABIN MANAGEMENT COMPANY


PLANNING & ZONING INFORMATION:
PROJECT ADDRESS: 660 3rd ST, SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94107
BLOCK/LOT: 3787/008
USE: OFFICE (B)
ZONING DISTRICT: CMUO-CENTRAL SOMA-MIXED USE OFFICE
HEIGHT/BULK DISTRICT: 65-X
PLANNING AREA: EAST SOMA (En), CENTRAL SOMA
PLANNING DISTRICT: DISTRICT 9 SOUTH OF MARKET
LOT AREA: 137.50' (3RD ST) X 160.00'


21,997 SQ FT
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Environmental Determination
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Number 2019-011944OFA/VAR
660 3rd Street







CEQA Exemption Determination
PROPERTY INFORMATION/PROJECT DESCRIPTION


Project Address


660 03RD ST


Block/Lot(s)


Project description for Planning Department approval.


Permit No.


Addition/ 


Alteration


Demolition (requires HRE for 


Category B Building)


New 


Construction


Office Allocation Authorization request of 36,699 square feet: 16,307 square feet on Level 1, 20,074 square feet on 


Level 2, and 318 square feet on level 4.


Case No.


2019-011944PRJ


3787008


STEP 1: EXEMPTION TYPE


The project has been determined to be exempt under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).


Class 1 - Existing Facilities. Interior and exterior alterations; additions under 10,000 sq. ft.


Class 3 - New Construction. Up to three new single-family residences or six dwelling units in one building; 


commercial/office structures; utility extensions; change of use under 10,000 sq. ft. if principally permitted or 


with a CU.


Class 32 - In-Fill Development. New Construction of seven or more units or additions greater than 10,000 


sq. ft. and meets the conditions described below:


(a) The project is consistent with the applicable general plan designation and all applicable general plan 


policies as well as with applicable zoning designation and regulations.


(b) The proposed development occurs within city limits on a project site of no more than 5 acres 


substantially surrounded by urban uses.


(c) The project site has no value as habitat for endangered rare or threatened species.


(d) Approval of the project would not result in any significant effects relating to traffic, noise, air quality, or 


water quality.


(e) The site can be adequately served by all required utilities and public services.


Other ____


Common Sense Exemption (CEQA Guidelines section 15061(b)(3)). It can be seen with certainty that 


there is no possibility of a significant effect on the environment .







STEP 2: ENVIRONMENTAL SCREENING ASSESSMENT
TO BE COMPLETED BY PROJECT PLANNER


Air Quality: Would the project add new sensitive receptors (specifically, schools, day care facilities, 


hospitals, residential dwellings, and senior-care facilities within an Air Pollution Exposure Zone? Does the 


project have the potential to emit substantial pollutant concentrations (e.g. use of diesel construction 


equipment, backup diesel generators, heavy industry, diesel trucks, etc.)? (refer to the Environmental 


Is the project site located within the Maher area or on a site containing potential subsurface soil or 


groundwater contamination and would it involve ground disturbance of at least 50 cubic yards or a change of 


use from an industrial use to a residential or institutional use? Is the project site located on a Cortese site or 


would the project involve work on a site with an existing or former gas station, parking lot, auto repair, dry 


cleaners, or heavy manufacturing use, or a site with current or former underground storage tanks?


if Maher box is checked, note below whether the applicant has enrolled in or received a waiver from the San 


Francisco Department of Public Health (DPH) Maher program, or if Environmental Planning staff has 


determined that hazardous material effects would be less than significant.


Note that a categorical exemption shall not be issued for a project located on the Cortese List


Hazardous Materials: Maher or Cortese


Transportation: Does the project involve a child care facility or school with 30 or more students, or a 


location 1,500 sq. ft. or greater? Does the project have the potential to adversely affect transit, pedestrian 


and/or bicycle safety (hazards) or the adequacy of nearby transit, pedestrian and/or bicycle facilities? 


Would the project involve the intensification of or a substantial increase in vehicle trips at the project site or 


elsewhere in the region due to autonomous vehicle or for-hire vehicle fleet maintenance, operations or 


Archeological Resources: Would the project result in soil disturbance/modification greater than two


(2) feet below grade in an archeological sensitive area or eight (8) feet in a non-archeological sensitive


area? If yes, archeology review is required. 


Subdivision/Lot Line Adjustment: Does the project site involve a subdivision or lot line adjustment


on a lot with a slope average of 20% or more? (refer to the Environmental Information tab on 


https://sfplanninggis.org/PIM/) If box is checked, Environmental Planning must issue the exemption.


Average Slope of Parcel = or > 25%, or site is in Edgehill Slope Protection Area or Northwest Mt. 


Sutro Slope Protection Area: Does the project involve any of the following: (1) New building construction, 


except one-story storage or utility occupancy, (2) horizontal additions, if the footprint area increases more 


than 50%, or (3) horizontal and vertical additions increase more than 500 square feet of new projected roof 


area? (refer to the Environmental Information tab on https://sfplanninggis.org/PIM/) If box is checked, a 


geotechnical report is likely required and Environmental Planning must issue the exemption.


Does the project involve any of the following: (1) New building construction, except one-story storage or 


utility occupancy, (2) horizontal additions, if the footprint area increases more than 50%, (3) horizontal and 


vertical additions increase more than 500 square feet of new projected roof area, or (4) grading performed at 


a site in the landslide hazard zone? (refer to the Environmental Information tab on https://sfplanninggis.org/PIM/) 


If box is checked, a geotechnical report is required and Environmental Planning must issue the exemption.


Seismic Hazard: Landslide or Liquefaction Hazard Zone:


Comments and Planner Signature (optional): Alex Westhoff







STEP 3: PROPERTY STATUS - HISTORIC RESOURCE
TO BE COMPLETED BY PROJECT PLANNER


PROPERTY IS ONE OF THE FOLLOWING: (refer to Property Information Map)


Category A: Known Historical Resource. GO TO STEP 5.


Category B: Potential Historical Resource (over 45 years of age). GO TO STEP 4.


Category C: Not a Historical Resource or Not Age Eligible (under 45 years of age). GO TO STEP 6.


STEP 4: PROPOSED WORK CHECKLIST


TO BE COMPLETED BY PROJECT PLANNER


Check all that apply to the project.


1. Change of use and new construction. Tenant improvements not included.


2. Regular maintenance or repair to correct or repair deterioration, decay, or damage to building.


3. Window replacement that meets the Department’s Window Replacement Standards. Does not include


storefront window alterations.


4. Garage work. A new opening that meets the Guidelines for Adding Garages and Curb Cuts, and/or


replacement of a garage door in an existing opening that meets the Residential Design Guidelines.


5. Deck, terrace construction, or fences not visible from any immediately adjacent public right-of-way.


6. Mechanical equipment installation that is not visible from any immediately adjacent public 


right-of-way.


7. Dormer installation that meets the requirements for exemption from public notification under Zoning


Administrator Bulletin No. 3: Dormer Windows.


8. Addition(s) that are not visible from any immediately adjacent public right -of-way for 150 feet in each


direction; does not extend vertically beyond the floor level of the top story of the structure or is only a


single story in height; does not have a footprint that is more than 50% larger than that of the original


building; and does not cause the removal of architectural significant roofing features.


Note: Project Planner must check box below before proceeding.


Project is not listed. GO TO STEP 5.


Project does not conform to the scopes of work. GO TO STEP 5.


Project involves four or more work descriptions. GO TO STEP 5.


Project involves less than four work descriptions. GO TO STEP 6.


STEP 5: ADVANCED HISTORICAL REVIEW


TO BE COMPLETED BY PRESERVATION PLANNER


Check all that apply to the project.


1. Reclassification of property status. (Attach HRER Part I)


Reclassify to Category A


a. Per HRER


b. Other (specify):


(No further historic review)


Reclassify to Category C


2. Project involves a known historical resource (CEQA Category A) as determined by Step 3 and


conforms entirely to proposed work checklist in Step 4.


3. Interior alterations to publicly accessible spaces that do not remove, alter, or obscure character 


defining features.


4. Window replacement of original/historic windows that are not “in-kind” but are consistent with


existing historic character.


5. Façade/storefront alterations that do not remove, alter, or obscure character-defining features.







6. Raising the building in a manner that does not remove, alter, or obscure character -defining


features.


7. Restoration based upon documented evidence of a building’s historic condition, such as historic


photographs, plans, physical evidence, or similar buildings.


8. Work consistent with the Secretary of the Interior Standards for the Treatment of Historic Properties  


(Analysis required):


9. Work compatible with a historic district (Analysis required):


10. Work that would not materially impair a historic resource (Attach HRER Part II).


Note: If ANY box in STEP 5 above is checked, a Preservation Planner MUST sign below.


Project can proceed with exemption review. The project has been reviewed by the


Preservation Planner and can proceed with exemption review. GO TO STEP 6.


Comments (optional):


Office allocation


Preservation Planner Signature: Alex Westhoff


TO BE COMPLETED BY PROJECT PLANNER


STEP 6: EXEMPTION DETERMINATION


Project Approval Action: Signature:


Supporting documents are available for review on the San Francisco Property Information Map, which can be accessed at 


https://sfplanninggis.org/PIM/. Individual files can be viewed by clicking on the Planning Applications link, clicking the “More 


Details” link under the project’s environmental record number (ENV) and then clicking on the “Related Documents” link.


Once signed or stamped and dated, this document constitutes an exemption pursuant to CEQA Guidelines and Chapter 31 of the 


Administrative Code.


In accordance with Chapter 31 of the San Francisco Administrative Code, an appeal of an exemption determination to the Board 


of Supervisors can only be filed within 30 days of the project receiving the approval action.


Alex Westhoff


08/03/2021


No further environmental review is required. The project is exempt under CEQA. There are no 


unusual circumstances that would result in a reasonable possibility of a significant effect.


Planning Commission Hearing







TO BE COMPLETED BY PROJECT PLANNER


STEP 7: MODIFICATION OF A CEQA EXEMPT PROJECT


In accordance with Chapter 31 of the San Francisco Administrative Code, when a California Environmental


Quality Act (CEQA) exempt project changes after the Approval Action and requires a subsequent approval, the


Environmental Review Officer (or his or her designee) must determine whether the proposed change constitutes  a 


substantial modification of that project. This checklist shall be used to determine whether the proposed  changes 


to the approved project would constitute a “substantial modification” and, therefore, be subject to  additional 


MODIFIED PROJECT DESCRIPTION


Modified Project Description:


DETERMINATION IF PROJECT CONSTITUTES SUBSTANTIAL MODIFICATION


Compared to the approved project, would the modified project:


Result in expansion of the building envelope, as defined in the Planning Code;


Result in the change of use that would require public notice under Planning Code


Sections 311 or 312;


Result in demolition as defined under Planning Code Section 317 or 19005(f)?


Is any information being presented that was not known and could not have been known


at the time of the original determination, that shows the originally approved project may


no longer qualify for the exemption?


If at least one of the above boxes is checked, further environmental review is required


DETERMINATION OF NO SUBSTANTIAL MODIFICATION


Planner Name:


The proposed modification would not result in any of the above changes.


If this box is checked, the proposed modifications are exempt under CEQA, in accordance with prior project


approval and no additional environmental review is required. This determination shall be posted on the Planning 


Department website and office and mailed to the applicant, City approving entities, and anyone requesting written notice. 


In accordance with Chapter 31, Sec 31.08j of the San Francisco Administrative Code, an appeal of this determination can 


Date:
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EXHIBIT D


LLand Use Information
PROJECT ADDRESS: 660 3RD ST.
RECORD NO.: 2019-011944OFA


EXISTING (legal) PROPOSED (for legalization) NET NEW


GROSS SQUARE FOOTAGE (GSF)


Parking GSF 0 0 0


Residential GSF 0 0 0


Usable Open Space GSF 0 0 0


Retail GSF 0 0 0


PDR GSF 0 0 0


Office GSF 40,000 40,212 40,212


Common Space 4,763 0 0


Commercial Storage 17,311 0 0


TOTAL GSF 62,074 40,212 40,212


EXISTING NET NEW TOTALS


PROJECT FEATURES (Units or Amounts)


Dwelling Units - Affordable 0 0 0


Dwelling Units - Market Rate 0 0 0


Dwelling Units - Total 0 0 0


Number of Buildings 1 0 0


Number of Stories 4 0 0


Parking Spaces 0 0 0


Loading Spaces 0 0 0


Bicycle Spaces 0 24 Class 1; 5 Class 2 29


Car Share Spaces 0 0 0







:
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*The Sanborn Maps in San Francisco have not been updated since 1998, and  this map may not accurately reflect existing conditions.


Sanborn Map*
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Aerial Photo – View 2


OFA/VAR Hearing
2019-011944OFA
660 3rd Street


SUBJECT PROPERTY







Aerial Photo – View 1
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Zoning Map
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Site Photo


OFA/VAR Hearing
2019-011944OFA
660 3rd Street


Source: South End Historic District, National Register Certification, Final (2008)
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James Reuben 
jreuben@reubenlaw.com 


October 27, 2021 


Delivered Via Email (alex.westhoff@sfgov.org) 


Joel Koppel, Commission President 
San Francisco Planning Commission 
49 South Van Ness Ave, Suite 1400 
San Francisco, CA 94103 


Re: 660 Third Street 
Planning Case Number: 
2019-011944OFA 
Hearing Date: November 4, 2021 
Our File No.: 7462.01 


Dear President Koppel and Commissioners: 


This office represents Gorr Partners, LLC1, the owners (“Owners”) of the property located 
at 660 Third Street (the “Property”). The Owners are proposing to bring the first and second floors 
of the existing historic building into compliance with the Planning Code by requesting an Office 
Allocation Authorization pursuant to Section 321 for 40,212 square feet. This 
Planning Commission hearing is the culmination of an almost decade long process to 
legalize the long-standing office use at the Property. No alterations – either exterior or interior – 
are proposed as a part of this Project. 


The existing four-story building was constructed in 1902 and is identified as a Category A 
building that is a contributor to the South End Historic District. Office use began at the Property 
in the 1980s when it was principally permitted and has continued since. Half of the building’s 
office use was legalized in 2014 through the provisions that allowed Conditional Use 
Authorization for office use in certain historic buildings. Although such approvals were 
commonplace at the time, the project was swept into a maelstrom created by an unrelated project 
at Showplace Square, known as “One Henry Adams Street”, and was only permitted to legalize 
half of the office use at the Property. Now, pursuant to a Board of Appeals decision, the Property 
is back before you for a small cap Office Allocation that will officially legalize the use in the 
balance of the building. The Property’s unusual and complex entitlement history is discussed in 
more detail below. Since the prior Planning Commission hearings in 2014, the Property has been 
rezoned to the Central SoMa-Mixed Use Office (“CMUO”) Zoning District and the Central SoMa 
Special Use District (“SUD”), where office uses are both permitted and encouraged.  


1 The principals of Gorr Partners, LLC are Daniel and Ariel Rabin, the children of Irving Rubin, who purchased the 
Building in 1962. The Building has been owned by the family for 53 years. 
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A. Building and Entitlement History


The Property has been in the Rabin family since 1962. The family owned enterprise, 
Butterfield Auction Company, occupied most of the building from 1980 to the early 1990s as its 
offices, and since then the building has continued to be used by other office tenants.  


When the patriarch of the family, Irving Rabin, passed away in 2012, his sons initiated the 
Planning review process in accordance with procedures for office use in historic buildings that 
were in effect at the time. They aimed to try to clear up any ambiguity in the Planning Department 
records regarding the use of the building as office since 1980. A Conditional Use Authorization 
was required because the Property was located within the Service, Light Industrial (“SLI”) Zoning 
District, which did not permit office use as a matter of right. Even though the building had been 
operated by the family as an office since the 1980s, there were no records or leases sufficient to 
demonstrate grandfathered office use to the Planning Department’s strict requirements.  


On September 11, 2014, the Property received an Office Allocation Authorization and 
Conditional Use Authorization for the legalization of the office uses, but only on the third and 
fourth floors of the building due to reasons unrelated to the Property or the ownership. (See 
Planning Department File No. 2013.0627 and Motion No. 19235.) The Planning Commission 
made the following findings: (a) the conversion will contribute to the economic diversity and 
mixed-use character of the neighborhood and reuse a contributing building in a designated historic 
district; and (b) it will enhance the feasibility of preserving the Property by allowing office use 
and by undertaking a Historic Building Maintenance Plan. Building Permit No. 2014-1125-2480 
was issued on November 12, 2015 effectuating the change of uses on the upper floors.  


On August 28, 2015, the Zoning Administrator issued a Notice of Violation and Penalty 
(“NOVP”) alleging that the Property’s first and second floors were being utilized for office use in 
violation of the Planning Code and Planning Commission Motion No. 19235.   


On July 18, 2018, the Board of Appeals in Appeal No. 15-125, modified the NOVP noting 
that the Owners had made a “good faith attempt to being the Property into compliance with the 
Planning Code” and ultimately required that the first and second floors of the Property be brought 
into compliance with the Planning Code. “Compliance shall mean that either: 1) all unauthorized 
office uses on the first and second floors have been discontinued or 2) work under a Building 
Permit (with Planning Department approval) to legalize the office uses on the first and second 
floors has been completed.” (See BPA decision No. 15-125).  


Pursuant to this Board of Appeals decision, the owners filed an Office Allocation 
application to bring the first and second floors into compliance. The Property was recently rezoned 
to be within the CMUO Zoning District as part of the Central SoMa Area Plan, which allows 
office use as a matter of right. However, an Office Allocation as well as a Variance from the 
active use requirements for office uses on the ground floor in the Central SoMa SUD are required. 
This Office Allocation application has been pending since the 2019 filing.  
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B. Office Allocation


As noted above, this Office Allocation will legalize the long-standing office use for the
bottom two floors of the building and bring a long-awaited close to the Owners’ efforts to legalize 
the established office use. The Planning Commission’s findings in 2014 still apply today. The 
project will contribute to the economic diversity and mixed-use character of the neighborhood and 
enhance the feasibility of preserving the historic Property. The building is not an appropriate or 
desirable option for PDR and retail uses due to the building’s column spacing, low ceiling heights, 
lack of fenestration along Ritch Street, and lack of parking and loading space. As such, the Property 
has contained office uses since the 1980s, and is currently occupied by a variety of office tenants. 
This is typical for the subject block, where many historic buildings have undergone adaptive reuse. 
For example, a similar building located directly across the street at 665 Third Street was granted 
Conditional Use Authorization for office use in 2013. 


The office use is also consistent with the Central SoMa Plan. The Central SoMa Plan re-
zoned many industrially-zoned parcels in the area between Harrison, Second, Townsend, and 6th 
Streets (including the Property) to permit the creation of additional office use. Allocation of office 
space at the Property is consistent with the Central SoMa Plan’s goal of developing the surrounding 
transit rich, walkable neighborhood with denser commercial development, and would directly 
advance policies and objectives of the Plan including (1) to increase the capacity for jobs and 
housing and (2) to facilitate an economically diverse and lively job center.  


Approval of the Office Allocation would not only ensure preservation and maintenance for 
an important historic building, provide a use that is compatible with the neighborhood, and avoid 
the displacement of existing office tenants, but it would also result in significant contributions to 
a number of impact fees including those that support affordable housing, child care services, public 
open space and recreational facilities, streetscape improvements, public schools, and transportation 
and infrastructure improvements. For these reasons, we respectfully request that you grant the 
Office Allocation approval. 


Very truly yours, 


REUBEN, JUNIUS & ROSE, LLP 


James Reuben 


cc: Kathrin Moore, Commission Vice-President 
Deland Chan, Commissioner 
Sue Diamond, Commissioner 
Frank S. Fung, Commissioner 
Theresa Imperial, Commissioner 
Rachael Tanner, Commissioner 
Alex Westhoff, Project Planner 





		Exhibit B _ 660 3rd St - Office Allocation docs_211027_v5[1] (ID 1263093).pdf

		Sheets

		A0.01 - COVER SHEET

		A1.01 - LEVEL 1 PLAN - EXISTING

		A1.02 - LEVEL 2 PLAN - EXISTING

		A1.03 - LEVEL 3 PLAN - EXISITNG

		A1.04 - LEVEL 4 PLAN - EXISTING

		A2.01 - LEVEL 1 PLAN - FUTURE

		A3.01 - ELEVATIONS - EXISTING













CPC Hearing Results 2021
To:   Staff 
From:       Jonas P. Ionin, Director of Commission Affairs 
Re:   Hearing Results 

NEXT MOTION/RESOLUTION No: 21025 

NEXT DISCRETIONARY REVIEW ACTION No: 763 

DRA = Discretionary Review Action; M = Motion; R = Resolution 

 October 28, 2021 Hearing Results: 

Action No. Case No. Planner Action Vote 

2020-003971PCA 

Dwelling Unit Density 
Exception for Corner 
Lots in Residential 
Districts [Board File 
No. 210564] Merlone 

Continued to November 18, 
2021 

+5 -0 (Chan, Diamond
absent)

2019-020611CUA 5114-5116 3rd Street Sucre Continued to December 9, 2021 
+5 -0 (Chan, Diamond
absent)

2019-020611VAR 5114-5116 3rd Street Sucre 
ZA Continued to December 9, 
2021 

2020-009146CUA 247 Upper Terrace Horn Continued to December 9, 2021 
+5 -0 (Chan, Diamond
absent)

2020-008529DRP 1857 Church Street Winslow Withdrawn 

2020-008529VAR 1857 Church Street Campbell 
ZA Continued to December 1, 
2021 

Draft Minutes for 
October 14, 2021 Ionin Adopted 

+5 -0 (Chan, Diamond
absent)

M-21022 2020-005729CUA 4 Seacliff Avenue May 
Approved with Conditions as 
amended by Sponsor 

+5 -0 (Chan, Diamond
absent)

M-21023 2020-009025CUA 5915 California Street Young Approved with Conditions 
+5 -0 (Chan, Diamond
absent)

M-21024 2021-004963CUA 3415 California Street Agnihotri Approved with Conditions 
+5 -0 (Chan, Diamond
absent)

DRA-762 2021-002667DRP-03 4763 19th Street Winslow No DR 
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

 

Notice of Remote Hearing & Agenda        Page 8 of 13 
 

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
http://www.sf-planning.org/index.aspx?page=3447
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


CPC ADVANCE CALENDAR 4:33 PM  10/29/2021

To: Planning Commission
From: Jonas P. Ionin, Director of Commission Affairs
Re: Advance Calendar

All items and dates are tentative and subject to change.

November 4, 2021 - CLOSED
Case No. Planner
2020-007481CUA 5367 Diamond Heights Blvd. (1900 Diamond St.) fr: 8/26; 10/14 Pantoja

PUD for the construction of 24 dwelling units in a total of 14 resi  to: 12/2
2018-015983CUAVAR 136 Delmar St. fr: 8/26; 10/21 Hoagland

Demo SFR and construct 2-unit dwelling to: 12/9
2021-000215CUA 400 Hyde St. to: 12/9 Hoagland

new telecom facility
2019-020031CUAVAR 2867 San Bruno Ave fr: 9/9, 9/30 Durandet

legalize dwelling units, change from onsite BMR to fee to: Indefinite
Overview of General Plan Amendments Rodgers

Informational
2019-011944OFAVAR 660 3rd St fr: 8/26; 10/14 Westhoff

Small cap office allocation to abate code enforcement case
2017-015678CUA 425 Broadway fr: 10/7; 10/14 Asbaugh

TBD
2021-000209CUA 733 Treat Avenue fr: 10/21 Samonsky

demo and new construction of a four-story building containing 6 dwelling units and one ADU

2016-013012CUA 478-484 Haight St May
BMR condition amendment

2018-007380CUAVAR 1320 Washington Street Perry
6-story over basement residential building with 25 dwelling units 

2021-005183CUA 2040 Chestnut Street Jimenez
formula retail use establishment (dba Sweetgreen)

2018-003779DRP-02 619 22nd Avenue Winslow
Public-Initiated DR

November 11, 2021 - CANCELED
Case No. Planner

November 18, 2021 - CLOSED
Case No. Planner
2019-022510CRV 240-250 Church Street to: 12/2 Hicks

State Density Bonus, new construction of a 7-story, 24 unit mixed-use building
2021-003142CUA 333 Fremont Street Withdrawn Giacomucci

Wireless CUA fr: 8/26
2020-003971PCA Dwelling Unit Density Exception for Corner Lots in RHD’s fr: 9/23; 10/28 Merlone

Planning Code Amendment
2019-023037ENVGPA Waterfront Plan Update Snyder

Informational
2017-012086ENV 770 Woolsey Street Delumo

FEIR

1 of 4
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2017-012086CUA 770 Woolsey Street Durandet
Conditional Use Authorization for a Planned Unit Development

2019-014461CUA 1324-1326 Powell Street fr: 9/30 Enchill
State Density Bonus new construction of 8-story, 24 unit mixed use building

2019-013808CUAVAR 4300 17th Street fr: 9/2; 10/14 Horn
New Construction is Corona Heights SUD

2019-022830AHB 3055 Clement St May
HOME-SF project 

2019-013276ENX 560 Brannan Street Liang
Demo new construction of 120 units using SDB fr: 10/21

2019-005907CUA 1151 Washington Street Guy
CU for residential expansion > 2,000 sf without adding density

2021-003400CUA 1285 10th Ave / 900 Irving St Agnihotri
ground floor cannabis retail use

2021-006602CUA 1881-1885 Lombard St Ajello
Cannabis Retail use with on-site consumption lounge

2020-009358DRP 2605 Post Street Winslow
Public-Initiated DR

2019-022419DRP 312 Utah Street Winslow
Public-Initiated DR

2016-000302DRP 460 Vallejo Street fr: 9/30 Winslow
Public-Initiated DR

November 25, 2021 - CANCELED
Case No. Planner

December 2, 2021
Case No. Planner

Remote Hearing Lynch
Resolution Adoption

2020-008417CWP Economic Recovery and Work Spaces Pappas
Informational

2019-020115ENV SFPUC Ocean Beach Climate Change Adaptation Project Moore
Informational

2019-022510CRV 240-250 Church Street fr: 11/18 Hicks
State Density Bonus 

2018-009812CUA 1268 17th Avenue fr: 10/21 Dito
PCS 317 to demolish SFD at rear of lot, add two dwelling units 

2016-005365CUA 230 Anza Street fr: 10/21 Young
tantamount to demolition 

2020-008133CUA 228 Vicksburg St Horn
Demo SFR and Construct 2-unit dwelling

2018-015061CUA 1016 Pierce Street Ajello
legalize 2-unit DUM and create new ADU

2020-007481CUA 5367 Diamond Heights Blvd. (1900 Diamond St.) fr: 8/26; 10/14; 10/28 Pantoja
PUD for the construction of 24 dwelling units in a total of 14 residential buildings

2021-000997DRP 801 Corbett Avenue Winslow
Public-Initiated DR
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2021-001219DRM 1228 Funston Street fr: 10/28 Winslow
Mandatory DR

December 9, 2021
Case No. Planner

Automotive Uses; Housing Density Flores
Planning Code Amendment

Group Housing Grob
Informational

2019-020611CUAVAR 5114-5116 3rd Street fr: 6/17; 7/8; 9/23; 10 Sucre
illegal demolition of a legal dwelling unit

2018-015983CUAVAR 136 Delmar St. fr: 8/26; 10/21; 11/4 Hoagland
Demo SFR and construct 2-unit dwelling

2020-009146CUA 247 Upper Terrace fr: 10/28 Horn
New construction of 2-unit dwelling within Corona Heights SUD

2021-010715CRV 1201 Sutter Street Foster
Change in Section 415 Compliance

2021-000215CUA 400 Hyde St. fr: 11/4 Hoagland
new telecom facility

2021-004141DRP 2000 Oakdale Avenue Christensen
Install cannabis store/office space in existing first floor office space.

2017-013947DRP 310 Green St Winslow
Public-Initiated DR

December 16, 2021 - Joint with Health
Case No. Planner

CPMC Purl
Informational Update

December 16, 2021
Case No. Planner
2021-006276CUA 2034 Mission Street CONSENT Wu

Converting a Limited Restaurant Use to a Restaurant
2022 Hearing Schedule Ionin

Adoption
2021-009791CUA 1501C Sloat Boulevard CONSENT Cisneros

Formula Retail – Change from Sprint to T-Mobile in Lakeshore Plaza
2021-010875PCA Bars in the Castro Street Neighborhood Commercial District Merlone

Planning Code Amendment
2018-000983OTH San Francisco Commercial Strategies Nickolopoulos

Informational
2015-005983CUAVAR 850 Bush Street Foster

CUA for height above 50 feet in RC Zoning District
2019-017009DRP 616 Belvedere Street Winslow

Public-Initiated DR
2019-022661DRP 628 Shotwell Street Winslow

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

2021-002530CUA 2740 McAllister Street Dito
Legalize demo of SFD, construct 3FD

2021-010563DRP 192-196 Laidley Street Winslow
Public-Initiated DR

2016-008167DRP 65 Normandie Terrace Winslow
Public-Initiated DR

January 13, 2022
Case No. Planner
2020-004398PRJ SFO Shoreline Protection Program Li

Informational
2018-013597ENV Portsmouth Square Improvement Project Calpin

EIR Certification
2018-013451PRJ 2135 Market Street Horn

State Density Bonus new construction of 9-story, 36 unit mixed use building
2021-000182DRP 140 20th Avenue Winslow

Public-Initiated DR
2021-000607DRP 525 Leavenworth Street Winslow

Public-Initiated DR
January 20, 2022

Case No. Planner

January 27, 2022
Case No. Planner
2018-014727AHB 921 O'Farrell Street Hoagland

AHB / HOME-SF 14-story (140 feet) tower with 50 dwelling units and ground-level retail

2017-013784CUA 2976 Mission Street Giacomucci
demolish the existing construct a six-story, mixed use building

4 of 4



 
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
Date: Friday, October 29, 2021 7:45:50 AM
Attachments: MIXT Letter for 2040 Chestnut Street_Sweetgreen Application.pdf

 
 
 
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
 

From: Leslie Silverglide <leslie@mixt.com> 
Sent: Thursday, October 28, 2021 5:14 PM
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
 

 

All,
 
Please see the attached letter asking you to not approve the Sweetgreen application for formula
retail CUP at 2040 Chestnut Street.

Thank you very much for your consideration and please let me know if you have any questions or
need any additional information.
 
Best,
Leslie
 
L E S L I E
S I L V E R G L I D E 
CO-FOUNDER + CEO
MIXT • SPLIT
415•728•4715

mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org
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tel:415-728-4715







she / her / hers



 
This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
To: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: Letter from SF Chinese Chamber of Commerce - 5G infrastructure
Date: Thursday, October 28, 2021 1:48:14 PM
Attachments: Supporting Letter_T Mobile.pdf

 
 
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
 
 

From: SFChinese Chamber <sfchinesechamber@gmail.com>
Date: Thursday, October 28, 2021 at 1:44 PM
To: "Burch, Percy (BOS)" <percy.burch@sfgov.org>
Cc: "Quan, Daisy (BOS)" <daisy.quan@sfgov.org>, "Hsieh, Frances (BOS)"
<frances.hsieh@sfgov.org>, "Berenson, Samuel (BOS)" <sam.berenson@sfgov.org>, "Mullan,
Andrew (BOS)" <andrew.mullan@sfgov.org>, "Souza, Sarah (BOS)"
<sarah.s.souza@sfgov.org>, "Bolen, Jennifer M.(BOS)" <jennifer.m.bolen@sfgov.org>,
"Haneystaff (BOS)" <haneystaff@sfgov.org>, "Fieber, Jennifer (BOS)"
<jennifer.fieber@sfgov.org>, "Thornhill, Jackie (BOS)" <jackie.thornhill@sfgov.org>, "Li-D9,
Jennifer (BOS)" <jennifer.li-d9@sfgov.org>, "joel.koppel@sfgov.org" <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>,
"Moore, Kathrin (CPC)" <kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>, "Chan, Deland (CPC)"
<deland.chan@sfgov.org>, "Diamond, Susan (CPC)" <sue.diamond@sfgov.org>, "Fung, Frank
(CPC)" <frank.fung@sfgov.org>, Theresa Imperial <theresa.imperial@sfgov.org>, "Tanner,
Rachael (CPC)" <rachael.tanner@sfgov.org>, "Ionin, Jonas (CPC)" <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>
Subject: Letter from SF Chinese Chamber of Commerce - 5G infrastructure
 

 

Dear Mr. Burch,
 
On behalf of the S.F. Chinese Chamber of Commerce, I wish to express concern in San Francisco 5G
Infrastructure in the attached letter addressed to President Walton and Board of Supervisors.
 
Thank you.
 
 
Eddie Au
President of SF Chinese Chamber of Commerce

mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/







 
--
 
 

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE -- This email is intended only for the person(s) named in
the message header. Unless otherwise indicated, it contains information that is
confidential, privileged and/or exempt from disclosure under applicable law. If you have
received this message in error, please notify the sender of the error and delete the
message. Thank you.

 

 



 
This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
To: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: SF 5G Infrastructure – CalAsian Chamber of Commerce
Date: Thursday, October 28, 2021 1:48:01 PM
Attachments: image001.png

image002.png
image003.png
image004.png
image005.png
image006.png
image007.png
image008.png
image009.png
SF 5G Infrastructure LOS - CalAsian.pdf

 
 
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
 
 

From: Pat Fong Kushida <patfk@sacasiancc.org>
Date: Thursday, October 28, 2021 at 12:06 PM
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
Subject: SF 5G Infrastructure – CalAsian Chamber of Commerce
 

 

Dear Percy, 

Please find attached a letter from the CalAsianChamber in regards to 5G Infrastructure
upgrades in San Francisco. 

mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/
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Subscribe to receive updates from the chamber






 
 
 


 


October 20, 2021 


 


President Shamann Walton  


Members, Board of Supervisors  


1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place 


San Francisco, CA 94102 


 


Re: San Francisco 5G Infrastructure   


 


Dear President Walton and Members of the Board of Supervisors, 


 


The CalAsian Chamber of Commerce represents more than 600,000 Asian Pacific 


Islander (API) businesses in California, making us the state's largest ethnic Chamber of 


Commerce. Our members include major banks and small businesses that operate and 


conduct businesses within the City and County of San Francisco, as well as major 


telecom and public utilities.   


 


We write to inquire why wireless carriers are experiencing difficulties and delays within 


the city planning and review process. This issue has caught the attention of our 


members and has a direct impact to our partner T-Mobile, especially since our 


members look forward to what 5G networks can do for innovation and the related 


benefits they would receive. 


 


San Francisco and the Bay Area are synonymous with tech and innovation.  As a front 


runner in this space, it is alarming that wireless service infrastructure is seemingly being 


stunted in San Francisco.  Every day, residents, emergency services, and businesses rely 


on these wireless services.  A weakness in the system and/or in the approval process 


leaves everyone vulnerable. 


 


Our Chamber is requesting the Board of Supervisors to revisit San Francisco’s procedures 


in reviewing and approving 5G infrastructure upgrades so any deficiencies can be 


resolved.   


 


Sincerely, 


 


 


 


Pat Fong Kushida 


President & CEO 


CalAsian Chamber of Commerce 


 


 


 


 


 


  







Best 

Pat

Pat Fong Kushida
President & CEO

 M: (916) 870-6606 | W: (916) 446-7883
 1610 R Street, Suite 322

    Sacramento, CA 95811
 calasiancc.org

 
#AAPISTRONGCA
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED LAUNCHES NEW CLIMATE RESILIENCE PROGRAM
Date: Thursday, October 28, 2021 10:06:34 AM
Attachments: 10.28.2021 ClimateSF.pdf

 
 
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
Date: Thursday, October 28, 2021 at 10:04 AM
To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED LAUNCHES NEW CLIMATE
RESILIENCE PROGRAM
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Thursday, October 28, 2021
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org
 
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED LAUNCHES NEW CLIMATE

RESILIENCE PROGRAM
Multi-agency effort—ClimateSF—brings City partners together to coordinate on climate

change mitigation and adaptation and to ensure San Francisco becomes more resilient to the
threats of climate change

 
San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today launched ClimateSF, a comprehensive
multi-agency effort to guide San Francisco’s climate resilience efforts, led by the Mayor’s
Office and the San Francisco Office of Resilience and Capital Planning, Planning Department,
Department of the Environment, Port of San Francisco, and the San Francisco Public Utilities
Commission.
 
ClimateSF pulls critical partner agencies together to establish goals and take collective action
on climate resilience planning, policy, and guidance across the city – from local decision-
makers and City staff to neighborhood leaders, seniors, youth, families, and residents. This
focus on climate resilience allows the City to merge adaptation and mitigation efforts into one
coordinated approach, with a central focus on racial and social equity, healthy communities,
just transition, connection to nature, and innovation. Moving forward, ClimateSF will be
focused on several key deliverables.
 
These deliverables include:

mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
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https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/
mailto:mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org
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1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, ROOM 200 
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
Multi-agency effort—ClimateSF—brings City partners together to coordinate on climate change 


mitigation and adaptation and to ensure San Francisco becomes more resilient to the threats of 


climate change 


 


San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today launched ClimateSF, a comprehensive 


multi-agency effort to guide San Francisco’s climate resilience efforts, led by the Mayor’s Office 


and the San Francisco Office of Resilience and Capital Planning, Planning Department, 


Department of the Environment, Port of San Francisco, and the San Francisco Public Utilities 


Commission. 


 


ClimateSF pulls critical partner agencies together to establish goals and take collective action on 


climate resilience planning, policy, and guidance across the city – from local decision-makers 


and City staff to neighborhood leaders, seniors, youth, families, and residents. This focus on 


climate resilience allows the City to merge adaptation and mitigation efforts into one coordinated 


approach, with a central focus on racial and social equity, healthy communities, just transition, 


connection to nature, and innovation. Moving forward, ClimateSF will be focused on several key 


deliverables. 


 


These deliverables include: 


• Coordinated engagement on city priorities regarding resilience 


• Developing effective legislative and advocacy strategies 


• Utilizing a citywide climate resilience framework 


• Establishing shared capital planning 


• Funding and financing strategies 


• Setting citywide benchmarks and maintaining a public dashboard to show progress 


• Developing multi-hazard and multi-asset capital planning guidance 


• Upgrading and coordinating City codes and standards 


 


“The City of San Francisco has been a leader in reducing greenhouse gas emissions and 


addressing climate change, and recent events show we need to do more. Extreme heat, poor air 


quality, rising sea levels, floods, and drought are impacting all San Franciscans, especially our 


most vulnerable,” said Mayor Breed. “It is critical that the City eliminate and sequester 


emissions while also safeguarding for current and future hazards. With the launch of ClimateSF, 


we are not only accelerating our actions but also serving as a global model for protecting people, 


communities, and critical assets from climate change now and in the future.” 
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1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, ROOM 200 
SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-4681 


TELEPHONE: (415) 554-6141 


 


 


 


Mayor Breed’s announcement of ClimateSF comes as the United Nation’s Climate Change 


Conference of Parties 26 (COP26) will soon begin in Glasgow, United Kingdom. Over the next 


two weeks, COP26 is a critical opportunity to achieve pivotal, transformational change in global 


climate policy and action. The conference is taking place in the midst of widespread, rapid, and 


intensifying global climate change impacts as well as the COVID-19 pandemic, and presents an 


opportunity for governments to respond to the urgent need to build back better for present and 


future generations. 


 


Subnational governments like San Francisco have an important role to play in meeting reducing 


greenhouse gas emissions and creating a future that is more resilient and sustainable. San 


Francisco recently adopted new science-based climate targets that are in line with the level of 


ambition needed to prevent the worst effects of climate change. Specifically, the City has a goal 


to reduce emissions 61% below 1990 levels by 2030 and reach net-zero emissions by 2040.  


 


In addition to the departments listed above, the ClimateSF partnership includes the San Francisco 


Municipal Transportation Authority, Public Works, and the Department of Public Health, who 


provide services that could be critically impacted by climate change. ClimateSF champions a 


vision on climate resilience and streamlines City responses to promote an equitable, safe, and 


healthy San Francisco for generations to come.  


 


The departments coming together under ClimateSF have worked together on several citywide 


resilience initiatives, including the Sea Level Rise Guidance for Capital Planning, Hazards and 


Climate Resilience Plan, Sea Level Rise Vulnerability and Consequences Assessment, and the 


Islais Creek Southeast Mobility and Adaptation Strategy. Additionally, the City has championed 


critical adaptation projects such as those located at Pier 70, Treasure Island, and the Giants’ 


stadium parking lot. The ClimateSF team also oversees the ongoing work of the Heat and Air 


Quality Resilience Project, which is a cross-departmental effort to identify medium- and long-


term policy solutions for making the entire City and its residents more resilient to heat and poor 


air quality. 


 


The City’s upcoming Climate Action Plan is also integrated into the ClimateSF program. The 


climate action plan, led by the Department of the Environment and with input from other City 


agencies, charts the path to achieve the City’s ambitious emissions targets. The final plan will be 


released later this year. 


 


"ClimateSF is working to define a desired and achievable climate resilient future for the City 


through this coordinated effort to reduce contribution to greenhouse gas emissions and prepare 


for climate change,” said City Administrator Carmen Chu. "We are proud that San Francisco’s 


approach to resilience includes a central focus on racial and social equity, healthy communities, 


just transition, connection to nature, and innovation.” 


 


For more information, visit onesanfrancisco.org/Climate_SF. 


 


### 



https://www.onesanfrancisco.org/Climate_SF





Coordinated engagement on city priorities regarding resilience
Developing effective legislative and advocacy strategies
Utilizing a citywide climate resilience framework
Establishing shared capital planning
Funding and financing strategies
Setting citywide benchmarks and maintaining a public dashboard to show progress
Developing multi-hazard and multi-asset capital planning guidance
Upgrading and coordinating City codes and standards

 
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
emissions while also safeguarding for current and future hazards. With the launch of
ClimateSF, we are not only accelerating our actions but also serving as a global model for
protecting people, communities, and critical assets from climate change now and in the
future.”
 
Mayor Breed’s announcement of ClimateSF comes as the United Nation’s Climate Change
Conference of Parties 26 (COP26) will soon begin in Glasgow, United Kingdom. Over the
next two weeks, COP26 is a critical opportunity to achieve pivotal, transformational change in
global climate policy and action. The conference is taking place in the midst of widespread,
rapid, and intensifying global climate change impacts as well as the COVID-19 pandemic, and
presents an opportunity for governments to respond to the urgent need to build back better for
present and future generations.
 
Subnational governments like San Francisco have an important role to play in meeting
reducing greenhouse gas emissions and creating a future that is more resilient and sustainable.
San Francisco recently adopted new science-based climate targets that are in line with the
level of ambition needed to prevent the worst effects of climate change. Specifically, the City
has a goal to reduce emissions 61% below 1990 levels by 2030 and reach net-zero emissions
by 2040.
 
In addition to the departments listed above, the ClimateSF partnership includes the San
Francisco Municipal Transportation Authority, Public Works, and the Department of Public
Health, who provide services that could be critically impacted by climate change. ClimateSF
champions a vision on climate resilience and streamlines City responses to promote an
equitable, safe, and healthy San Francisco for generations to come.
 
The departments coming together under ClimateSF have worked together on several citywide
resilience initiatives, including the Sea Level Rise Guidance for Capital Planning, Hazards and
Climate Resilience Plan, Sea Level Rise Vulnerability and Consequences Assessment, and the
Islais Creek Southeast Mobility and Adaptation Strategy. Additionally, the City has
championed critical adaptation projects such as those located at Pier 70, Treasure Island, and
the Giants’ stadium parking lot. The ClimateSF team also oversees the ongoing work of the
Heat and Air Quality Resilience Project, which is a cross-departmental effort to identify
medium- and long-term policy solutions for making the entire City and its residents more
resilient to heat and poor air quality.
 



The City’s upcoming Climate Action Plan is also integrated into the ClimateSF program. The
climate action plan, led by the Department of the Environment and with input from other City
agencies, charts the path to achieve the City’s ambitious emissions targets. The final plan will
be released later this year.
 
"ClimateSF is working to define a desired and achievable climate resilient future for the City
through this coordinated effort to reduce contribution to greenhouse gas emissions and prepare
for climate change,” said City Administrator Carmen Chu. "We are proud that San Francisco’s
approach to resilience includes a central focus on racial and social equity, healthy
communities, just transition, connection to nature, and innovation.”
 
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

=

CALASIAN

2 hamber of commerce
































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
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